
Please note:  Certain or all items on this agenda may be recorded on tape 

 
Agenda compiled by: 
Governance Services 
Civic Hall 
LEEDS LS1 1UR 
Telephone No: 
 

 
Maria Lipzith 
 
 
 
247 4353 

Principal Scrutiny Adviser: 
Steven Courtney 
Telephone No: 247 4707 
 
 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 

 
A 

 

 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (ENVIRONMENT AND NEIGHBOURHOODS) 
 

 
Meeting to be held in the Civic Hall, Leeds on 
Wednesday, 19th December, 2007 at 10.00 am 

 
 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Councillors 

 
B Anderson (Chair) - Adel and Wharfedale 

C Beverley - Morley South 

A Blackburn - Farnley and Wortley 

D Coupar - Middleton Park 

Mrs R Feldman - Alwoodley 

A Gabriel - Beeston and Holbeck 

D Hollingsworth - Burmantofts and 
Richmond Hill 

G Hyde - Killingbeck and 
Seacroft 

R Lewis - Pudsey 

A Ogilvie - Beeston and Holbeck 

L Rhodes-Clayton - Hyde Park and 
Woodhouse 

F Robinson - Calverley and 
Farsley 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

B 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

1   
 

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 25 of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the 
press and public will be excluded.) 
 

 

2   
 

  EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 
To identify items where resolutions may be moved 
to exclude the public. 
 

 

3   
 

  LATE ITEMS 
 
To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration. 
 
(The special circumstances shall be specified in 
the minutes.) 
 

 

4   
 

  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
To declare any personal / prejudicial interests for 
the purpose of Section 81 (3) of the Local 
Government Act 2000 and paragraphs 8 to 12 of 
the Members Code of Conduct. 
 

 

5   
 

  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

 

6   
 

  MINUTES AND MATTERS ARISING FROM 
PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
To receive and approve the minutes of the 
previous meeting held on 21st  November 2007. 
  
 
 

1 - 8 



 

 
C 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

7   
 

  MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 
To receive and note the minutes of the Executive 
Board meeting held on 14th November 2007. 
 
 

9 - 20 

8   
 

  WASTE SOLUTION FOR LEEDS 
 
To consider a report by the Head of Scrutiny and 
Member Development as part of the Inquiry into 
waste and recycling. 
 
  
 

21 - 
106 

9   
 

  WORK PROGRAMME 
 
To consider a report of the Head of Scrutiny and 
Member Development on the Board’s work 
programme. 
 
 

107 - 
124 

10   
 

  DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 
 
Wednesday, 30th January 2008 at 10.00 a.m. (Pre-
meeting for Board Members at 9.30 a.m.) 
 
 

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 19th December, 2007 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (ENVIRONMENT AND NEIGHBOURHOODS) 
 

WEDNESDAY, 21ST NOVEMBER, 2007 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor B Anderson in the Chair 

 Councillors C Beverley, A Blackburn, 
D Coupar, Mrs R Feldman, A Gabriel, 
D Hollingsworth, G Hyde and F Robinson 

 
 
 

46 Chair's Opening Remarks  
 

The Chair formally welcomed Steven Courtney, the newly appointed Principal 
Scrutiny Adviser who has joined Leeds City Council from Bradford City 
Council and is an experienced Scrutiny Adviser. 
 
The Chair also welcomed students from Trinity and All Saints College who 
attended the meeting to observe a Scrutiny Board in operation.  For the 
benefit of those students present, Members were asked to introduce 
themselves and to indicate the political party they represent. 
 

47 Declarations of Interest  
 

That the following personal interests were declared regarding Agenda Item 9 
– Performance Report (Minute 53 refers) and Agenda Item 11 – Rodent 
Control in Leeds (Minute 55 refers): 
 

• Councillor B Anderson in his capacity as Chair of West/North West 
Homes.  

• Councillor A Blackburn in her capacity as a Director of West/North West 
Homes.  

• Councillor D Coupar in her capacity as a Member of Belle Isle Tenants 
Management Organisation. 

• Councillor D Hollingsworth in his capacity as a Director of East/North 
East Homes. 

• Councillor G Hyde in his capacity as a Director of East/North East 
Homes. 

 
 

48 Apologies for Absence  
 

Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Councillor R A Lewis and 
Councillor A Ogilvie. 
 

49 Minutes of Previous Meeting - 24th October 2007  
 

RESOLVED -  That the minutes of the last Scrutiny Board (Environment and 
Neighbourhoods) held on 24th October 2007 be confirmed as a correct record. 

Agenda Item 6

Page 1



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 19th December, 2007 

 

 
50 Matters Arising from the Minutes  
 

Minute 37 – Matters Arising  
 
The Chair informed the Board that a list of the original sites considered for the 
proposed energy from waste plant would now be included on the December 
2007 agenda.  
 
Councillor Coupar expressed her disappointment that it was now the third 
meeting that this information had been requested for scrutiny purposes and it 
was felt that Members should have been provided with this information more 
speedily.   
 
The Chair informed the meeting that he would make arrangements to send 
Members of the Board an electronic reference to allow them to access the 
information, which was now in the public domain. 
 
Minute 40 – Voids and Empty Properties Update     
 
Members confirmed that they were satisfied with the information they had 
received on void and empty properties relating to the Manor Farm, Cross 
Green and East End Park Estates.   
 

51 Minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
 

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
meeting held on 19th October 2007 be received and noted. 
 

52 Minutes of the Executive Board  
 

RESOLVED -  That the minutes of the Executive Board meetings held on 11th 
September 2007 and 17th October 2007 be received and noted. 
 

53 Performance Report Quarter 2 2007/08  
 

The Head of Policy, Performance and Improvement submitted a report 
presenting the key areas of under performance at the end of Quarter 2 (1st 
July to 30th September 2007). 
 
Neil Evans, Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods was in attendance 
and responded to Members’ questions and comments. 
 
In summary, specific reference was made to the following issues:- 
 

• The need for assurances that the service provided by the Council with 
regard to abandoned vehicles will continue after NRA funding ceases in 
March 2008. (In response, the Director informed the meeting that any 
opportunities to access external funding would be maximised.  The Board 

Page 2



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 19th December, 2007 

 

was also informed that the Department’s budget submission would include 
funding elements for this service area.) 

• An explanation as to why the Council has problems with Police resources 
when dealing with abandoned vehicles and whether these resources will  
improve in the near future.  (In response, the Director informed the 
meeting that he would like to investigate this matter further and will supply 
Members with this information).   

• An explanation as to why the contract for the removal of abandoned 
vehicles had been awarded to a company based in Doncaster rather than 
a Leeds based contractor.  (In response the Director informed the meeting 
that the contract had been tendered through the Procurement Unit with 
contract conditions specifying response times.  It was further highlighted to 
the Board that there had been a significant improvement in response 
times, which had reduced from eight days to 3½ hours). 

• Clarification on the various performance figures relating to decency 
standards. (In response, the Director informed the meeting that, while  the 
component (rather than the whole house) approach to undertake the 
works was generally regarded as being more efficient, this was likely to 
impact on the performance indicator – with performance seemingly 
remaining static, until the final components had been completed.) 

• Clarification on concerns around ‘addressing domestic violence’. (In 
response, the Director informed the meeting that the increased actions 
against perpetrators was expected to encourage more women to come 
forward but across West Yorkshire there had been a fall in reported 
incidents of domestic violence.  The Director also informed the meeting 
that he would investigate this matter further and will supply Members with 
this information).   

• Concern was expressed that some households still do not have access to 
kerbside collection of recyclables and that Leeds’ performance only ranked 
4th when compared to other Core City comparators. Members also 
expressed some concern that households may eventually end up with a 
total of four bins for collection. (In response, the Director informed the 
meeting of the Council’s successful (brown bin) pilot scheme which will be 
extended to include other areas of the city, with an anticipated city-wide 
roll out during 2008/09 and 2009/10.  The Director also highlighted that it 
was important to recognise that in some instances different solutions were 
needed to meet specific/ individual need.)   

• Members expressed concern at the lack of performance information in 
relation to dealing with anti-social behaviour.  (In response, the Director 
informed the meeting that there were no national figures on anti-social 
behaviour but  that the department does keep records of the figures on 
how many inquiries the Council receives and what action is taken. It was 
indicated that these figures could be made available to Members). 

 
The Chair thanked the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods for his 
attendance.  
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the contents of the report and appendices be noted. 

Page 3



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 19th December, 2007 

 

(b) That the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods be requested to 
supply Board Members with the: 

 
(i)  Performance information in relation to anti-social behaviour; and,  
(ii)  Outcome of the further investigation into the level of Police 
 resources dealing with abandoned vehicles. 

 
(Note:   Councillor C Beverley arrived at the meeting at approximately  
10.20 a.m. during consideration of the above item.) 
 

54 Outcomes of Research into the Housing Market in Leeds  
 

The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report on the 
outcomes of research into the housing market in Leeds, together with a 
detailed presentation document on the New Housing Market in Leeds which 
sets out: 
 

• An overview of the research 

• The current Leeds Housing Markets – key issues across the housing 
market zones. 

• Emerging demand for both owner occupied and social housing. 

• The change in the size of properties across the city. 

• Entry level salaries for buyers across the city. 

• An overall assessment of the targets to increase affordable housing and 
current delivery. 

• The effects of the changes to the levels of affordable housing on a 
scheme.  

 
Paul Langford, Chief Housing Services Officer presented the report and gave 
detailed responses to Members’ questions and comments.  
 
In brief, specific reference was made to the following issues:- 
 

• The need for a ward-by-ward breakdown of those households surveyed as 
part of the Housing Market Assessment project. 

• The need to provide Members with affordability information for the south 
side of Leeds. 

• Clarification on the proportion of the 77 acres of land identified for 
development where clearance/ demolition was needed. 

• Point of clarification that it was ‘Beeston Hill’ and not ‘Beeston’ that had 
been identified as an area for development. 

• Clarification on the distinction between the various housing market zones .   

• The supply of rented social housing and clarification on the number of 
Council properties to be demolished and replaced. 

• The supply of housing for the elderly, such as flats and bungalows, for the 
scheme of 150 properties in Roundhay/ Moortown.   

• The patterns of demand relating to households seeking to buy.    

• How the Council proposes to ensure developers deliver the necessary 
levels of affordable housing in Leeds.   

Page 4



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 19th December, 2007 

 

• Use of the Council’s planning powers to address issues such as, further 
developments of apartments in the City Centre and multiple unit 
purchasing on developments.  

• The Council’s role in facilitating the development and availability of shared 
ownership mortgage products and the like.  

• The need to increase the supply of housing in general, including number of 
affordable homes for families and others. 

• The availability of land and the need to consider developing green and 
brown field sites. 

• The need to translate and use government guidelines to develop an 
affordable homes strategy and delivery plan for Leeds. Members felt that 
the income levels shown in the statistics were not representative of the 
true level of earnings for many of the people of Leeds, especially the low 
income earners. 

• Members requested regular updates following the Strategic Affordable 
Housing Partnership meetings and that a report be submitted to a future 
meeting of the Board, outlining the Future Housing Vision and the 
associated delivery plan.    

 
Further discussions ensued relating to the history of the many back-to-back 
properties in Leeds, whether properties in multiple occupation usually 
reserved for the student population could be converted back into family 
homes and the Council’s incentives to re-house the elderly who are over 
housed.  
 
The Chair thanked Paul Langford for his attendance. 
 
RESOLVED -  
(a) That the contents of the report and appendices be noted. 
(b) That the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods  
 submits a further report outlining the Future Housing Vision and the 

associated delivery plan. 
(c ) That the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods provides regular 

updates to the Board, following the Strategic Affordable Housing 
Partnership meetings.    

 
55 Rodent Control in Leeds  
 

The Chief Environmental Health Officer submitted a report on the incidence of 
rodents in Leeds, the Council’s obligations under the prevention of Damage 
by Pets Act, the structure and performance of the Pest Control Service and 
further opportunities to develop the service and improve service standards. 
 
Keith Gibson, Environmental Health Manager presented the report and 
responded to Members’ questions and comments. 
 
In brief, the main issues raised were:- 
 

• The move towards a pest management rather than a pest control 
approach, which included a partnership arrangement that provided an 

Page 5



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 19th December, 2007 

 

incentive to reduce the rat population in Leeds.  It was outlined to the 
Board that one of the aims of the partnership arrangement was to address 
the rising number of rats and other pests on the streets and in people’s 
homes. 

• The need for more pro-active work to educate people on the proper 
disposal of food waste, such as takeaways, and the opportunities for new 
ways of working around prevention that the partnership arrangements 
would help to facilitate.  It was suggested that pictorial messages could be 
used to get key messages across to the public.  

• Clarification that the contractors are meeting the five working day target to 
respond to complaints of rodents in Leeds.  (The Officer informed the 
meeting that he would provide Board Members with this data via email). 

• Clarification of the charges for the removal of wasps’ nests for the elderly. 
 
The Chair thanked Keith Gibson for his attendance. 
  
RESOLVED -  
(a) That the contents of the report be noted. 
(b) That the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submit an 

 update report within the next six months detailing the progress of the 
partnership arrangement and outlining the preventative and educational 
work being undertaken.     

 
56 CO2 Emissions  
 

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report outlining 
details at Appendix 1 of the first meeting of the CO2 Emissions Working 
Group held on 1st November 2007.  This presented a number of preliminary 
recommendations.  
 
RESOLVED -  
(a) That the contents of the report and appendices be noted. 
(b) That the preliminary recommendations be endorsed. 
(c ) To note that further meetings of the Working Group are to be held, the 

outcomes of which will be reported back to the Board. 
 

57 Work Programme  
 

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report on the 
Board’s current work programme and Forward Plan of Key Decisions for    
November 2007 to February 2008. 
 
A further Forward Plan of Key Decisions for the period 1st December 2007 to 
31st March 2008 was tabled at the meeting. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the report and appendices be received and noted. 
(b) That a further ‘Future Housing Vision’ report and a six month update 

report on Rodent Control in Leeds (as discussed elsewhere on the 
agenda)  be included in the work programme. 

Page 6



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 19th December, 2007 

 

(c) That the following reports, identified on the Forward Plan of Key 
Decisions (1 December 2007 to 31 March 2008) be actioned 
accordingly: 

 
 (i) Leeds Climate Change Strategy – to be considered by the CO2 
  Working Group, as appropriate; 
 

(ii) Home Energy Conservation Act 11th Report – to be circulated to 
 Members of the Board. 
 

(d) That the Principal Scrutiny Adviser review the outcomes from the 
Boards previous meeting during the current municipal year, to identify 
any outstanding issues. 

 
58 Date and Time of Next Meeting  
 

Wednesday, 19th December 2007 at 10.00 a.m.  in the Civic Hall, Leeds (Pre-
meeting for Board Members at 9.30 a.m.) 
 
 
 
 
The Chair thanked everyone for their attendance.  The meeting concluded at 
approximately 11.50 a.m.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 19th December, 2007 

 

EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY, 14TH NOVEMBER, 2007 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor M Harris in the Chair 

 Councillors A Carter, R Brett, J L Carter, 
R Finnigan, R Harker, P Harrand, J Procter, 
S Smith, K Wakefield and J Blake 

 
   Councillor J Blake – Non-voting Advisory Member 
 
 

103 Late Items  
There were no late items but additional information had been provided since 
the despatch of the agenda with regard to the Review of 14-19 Provision in 
Leeds. 
 

104 Exclusion of Public  
RESOLVED – That the public be excluded from the meeting  during 
consideration of the following parts of the agenda designated as exempt on 
the ground that it is likely, in the view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of proceedings, that if members of the public were 
present there would be a disclosure to them of exempt information so 
designated as follows: 
 
(a) The annex to the report referred to in minute 115 under the terms of 

Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4 (3) and on the grounds that 
the information contained in the annexe relates to the financial or 
business affairs of the Council.  It is considered that the release of such 
information would or would be likely to prejudice the Council’s 
commercial interests in relation to the disposal of this property or other 
similar transactions about the nature and level of offers which may 
prove acceptable to the Council.  It is considered that whilst there may 
be a public interest in disclosure, much of this information will be 
publicly available from the Land Registry following completion of this 
transaction and consequently the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing this information at 
this point in time. 

 
(b) Appendices 1, 2 and 4 to the report referred to in minute 121 under the 

terms of Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and on the 
grounds that the public interest in maintaining the exemption in relation 
to appendices 1,2 and 4 attached to the report outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information by reason of the fact that in 
relation to Appendix 1 and 2, the success of the scheme could 
potentially be prejudiced by speculative investors acquiring properties 
in advance of the Council’s action, and in respect of Appendix 4, the 
costs attributed to the purchase of private properties are purely 
estimates at this stage and their disclosure could prejudice the 

Agenda Item 7

Page 9



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 19th December, 2007 

 

Council’s ability to reach an agreement on the purchase price with 
owners. 

 
(c) Appendix 1 to the report referred to in minute 123 under the terms of 

Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and because publication 
could prejudice the City Council’s commercial interests as, both this 
Appendix and the Outline Business Case include matters where 
negotiations of a confidential nature will ensue with bidders.  In these 
circumstances it is considered that the public interest in not disclosing 
this commercial information outweighs the interests of public 
disclosure. 

 
105 Declaration of Interests  

Councillor Wakefield declared a personal interest in the item relating to the 
Review of 14-19 Provision in Leeds (minute 108) as a member of the 
Learning and Skills Council. 
 
Councillor Smith declared a personal interest in the item relating to a Waste 
Solution for Leeds (minute 119) as a member of Greenpeace. 
 
Councillor Harris declared a personal and prejudicial interest in the item 
relating to The Trinity Quarter and Leeds Shopping Plaza (minute 117) having 
been significantly involved in a fringe meeting sponsored by the principal 
developer for the scheme. 
 
A further declaration made during the meeting (Councillor Harris) is referred to 
at minute 123. 
 
 

106 Minutes  
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 17th October 2007 be 
approved and that with reference to minute 102(b) the considerations of the 
Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) and their decision not to further 
scrutinise the matter referred to be noted. 
 
LEISURE 
 

107 Tinshill Recreation Ground  
Further to minute 87(d) of the meeting held on 17th October 2007 the Chief 
Recreation Officer submitted a report on the arrangements for access to two 
pitches which are to be fenced and which are part of Tinshill Recreation 
Ground. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the report be noted and the following arrangements approved: 

• The substantial improvements to the pitches at Tinshill Recreation 
Ground 

• The letting of the pitches at Tinshill Recreation Ground through the 
Parks and Countryside annual allocation process 

• The allocation of an on site gardener to Tinshill Recreation Ground 

Page 10



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 19th December, 2007 

 

• The development of the pilot project for allocations to the changing 
facilities and car parking at Ralph Thoresby School and the pitches 
at Tinshill Recreation Ground 

(b) That reports be brought back to this Board on an annual basis with 
regard to the operation of these arrangements, including  information 
with regard to frequency and patterns of usage under former 
arrangements and these arrangements. 

 
(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5 Councillor Wakefield 
required it to be recorded that he voted against these decisions) 
 
CHILDREN'S SERVICES 
 

108 Review of 14-19 Provision in Leeds  
A report of the Chief Executive of Education Leeds on the consultation 
arrangements of the Learning and Skills Council in relation to proposals for 
the reorganisation of FE colleges in Leeds had been circulated with the 
agenda.  Consultation had commenced on 8th November 2007 and was 
scheduled to end on 5th December 2007. 
 
Following publication of the Learning and Skills Council proposals a report of 
the Director of Children’s Services and Chief Executive of Education Leeds 
offering views on the proposals had been circulated to the Board.  A report on 
the observations of the Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) had also been 
circulated. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the views expressed in the report of the Director of Children’s 

Services and Chief Executive of Education Leeds be approved for use 
in formulating the Council’s official response to the consultation on the 
proposal for the changes to Further Education Colleges in Leeds. 

(b) That the Chief Executive of Education Leeds be authorised to draft a 
detailed response in consultation with the Executive Member 
(Learning) for approval and signature by the Leader of Council. 

(c) That the Chief Executive of Education Leeds be requested to have due 
regard to the observations of the Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services). 

 
ADULT HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE 
 

109 The Outcome of Consultation and the Proposed Procurement Methods 
for the Future Provision of the Service at Terry Yorath House  
The Director of Adult Social Services submitted a report on the outcome of 
consultation with disabled adults in Leeds and the detailed assessed needs of 
the current residents of Terry Yorath House. 
 
RESOLVED –That the outcome of the consultation process be noted, that the 
commitments given to those residents who wish to remain in residential care 
at Terry Yorath House be endorsed and that the “twin-track” approach to the 
future development and the procurement of accommodation services for 
disabled people in Leeds be approved. 

Page 11



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 19th December, 2007 

 

 
CENTRAL AND CORPORATE 
 

110 Capital Programme - 2007/08 Mid Year Financial Update  
The Director of Resources submitted a report on the latest financial position in 
respect of the 2007/08 Capital Programme highlighting some capital 
expenditure and funding changes that have arisen since the Programme was 
approved in February 2007 and since the subsequent update report to the 
Executive Board on 22nd August 2007. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the latest position of the Capital Programme 2007/08 and the 

projections for 2008/09 to 2010/11 be noted. 
(b) That approval be given to the injection in 2007/08 of £2,177,000 of 

Leeds resources for the additional site related costs associated with 
the Combined Secondary Schools PFI project and that authority be 
given to spend such amount. 

(c) That approval be given to the injection in 2007/08 of £622,000 of Leeds 
resources for the additional accommodation works at 225 York Road 
for the Taxi and Private Hire Licensing Section. 

(d) That the Board notes that any additional capital resources required to 
support the Roundhay Mansion scheme will be considered as part of 
the February 2008 capital programme update. 

(e) That approval be given to the transfer of £6,350,000 from the East 
Leeds Family Learning Centre scheme to the capital contingency 
scheme to be released at a later date when requirements for the East 
Leeds site are known. 

  
(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5 Councillor Wakefield 
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting in relation to (e) 
above) 
 

111 Revenue Expenditure - Mid Year Update  
The Director of Resources submitted a report setting out the Council’s 
financial health for 2007/08 after six months of the financial year.  The report 
covered revenue expenditure and income to date compared to the approved 
budget, the projected year end position and proposed actions to ensure a 
balanced budget by the year end. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the projected financial position of the authority after six months of 

the new financial year be noted. 
(b) That Council be recommended to approve the appropriate budget 

adjustments as described in paragraph 3.9 of the report. 
(c) That the decision of the Leader, Chief Executive and Director of 

Resources to approve the Annual efficiency statement – mid year 
update 2007 for submission to the Department for Communities and 
Local Government by 15th November 2007 be noted. 

 

Page 12



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 19th December, 2007 

 

(Under the provision of Council Procedure Rule 16.5 Councillor Wakefield 
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on this matter) 
 

112 Treasury Management Strategy Update 2007/08  
The Director of Resources submitted a report providing a review and update 
of the treasury management strategy for 2007/08. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

113 Pre Budget Report and Comprehensive Spending Review 2007  
The Director of Resources submitted a report outlining the announcements 
made by the Chancellor of the Exchequer in the Pre-Budget Report and the 
Comprehensive Spending Review that directly relate to local government. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

114 The Statement of Licensing Policy for Leeds 2007-2010  
The Assistant Chief Executive (Corporate Governance) submitted a report on 
consultation that has been undertaken under the Licensing Act 2003 and the 
resulting draft Statement of Licensing Policy for Leeds 2007-2010. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That having considered the proposed responses to matters raised in 

consultation, as set out in Appendix 1 to the report, this Board 
recommends to Council that it be approved as the response of Leeds 
City Council to the matters raised in consultation. 

(b) That having considered the evidence set out in Appendix 2 to the 
report and the consultation responses on the proposals on cumulative 
impact, this Board recommends to full Council that the Statement of 
Licensing Policy includes cumulative impact policies in respect of the 
city centre, Headingley, Hyde Park and Woodhouse, Chapel Allerton 
and Horsforth. 

(c) That the contents of the revised draft Statement of Licensing Policy at 
Appendix 3 to the report be noted and that Council be recommended to 
adopt this policy, including the cumulative impact policies referred to at 
(b) above, as the Statement of Licensing Policy for Leeds 2007/2010. 

(d) That the Assistant Chief Executive (Corporate Governance) provide 
advice  to Council members as to how reviews of the Statement can be 
triggered and give consideration as to how full Council could be given 
the opportunity to debate such Policies in detail at the early stage of 
proposals being formulated. 

 
DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION 
 

115 Former Headingley Primary School  
Further to minute 68 of the meeting of the Board held on 11th September 2007 
the Directors of City Development and Environment and Neighbourhoods 
submitted a report on the request made by the Headingley Development Trust 
to transfer the former Headingley Primary School site to the Trust at nil 
consideration so that it can be developed as an enterprise and arts centre. 

Page 13



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 19th December, 2007 

 

 
Following consideration of the appendix to the report designated as exempt 
under Access to Information Procedure rule 10.4(3), which was considered in 
private at the conclusion of the meeting, it was: 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the Headingley Development Trust be given an in-principle 

agreement that the Council will grant a long-leasehold interest at nil 
premium and at a peppercorn rent subject to the Trust demonstrating 
by 30 June 2008 that it has made substantial progress towards 
achieving all of its funding arrangements and to the Trust agreeing to 
take on all financial and other responsibility for delivering the services 
provided from the Headingley Community Centre for a period of 25 
years. 

(b) That should the Trust not have made that substantial progress by 30 
June 2008 the Director of City Development proceed with the open 
marketing of the former primary school as part of the Capital Receipts 
programme. 

(c) That the Trust’s application to the Community Asset Transfer Fund be 
supported and, the Partnership Agreement as set out in Appendix 1 be 
approved and the Chief Executive be authorised to sign the relevant 
part of that application on behalf of the Council to allow its submission 
by the deadline date of 15 November 2007. 

(d) That in view of the deadline date specified in (c) above this decision be 
exempted from the provisions of Call In. 

(e) That, subject to the Trust being able to complete its funding 
arrangements and open the proposed HEART centre, the Director of 
City Development be instructed to make arrangements for the disposal 
of the Headingley Community Centre, at open market value, once it 
becomes vacant. 

 
116 Horsefair, Wetherby - Pedestrian Improvements Scheme  

The Directors of Environment and Neighbourhoods and City Development 
submitted a report on a proposal to spend £606,000 of Town and District 
Centre Regeneration Fund monies to deliver a pedestrian improvement 
scheme on Horsefair, Wetherby. 
 
RESOLVED -  That the report and the detailed design of the scheme be noted 
and authority be given to spend £606,000 of Town and District Centres 
Regeneration Fund monies on the scheme. 
 

117 The Trinity Quarter and Leeds Shopping Plaza  
Referring to minutes 74 to 80 of the meeting of the Board held on 29th 
September 2004 the Director of City Development submitted a report on the 
proposed transfer of the existing development agreement and compulsory 
purchase indemnity agreement from the Universities Superannuation Scheme 
Limited to Trinity Quarter Developments Limited. 
 
RESOLVED – 

Page 14



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 19th December, 2007 

 

(a) That approval be given to the transfer of the development agreement 
and CPO indemnity agreement from USS to TQD and that approval be 
given to the form of the guarantee of TQD’s obligations by LandSec 
and Caddick on the terms outlined in the report, subject to Land 
Securities Trinity Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary of Land Securities 
Property Holdings Ltd) completing their shareholders agreement such 
that 75% of the shares in TQD are owned by Land Securities Trinity 
Limited and 25% by Caddick Group PLC. 

(b) That the “transfer” be approved on the following basis: 
(i) The entering into of a new development agreement (and 

ultimately a lease) with TQD on substantially the same terms as 
the original agreement with USS subject to the amendments 
outlined in the report. 

(ii) Approve and enter into the novation (transfer) of the existing 
CPO indemnity agreement from USS to TQD with the Caddick 
Group PLC and Land Securities Property Holdings Ltd entering 
into a guarantee with the Council relating to the Development 
Agreement, Lease and CPO Indemnity Agreement as outlined in 
the report. 

(iii) That following the novation of the CPO indemnity agreement 
from USS to TQD, USS will no longer have any financial liability 
to the Council and will be released from all liabilities under the 
existing development agreement. 

 
(Having declared a personal and prejudicial interest Councillor Harris left the 
meeting during consideration of this matter and vacated the Chair in favour of 
Councillor A Carter) 
 

118 Kirkgate Market - Development Strategy Update  
Further to minute 27 of the meeting of the Board held on 18th May 2005 the 
Director of City Development submitted a report on progress made in 
formulating the Kirkgate Market Asset Management Plan and on a proposal to 
move onto the next stage of public consultation. 
 
RESOLVED – That the public consultation leaflet and questionnaire be 
approved and authority given for commencement of the public consultation 
exercise as soon as practicable. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 
 

119 Waste Solution For Leeds  
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report on the 
proposed submission of an Outline Business Case to DEFRA for PFI credits 
to support the proposed Residual Waste Treatment project. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the report be noted; 
(b) That the submission of the Outline Business Case for the Residual 

Waste Treatment project to DEFRA be approved; 

Page 15



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 19th December, 2007 

 

(c) That the proposed recycling strategy approved by this Board on 11 
September 2007 be further noted with particular reference to the 
proposals to retain a weekly kerbside collection, and to the fact that it is 
not the Council’s intention to introduce new charging schemes for 
waste collection; 

(d) That the Board notes that the submission of the bid will be based upon 
a reference site and technology, with no implication that Leeds City 
Council land or Energy from Waste constitute preferred options; 

(e) That the procurement shall proceed on a neutral technology and site 
basis in accordance with government advice; 

(f) That the Board accepts the affordability implications of the Outline 
Business Case and of entering into a PFI contract for the treatment of 
residual waste from April 2014 to March 2038 as set out in Table 2 of 
the report; 

(g) That approval be given to the submission of the Outline Business Case 
in the knowledge that both the procurement process and prevailing 
macro-economic conditions may affect the Unitary Charge at Financial 
Close in April 2011, as illustrated at paragraph 8.6 of the report and in 
Table 4; 

(h) That approval be given to the project governance arrangements 
outlined in section 11 of the report, including the establishment of the 
Residual Waste Treatment Project Board (with delegated powers), and 
that delegated authority be given to the Deputy Chief Executive, in 
consultation with the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods, to 
extend the responsibilities of the Residual Waste Treatment Project 
Board and to establish one or more new Project Boards (with 
delegated powers) in order to support the Director of Environment and 
Neighbourhoods in the delivery of the wider Waste Solution; 

(i) That the intention to bring further reports to this Board prior to the 
commencement of the procurement regarding the project evaluation 
model be noted; 

(j) That decisions on the sale and purchase of LATS be delegated to the 
Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods, in consultation with the 
Director of Resources, at what is considered to be the best achievable 
price. 

 
(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5 Councillor Wakefield 
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on this matter) 
 
NEIGHBOURHOODS AND HOUSING 
 

120 Beeston Group Repair  
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report on a 
proposal to inject £2,099,000 of Regional Housing Board money and 
£233,300 from owner occupiers into the Capital Programme to extend the life 
of approximately 60 properties in the Beeston area by 30 years. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That approval be given to the injection into the Capital Programme of 

£2,099,600 of Regional Housing Board money and of £233,300 from 

Page 16



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 19th December, 2007 

 

owner occupiers and that scheme expenditure of £2,333,000 be 
authorised. 

(b) That a report be brought back to this Board on progress of the scheme. 
 

121 Regeneration of Holbeck, Phase 3  
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report on the 
options for the regeneration of the Holbeck area and the proposed acquisition 
and clearance of 34 properties within Holbeck by utilising £2,000,000 of 
‘Single Regional Housing Pot’ funding during 2007/09. 
 
The report presented the options of: 
 
A Doing the minimum to meet legal conformity 
B Group repair and internal modelling 
C Acquisition, clearance and redevelopment of the site for housing 
 
Following consideration of appendices 1, 2 and 4 designated as exempt under 
Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3), which were circulated and 
considered in private at the conclusion of the meeting, it was 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That approval be given to the injection into the capital programme of 

£2,000,000 of Regional Housing Board funding to enable Phase 3 of 
the Holbeck scheme to be brought forward. 

(b) That scheme expenditure to the amount of £2,000,000 be authorised. 
(c) That the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods proceed in 

accordance with option C and be authorised, in consultation as 
necessary, to promote Compulsory Purchase Orders should they 
become necessary. 

 
122 Area Management Review  

The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report on a 
number of strands of work undertaken by officers as part of a review of area 
management, proposing a number of key recommendations with indicative 
timescales aimed at strengthening the roles and responsibilities of Area 
Committees. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the recommended changes to Area Committee responsibilities 

and working arrangements together with the proposed timetable for 
their introduction be approved. 

(b) That the proposals for local partnership working arrangements be 
approved. 

(c)       That Councillor Chapman be thanked for her work, as Lead Member 
(Neighbourhoods and Housing), in producing a report on proposals to 
develop area management and area committees in Leeds.  

  
123 Beeston Hill and Holbeck Housing PFI Scheme  

The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report on the 
proposed Outline Business Case (OBC) for the Beeston Hill and Holbeck 

Page 17



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 19th December, 2007 

 

Private Finance Initiative (PFI) scheme, including the scope of the scheme 
and the financial implications for the Council. 
 
The report referred to the appraisal of four options of decency; regeneration 
via a PFI contract and complementary development agreements with the 
private sector; stock transfer; and joint venture partnership. 
 
Following consideration of appendix 1, including minor amendments to figures 
as reported at the meeting, designated as exempt under Access to 
Information Procedure Rule 10.4(1), which was considered in private at the 
conclusion of the meeting, it was 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That approval be given to the preferred option, as described in 

paragraph 3.3 of the report, to be procured via a PFI contract and 
associated Development Agreement alongside the Little London PFI 
scheme. 

(b) That the proposed Council contributions to the project as identified in 
section 3.6 and appendix 1 of the report be approved. 

(c) That the Outline Business Case for the Beeston Hill and Holbeck PFI 
scheme as described in paragraph 3 of the report be formally 
submitted to the Department for Communities and Local Government. 

(d) That approval be given to the inclusion of the following sites within the 
Beeston Hill and Holbeck PFI scheme and to the utilisation of capital 
receipts from the disposal of these sites to support the PFI scheme and 
regeneration proposals for the Beeston Hill and Hobeck area: 

 Holbeck Tower 
 Malvern Rise / Malvern Grove 
 St Luke’s Green 
 Waverley Garth 
 Coupland Place 
 Malvern Road 
 Coupland Road 
 Bismarck Drive 
 Bismarck Street 
 Fairfaxes 
 Meynall Heights 
 Beverleys 
 Folly Lane 
 Cambrian Street 
(e) That the Matthew Murray site be disposed of prior to the 

commencement of the PFI scheme (as described in 5.10 of the report) 
with the balance of the capital receipt after BSF call to be used to 
support the regeneration programme for the area. 

(f) That Moor Road be excluded from the PFI scheme. 
(g) That affordable housing provision should be at up to 40% including 

new LCC new housing for most sites included in the PFI scheme. 
(h) That the City Council’s base annual affordability contribution of 

£592,000 per annum in the first year of operation be approved. 

Page 18



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 19th December, 2007 

 

(i) That the joint affordability implications for the joint procurement of the 
Little London and Beeston Hill and Holbeck scheme as set out at 
paragraph 5.0 of appendix 1 of the report be approved. 

(j) That the costs of acquiring leaseholder interests in order to deliver the 
scheme, estimated up to £1,300,000 be met by the Council or Aire 
Valley Homes Limited. 

(k) That the following be noted: 
(i) the estimated PFI cash flows summarised in Table 2 of 

paragraph 3 of Appendix 1 to the report and set out in detail in 
the Annexe to that Appendix; 

(ii) that the Financial Close for this project is programmed for 
September 2009 and the macro-economic conditions and price 
submissions by bidders may vary between the date of this 
meeting of the Executive Board and Financial Close. Section 4 
in the financial appendix to the report set out the range of price 
sensitivities that could affect the affordability of the project and 
the submission of the Outline Business Case is approved in the 
knowledge that both the procurement process and prevailing 
macro-economic conditions may affect the Unitary Charge at 
Financial Close in September 2009; 

(iii) that at this stage the impact of the joint procurement on the 
affordability of the Little London project as agreed by Executive 
Board in November 2006 is neutral and that the Little London 
project is therefore still affordable. 

 
(Councillor Harris declared a personal and prejudicial interest in this matter 
arising from his personal commercial activities, vacated the Chair in favour of 
Councillor A Carter and left the room for the duration of the discussion  and 
voting thereon) 
 

124 Councillor Harris  
Noting that this was the last meeting of the Board which would be chaired by 
Councillor Harris the Board thanked him for his services in that capacity and 
offered him their best wishes. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DATE OF PUBLICATION:  16TH NOVEMBER 2007 
LAST DATE FOR CALL IN: 23RD NOVEMBER 2007 
 
(Scrutiny Support will notify Directors of any items called in by 12 noon on 
Monday 26th November) 
 
 
 

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny Support and Member Development 
 
Scrutiny Board (Environment and Neighbourhoods) 
 
Date: 19 December  2007 
 
Subject: Waste Solution for Leeds 
 

        
 
 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 At the beginning of the municipal year, as part of the discussions around its work 

work programme, Members identified ‘waste’ and ‘recycling’ as key issues for the 
Board to consider: These issues continue to be priorities for the Board. 

 
1.2 As part of an Integrated Waste Strategy for Leeds, which sets out to reduce the 

impact of waste on the environment, the Council has set out to reduce waste 
generation, reuse waste, increase recycling, recover value from non-recycled waste 
and significantly reduce the amount of waste going to landfill, with an aspiration to 
send zero waste to landfill.   

 
1.3 Attached at Annex 1 is the Executive Board report considered on 14 November 2007.  

The purpose of this report was to obtain Executive Board approval for the submission 
of an Outline Business Case (OBC) to DEFRA for PFI credits to support the 
proposed Residual Waste Treatment project.  

 
1.4 Furthermore, the OBC (and appendices) formed an appendix to the Executive Board 

report and was posted on the Council’s website.  These details are available at: 
http://www.leeds.gov.uk/Environment_and_planning/Recycling_rubbish_and_waste/Municipal_waste_
strategy/Outline_business_case_for_waste_treatment_facility.aspx 

 
1.5 Previously, Members of the Board have specifically requested details associated with 

the site selection aspect of this work.  A ‘Site Selection Study for Major Waste 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Ethnic minorities 
  
Women 
 
Disabled people  
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  All 

 

 

 

 

Originator: S Courtney  
 

Tel: (0113) 247 4707 

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 21



Facilities’ was undertaken on behalf of the Council by Jacobs UK Limited and forms 
one of the appendices to the OBC:  This is attached as Annex 2 to this report. 

 
1.6 On considering the report presented (Annex 1), the Executive Board subsequently 

resolved: 
 

(a) That the report be noted; 
(b) That the submission of the Outline Business Case for the Residual Waste 

Treatment project to DEFRA be approved; 
(c) That the proposed recycling strategy approved by this Board on 11 

September 2007 be further noted with particular reference to the proposals 
to retain a weekly kerbside collection, and to the fact that it is not the 
Council’s intention to introduce new charging schemes for waste 
collection; 

(d) That the Board notes that the submission of the bid will be based upon a 
reference site and technology, with no implication that Leeds City Council 
land or Energy from Waste constitute preferred options; 

(e) That the procurement shall proceed on a neutral technology and site basis 
in accordance with government advice; 

(f) That the Board accepts the affordability implications of the Outline 
Business Case and of entering into a PFI contract for the treatment of 
residual waste from April 2014 to March 2038 as set out in Table 2 of the 
report;  

(g) That approval be given to the submission of the Outline Business Case in 
the knowledge that both the procurement process and prevailing macro-
economic conditions may affect the Unitary Charge at Financial Close in 
April 2011, as illustrated at paragraph 8.6 of the report and in Table 4; 

(h) That approval be given to the project governance arrangements outlined in 
section 11 of the report, including the establishment of the Residual Waste 
Treatment Project Board (with delegated powers), and that delegated 
authority be given to the Deputy Chief Executive, in consultation with the 
Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods, to extend the responsibilities 
of the Residual Waste Treatment Project Board and to establish one or 
more new Project Boards (with delegated powers) in order to support the 
Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods in the delivery of the wider 
Waste Solution;  

(i) That the intention to bring further reports to this Board prior to the 
commencement of the procurement regarding the project evaluation model 
be noted;  

(j) That decisions on the sale and purchase of LATS be delegated to the 
Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods, in consultation with the 
Director of Resources, at what is considered to be the best achievable 
price. 

 
2.0 Recommendation 
 
2.1  The Board is requested to consider the information presented and determine any 

areas for further action/ scrutiny.   
 
 

Page 22



 
 
Report of the Director Environment and Neighbourhoods 
 
Executive Board  
 
Date: 14th November 2007 
 
Subject: Waste Solution for Leeds – Submission of the Outline Business Case for the 
 Residual Waste Treatment Project 
 

        
 
Eligible for Call In                                                 Not Eligible for Call In 
                                                                              
  
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The purpose of this report is to obtain Executive Board approval for the submission of an Outline 
Business Case (OBC) to DEFRA for PFI credits to support the proposed Residual Waste Treatment 
project.  
 
The arguments for moving forward are compelling from both an environmental and economic point of 
view. Disposal to landfill is the least favourable waste management option, due to the associated 
greenhouse gas emissions and impacts on climate change, and moving away from landfill is a 
fundamental principle of the Integrated Waste Strategy for Leeds. 
 
Leeds City Council’s strategy includes targets for achieving recycling levels in excess of 50% of 
household waste by 2020. However, achievement of this target will still leave an estimated 180,000 
tonnes of non-recycled (or residual) waste for processing. No major UK city, nor the Government 
itself, is relying upon residual waste being eliminated. There is unity on the need to avoid landfill, and 
this is the basis for the development of a treatment technology solution. 
 
It is, of course, conceivable that recycling performance will exceed these targets, and the proposed 
procurement strategy will ensure that future contracts provide the flexibility to accommodate 
reduction and recycling performance above targeted levels and will not put a ceiling on achievements 
in these areas.   
 

Specific Implications For:  
 

Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

All 

Originator: Pippa Milne/ 
David Outram 

Tel: 22(43231)/ 
 21(43939) 

 

 

 

√ 
 

 

Agenda Item 18

Page 307Page 23



Following approval of the Expression of Interest for PFI credits, the Council has developed its OBC, 
with DEFRA willing to reserve PFI Credits of a minimum of 50% of the relevant capital investment 
value of the residual waste treatment project (equivalent to £63.05m). The OBC (and its appendices) 
forms an appendix to this report and has been posted on the Council’s website, and details are 
available from the clerk named on the front sheet. 
 
The Government requires the Council to develop its OBC around a reference technology, against 
which costs can be evaluated, and a reference site within the Council’s ownership or control. 
 
As a result of the options appraisal completed by the Council in 2005, Energy from Waste was 
identified as the reference technology for inclusion in the OBC.  However, it is acknowledged that 
some alternative technologies have gained credibility since the completion of the options appraisal, 
and the Council will therefore ensure that there is full opportunity for a range of solutions to come 
forward during procurement.  
 
The Council has also identified a short list of suitable sites for residual waste treatment facilities 
following completion of a major, city-wide site selection study based on national, regional and local 
planning guidance and criteria. These sites have now been identified within the ‘Preferred Options’ 
stage of the Aire Valley Area Action Plan, which was approved by Executive Board on 11th 
September 2007. The wholesale market site is the only one of these four which is in the Council’s 
ownership and the OBC therefore proposes moving forward with this as the reference site, but 
providing full opportunity for other sites to come forward from, or in addition to, the short list. 
 
The report sets out details of the proposed procurement strategy and objectives, and the anticipated 
timescales for project delivery. The proposed approach to procurement, consistent with Defra’s 
advice, will be that the Council adopts the principle of a neutral stance on both technology and sites, 
in order to encourage competition and ensure the most environmentally sustainable solution is 
identified.  All bids received will be evaluated on the basis of environmental, technical and 
commercial considerations and it is intended that a further report will be provided to the Executive 
Board incorporating the evaluation model for approval. 
 
The report provides an assessment of Value for Money and affordability. The report also shows a 
range of comparative costs of the reference project against continuing to landfill residual waste, in 
particular demonstrating the impact of potential future increases in landfill costs. 

 
The recommendations for Executive Board Member approval are included at the end of this report. 
 
 
1.0 Purpose Of This Report 
 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to obtain Executive Board approval for the submission of the 
Outline Business Case to DEFRA for the Residual Waste Treatment project.  

2.0  Background Information on the Waste Solution Programme 

2.1 The Executive Board has agreed an Integrated Waste Strategy for Leeds which sets out to 
reduce the impact of waste on the environment.  The Council sets out to reduce waste 
generation, reuse waste, increase recycling, recover value from non-recycled waste and 
significantly reduce the amount of waste going to landfill, with an aspiration to send zero 
waste to landfill.   

 
2.2 Reducing the emission of greenhouse gases and their effect on climate change is the 

primary basis on which European and national policy on waste has been developed. The 
disposal of biodegradable waste to landfill results in emissions of methane, a greenhouse 
gas which contributes to global warming.  Methane is over twenty times more damaging in 
global warming terms than carbon dioxide and this means that landfill has the worst 
environmental impact of any waste disposal option.  Moving away from landfill is a 
fundamental principle around which the strategy for Leeds is based. 

 

Page 308Page 24



2.3 The Government has also accelerated the rate of increase in landfill tax from £3 per tonne to 
£8 per tonne per annum from April 2008 until March 2011.  This will take landfill tax to £32 
per tonne next year and increase disposal costs by over £2 million each year if we continue 
to landfill waste at the current rate. 

 
2.4 The Landfill Allowance Trading Scheme (LATS) was introduced in 2005/06 as a mechanism 

of ensuring compliance with the European Union targets on the reduction of biodegradable 
waste sent to landfill.  Leeds is issued with an ever decreasing number of LATS permits.  
Permits can be bought from other local authorities at a price determined by market forces.  A 
penalty of £150 per tonne is payable for each tonne of waste landfilled without a permit.  
Penalties become a reality if there are insufficient permits nationally to cover the total 
amount of waste landfilled. 

 
2.5 If the UK as a whole fails to meet its EU targets for the diversion of biodegradable municipal 

waste, the European Parliament can impose fines of up to £500,000 a day. The UK 
Government has indicated that it may pass on those fines to the local authorities failing to 
meet their landfill diversion targets. 

 
2.6 On the 18th October 2006, Members approved the Integrated Waste Strategy for Leeds 

2005-2035.  In the light of the above, the strategy contains three main targets, which were 
revised by Executive Board at their meeting on 11th September 2007.  They relate to waste 
growth, the level of recycling and the recovery of value from waste. 

 
1. To reduce the annual growth in waste per household to 0.5% by 2010 and to 

eliminate growth per household by 2020 (with the effect of reducing our overall 
arisings by 10% as compared to previous forecasts); 

2. To achieve a combined recycling and composting rate of greater than 50% of 
household waste by 2020 (an increase on the previous target of 40%); 

3. To recover value from 90% of all household waste by 2020. 
 

2.7 The means of achieving these three main targets are firstly through continuing to develop 
opportunities to reduce and reuse waste, but also through the implementation of a short to 
medium term strategy for the period 2008 to 2014 that will require a range of recycling 
service developments, and through a long term technology solution for residual waste, 
programmed to commence operations in 2014. 

 
2.8 The Council is committed to ensuring that its residual waste management choice does not  

place a ceiling on the level of recycling that can be achieved in the future or deter initiatives 
to reduce waste arisings. 

 
3.0 Recycling and Residual Waste Treatment 
 
3.1   Members of the Board will be aware that the Council’s Expression of Interest for PFI credits 

to DEFRA was successful, with DEFRA willing to reserve PFI Credits of a minimum of 50% 
of the relevant capital investment value of the residual waste treatment project. DEFRA has 
requested that the City Council develop and submit an Outline Business Case, setting out 
the City Council’s proposals for the treatment of residual waste with the primary objective of 
achieving landfill diversion targets. The OBC (and its appendices) forms an appendix to this 
report and has been posted on the Council’s website, and details are available from the 
clerk named on the front sheet. 

 
3.2 Officers believe that implementing the short to medium term strategy will enable the City 

Council to achieve its target of recycling 52% of household waste by 2020, with continued 
increases beyond this time. It should be noted that the proposed strategy makes theoretical 
provision for achieving up to approximately 70% recycling. The proposed recycling 
initiatives include the following: 

 
 

Page 309Page 25



• Increasing the frequency of existing kerbside SORT collections (dry recyclables) to 
fortnightly; 

• Adding glass to the range of materials collected; 

• Introducing garden waste collections to all suitable properties; 

• Providing weekly black bin collections of food waste and, where this is done, 
introducing residual waste collections on a fortnightly basis.  

 
3.3 The strategy involves the retention of a weekly collection of waste, and indeed constitutes 

an increase in the five collections of recyclables and waste currently provided to most 
properties in Leeds every four weeks, to ten collections every four weeks. The introduction 
of weekly kerbside collections of food waste is also supported in the Government’s Waste 
Strategy for England 2007. 

 
3.4 It should also be noted that, although the Government has been formally consulting on 

proposals to remove the ban on local authorities introducing household financial incentives 
for waste prevention and recycling, it is not the Council’s intention to implement new 
charging schemes for waste collection. 

 
3.5 Notwithstanding the proposed recycling strategy, even after the Council has achieved its 

recycling target, detailed analysis has shown that the Council would still require treatment 
capacity of approximately 180,000 tonnes of residual waste per annum.  

 
3.6 In preparing the Outline Business Case for PFI credits, which sets out a formal request for 

a specific level of credits that has been agreed with DEFRA, the Council is required to 
establish a reference project and technology against which costs can be evaluated. The 
Council is also required to put forward a site either in the Council’s ownership, or control, 
for bidders to use as a potential location for the waste facility.  The Outline Business Case 
is therefore, by necessity, based upon a reference project and technology, and on a 
reference site within the Council’s ownership.  However, when procurement commences, 
bidders will be requested to submit a range of alternative solutions that meet the Council’s 
output and performance specification.  The proposed approach to procurement will be that 
the Council adopts the principle of a neutral stance on both technology and sites, in order 
to encourage competition.  All bids received will be evaluated on the basis of 
environmental, technical and commercial considerations. 

 
3.7 The reference project forms the basis of the financial modelling for the OBC.  If the 

outcome of the evaluation leads to an alternative solution being selected there may be an 
impact on the financial model including a shift in the balance of the capital and revenue 
elements. 

 
3.8 The reference project has been based on an assessment by officers and external advisers 

of the most probable scenario for waste arisings and recycling levels.   It is, of course, 
possible that recycling performance will exceed these estimates, and the proposed 
procurement strategy will ensure that future contracts provide the flexibility to 
accommodate reduction and recycling performance above targeted levels.   

 
3.9 Increases in recycling substantially in excess of the most probable scenario would be 

required to enable Leeds to meet its landfill diversion targets without the use of a residual 
waste treatment facility. Even the most optimistic assessment would not see Leeds reach 
the diversion levels that can be delivered through residual waste treatment, thus significant 
amounts of waste would still be sent to landfill. In addition, relying on recycling alone would 
result in the Authority being exposed to significant financial risks, outlined in Section 8. 

 
4.0 Technology 
 
4.1 In arriving at the reference project, the Council has undertaken an appraisal, in conjunction 

with its technical advisors, of a range of technology solutions.  One of the key criteria 
evaluated in this appraisal was the ability of the technologies to divert biodegradable 

Page 310Page 26



municipal waste from landfill. These included commercially established technologies and 
emerging technologies. 

 
4.2 The options appraisal methodology has been applied to provide a robust and transparent 

means of evaluating the various technical options against a range of weighted criteria. The 
criteria, in addition to landfill diversion, considered other relevant factors so as to provide a 
balanced assessment.  

 
4.3 The technology options were therefore assessed against a range of non-financial criteria at 

a stakeholder workshop in November 2005, involving Elected Members, senior Council 
officers, regional government officers, external advisors and representatives from 
community/environmental groups  

 
4.4 A detailed financial appraisal of the technology options has also been completed by 

PricewaterhouseCoopers on the Council’s behalf. The approach to the financial options 
appraisal has been to model the costs of the technology options to provide Net Present 
Values (NPVs) over a theoretical 28 year contract period, which allow the costs to be 
compared on an equal basis. 

 
4.5 The results of the options appraisal were considered carefully to identify the technology for 

the reference project.  The Energy from Waste (EfW) option scored consistently well across 
all appraisal criteria. EfW was the best performing option, achieving the highest ranking in 
terms of cost and ‘benefit’ criteria, and the highest ranking of all of the technological 
solutions in terms of risk.   Based on the outcome of the appraisal and the operating 
experience of the technologies at the time of its completion, EfW has been identified as the 
preferred option to take forward to the reference project. 

  
4.6 Mechanical Biological Treatment (MBT) is generally viewed as the main credible alternative 

to EfW, with other new technologies currently having little or no track record of operating on 
a commercial scale within the UK or indeed in Europe. 

 
4.7 Three MBT options were evaluated as part of the original technology options appraisal in 

2005. The primary reasons for MBT not scoring as highly as EfW were: 
 

• the significant uncertainty around the availability of markets for the outputs from these 
processes; 

• the associated costs and environmental impacts of having to landfill this material; 
• the costs of having to develop a dedicated thermal treatment facility, in addition to the 

MBT facilities, to process these outputs so as to ensure that landfill targets were met. 
 
4.8 However, whilst these are still key issues associated with MBT, this technology is beginning 

to gain credibility, and the position around availability of markets for outputs may improve. 
 As previously mentioned in section 3, the Council, consistent with Defra’s advice, will 
therefore encourage other proven and deliverable solutions to come forward.  In the light of 
potential changes and advances in waste treatment technologies, a partial or wholly 
alternative solution may therefore be selected, assuming its performance meets the 
Council’s requirements.  

 
4.9 This strategy is consistent with the current procurement rules, which aim to ensure a fair 

and transparent competition.  The Council cannot preclude a solution nor state a clear 
preference ruling out other solutions unless there is a good reason related to the Council’s 
desired outputs. Given the advances in waste treatment technologies (both in terms of 
performance and cost) and the developments in the private sector waste market since the 
technology options appraisal was completed in 2005, it is felt that the final decision on 
technology should only be taken after a thorough evaluation of potential solutions offered 
during the procurement. To do otherwise would not be consistent with procurement rules 
and may not offer best value for the Authority. This approach is in line with advice received 
from DEFRA in response to the submission of our Expression of Interest. 

 
 

Page 311Page 27



5.0 Reference Site  
 
5.1 Central Government (DEFRA and the Project Review Group (PRG) which acts as the 

gateway for projects to commence procurement on behalf of HM Treasury) has set out a 
mandatory requirement for all new waste PFI projects that a site either in the Council’s 
ownership or control (control could be via a legally binding Option to Purchase) is available 
for bidders to use as a potential location for the waste facility. This does not preclude the 
use of other sites in the procurement but is to ensure that the project is deliverable.  This 
criterion was introduced after a number of earlier schemes failed due to a suitable site 
never being secured. 

 
5.2 The Leeds UDP was reviewed in 2005, and includes criteria based waste policies. Pending 

the scheduled development of the Waste Development Plan Document (DPD), which will 
form part of the Leeds LDF, the Council has completed a robust and comprehensive city-
wide site selection study based on national, regional and local planning guidance and 
criteria to identify sites for major waste facilities. This forms an appendix to the OBC. 

 
5.3 The principal purpose and outcome of the study was to complete a city wide ‘search and 

sieving exercise’ to identify a suitable site for a major residual waste treatment facility by 
applying planning selection criteria and comparative assessment. The criteria for the site 
selection study reflect national, regional and local objectives on waste.      

 
5.4  The preferred sites identified as a result of the site selection study are: 
 

• The site of the former wholesale market on Pontefract Lane owned by Leeds City 
Council;  

• Operational land within Knostrop sewage treatment works; 
• The site adjacent to the sewage treatment beds on Pontefract Lane; 
• The site of the former Skelton Grange power station. 

 
5.5 These sites are all within the Lower Aire Valley area which contains 440 hectares (800 

acres) of potential development land and is expected to provide over 50 per cent of the 
city’s employment growth over the next ten to fifteen years.  Good transport links will be 
provided by the new East Leeds Link Road which will connect with Leeds City Centre and 
its Inner Ring Road Stages 6 and 7.  All the sites selected have been previously developed, 
are located strategically to serve the whole city and are in the vicinity of other industrial 
uses. 

 
5.6  The sites have therefore now been identified as suitable for waste management uses within 

the Preferred Options stage of the Aire Valley Area Action Plan, which was approved by the 
Executive Board on 11th September 2007. National planning guidance recognises Area 
Action Plans as one form of Development Plan Document suitable for advancing proposals 
for waste management facilities. 

 
5.7 The wholesale market site is the only one of these four which is in the Council’s ownership 

and the OBC therefore proposes that the project moves forward on the basis that this site 
constitutes the reference site, but providing full opportunity for other sites to come forward 
from, or in addition to, the list above. 

 
6.0 Procurement Strategy 
 
6.1 In most purchasing situations there is existing commercial infrastructure or service in 

existence that can fill the need either in part or in full.  The waste industry in the UK, 
however, is different, in that it is only recently that legislation has imposed changes to 
traditional collection and disposal operations. The result has been that the capacity for 
recycling, and for the treatment of waste other than by disposal to landfill, has been lagging 
behind demand.   

  
 

Page 312Page 28



6.2 Merchant capacity is not available within the proximity of the Leeds area in sufficient 
quantity to satisfy the needs of Leeds City Council and it is not likely to arise without a base 
load supply contract.  Other neighbouring authorities appear to be sourcing their own 
capacity requirements only with minimal and reducing capacity for third party waste.  Leeds 
cannot take the risk of waiting for merchant capacity to become available due to the impact 
of LATS and landfill tax costs, as it may not arrive in time, if at all. 

 
6.3 The residual waste treatment technology will be procured using SoPC4 (standard PFI 

contract documentation) and the Competitive Dialogue procedure now standard for all PPP 
projects of this type. This approach is structured to allow dialogue with potential bidders to 
explore technical solutions available and the financial and contractual means by which they 
may be delivered. It is designed to allow varying solutions across the bidders and 
alternative solutions to be brought forward.  

 
6.4 Furthermore, DEFRA, through the Waste Infrastructure Delivery Programme (WIDP), has 

indicated that it considers that the type of contract necessary for the procurement of large 
scale residual waste treatment facilities meets the requirements allowing the use of 
Competitive Dialogue, and that this route should be used. 

 
6.5 This approach has the benefits of delivering optimum risk transfer, and allows the bidders 

to bring forward different solutions to deliver the required objective, thereby taking 
advantage of their knowledge of the industry, emerging technologies and existing market 
capacity in the form of existing plants built for other contracts and merchant facilities.  

 
6.6 The programme for the project, which is anticipated to remain unchanged irrespective of 

the selected technology until contract signature in April 2010, is that procurement will 
commence in June 2008 with contract signature programmed for April 2010, and financial 
close in April 2011. Construction will commence on a two year programme in April 2011 
completing in April 2013. The period from April 2010 to April 2011 will be used for the 
contractor to obtain planning permission for the plant which will require a detailed 
Environmental Impact Assessment prepared during the procurement period. A one year 
commissioning period is anticipated following construction enabling the plant to become 
operational by April 2014. 

 
6.7 The contract will continue for a further 24 years under the management of the contractor 

with the plant coming under the ownership and control of the Council at the end of the 
contract in 2038. 

  
6.8 The City Council must at the outset of the procurement be clear on how the procurement 

will be undertaken.  Any significant change to the Council’s published OJEU notice would 
require re-advertisement and therefore cause potential delay, cost impact and higher risk 
implications.  Additionally, once the criteria for award of the contract are published, the 
Council may only amend these in very limited circumstances. 

 
7.0 Contract Objectives and Project Scope 
 
7.1 The contract objectives are set out in the table below which will determine the output 

specification development.  The output specification will be developed in accordance with 
4ps guidance for waste PFI procurements.  It is stressed that the contract is open to any 
technology, provided that it can deliver to the output specification.   

 
7.2 It is envisaged that the technology will be delivered primarily to treat the Council’s waste. 

However, it is not intended that this should restrict the facility’s ability to take third party 
waste on the basis that this could deliver added value for money (i.e. waste could be 
accepted on the basis that any savings realised would be expected to subsidise the 
Council’s unitary charge) subject to considerations of sustainability.  Assessment of this 
opportunity will be dealt with in the contract evaluation framework.   

 
 
 

Page 313Page 29



7.3 The scope of the project and possibly the procurement will require the transfer of waste to 
the treatment facility.  Leeds is a large geographical area which makes transfer loading 
operations an integral element of waste management.  While the Council considers that it 
may be value for money to include the transfer station in the scope of procurement, the 
level of PFI Credits applied for is for 50% of the capital value of the residual waste plant 
only. It is therefore part of this report that the cost of this facility be covered by the Council 
through the Unitary Charge. 

 
Table 1 

Contract Criteria Anticipated Scope and Performance Indicators 
Contract structure The contract will be a PPP/PFI type procurement on the basis of an output 

specification that will be in accordance with 4P’s guidance.  The contract 
will cover design, build and operation of the facility. 

Contract scope The Council will seek a contract to provide for treatment of 182,000 tpa of 
residual municipal waste from household kerbside, household waste 
sorting sites and Council trade collection services.  Options within the 
standard bid will include operation of a transfer station 

Contract duration 
 

24 operational years with three years development 

Recycling Performance 
 
 

Facilities operated will not prejudice the Council’s continued efforts to 
maximise overall recycling rates in the City.  The facility will include 
recovery operations that contribute to the Council’s recycling performance.  

Flexibility to adapt to 
changes in waste 
volumes, composition, 
collection 
arrangements, 
regulation and 
legislation 
 

• Facility has sufficient flexibility to accommodate variations in the 
growth in waste; 

• Contractor is responsible for cost-effective utilisation of spare capacity 
through third party contracts; 

• The process is  tolerant of long-term changes in waste composition 
including as a result of high recycling performance; 

• Both parties will be able to implement improvement and initiate change 
through an agreed change mechanism incorporating defined response 
times. 

 
 
8.0 Financial Issues 
 
8.1 This section of the report deals with the financial issues relating to the residual waste 

treatment project. The main financial elements relate to Value for Money and Affordability  
 

8.2 The table below shows a range of comparative costs of the reference project against 
continuing to landfill residual waste. The reference project finance modelling is based on 
the assumption that landfill tax stays at £48 per tonne from 2011 onwards – the 
government have not announced their intentions beyond this point. If this remains the case, 
diverting waste using residual waste treatment technology is more expensive than landfill.  
However, it is widely anticipated that landfill tax will continue to rise beyond that point to 
become more in line with other EU Member States.  The current levels of landfill tax in the 
Netherlands and Austria, for example, are at approximately £61 per tonne, and are still 
being subject to regular increases.  The ‘break even’ figure for landfill tax, assuming LATS 
at £30, is £60.40.  At £72 per tonne, a scenario which would require only three further years 
of increases above current notified tax rates, the reference project is £17.1m cheaper over 
the 25 year life of the reference project.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 314Page 30



Table 2   Summary Analysis of Total Costs Inc Service Developments & All Disposal / Recycling /LATS & 
Unitary Charge 

PERIOD 2008/9 TO 2037/38 
 
NET PRESENT VALUE 

COSTS  
L’fill 
% 

Re-
cycling 
% 

LFT 
remains 
at £48 / 
LATS at 
£30 

LFT 
remains 
at £48/ 
LATS at 
£50   

LFT at 
current 
EU High  
£61/ 

LATS at 
£30 

LFT at 
current 
EU High 
£61/ 

LATS at 
£50   

LFT at 
£72/ 

LATS at 
£30 

LFT at 
£72/ 

LATS at 
£50 

                     

      £000 £000   £000 £000  £000 £000 
Current approved 
budget 2007/08 for 
recycling & disposal 75% 25% 170,380 170,380  170,380 170,380  170,380 170,380 

                 

Do nothing 75% 25% 381,396 413,769   424,622 456,995  458,009 490,383 

                 

Service dvlpmts + 
landfill residual  48% 52% 478,034 488,498   504,951 515,416  525,471 535,936 

                 

Service dvlpmts + 
treat residual waste 10% 52% 496,429 487,699  504,127 495,397  508,383 499,654 

                 

Variance (btwn 
Treatment and LF) -38%   18,395 (799)   (824) (20,019)  (17,088) (36,282) 

                      
*note – the above table assumes that the landfill gate fee rises by the retail price index only 

 
8.3 The price of LATS is also expected to rise as the number of available permits nationally 

diminishes.  The reduction in available LATS is particularly steep between 2010 and 2013, 
during which time Leeds is in a deficit position.  There is some doubt as to whether sufficient 
treatment capacity will be available to allow the UK to meet its EU targets and, if this were 
the case, some local authorities could face penalties of £150 per tonne 
 

8.4 Value for Money for the Public Sector – PFI Projects 
 
8.4.1 PFI Projects must demonstrate Value for Money (VFM) to the Public Sector before DEFRA 

and HM Treasury’s Project Review Group will give formal approval to confirming the award 
of PFI Credits for Residual Waste Treatment Project and the formal procurement of the 
Project can commence. 

 
8.4.2 A quantitative assessment of value for money has been undertaken using the HM Treasury 

Guidelines (revised November 2006), which is attached as an appendix to the Outline 
Business Case. 

 
8.4.3 Under HM Treasury guidelines there is no formal Public Sector Comparator (PSC); the PSC 

is effectively calculated using the HM Treasury spreadsheet based upon data contained 
within the Whole Life Cost Model developed with the City Council by the Council’s external 
technical adviser, Jacobs. 

 
8.4.4 The approach, methodology and assumptions made in making the VFM assessment are set 

out in detail in section 8 of the Outline Business Case. After the data has been input into the 
HM Treasury Model, and based upon assumptions that HM Treasury have built into the 
Model, the resultant output demonstrates that the Project offers value for money through the 
PFI route with a VFM margin of 3.22%. HM Treasury also requires some sensitivity 
analysis, and the results of this analysis are set out in Section 8 of the Outline Business 
Case and illustrates that the Unitary Charge would have to increase by 3% before the VFM 
margin is eroded.   

 
 
 

Page 315Page 31



8.5 Affordability of the Project to the City Council – Reference Plant 
  
8.5.1 The affordability implications of the reference Waste Solution Project are also set out in 

Section 8 of the Outline Business Case, and the estimated annual cash flows of the PFI 
project are set out in this report. 

 
8.5.2 The revenue implications of the reference PFI Project are the product of the Unitary Charge 

(or gate fee) payable to the PFI Contractor, financed from the revenue support from Central 
Government resulting from the level of PFI credits awarded for the Project through PFI 
Revenue Support Grant.  

 
8.5.3 The Unitary Charge in the first full year of the operations is estimated to be £20.867m, 

 Over the life of all PFI Projects, a proportion of the Unitary Charge increases each year due 
to inflation. For this Project 50% of the Unitary Charge will be fixed during the life of the 
Contract and the remaining 50% subject to the RPIx (or equivalent) price index. Energy 
consumption risk remains with the PFI Contractor whilst the price risk rests with the City 
Council. 

 
8.5.4  The most significant external source of funding for the Reference EFW Project is derived 

from the PFI Revenue Support Grant arising from the notional credit approval afforded by 
PFI Credits. For Residual Waste Management projects, DEFRA has confirmed that it will 
reserve, as a minimum, PFI credits equivalent to 50% of the relevant capital costs of the 
Project, which are estimated to be £126.1m, with PFI credits estimated at £63.05m This 
level of credits  will produce annual PFI Revenue Support Grant in 2014/15 of £4.776m. 

  
8.5.5 After taking into account the receipt of PFI Revenue Support Grant there will be annual 

deficits (referred to as the “Affordability Gap”) to be financed by the City Council. A 
summary of the estimated cash flows for that year and over the life of the Contract is 
summarised in the table below, and set out in detail in the Annexe to this report. 
 
Table 3 
Estimated Project Cash Flows 
 

First Full 
Year 2014/15 

Total Over the 
Life of the 
Contract 

 £000 £000 

 
Unitary Charge 

 
20,867 

 
579,853 

   
Contract Management costs 100 3,235 

   
Total costs 20,967 583,088 
   
PFI Revenue Support Grant   
(£63.05m of PFI Credits) 

( 4,776 ) ( 119,235 ) 

   

   
Deficit(s) to be financed by the City Council 16,191 463,853 
   

Net Present Value at 2008/09 10,706 161,602 

   

 Note: These NPV costs are included in the total costs included in Table 2 
 
8.6 Price Sensitivity Analysis 
 
8.6.1 Changes in the macro-economic environment could impact on both the price and the 

affordability of the Project. HM Treasury’s Project Review Group requires that a number of 
scenarios are modelled to illustrate the possible impact on the Unitary Charge and these are 
illustrated in the table below. 
 
 

Page 316Page 32



Table 4 

Price Sensitivities First Full Year 
Unitary Charge 

£000 

Capital Cost sensitivities 
Minus 5% 
Plus 5% 

 
20,162 
21,572 

  
Operating cost sensitivities 
Minus 5% 
Plus 5% 

 
20,644 
21,090 

  
Combined capital and operating cost sensitivities 
Minus 5% 
Plus 5% 

 
19,940 
21,795 

  
Interest SWAP rate sensitivities 
Minus 50 basis points (- 0.5%) 
Plus 50 basis points (+ 0.5%) 

 
20,325 
21,420 

  
Contractor Internal Rate of Return 
At 15% 
At 17% 

 
20,867 
21,957 

 
8.6.2 In order to meet its commitments to delivering a sustainable waste strategy, the Council will 

inevitably be required to devote significant levels of spending to support its ambitions.  The 
arguments for moving away from landfill are primarily environmental rather than economic.  
The extent to which financial and regulatory  penalties will support the argument are 
uncertain but it is the judgement of officers that a combination of known pressures from the 
EU to reduce landfill and trends in governmental policy point to the probability that a failure 
to move away from landfill will also be more costly to the Council. 

 
8.6.3 At the end of 2006/07 (the second year of the LATS scheme), Leeds has a confirmed 

surplus of LATS permits equivalent to 69,564 tonnes which will be carried forward into the 
2007/08 LATS year. It is anticipated that by the end of 2008/9 with the recycling initiatives 
being planned, this would increase the projected surplus to around 75,000 tonnes. As a 
condition of the scheme, these must be sold or they will have no residual value as 
allowances cannot be carried into 2009/10. 

 
8.6.4 Given the volume of allowances that Leeds needs to sell between now and the end of 

2008/9, it is unlikely that a single buyer will be found, (i.e. it is unlikely that one single 
authority will require this level of allowances). Therefore allowances need to be sold in 
blocks which will probably result in different selling prices for each block, depending upon 
the prevailing market conditions. The income generated from the sales needs to be either 
used to offset the cost of purchase of LATS from the period 2009/10 to a time when the 
treatment facility is brought on line, or alternatively the income could also be used as a 
source of funding for additional recycling services, which would in turn reduce future LATS 
liabilities. 

 
8.6.5 This report proposes that decisions on the sale and purchase of LATS be delegated to the 

Directors of Environment and Neighbourhoods, in consultation with the Director of 
Resources at what is considered to be the best achievable price. 

 
9.0 Communication and Consultation Strategy  
 
9.1 There has been extensive public consultation on the Waste Strategy for Leeds via the 

Citizens’ Panel, Council newspaper, local media, community forums, local environmental 
groups, on-line questionnaires, etc.  This has indicated that there is strong and widespread 
support from the people of Leeds for the long-term proposals being put forward for waste 
prevention, recycling, recovery and landfill diversion.   

Page 317Page 33



9.2 Following the conclusion of the consultation at the end of May 2006, the Strategy was 
adopted by the Council in October 2006. However, the Authority will continue to deliver a 
structured programme of communication and consultation with the public as the Strategy is 
implemented, and this will form the primary focus for the ongoing work of Leeds City 
Council’s waste and recycling education team. 

 
9.3 Key milestones throughout the procurement process requiring communication or 

consultation with relevant stakeholders have been identified.  The necessary actions have 
been included in a communications plan which forms an appendix to the OBC. 

 
10.0 Evaluation Strategy 
 
10.1 The evaluation of bids received for the project will be carried out using an evaluation model 

which is neutral on technology alternatives but seeks to use proven technology solutions. In 
addition the sites proposed by bidders will be evaluated on their suitability for the 
technology to be located at the site. The objective of the evaluation will be to ensure the 
Council is provided with the most appropriate solution, delivered in a way which minimises 
environmental impact and located on a suitable site. 

 
10.2 The evaluation model will be prepared over the next few months alongside the 

development of the bid documentation. It will be completed prior to the commencement of 
the procurement (i.e. the issue of the OJEU notice), and it is intended that a further report 
will be provided to the Executive Board incorporating the evaluation model for approval. 

 
11.0 Implications for Council Policy And Governance 

11.1 At their meetings on 9th March and 13th October 2005, Members of Executive Board agreed 
the Corporate Governance arrangements for the procurement of PPP / PFI projects, giving 
appropriate delegations to the PPP / PFI Co-ordination Board and to specific Project 
Boards. The procurement of the Residual Waste Treatment  Project will be undertaken in 
compliance with these arrangements, and for this purpose the establishment of a Project 
Board chaired by the Deputy Chief Executive and comprising the Director of Environment 
and Neighbourhoods, Assistant Chief Executive (Corporate Governance), Chief Officer 
(Financial Management), Director of City Development and Chief Officer Public Private 
Partnerships (or their nominated representative in the case of absence) is proposed. 

 
11.2 The Residual Waste Treatment Project forms one element of an overarching programme of 

interrelated projects and service activities to deliver the Integrated Waste Strategy for 
Leeds, otherwise known as the ‘Waste Solution’. A Waste Solution Programme Board will 
be established chaired by the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods which will 
provide strategic direction for the Waste Solution, and will ensure the effective 
implementation of the projects and activities outside of the scope of the Residual Waste 
Treatment Project.  

 
11.3 Whilst the Residual Waste Treatment Project is a discrete procurement, it will be necessary 

for its management and governance to be properly integrated with the management and 
governance of the Waste Solution Programme.  For this purpose there will be full 
documentation in the Residual Waste Treatment Project Initiation Document of the roles 
and responsibilities of the respective Boards, the integrated approach to risk management 
across the programme and arrangements to support a high degree of cooperation in 
relation to project and financial management. The effectiveness of these arrangements will 
be reviewed before the Project proceeds into formal pubic procurement.   

 
11.4 It may also be necessary either to extend the responsibilities of the Residual Waste 

Treatment Project Board, or to establish one or more new Project Boards (with delegated 
powers) under the Governance Arrangements for PPP/PFI Projects, in order to support the 
Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods in the delivery of the wider Waste Solution.  It 
is proposed to delegate authority to do this to the Deputy Chief Executive, in consultation 
with the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods. 

 
Page 318Page 34



11.5 This procurement is expected to commence during the 2008/09 financial year. Environment 
and Neighbourhoods is making appropriate provision within its revenue budget for 2008/09 
and subsequent years to cover the costs associated with taking the procurement forward. 

 
12.0 Project Risks 
 
12.1 A Project Risk Register has been developed to enable the continuous, monitoring of project 

risks and means of mitigation, should they arise. A summary of the key risks is reported to 
each meeting of the Residual Waste Treatment Project Board, and forms an appendix to the 
OBC. 

 
13.0 Recommendations 

13.1 Members of Executive Board are recommended to: 
 

a) Note the contents of this report; 
 

b) Approve the submission of the Outline Business Case for the Residual Waste 
Treatment project to DEFRA; 

 
c) Note the proposed recycling strategy approved at the Executive Board meeting on 

11th September 2007, in particular the proposals to retain a weekly kerbside 
collection, and to also note the fact that it is not the Council’s intention to introduce 
new charging schemes for waste collection; 

 
d) Note that the submission of the bid will be based upon a reference site and 

technology, with no implication that Leeds City Council land or Energy from Waste 
constitute preferred options; 

 
e) Agree that the procurement will proceed on a neutral technology and site basis; 

 
f) Accept the affordability implications of the Outline Business Case and of entering 

into a PFI contract for the treatment of residual waste from April 2014 to March 
2038 as set out in Table 2 of this report.; 

 
g)  Approve the submission of the Outline Business Case in the knowledge that both 

the procurement process and prevailing macro-economic conditions may affect the 
Unitary Charge at Financial Close in April 2011, as illustrated at paragraph 8.6 of 
the report and in Table 4; 

 
   h) Approve the project governance arrangements outlined in section 11 of the report, 

including the establishment of the Residual Waste Treatment Project Board (with 
delegated powers), and delegate authority to the Deputy Chief Executive, in 
consultation with the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods, to extend the 
responsibilities of the Residual Waste Treatment Project Board and to establish 
one or more new Project Boards (with delegated powers) in order to support the 
Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods in the delivery of the wider Waste 
Solution; 

 
i) Note the intention to bring further reports to the Executive Board prior to the 

commencement of the procurement regarding the project evaluation model; 
 

j) Agree that decisions on the sale and purchase of LATS be delegated to the 
Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods, in consultation with the Director of 
Resources, at what is considered to be the best achievable price. 

 
 
  

Page 319Page 35



Page 320

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 36



Leeds City Council.
Site Selection Study for Major 
Waste Facilities 

Final Report  

September 2007 

Job number: B0269600 

Jacobs UK Limited, Sheffield 
Unit 1, 1 Maple Court, Tankersley, Barnsley, S75 3DP 

Registered Office: 95 Bothwell Street, Glasgow, G2 7HX 

Page 37



 Document control sheet 

Client: Leeds City Council 
Project: Waste site selection study Job No: 

B0269600 
Title: Final Report 

Prepared by Reviewed by Approved by 

NAME NAME NAME

ORIGINAL 

Martin White Andrew Walters John Smith

DATE SIGNATURE SIGNATURE SIGNATURE

July 27, 2007

NAME NAME NAME

REVISION 1 

Martin White Andrew Walters John Smith

DATE SIGNATURE SIGNATURE SIGNATURE

August  18, 2007

NAME NAME NAME

REVISION 2 

Martin White Andrew Walters John Smith

DATE SIGNATURE SIGNATURE SIGNATURE

September 20, 

2007

NAME NAME NAME

REVISION 

DATE SIGNATURE SIGNATURE SIGNATURE

This report, and information or advice which it contains, is provided by Jacobs UK Limited solely for internal use and reliance by its Client in performance of Jacobs UK 
Limited duties and liabilities under its contract with the Client.  Any advice, opinions, or recommendations within this report should be read and relied upon only in the 
context of the report as a whole.  The advice and opinions in this report are based upon the information made available to Jacobs UK Limited at the date of this report 
and on current UK standards, codes, technology and construction practices as at the date of this report.  Following final delivery of this report to the Client, Jacobs UK 
LImited will have no further obligations or duty to advise the Client on any matters, including development affecting the information or advice provided in this report.  This 
report has been prepared by Jacobs UK Limited in their professional capacity as Consulting Engineers.  The contents of the report do not, in any way, purport to include 
any manner of legal advice or opinion.  This report is prepared in accordance with the terms and conditions of Jacobs UK Limited contract with the Client.  Regard 
should be had to those terms and conditions when considering and/or placing any reliance on this report.  Should the Client wish to release this report to a Third Party 
for that party's reliance, Jacobs UK Limited may, at its discretion, agree to such release provided that: 
(a) Jacobs UK Limited written agreement is obtained prior to such release, and 
(b) By release of the report to the Third Party, that Third Party does not acquire any rights, contractual or otherwise, whatsoever against Jacobs UK LImited, and 

Jacobs UK Limited accordingly assume no duties, liabilities or obligations to that Third Party, and 
(c) Jacobs UK Limited accepts no responsibility for any loss or damage incurred by the Client or for any conflict of Jacobs UK Limited interests arising out of the 

Client's release of this report to the Third Party.

Page 38



  Contents 

1 Introduction 1-1

1.1 Background 1-1

1.2 Purpose of the study 1-2

1.3 Overall approach 1-2

1.4 Report format 1-2

2 Operational, Layout and Design Considerations 2-1

2.1 Introduction 2-1

2.2 Types of facility in a Sustainable Energy Resource Park (SERP) 2-1

2.3 Potential traffic generation 2-2

2.4 Experience from other planning applications 2-2

2.5 Design and layout issues for major waste management facilities 2-3

3 Review of planning policy 3-1

3.1 Introduction 3-1

3.2 PPS 10: Planning for Sustainable Waste Management (July, 2005) and 
Companion Guide (June 2006) 3-1

3.3 Regional Spatial Strategy 3-3

3.4 Leeds UDP: Saved policies 3-4

3.5 Area action plans 3-5
3.5.1 Aire Valley Leeds Area Action Plan (AVLAAP) 3-6
3.5.2 West Leeds Area Action Plan 3-6
3.5.3 East and South East Leeds (EASEL) Area Action Plan 3-6

3.6 Conclusion 3-7

4 Site Selection Study 4-9

4.1 Introduction 4-9

4.2 Stage 1: Identifying a ‘long list’ of sites 4-9

4.3 Stage 2: Producing a short list of potential sites 4-9

4.4 Stage 3: Detailed assessment of sites graded green 4-12

Page 39



5 Conclusions 5-16

5.1 Introduction 5-16

5.2 Suitable sites for a SERP or a major residual waste facility 5-16

5.3 Constrained sites 5-19

5.4 Unsuitable sites 5-21

6 Recommendations 6-22
6.1.1 Aire Valley 6-22
6.1.2 Outside the Aire Valley 6-22

Appendix 1:  Stage 1 - Initial long list of sites 
Appendix 2:  Stage 2 - Scoring criteria 
Appendix 3: Stage 2 - Comparative evaluation to produce a short list of sites including 

plans of each site assessed 
Appendix 4: Stage 3 - Scoring criteria 
Appendix 5: Site plans 

Page 40



1 Introduction 

1.1 Background 

The Integrated Waste Strategy for Leeds 2005-2035 was adopted by Leeds City 
Council (LCC) in October 2006. This followed a six month period of extensive 
stakeholder and public consultation.  

The vision is to create:

‘A zero waste city, whereby we reduce, re-use, recycle and recover value from all 
waste , waste becomes a resource and no waste is sent to landfilll’.     

The strategy sets out the statutory National and European targets for improving 
recycling and recovery rates and reducing reliance on landfill. If LCC fail to take 
action to meet these targets, financial penalties are estimated to be in the order of 
£178 million by 2020. Meeting the targets is therefore a priority for LCC.  

The main targets of this strategy are to:  

 Reduce the annual growth in waste to 0.5% per household by 2010 and 
eliminate growth in waste per household by 2020.  

 Achieve a minimum recycling rate of 50% of household waste by 2020. 

 Achieve the recovery of value from 90% of household waste by 2020.  

The success of delivering this strategy depends on achieving holistic change in 
reducing waste and creating a more sustainable approach to waste management. 
Finding sites and obtaining planning permission for new facilities is an integral part 
of achieving this change and delivering the waste strategy. Key objectives under 
theme 8 (planning) are:  

 Assist and influence waste policy in LDF documents.  

 Identify sites and obtain planning permission for municipal waste facilities.  

 Explore the development of a Sustainable Energy Resource Park (SERP). 

A major element of the overall strategy is to increase the recovery of value from 
residual waste. Delivering this element of the waste strategy will involve letting a 
major waste management contract in 2008. Failure to identify a suitable site (or 
sites) where the residual waste facility is capable of obtaining planning permission 
and being constructed by 2013 could result in difficulties in securing a successful 
and competitive tender process, as it would represent a major risk to the contractor. 
It would also jeopardise the case for obtaining PFI credits from DEFRA (see below), 
which appears to be the preferred procurement route. 

As part of delivering new waste solutions, Local Authorities can apply to the 
Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA) for Private Finance 
Initiative (PFI) credits towards the funding and procurement of new facilities. As part 
of this process, authorities must submit an Expression of Interest (EOI) to set out 
the case why they should be considered for funding. DEFRA has approved the EOI 
for Leeds.

The next stage of the procurement process is to submit an Outline Business Case 
(OBC). This requires the Waste Management Authority to undertake a ‘Planning 

7B - Final site selection report sept (v10).doc/Oct-07 1-1

Page 41



Health Check’ to demonstrate that facilities are deliverable in terms of land 
acquisition and planning considerations before funding is awarded. Specifically, this 
health check must set out:  

 Site strategy in terms of the status of development plan documents.  

 Identification of sites. 

 Progress in terms of securing sites.  

As well as meeting procurement requirements, the City Council needs to ensure the 
location of the facility is consistent with sustainable waste management objectives 
and demonstrates that potential impacts on the community are minimised.  

1.2 Purpose of the study 

The principal purpose and outcome of this study is to complete a city wide ‘search 
and sieving exercise’ to identify a suitable site for a SERP or a major residual waste 
management facility through applying planning selection criteria and comparative 
assessment. The criteria for the site selection study reflect national, regional and 
local objectives on waste.      

1.3 Overall approach  

The stages of the study are:  

Stage 1: Using database information and the knowledge from LCC Council 
Officers to identify an initial list of sites (see Appendix 1). Apply thresholds 
(e.g. site area) and high level criteria (e.g. Green Belt) to produce a list of 
sites to be included in the site selection study.   

Stage 2: A higher level assessment of potential sites based on paragraphs 
17-21 of National Planning Policy Guidance Planning for Sustainable Waste 
Management (PPS 10) and other relevant guidance from the emerging 
Regional Spatial Strategy and the adopted Leeds UDP. This produced a 
short list of potentially suitable sites (see Appendix 3).   

Stage 3: More detailed assessments of short listed sites; through applying 
further criteria from PPS 10, site investigation and comparative assessment. 
This produced a list of suitable sites to take forward in the OBC and 
recommended to be identified in appropriate development plan documents.    

1.4 Report format 

The format of the report is as follows:  

Chapter 2.0: Identifies the characteristics of the waste management facilities 
and defines the requirements for the site selection study.   

Chapter 3.0: Sets out planning policy guidance on selecting sites for waste 
management facilities and the issues to be taken into account by the Waste 
Planning Authority in promoting sites in development plans and determining 
future planning applications.  

Chapter 4.0: Undertakes a city wide site search and ‘sieving exercise’ to 
identify a final list of suitable sites.   

Chapter 5.0: Outlines the conclusions for the suitable sites. 

Chapter 6.0: Provides recommendations on the way forward.  

7B - Final site selection report sept (v10).doc/Oct-07 1-2

Page 42



2 Operational, Layout and Design Considerations 

2.1 Introduction 

This section sets out the operational requirements of a major waste facility to inform 
the site selection process.  

2.2 Types of facility in a Sustainable Energy Resource Park (SERP) 

As stated previously, the aspiration of LCC is to develop an integrated waste 
management facility known as a Sustainable Energy Resource Park (SERP). The 
facilities which could be included within a SERP are:   

 A residual waste treatment facility.  The Outline Business Case is based upon a 
reference project of an Energy from Waste (EfW) Facility with an estimated 
capacity of 182,000 tonnes per annum. This would recover energy from the 
combustion of residual waste (i.e. waste which is not recycled or composted) 
and would provide either heat and power or a combination of both. The 
individual site area for such a facility is estimated at between 2.5 and 5 ha. 
However, it should be noted that no final decision has been taken on the 
technology and the forthcoming procurement will be neutral on this issue.  The 
site selection study is therefore also intended to identify sites suitable for 
alternative facilities for treating residual waste such as Mechanical Biological 
Treatment (MBT) facilities. 

 A Materials Recycling Facility (MRF) providing an estimated annual capacity of 
131,000 tonnes per annum. This is used to segregate and sort dry recyclable 
material for onward recycling. It is an essential part of the recycling process to 
ensure quality in recycled products and to avoid cross contamination. The site 
area required for the MRF would be at least 1.5ha.  

 In Vessel Composting Facility (IVC). This is the breakdown of organic material 
by bacteria in the presence of oxygen but in an enclosed container (box, bag, 
state of the art pressurised stainless steel container). IVC is used for wastes 
such as food. It would require a land area of approximately 1.5-2ha. 

 A Household Waste Sorting Site (HWSS) where people can bring a wide range 
of unwanted household items for recycling, composting or disposal. They are 
also used to dispose of potentially hazardous household materials such as oils 
and other unwanted items which must be disposed of in a controlled manner. 
This would require a site area of 1ha.  

 Business development units which enable innovative solutions to be developed 
for the use of waste products. 

 An education and awareness centre relating to environmental, recycling, climate 
change and other waste related issues. This is an essential component of the 
SERP concept as promoting education and awareness is a key issue in reducing 
the generation of waste and promoting recycling.   

Research undertaken by Urban Mines on behalf of Leeds City Council has indicated 
that a total site area of approximately 15ha. is required to deliver all the facilities as 
a SERP. However, it may be that some elements of the full SERP could be 
disaggregated and co-located on more than one site. The total amount of land 
required would also be dependent on the final layout and landscape requirements 
and specifications. A site area of around 10ha should provide enough land for the 
main elements of the SERP, such as the residual waste treatment facility, MRF and 
the education centre.  

7B - Final site selection report sept (v10).doc/Oct-07 2-1

Page 43



2.3 Potential traffic generation  

A very basic estimate of the number of servicing vehicles (i.e. does not include 
private car traffic such as employees) which would be generated by a major waste 
facility such as EfW and MRF has been undertaken by Jacobs. This is based on 
some generic parameters on vehicle size and assuming servicing traffic would only 
be generated for 5 days a week. This provides a very approximate indication of the 
average number of movements which might be generated per day:   

 An EfW could generate an average of 116 servicing vehicle trips per day. A 
trip is defined as a single movement in or out. Therefore, 116 movements 
equates to 58 round trips to and from the site.  

 The MRF could generate an average of 124 servicing vehicle trips per day 
equating to approximately 62 round trips per day.     

2.4 Experience from other planning applications  

A complementary piece of work has been undertaken by Jacobs to review five 

planning applications for Energy from Waste (EfW) facilities determined during the 

last eight years. In some cases, this involved the development of EfW facilities 

alongside other waste management operations.  

The applications included in this review were:  

 Chineham EfW, Basingstoke. 

 Marchwood, Hampshire energy recovery facility. 

 Hull energy recovery facility. 

 Eastcroft extension to an existing EfW, Nottingham. 

 Allington Quarry, Maidstone.   

Four of the cases were approved subject to conditions and the extension to the 

Eastcroft facility was refused. Material planning considerations common to these 

cases were:  

 The need for the facility. 

 Whether there are any impacts on health both from the operation of the 

facility and traffic. 

 Visual amenity.  

 Impact on landscape.  

 Highways safety and capacity.  

 Compatibility with existing surrounding land uses.  

 Environmental and conservation impacts from noise, impact on nature 

conservation interests and  listed buildings. 

 Whether the facility would compromise objectives for the surrounding area, 

including future regeneration. 

 Compliance with land use planning policy.   

7B - Final site selection report sept (v10).doc/Oct-07 2-2

Page 44



Key findings from this review are:

 The development plan and specific land use allocation of the proposed site is 

of primary importance. In authorities where Waste Local Plans did not exist, 

most sites were allocated for industrial uses in the relevant UDP.   

 Applications such as Marchwood in Hampshire were planned and integrated 

with new modern purpose built industrial sites.   

 The specific justification for the choice of site is an important aspect of any 

planning submission/consent. 

 Locating the waste proposal within areas already characterised by industrial 

uses and away from residential areas may reduce the level of public 

opposition to the choice of site (but not necessarily on other issues such as 

the choice of technology and perceived health impacts).  

 The impact on regeneration objectives is a key issue but is not necessarily 

approached consistently. For example, the new Hull facility was granted 

permission although it is located within a regeneration area whilst the 

extension to the EfW at Eastcroft was rejected on the grounds that it would 

conflict with regeneration objectives (this is subject to appeal). 

 Agreement with regulators on issues such as emissions should be reached 

before submitting a planning application.     

 Highways capacity, noise, landscape impact, air quality and social impacts 

represent the main environmental issues. 

 Economic impacts  on existing business activity are also important. 

 The choice of technology will need to be fully justified. 

 In some cases, the number of public objection regarding potential health 

implications was high. In each case, however, the local authority rejected 

these objections as a result of evidence from Health Impact Assessments, 

commissioned by Health Authorities and the Environment Agency, as well as 

evidence from the applicant’s Environmental Statement. These declared that 

the objections were unfounded. 

 Consultation at key stages of the proposals is essential to achieving a 

successful outcome.   

2.5 Design and layout issues for major waste management facilities  

Attitudes towards the development of major waste facilities are often negative. 
However, innovative design and use of materials, coupled with an open and 
engaging public consultation exercise, can help to change the perception of such 
schemes.

The concept for Leeds includes promoting educational awareness and high quality 
design. It also includes start up units for incubator businesses to manufacture 
recycled products. Other local authorities have also set up ‘recycling shops’ where 
re-used goods or recycled products can be sold.  

Design can help allay negative pre-conceptions of waste processes. For example, 
the Naka Incineration Plant in Hiroshima, Japan, retains the ‘shed’ type approach 
but architect Yoshio Taniguchi placed a public footpath through the middle of the 
plant, in the form of a raised, glass-enclosed walkway. The glass, combined with a 
sign-posted route through the plant allows people to view how their waste is treated 

7B - Final site selection report sept (v10).doc/Oct-07 2-3

Page 45



and to see how much waste is produced. The theory is that if people can see the 
refuse they produce, this might influence them to produce less.  

Imaginative design can also result in the development of a landmark building, 
attracting visitors in its own right and providing a focus for education on waste 
management. Visitors can learn about the workings of the waste treatment facility 
and environmental issues through easy explanations and visual presentations of the 
waste treatment process and the inside of the facility. Friedensreich 
Hundertwasser’s designs for a district heating system in Spittelau, Austria and 
Maishima EfW in Osaka are good examples of this. The EfW in the Isle of Man is a 
further example of using positive design to promote the development. 

Project Integra, the integrated waste management strategy in Hampshire, has 
sought to utilise innovative design to overcome visual impact issues. A particular 
success has been the Marchwood Energy Recovery Facility, which has moved away 
from traditional designs and utilised a dome-like design in its construction. There are 
fewer examples of alternative technologies such as Mechanical Biological 
Treatment, but the potential for innovative design is equally applicable. 

7B - Final site selection report sept (v10).doc/Oct-07 2-4

Page 46



3 Review of planning policy 

3.1 Introduction 

National planning guidance on waste management is provided by Planning Policy 
Statement 10 (PPS 10: Planning for Sustainable Management, DCLG, July 2005) 
and its companion guide (June 2006 ). The adopted (2004) and emerging Regional 
Spatial Strategy for Yorkshire and Humber (RSS, 2007 Panel Report) provides 
regional policy guidance and the saved policies of the Leeds Unitary Development 
Plan (July 2006) represent the local policy.

A major change in how waste management facilities are planned has been 
introduced by the Planning and Compensation Act, 2004. New Local Development 
Frameworks (LDFs) replace the system of UDPs and Local Plans. As part of the 
LDF, Planning Authorities must also prepare a Waste Development Plan Document 
(WDPD). The Waste Development Plan Document should set out the number of 
new waste management facilities which need to be planned for and allocate suitable 
sites.

Work on the Leeds Natural Resources Development Plan Document, which will 
incorporate waste development, has recently commenced but this document will not 
be adopted until 2010. During the transitional period, the existing waste policies of 
the UDP are saved and will remain as the principal policy consideration along with 
other relevant DPD’s as they are produced (including the Leeds Core Strategy and 
AAPs) in determining planning applications for waste management facilities until 
they are replaced by the Natural Resources Development Plan Document.

The 2004 Act also made the RSS part of the statutory development plan and its 
policies must also be considered in the determination of planning applications.   

3.2 PPS 10: Planning for Sustainable Waste Management (July, 2005) and 
Companion Guide (June 2006) 

Paragraph 11 states that Regional Planning Bodies should consider the need for 
additional waste management capacity of regional or sub-regional significance. The 
RSS should provide the strategic framework for the preparation of local 
development framework documents through identifying the waste management 
facilities required and their appropriate distribution across the region. Paragraph 12 
goes on to state that this should include identifying the broad locations where major 
waste facilities should be accommodated.   

Paragraph 16 states that:  

‘The core strategy of a waste planning authority should set out policies and 
proposals for waste management in line with the RSS and ensure sufficient 
opportunities for the provision of waste management facilities in appropriate 
locations including for waste disposal. The core strategy should both inform and in 
turn be informed by any relevant municipal waste management strategy. It should 
look forward for a period of at least ten years from the date of adoption and should 
aim to look ahead to any longer-term time horizon that is set out in the RSS’. 

7B - Final site selection report sept (v10).doc/Oct-07 3-1

Page 47



Paragraphs 17 and 18 provide guidance on identifying land for waste management 
sites in Development Plan Documents which:

‘should identify in development plan documents sites and areas suitable for new or 
enhanced waste management facilities for the waste management needs of their 
areas. Waste planning authorities should in particular: - allocate sites to support the 
pattern of waste management facilities set out in the RSS in accordance with the 
broad locations identified in the RSS and allocate sites and areas suitable for new or 
enhanced waste management facilities to support the apportionment set out in the 
RSS’.

In doing so, waste planning authorities should: 

be able to demonstrate how capacity equivalent to at least ten years of the 
annual rates set out in the RSS could be provided; 

identify the type or types of waste management facility that would be 
appropriately

located on the allocated site or in the allocated area, taking care to avoid stifling 
innovation in line with the waste hierarchy; 

avoid unrealistic assumptions on the prospects, for the development of waste 
management facilities, or of particular sites or areas, having regard in particular 
to any ownership constraint which cannot be readily freed, other than through 
the use of compulsory purchase powers’.

In terms of searching for suitable sites for waste management facilities, paragraph 
20 states that waste planning authorities should: 

Look at opportunities for on-site management of waste where it arises.  

Identify a broad range of locations including industrial sites, looking for 
opportunities to co-locate facilities together with complementary activities.

Paragraph 21 states that in deciding which sites and areas should be identified for 
waste management facilities, waste planning authorities must assess their suitability 
against the following criteria: 

The extent to which they support the policies in PPS 10. 

The physical and environmental constraints on development, including existing 
and proposed neighbouring land uses (as set out in Annex E of PPS10). 

The cumulative effect of previous waste disposal facilities on the well-being of 
the local community, including any significant adverse impacts on environmental 
quality, social cohesion and inclusion of economic potential.  

The capacity of existing and potential transport infrastructure to support the 
sustainable movement of waste and products arising from resource recovery 
seeking when practicable and beneficial to use modes other than road transport.  

Give priority to the re-use of previously developed land.

Annex E also sets out the following more detailed considerations to the advice 
provided in paragraph 20:

Protection of water resources. 

Land instability. 

Visual intrusion. 

Nature conservation. 

Historic environment. 

7B - Final site selection report sept (v10).doc/Oct-07 3-2

Page 48



Traffic and access. 

Air emissions, including dust.  

Odours.

Vermin and birds. 

Noise and vibration.

Litter.

Potential land use conflicts.

Paragraph 7.4 of the companion guide also states that Area Action Plans can be a 
useful tool for integrating waste management needs with wider spatial concerns. 
Section 3.6 of the PPS 10 companion guide underlines the potential for Area Action 
Plans ‘to set out proposals for major new waste management capacity in order to 
ensure adequate provision’.

3.3 Regional Spatial Strategy  

The existing RSS for Yorkshire and the Humber was adopted in December 2004. 
The Yorkshire and Humber Regional Assembly (YHA) is currently responsible for 
monitoring RSS and keeping regional planning matters under review. YHA prepared 
a draft ‘new style’ RSS during 2004 and 2005 and this was published for 
consultation in January 2006. An independent panel was appointed to hold an 
Examination in Public in September and October 2006. The Panel Report setting out 
the findings and recommendations was published on 4 May 2007 and modifications 
published by the Government Office for the Yorkshire and Humber were published 
for further public consultation on 28th September, 2007 .  

Policy ENV 12 of the latest version of RSS sets out the following regional waste 
management objectives:  

 Plans, strategies, investment decisions and programmes should aim to reduce, 
re-use, recycle and recover as much waste as possible.    

 Local authorities should work with regional partners, including commerce, the 
Environment Agency, the waste industry, Recycling Action Yorkshire and 
community groups to ensure the integration of strategies and proposals for 
sustainable waste management. 

 Local authorities should support the urgent provision of a combination of 
facilities and other waste management initiatives which best meets 
environmental, social and economic needs based on: moving the management 
of all waste streams up the hierarchy; achieving all statutory waste management 
performance targets during the Plan period and managing waste at the nearest 
appropriate location, where necessary by seeking agreement with neighbouring 
authorities.   

Policy ENV 13 states:   

 Waste planning authorities should ensure that adequate sites and facilities are 
available to manage the quantities of municipal, commercial and industrial, 
construction and demolition, agricultural, and hazardous waste as set out within 
the RSS. This includes doubling the capacity of treatment and recovery facilities 
to deal with commercial and municipal waste by 2020.  

Policy ENV 14 states that the following principles should be considered in 
designating specific sites or areas where criteria based approaches will apply:  

7B - Final site selection report sept (v10).doc/Oct-07 3-3

Page 49



 Waste should be managed on the site where it arises, or if not at the nearest 
appropriate location.

 Facilities should be located in accordance with the Core Approach and the 
proposed distribution of housing and economic growth. 

 In all areas, identification of sites should also take account of the following 
priority order:
-Established and proposed industrial sites which have potential for the location 
of waste management facilities and the co-location of complimentary activities, 
such as ‘resource recovery’ or ‘sustainable growth parks’;  
-Previously developed land, including mineral extraction sites and landfill sites 
during their period of operation for the location of related waste treatment 
activities in sustainable locations;  
-Redundant farm buildings and their curtilages.   

In summary, paragraph 15.108 states that the primary role of the RSS is to help 
provide:

‘Sufficient opportunities for new waste management facilities of the right type, in the 
right place at the right time’

3.4 Leeds UDP: Saved policies 

Overall support for new waste management facilities is provided by UDP Policy N47 
which states:

‘Proposals for waste management facilities will be encouraged subject to detailed 
policies in Chapter A7’

Detailed Waste Policies are contained under Appendices A7. The supporting text in 
paragraph A7.2.1 states that  

‘The Council recognises that during the current Plan period (to 2016) it will need to 
identify and safeguard sites for waste management facilities of different capacities 
acknowledging the different land use approaches for different waste streams 
required. Site allocation will most likely be addressed in the new style of 
Development Plan, but policies contained in this section (A7) will enable the 
appropriate waste management facilities in the meantime’

A summary of the UDP policies is provided below but this should be read in 
conjunction with the UDP for their full interpretation and additional guidance. They 
also need to be considered in the context of PPS 10 and the emerging RSS.   

 Policy WM1: Proposals will be assessed in terms of the waste hierarchy, need 
outweighing harm, proximity principle, self sufficiency and Best Practicable 
Environmental Option (note this latter requirement is now removed by PPS 10). 

 Policy WM2 requires proposals to comply with the waste hierarchy (reduction, 
reuse, recovery, disposal). 

 Policy WM5: All proposals for permanent waste management facilities will be 
treated as an industrial use of land. Policies which apply to the acceptability of 
manufacturing and distribution development shall apply equally in all such 
cases.

 Policy WM6: In determining proposals for waste management facilities, the 
Council will have regard to the proximity, type and duration of other waste 

7B - Final site selection report sept (v10).doc/Oct-07 3-4

Page 50



operations including those outside Leeds and the cumulative effect upon 
residents and the environment.  

 Policy WM8 sets out the detailed planning and environmental considerations 
which will apply to proposals for waste management development. This 
includes:  
- timescale of the operation.  
- layout.  
- the use of Combined Heat and Power where a plant produces energy.  
- harm to visual amenity.  
- environmental and amenity including noise, dust, litter, vermin, odour and 

gas emissions.  
- protection of water resources and the provision of sustainable urban 

drainage systems. 
- harm to the interests of nature conservation. 
- adequate proposals for design and landscaping  
- highway and access issues.  
- impact on local residents.  
- hours of operation.  

Along side the topic specific plan policies there are also a number of general policies 
which will be used to assess applications for any development. These are also 
summarised below: 

 Policy GP1 states that where land is allocated for a particular use, no other 
permanent use will be considered appropriate, unless the proposed use is 
auxiliary to the allocated use or where the allocated use remains the 
predominant use within a mixed use scheme or that circumstances have 
materially altered since adoption of the UDP and the suitability of the site for its 
allocated use is brought in to question. 

 Policy GP2 addresses the consideration of applications made on unallocated, 
vacant or under-used sites, and that such applications will be considered 
favourably in the context of other plan policies, and any previous permissions 
granted or refused. 

 Policy GP3 states that existing land uses will remain the dominant land use of 
any area, except where specified on the proposals map, or development is 
consistent with Green Belt policy. New development will only be permitted where 
the proposed uses are compatible with existing uses in the area. 

 Policy GP5 details the planning considerations that applications must resolve, 
and also problems that proposals should avoid, for example loss of amenity, 
pollution, danger to health or life etc. Furthermore proposals must have regard to 
guidance contained in any relevant planning brief or framework prepared. 

3.5 Leeds Local Development Framework 

The LDF will replace the existing Unitary Development Plan. It will provide a 
strategic planning framework for the city, guiding change over the next 15 to 20 
years. When adopted, the LDF will form the statutory Development Plan for Leeds.   

The LDF is made up of a number of documents. This includes a Core Strategy and 
Local Development Documents (LDDs). Some of these LDDs, known as 
Development Plan Documents (DPDs), will have the legal status of a development 
plan. Documents with this status will guide decisions on planning applications within 
the area they cover.  

7B - Final site selection report sept (v10).doc/Oct-07 3-5

Page 51



An Area Action Plan (AAP) establishes the planning framework for an area of major 
change and also forms part of an LDF. AAPs set out the distribution of land uses in 
an area. They also focus upon the implementation of development proposals and 
provide an important mechanism for ensuring development is of an appropriate 
scale, mix and quality. Four AAPs are being produced in Leeds.

3.5.1 Aire Valley Leeds Area Action Plan (AVLAAP) 

Aire Valley Leeds is a major regeneration initiative being pursued by LCC. Located 
immediately to the south east of Leeds city centre, the area extends from the Royal 
Armouries and Clarence Dock, eastwards through Cross Green and Stourton to the 
M1.

It contains some 440 hectares (800 acres) of potential development land and is 
expected to provide over 50 per cent of the city’s employment growth over the next 
ten to fifteen years.  

The area, which already has more than around 3500 existing businesses could 
generate an additional 27,000+ jobs, 7000 new homes, major investment in public 
transport as well as enhanced leisure facilities for new and surrounding 
communities.

Work on the construction of the new East Leeds Link Road started in November 
2006 and should be completed by October 2008. The road is an important catalyst 
to the regeneration of the Aire Valley and will open up 250 hectares of land for 
development. 

The 3.9km dual carriageway road will run from Junction 45 of the M1 motorway 
along the line of Pontefract Lane, and the edge of Cross Green Industrial Park and 
to the rear of the former Copperfields College site. It will connect with Leeds City 
Centre and its Inner Ring Road stages 6 & 7, the latter of which is also under 
construction and due for completion in 2008. 

Preferred options for the AVLAAP are programmed to be released for consultation 
by LCC on 5 October, 2007 for a 6 week period.  

3.5.2 West Leeds Area Action Plan 

The aim of the West Leeds Area Action Plan (WLAAP) is to provide a co-ordinated 
approach to the spatial planning of neighbourhoods within the West Leeds Gateway 
Regeneration Area. It aims to provide a framework for sustainable communities in 
this part of the city and to assist with the delivery of the regeneration/renaissance 
objectives of LCC and Leeds West Homes. 

The AAP covers the area bounded by the Armley Gyratory & the Clyde's Estate to 
the East, Heights Estate to the West, Tong Road/Wortley Moor Road to the South 
and Leeds/Liverpool Canal to the North. The area includes the communities of New 
Wortley, Upper Wortley, Lower Armley, Armley Town Street, the Aviaries and the 
adjacent commercial areas along Stanningley Road, Tong Road and Carr Crofts. 

3.5.3 East and South East Leeds (EASEL) Area Action Plan  

Inner East Leeds contains the highest concentration of deprivation in the city. Over 
40% of housing is social rented stock, nearly twice the Leeds average. Leeds City 
Council intends to narrow the gap between the most disadvantaged people and 

7B - Final site selection report sept (v10).doc/Oct-07 3-6

Page 52



communities and the rest of the City, through the EASEL Initiative, a combination of 
physical, social, economic and environmental improvements within the area. 

The scale of investment required in the area is beyond any likely availability of public 
resources. Private sector resources and long-term investment is therefore required. 
The Council, through partnership with the private sector, aims to take forward the 
EASEL Regeneration Initiative. The AAP is intended to complement, support and 
take forward the spatial elements of the EASEL initiative by providing the planning 
policy approach to deal positively with the needs of both existing and future 
communities focusing on key objectives. 

The Preferred Options document was subject to consultation between 18th June 
2007 and 30th July 2007.

3.5.4 City Centre Area Action Plan  

The Leeds City Centre Area Action Plan is a Supplementary Planning Document 
(SPD) for the Leeds local Development Framework. The main purpose for this 
document is to provide policies and proposals for the development of land within the 
City centre to be taken into account when deciding Planning Applications.  The SPD 
also provides guidance for the future growth of the city. 

Consultation on the Alternative Options for the City Centre Area Action Plan closed 
on 5 May 2006. 

Consultation on the Preferred Options took place from the 16th April to 28th May 
2007.  Key issues included the size of the city centre, growth of employment and 
housing, sustainable construction, open space provision, transport and connections 
to adjoining areas.  The results from this consultation have not as yet been 
published.

3.6 Conclusion 

Key policy considerations for the site selection study are: 

 PPS 10 is clear that assumptions on selecting sites must be realistic about 
deliverability and the potential for site acquisition. Compulsory Purchase 
should only be considered as a last resort.  

 Site specific characteristics which must be taken into account are: proximity 
to the source of waste; impact on economic development prospects; 
environmental considerations; accessibility and compatibility with 
surrounding existing and proposed land uses. Where possible, facilities 
should be located on previously developed land and on sites either 
previously used or proposed for industrial uses.  

 The emerging Yorkshire and Humber Regional Spatial Strategy does not 
identify specific locations for waste management uses within Leeds but 
endorses the concept of sustainable energy resource parks and the co-
location of waste management facilities on the same or closely linked sites. It 
also provides strategic support for a significant increase in the number of 
waste recovery and recycling facilities.  

 The saved policies of the UDP do not identify preferred areas of search for 
new waste management facilities but do support new waste management 

7B - Final site selection report sept (v10).doc/Oct-07 3-7

Page 53



facilities provided certain criteria are met.  They also provide criteria based 
policies for assessing individual waste management proposals.  

 Although the Local Development Framework for Leeds is at an early stage of 
production, a number of Area Action Plans are being prepared in advance of 
the Core Strategy and the Natural Resources Development Plan Document. 
In the absence of a spatially specific policy in the RSS, a spatially specific 
UDP policy and an adopted Core Strategy, the Area Action Plans represent 
the first opportunity for the City Council to identify suitable sites for waste 
management uses. The sequence of preparing the LDF documents has 
been set out in the Local Development Scheme and provision for the 
inclusion of waste issues in Area Action Plans is set out in national guidance 
on the preparation of Local Development Frameworks (PPS12). During the 
transition period,  the saved policies of the Leeds UDP remain the principal 
local development plan document until replaced by LDF Documents. 

7B - Final site selection report sept (v10).doc/Oct-07 3-8

Page 54



4 Site Selection Study 

4.1 Introduction 

This chapter outlines the process to identify suitable sites for a SERP or a major 
waste management facility.

4.2 Stage 1: Identifying sites to be assessed by the site selection study  

The following information sources were used to identify an initial list of sites:  

 Leeds Unitary Development Plan, Leeds City Council. 

 Sites identified from the National Land Use Database return for Leeds.  

 Sites identified as part of the Leeds City Council Urban Capacity Study, 2003. 

 Interrogation of the Environment Agency waste management license database. 

 Ordnance Survey Maps.  

 Information obtained from aerial survey databases. 

This produced an initial list of over 2000 sites (see Appendix 1). The following 
criteria were then applied to exclude sites from the site selection study : 

 2.5 hectares is considered to be the minimum size threshold for a major waste 
facility (as set out in section 3.2).  Although the SERP would require a site larger 
than this (up to 15ha), the location of a residual waste treatment facility and MRF 
etc on separate but nearby sites cannot be ruled out.  

 Any sites within the boundary of the City Centre as defined on the UDP 
Proposals Map were deleted from the search as this was not considered to be 
an appropriate strategic location for waste management uses. 

As advised within Annex E of PPS 10, sites within or immediately adjacent to 
nationally designated environmental sites (e.g. Special Sites of Scientific 
Interest) or buildings of historic interest were removed where it was considered 
that this had the potential for adverse impacts which could not be mitigated.  

 Sites within the Green Belt were also deleted as development could only be 
justified in very special circumstances. 

 Sites currently allocated in the UDP for housing, prestige business parks and 
major office parks. This is because the UDP policy WM5 advises that any waste 
management uses will be treated as if they were for manufacturing or 
distribution purposes.   

This process initially identified over 100 possible sites to be considered by the site 
selection study and these were agreed with LCC. Further refinement of this list 
occurred subsequently to remove duplication (different data sources meant some 
sites had appeared more than once but had been given different site descriptions) 
and by grouping individual sites where they formed one larger site.   

This produced a total of 42 sites which were taken forward for assessment at stage 
2.

4.3 Stage 2: Producing a short list of potential sites 

This next stage required a broad comparative assessment to identify which of these 
42 sites should be discounted from the site selection process. The assessment 

7B - Final site selection report sept (v10).doc/Oct-07 4-9

Page 55



focused on compatibility with the criteria set out in paragraphs 17-21 of PPS 10 
namely:

 Land ownership and deliverability constraints gave an indication of the 
likelihood that the site could be acquired and planning permission 
delivered within the procurement time frame. 

 Whether the site is previously developed land. 

 Surrounding land uses (existing and proposed). 

 Strategic accessibility in terms of proximity to the main waste arisings, 
i.e. sites within the main urban area which are centrally located to serve 
the whole city are considered to be meet the proximity principle more 
than those on the edge of the main urban area or outside it in more rural 
locations.

A ‘traffic light assessment’ to indicate the suitability of sites against these criteria 
was used whereby:

 Green indicates that the site is compatible with the criteria.  

 Amber indicates that the site may have issues but it may be possible to 
overcome these, or more investigation is required.  

 Red indicates that the site is in conflict with the criteria and it would be unlikely 
or impossible to overcome this. The site is therefore eliminated from the search 
process.

A series of workshops were held to assess each site against the individual criteria 
and to provide an overall ‘traffic light’ assessment. These workshops involved 
members of the Jacobs project team, LCC planning, waste management, asset 
management, regeneration, procurement and transport planning officers. The 
detailed basis for scoring, plans of each site and outcome of the exercise are 
provided at Appendices 2 and 3.  

The sites which met most of the criteria overall were graded as green. Amber sites 
had more uncertainty. In simple terms, the green sites are those which, on balance, 
the workshops indicated could be both deliverable and sustainable whereas the 
amber sites were judged to have more constraints or be less desirable in terms of 
overall sustainability. The purpose of this overall grading was to indicate the sites 
where more detailed investigations should be undertaken at stage 3.  

The list of sites identified following this stage is summarised in table 4.1 below. 

7B - Final site selection report sept (v10).doc/Oct-07 4-10

Page 56



Table 4.1: Overall grading of sites after Stage 2 
Green Amber 

Site reference Summary of 
reasons 

Site reference Summary of 
reasons 

15 North of 
Pontefract 
Road, South of 
Railway and 
west of M1 J44 
(Aire Valley) 

Owned by LCC. 
Vacant brownfield 
land. Within 
existing industrial 
location. 
Allocated
employment with 
extant outline 
planning gconsent 
for offices. 
Within main urban 
area.

20 Area of major 
remediation 
including
schemes at 
existing sewage 
beds and lagoons 
associated with 
Knostrop Waste 
Water Treatment 
Works 
(Aire Valley) 

Comprehensive 
remediation is 
required over 
extended
period and 
therefore very 
unlikely to be 
completed 
within
procurement 
programme.  

16 Bell Hill/Stourton 
(Aire Valley) 

Owned by LCC. 
Undeveloped land. 
Located away from 
sensitive uses. 
Allocated
employment. 
Within the core 
urban area. 

22 Land south of 
Pontefract 
Lane/ELLR and 
east of Waste 
Water Treatment 
Works 
(Aire Valley) 

Prime
development 
site in private 
ownership. 
Deliverability
within
procurement 
timescales is 
uncertain

18 Development 
sites adjacent to   
Knostrop Waste 
Water 
Treatment 
Works, South of 
Pontefract Lane 
(ELLR) (Aire 
Valley)

Synergy with land 
owners interests. 
Undeveloped land 
Within existing 
industrial location.  
Allocated
employment.  
Within the core 
urban area.  

35 Britannia
Quarries 
(Morley) 

Currently still in 
use as a 
quarry.
There is an 
area with an 
unimplemented 
planning 
permission for a 
waste transfer 
station.
On the fringe of 
the urban area.  
Close to an 
area of 
proposed 
housing.  

19 Vacant land 
areas within 
Knostrop Waste 
Water 
Treatment 
Works 
(Aire Valley) 

Synergy with land 
owners interests. 
Vacant areas of 
brownfield land. 
Within existing 
industrial location. 
Within main urban 
area.

36 Howley Park 
Industrial Estate 
(Morley) 

Close to 
residential 
uses.  
On the urban 
fringe.

21 Former Skelton 
Grange Power 
Station
(Aire Valley) 

Synergy with land 
owners interests. 
Vacant areas of 
brownfield land. 
Within existing 
industrial location. 
Allocated for 
employment and 
with outline 
planning consent 

37 Scott Lane, 
Morley

Close to 
proposed 
residential area. 
On the urban 
fringe.

7B - Final site selection report sept (v10).doc/Oct-07 4-11

Page 57



Green Amber 

Site reference Summary of 
reasons 

Site reference Summary of 
reasons 

for B2 and B8. 
Within core urban 
area.

25 Former 
Wholesale 
Markets
between 
Newmarket 
Approach and 
Newmarket 
Lane
(Aire Valley)  

Owned by LCC. 
Vacant area of 
brownfield land. 
Within existing 
industrial location. 
Allocated
employment. 
Within main urban 
area.

40 Site of sports 
ground between 
ring road and 
Coal Road 
(Seacroft) 

Deliverability
within
timeframes is 
uncertain as 
current 
proposal is for 
mixed uses.   

38 Nepshaw Lane  
(Morley)  

Undeveloped land.  
Allocated
employment.  

41 Tulip Retail Park 
(Hunslet)  

In use as a 
retail park and 
deliverability is 
uncertain
because this is 
its current 
development 
value.

*See Appendix 3 for the full assessment 
** Pontefract Lane is now closed to through traffic and the ELLR will replace this 
road.

The green sites were taken forward for further assessment against strategic waste 
management criteria. Amber sites would only be considered further if none of the 
sites graded green were considered to be suitable. 

4.4 Stage 3: Detailed assessment of sites graded green 

This stage undertook a further assessment of the characteristics of each green site 
using the following criteria taken from PPS10:.

 The likelihood of site owners wishing to sell sites and potential acquisition 
costs.

 Site accessibility in terms of the capacity of the highways network.  

 The potential for alternative access (i.e. by rail, canal, river etc). 

 A more detailed assessment on the impact on or of surrounding land uses 
using the detailed criteria provided in Annex E of PPS 10.  

 The potential for negative impacts on regeneration objectives and economic 
investment.

This more detailed analysis was used to undertake a comparative assessment of 
each site against each criterion, by applying a simple scoring system using a scale 
of 1-3, with 1 indicating the lowest performance against the criteria. The results of 
this comparative exercise are shown in tables 4.2 and 4.3 below. This is based on:  

 How deliverable the site is. The sites with the highest score are where the 
risks in obtaining the site are considered to be lower and where land values 
are no higher than they would be for employment uses. For example, sites 
owned by the Council, within single ownership and where the development 
aspirations and credibility of land owners were known with more certainty 
scored highest.  

7B - Final site selection report sept (v10).doc/Oct-07 4-12

Page 58



7B - Final site selection report sept (v10).doc/Oct-07 4-13

 Accessibility in terms of highways capacity and safety, new infrastructure 
requirements and the potential for alternative access.  

 The potential to locate sites away from sensitive land uses or to provide 
mitigation against any impacts. Compatibility with existing surrounding land 
uses is broken down into 5 categories to reflect Annex E of PPS 10 and 
covers visual and landscape, amenity, historic environment, natural 
environment and economic impact.  

 Compatibility with future land use change such as through Area Action Plans 
and key regeneration projects. The scoring assessment was undertaken for 
visual impact, amenity and impact on regeneration objectives.  

 Planning status in terms of existing planning permissions, compatibility with 
current land use allocations and potential conflict with any proposed changes 
to existing land use allocations.   

More detailed definitions of the criteria and scoring system used at Stage 3 are 
included at Appendix 4 to this report. 

Tables 4.2 and 4.3 indicate that, overall, sites might appear to be reasonably similar 
but there are differences when the specific characteristics of a site are examined in 
more detail. Only the Bell Hill site was significantly worse than the other sites on the 
basis of the scoring exercise. The conclusions from this process, including a more 
detailed description of site characteristics, are provided in the following section 5.0. 

It is important to note that the scores recorded in Tables 4.2 and 4.3 were used to 
inform a qualitative assessment of the suitability of sites which is detailed within 
Section 5 of this report and summarised in Table 6.1. It was not considered 
beneficial to apply weightings to the individual criteria used at Stage 3 of the site 
selection process, and the total scores shown in the right hand columns of Tables 
4.2 and 4.3 are included for information only, and not as the sole basis for identifying 
preferred sites. 

Page 59



T
a

b
le

: 
4

.2
: 

In
d

iv
id

u
a
l 

S
c
o

ri
n

g
 C

ri
te

ri
a
 

D
e

li
v
e
ra

b
il

it
y
 

A
c

c
e

s
s

ib
il

it
y
 

C
o

m
p

a
ti

b
il

it
y
 W

it
h

 P
la

n
n

e
d

 a
n

d
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 L
a
n

d
 U

s
e
s
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
ta

tu
s
 

C
o

m
p

a
ti

b
il

it
y
 w

it
h

 
E

x
is

ti
n

g
 

S
u

rr
o

u
n

d
in

g
 L

a
n

d
 

U
s
e

C
o

m
p

a
ti

b
il

it
y
 

w
it

h
 P

la
n

n
e
d

 
S

u
rr

o
u

n
d

in
g

 
L

a
n

d
 U

s
e
s
 

S
it

e
P

o
te

n
ti

a
l

fo
r

A
c

q
u

is
it

io
n

 

In
d

ic
a
ti

v
e
 

C
o

s
ts

 
P

ro
x

im
it

y
 t

o
 

W
a
s
te

 
S

o
u

rc
e
s
 

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 

A
c

c
e

s
s
 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l
fo

r
A

lt
e

rn
a
ti

v
e
 

A
c

c
e

s
s
 

V
A

H E
N E

E
V

A
R

C
u

rr
e
n

t
P

la
n

n
in

g
 

S
ta

tu
s

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 

a
n

d
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 
L

a
n

d
 U

s
e
 

A
ll

o
c

a
ti

o
n

s
 

S
c
o

re

V
a
c
a
n

t 
la

n
d

 w
it

h
in

 
K

n
o

s
tr

o
p

 S
W

T
 

2
2

3
3

1
3

3
3

3
3

3
3

3
3

3
4
1

F
o

rm
e
r 

F
ru

it
 a

n
d

 
V

e
g

 M
a
rk

e
t 

3
3

3
3

2
2

2
3

3
2

3
3

2
3

3
4
0

D
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
la

n
d

 
a
d

ja
c
e
n

t 
to

 
K

n
o

s
tr

o
p

 S
e
w

a
g

e
 

T
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
W

o
rk

s
, 

S
o

u
th

 o
f 

P
o

n
te

fr
a

c
t 

L
a
n

e
 

2
2

3
3

1
3

3
3

3
2

2
3

2
3

3
3
8

F
o

rm
e
r 

S
k
e
lt

o
n

 
G

ra
n

g
e
 P

o
w

e
r 

S
ta

ti
o

n
 

2
2

3
2

2
3

3
3

3
3

3
2

2
2

3
3
8

L
a
n

d
 n

o
rt

h
 o

f 
P

o
n

te
fr

a
c
t 

R
o

a
d

, 
s
o

u
th

 o
f 

R
a
il
w

a
y
 

a
n

d
 w

e
s
t 

o
f 

M
1
 

3
3

3
3

1
2

3
3

3
1

2
3

2
1

3
3
6

N
e
p

s
h

a
w

 L
a
n

e
 

M
o

rl
e
y
 

1
2

2
2

1
3

2
3

3
2

3
2

3
3

3
3
5

B
e

ll
 H

il
l/

S
to

u
rt

o
n

 
3

3
3

1
1

1
1

3
3

1
1

1
2

3
2

2
9

V
: 
V

is
u
a
l 
a
n
d
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
. 

A
: 
A

m
e
n
it
y
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 n

o
is

e
, 
o
d
o
u
r,

 2
4
 h

o
u

r 
o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n

, 
tr

a
ff
ic

, 
d
u
s
t 
e
tc

. 
H

E
: 
Im

p
a
c
t 
o
n

 h
is

to
ri
c
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 h

is
to

ri
c
 e

n
v
ir
o
n

m
e
n
t.
 

N
E

: 
Im

p
a
c
t 
o
n

 n
a
tu

ra
l 
e
n

v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t.
 

E
: 
E

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

R
: 
R

e
g
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o

n
 p

la
n

n
e
d

 r
e

g
e
n

e
ra

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

F
in

a
l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 O
c
t-

0
7

4
-1

4

Page 60



F
in

a
l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 O
c
t-

0
7

4
-1

5

T
a
b

le
: 

4
.3

: 
G

ro
u

p
e
d

 S
c
o

re
s
 

C
o

m
p

a
ti

b
il

it
y
 W

it
h

 P
la

n
n

e
d

 a
n

d
 P

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 L
a
n

d
 

U
s
e

s
 

S
it

e

D
e

li
v
e
ra

b
il

it
y
 

A
c

c
e

s
s

ib
il

it
y
 

C
o

m
p

a
ti

b
il

it
y
 w

it
h

 
E

x
is

ti
n

g
 S

u
rr

o
u

n
d

in
g

 
L

a
n

d
 U

s
e
 

C
o

m
p

a
ti

b
il

it
y
 w

it
h

 
P

la
n

n
e
d

 S
u

rr
o

u
n

d
in

g
 

L
a
n

d
 U

s
e
s
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
ta

tu
s
 

S
c
o

re

V
a
c
a
n

t 
la

n
d

 w
it

h
in

 
K

n
o

s
tr

o
p

 S
W

T
 

4
7

1
5

9
6

4
1

F
o

rm
e
r 

F
ru

it
 a

n
d

 
V

e
g

 M
a
rk

e
t 

6
8

1
2

8
6

4
0

D
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
la

n
d

 
a
d

ja
c
e
n

t 
to

 
K

n
o

s
tr

o
p

 S
e
w

a
g

e
 

T
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
W

o
rk

s
, 

S
o

u
th

 o
f 

P
o

n
te

fr
a

c
t 

L
a
n

e
 

4
7

1
4

7
6

3
8

F
o

rm
e
r 

S
k
e
lt

o
n

 
G

ra
n

g
e
 P

o
w

e
r 

S
ta

ti
o

n
 

4
7

1
5

7
5

3
8

L
a
n

d
 n

o
rt

h
 o

f 
P

o
n

te
fr

a
c
t 

R
o

a
d

, 
s
o

u
th

 o
f 

R
a
il
w

a
y
 

a
n

d
 w

e
s
t 

o
f 

M
1
 

6
7

1
2

7
4

3
6

N
e
p

s
h

a
w

 L
a
n

e
 

M
o

rl
e
y
 

3
5

1
3

8
6

3
5

B
e

ll
 H

il
l/

S
to

u
rt

o
n

 
6

5
9

4
5

2
9

V
: 
V

is
u
a
l 
a
n
d
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
. 

A
: 
A

m
e
n
it
y
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 n

o
is

e
, 
o
d
o
u
r,

 2
4
 h

o
u

r 
o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n

, 
tr

a
ff
ic

, 
d
u
s
t 
e
tc

. 
H

E
: 
Im

p
a
c
t 
o
n

 h
is

to
ri
c
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 h

is
to

ri
c
 e

n
v
ir
o
n

m
e
n
t.
 

N
E

: 
Im

p
a
c
t 
o
n

 n
a
tu

ra
l 
e
n

v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t.
 

E
: 
E

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

R
: 
R

e
g
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o

n
 p

la
n

n
e
d

 r
e

g
e
n

e
ra

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

Page 61



5 Conclusions 

5.1 Introduction 

This stage summarises the results of the assessment process and provides 
conclusions to identify:  

Suitable sites: Suitable sites for a SERP or a major waste management facility. 

Constrained sites: These sites have a particular constraint which does not rule 
them out altogether but means they do not represent a preferred option.  

Unsuitable sites: Sites not considered suitable either in planning terms and/or 
due to significant constraints in their deliverability.  

In addition to taking into account the comparative scoring at section 4.0, this section 
also identifies the flood risk zone for each site in terms of PPS 25 (Planning and 
Flood Risk) based on information from the Leeds Strategic Flood Risk Assessment. 
Sites within flood risk zones 1 and 2 are identified in table D3 of PPS 25 as been 
suitable for essential infrastructure such as power generating uses.  

The order in which the sites are presented does not indicate any particular 
preference. 

5-16 

5.2 Suitable sites for a SERP or a major residual waste facility 

Former Skelton Grange Power Station (Site Ref 21) 

The former Skelton Grange Power Station is owned by the electricity provider RWE 
n Power. It is 23 ha in size and is therefore capable of accommodating the full 
SERP or the co-location of a number of facilities. RWE have indicated an interest in 
exploring the possibility of developing a waste treatment facility as part of their 
development plans for the site.

The site is strategically located within the Aire Valley, is previously developed land 
and is already characterised by industrial/utility uses. It is currently relatively isolated 
from sensitive land uses and is adjacent to the Waste Water treatment works to the 
north, east and north west and the Aire and Calder Navigation and River Aire to the 
south. It is allocated in the UDP for employment uses. A major waste facility would 
be compatible with existing land surrounding land uses and is consistent with the 
current land use allocation.  

The site has an outline planning consent granted for B2/B8 uses. The AVLAAP 
proposes that this part of the Aire Valley will be retained for employment uses and 
therefore it would remain a suitable location for a major waste use. The adjoining 
land would provide a ‘new’ neighbourhood if proposals in the AVLAAP are 
delivered. Careful siting, planning and design should ensure appropriate integration 
with major changes in land use which are proposed on the adjoining land and could 
be planned as a comprehensive and integrated sustainable community.  

The proximity to the Aire and Calder Navigation affords some potential for 
alternative methods of transporting waste to be investigated. The River Aire runs 
alongside and between the site and the canal.  British Waterways is proposing an 
inland dock on land south of the canal and south of this site. The site has an 
advantage in that there may be the future potential for access by barge.  

7B - Final site selection report sept (v10).doc/Oct-07                                                                                                     

Page 62



A single file bridge over the river and navigation is currently the only way to and 
from the site and the existing structure would need to be replaced for the road to be 
adopted by the Highways Authority. Preliminary investigations indicate that a 
replacement bridge could cost £10m. However, the involvement of LCC in 
developing the SERP and potential for involvement by other partners, such as 
Yorkshire Forward, may provide the potential to lever in public and private funds to 
replace the bridge which is a key element of infrastructure in delivering the 
AVLAAP. Knowsthorpe Lane should also provide access to J45 of the M1 but this is 
currently closed to vehicular traffic. Existing highway access constraints would need 
to be overcome before the site could be developed for a SERP or major waste 
facility.

In terms of PPS 25, the site is identified in the Leeds SFRA as been within flood risk 
zone 1. 

In summary the site is considered to be suitable because:  

 It is previously developed land within an existing industrial area.  

 The site was previously used for power generation and is owned by a major 
power generating company. 

 The site selection process has determined that the site is deliverable in 
terms of potential acquisition/partnership and the likelihood or obtaining 
planning permission.  

 It is well located strategically to serve the whole city.  

 There is the potential for exploring alternative forms of transport access from 
the canal.

 The main issues are access via Skelton Grange Bridge and compatibility 
with the proposed new neighbourhood areas. However, it is considered that 
both these issues can be overcome.  

 It is within a low flood risk area.  

Development sites adjacent to Knostrop Waste Water Treatment Works, 
south of Pontefract Lane (Site Ref 18) 

These sites are 12.0 ha. of undeveloped land alongside Pontefract Lane/ELLR and  
owned by Kelda/Yorkshire Water. Potentially there is synergy between an energy 
recovery facility and the adjoining operational land of Yorkshire Water which is 
proposed to consolidate as part of the reconfiguration of the whole of their land 
interests in the Aire Valley. This site might have the potential to provide enough land 
for a SERP, particularly if adjacent land to the west (currently used by Leeds City 
Council City Services) could also be made available. Even without this addition it 
would still be possible to co-locate a number of facilities on these sites. The site is 
deliverable.

The site is currently allocated for employment uses in the UDP. It is proposed to 
retain this employment allocation in the AVLAAP. As this location is prominent 
frontage to the East Leeds Link Road, there could be a perceived impact on the 
economic and regeneration objectives of the AVLAAP. However, a major waste 
facility could be sited towards the treatment works. 

The site would have excellent strategic highway access to the ELLR. However, 
there is no potential for alternative access via rail or canal.   

5-17 7B - Final site selection report sept (v10).doc/Oct-07                                                                                                     

Page 63



The site is within flood risk zone 1.    

In summary the site is considered to be suitable because:  

 It is previously developed land within an existing industrial area.  

 The site selection process has determined that the site is deliverable in 
terms of potential acquisition/partnership and it meets key planning tests.  

 It is well located strategically to serve the whole city.  

 There is potential synergy with the surrounding land uses and the land is 
owned by a major utility provider.  

 It has direct access to the East Leeds Link Road once this is completed.  

 It is within a low flood risk area.  

 The main issue is that there may be a perception that this location could 
have an impact on the regeneration objectives for the Aire Valley.  

Vacant land areas within Knostrop Waste Water Treatment Works (Aire 
Valley) (Site Reference 19) 

The Knostrop Sewage Water Treatment Works contains a number of areas of 
vacant land, particularly along the western boundary of the site and towards the 
River Aire. Yorkshire Water has indicated that there may be synergy between waste 
treatment processes which generate energy and power and the operation of the site. 
The site is potentially deliverable dependent on which areas of vacant land could be 
available.

Although the Knostrop works will be reconfigured and a major remediation 
programme is planned, the site will remain operational land. As such, the potential 
for conflict with regeneration and economic objectives for the Aire Valley is limited. 
The development of a major waste facility is consistent with both existing and 
proposed land use policy. 

The possibility of locating a SERP on the site would need to be investigated further 
and would depend on the precise areas of land available. There may also be the 
potential to include the adjacent site currently used for the Leeds City Council refuse 
vehicle depot within any development proposals.  

Access to the site would be good to and from the East Leeds Link Road and also 
potentially from the south over Skelton Grange Bridge (see comments above). It has 
good highway access but there is no potential for access by rail and canal.  

The site is mainly within flood risk zone 1 with the remaining land in zone 2.  

In summary the site is considered to be suitable because:  

 It is previously developed land within an area currently used for Sewage 
Waste Water Treatment.  

 The site selection process has determined that the site is deliverable in 
terms of potential acquisition/partnership and it meets key planning tests.  

 It is well located strategically to serve the whole city.  

 There is potential synergy with the surrounding land uses and the land is 
owned by a major utility provider.  

 It has direct access to the East Leeds Link Road once this is completed.  

 It is within a low flood risk area.  

5-18 7B - Final site selection report sept (v10).doc/Oct-07                                                                                                     

Page 64



Former Wholesale Market between Newmarket Approach and 
Newmarket Lane (Site Reference 25) 

This site is 9.5 ha of underused previously developed vacant land immediately north 
of Pontefract Lane (East Leeds Link Road). It is the site of a former market and is a 
flat open site. The land is owned by the City Council and there are no deliverability 
constraints in terms of land acquisition.  

The land is partly allocated for employment in the UDP. It would be possible to site 
the waste facility away from the East Leeds Link Road frontage and ensure that a 
major waste facility is compatible with the objectives of the AVLAAP. The 
development of a major waste facility is consistent with both existing and proposed 
land use policy. 

To the north of the site is the Neville Hill Railway Maintenance Depot. The main 
issue in terms of surrounding land uses is the proximity to existing housing to the 
north west and north east of the site. However, the properties to the north east are 
proposed for employment uses within the EASEL Area Action Plan. Therefore, this 
would help reduce the potential for any impacts on surrounding land uses.  

Access to the site would be good from the East Leeds Link Road and there is also 
potential for rail access given its proximity to Neville Hill Rail Depot. This depot is 
subject to separate proposals for rail freight uses.  

The site is within flood risk zone 1. 

In summary the site is considered to be suitable because:  

 It is previously developed land within an existing industrial area.  

 The site selection process has determined that the site is deliverable as it is 
owned by the City Council and it meets key planning tests. There are no 
outstanding planning permissions on the site.  

 It is well located strategically to serve the whole city.  

 It has direct access to the East Leeds Link Road once this is completed.  

 It is within a low flood risk area.  

 The main issue is that there is some housing located close to the boundary 
of the site. However, it should be possible to overcome this issue and this is 
also subject to a proposed employment allocation within the EASEL AAP.  

5.3 Constrained sites 

Nepshaw Lane  

This is located off Nepshaw Lane, Morley. It is 30 ha. of flat undeveloped land and 
would be large enough to accommodate a SERP. Strategically, it is less well located 
on the fringe of the City than the preferred sites but has good access to the 
M621/M62. It is allocated for employment uses in the UDP and the site 
characteristics mean it could be suitable for waste management facilities.  The main 
issues which need to be overcome are land purchase, internal access through the 
existing industrial estate and siting to ensure that waste management uses do no 
conflict with the surrorunding area.  A Local Nature Area is also located in the 
middle of the site and mitigation to protect this area would be required.  The site is 
also subject to 3 undetermined outline planning applications for business uses.  One 

5-19 7B - Final site selection report sept (v10).doc/Oct-07                                                                                                     

Page 65



of the main issues which remains unresolved is an objection from the Highways 
Agency regarding capacity at the motorway junction. Therefore, it is uncertain that a 
major waste facility could be delivered at the site within the project timeframes. This 
is in addition to that it does not have the same strategic advantage in terms of its 
location.

The strategic disadvantage of this location and greater uncertainty on deliverability 
than other sites due to multiple ownership means that it is considered to have 
greater constraints. There is also a question of whether other types of employment 
uses represent a more appropriate land use for this site, particularly as the City 
Council is concerned about the loss of employment land in this area. However, as 
waste uses are similar to employment uses in characteristics this should not 
automatically represent a reason to discount the site.  

In summary, the site is considered to be constrained because:  

 It is within multiple ownerships and is subject to undetermined planning 
applications. As such, there is greater uncertainty regarding its deliverability 
within the project time frames.  

 It is more remotely located in terms of access to the rest of the City and 
there are access constraints due to the impact of development on the 
Strategic Road Network.

 There is a shortage of employment land within the Morley Area and it could 
be argued that it is more appropriate to retain this land for ‘traditional’ 
employment uses and not waste development activity.  

Land north of Pontefract Road, south of railway and west of M1/J44 
(Aire Valley) (Site Reference 15) 

The land is owned by Leeds City Council but is limited in size due to parts of the 
site being protected for environmental use and the remainder been remodelled and 
raised to accommodate office development on the 3 platforms, which was funded by 
grant aid, via SRB and Yorkshire Forward.  

The site would have direct access to Pontefract Road and good access to the M1 
via J44. 

The site is close to, but not adjacent to the railway. so it remains unlikely to afford 
rail access due to the topography and intervening environmental uses.  

As only 4.6. ha of land is available for development, this means it would not be 
possible to provide a SERP on the site.  The site also already has outline planning 
permission for office uses and a number of potential occupiers are interested in 
purchasing the site. Given that this site has already been prepared for office 
development and a number of occupiers are interested, it is not considered 
appropriate to ‘sterilise’ the immediate development potential of the site for a further 
period of time by identifying it as a potential waste site. This is particularly the case 
given that this study has identified other alternative major waste sites which are 
considered to be more suitable.   

 In summary the main constraint for this site is:  

 Although the site could be suitable for a major waste facility, it would not be 
large enough for a SERP. However, identifying the site for a waste use 

5-20 7B - Final site selection report sept (v10).doc/Oct-07                                                                                                     

Page 66



would sterilise development activity. As external grant funding has been 
used to prepare the site for offices and it has outline planning consent for this 
use, it is considered appropriate to release this site for this use.   

5.4 Unsuitable sites 

Bell Hill/Stourton (Site Reference 16) 

This site is small and triangular in shape (3.6ha) and surrounded by the M621, A61 
and the A639 on all sides. The land is undeveloped but allocated for employment 
uses in the UDP. It is isolated from other surrounding uses and is visually prominent 
from the Leeds Valley Park office development. There are no extant planning 
permissions and the land is owned by LCC.  

Although strategic access to the site may appear to be good, the site access itself 
from the A61 is very problematic. A highways feasibility study was undertaken by 
Leeds City Council in May 2004 and this confirmed that it could cost up to £1 million 
to overcome the access issues. A roundabout is also highlighted as the preferred 
solution by LCC but this would result in the loss of development land from the site. 
As such, this severely limits its potential for a major waste facility as only a small 
area of land would be available.  

In summary, this site is considered unsuitable because:  

 Detailed investigations show that access constraints would result in much of 
the developable part of the site being lost to provide new access 
arrangements. Given that the site is not very large, this is considered to be 
an overriding constraint.  

5-21 7B - Final site selection report sept (v10).doc/Oct-07                                                                                                     

Page 67



6 Recommendations 

6.1.1 Aire Valley 

PPS 10 and the emerging RSS are clear that the favoured locations for major waste 
facilities are:  

 Areas characterised by existing industrial uses.  

 Previously developed land. 

 Sites well located in terms of proximity and strategic access to waste 
arisings.

 Potential for access by rail and water.  

 Would not give rise to conflicts with surrounding land uses. 

The Aire Valley has two distinct advantages for major waste facilities. First, there is 
a choice of alternative sites which might be suitable for a SERP. Even if a SERP is 
not deliverable on a single site, the fact there are a number of suitable sites means 
the co-location of facilities on different sites within close proximity to each other is 
feasible.

For these reasons, the Aire Valley provides the best location to either provide 
a SERP on a single site or to co-locate facilities as advised in PPS 10 and the 
emerging RSS. It also meets the criteria for the location of waste management 
facilities set out in both national and regional guidance. 

Whilst the impact on economic development and regeneration represent important 
considerations, the amount of land available for development in the Aire Valley 
means it is possible to take coordinated action to ensure that the economic and 
regeneration potential of the area is not compromised.  The companion guides to 
both PPS 10 and PPS 12 makes it clear that Area Action Plans should consider all 
land uses including waste. 

It should be recognised that such uses could make a positive contribution towards 
creating a sustainable environment for example through recovering waste to supply 
heat and power to both existing and new land uses. 

6.1.2 Outside the Aire Valley 

The main alternative site for a SERP outside the Aire Valley is identified at Nepshaw 
Lane, Morley/Gildersome. This does not, however, have the same strategic 
advantages as the sites within the Aire Valley. Whilst sites outside the Aire Valley 
have been given equal consideration in this City wide search, the assessment 
undertaken provides the evidence to support the Aire Valley as the preferred 
strategic location for a major waste use by virtue that:  

 The characteristics of the Aire Valley meet all the key tests outlined in PPS 
10 with regards to access (including the potential for road and canal access 
on some sites), the availability of previously development land, its industrial 
characteristics (including former power generation sites and existing water 
treatment uses) and the availability of vacant sites.  

6-22 

 PPS 10 and the emerging RSS also support the co-location of related 
facilities to avoid unnecessary transportation. 

7B - Final site selection report sept (v10).doc/Oct-07                                                                                                     

Page 68



 Having regard to the saved UDP policies, the sites identified in the Aire 
Valley have the potential to meet all these criteria.  

 The AVLAAP now affords the potential for a land use allocation for waste 
uses the first such opportunity in the LDF programme.  

6.1.3 Suitable Sites 

The table below reflects the overall conclusions of the study and provides 
recommendations for the final short list of sites:  

Table 6.1: Site Recommendations 

Deliverable Accessible Compatibility 
with Existing 
Land Uses 

Compatibility 
with 
Proposed
Land Uses 

Planning
Status

Suitable Sites 
Vacant land 
within 
Knostrop 
SWT

Former Fruit 
and Veg 
Market

Development 
land 
adjacent to 
Knostrop 
Sewage 
Treatment 
Works, 
South of 
Pontefract 
Lane

Former
Skelton 
Grange 
Power 
Station

Constrained Sites 
Land north 
of Pontefract 
Road, south 
of Railway 
and west of 
M1

Nepshaw 
Lane Morley

Unsuitable Sites 
Bell
Hill/Stourton 

 :  Study indicates the site is suitable and that any identified constraints can be overcome. 
 : Study indicates that further investigation is necessary or a constraint is more difficult to 

overcome.
 :   Major constraint with little or no scope for mitigation. 

6-23 7B - Final site selection report sept (v10).doc/Oct-07                                                                                                     

Page 69



W
A

S
T

E
 S

IT
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

IO
N

 R
E

P
O

R
T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

S
O

U
R

C
E

A
R

E
A

_
H

A
X

_
C

O
O

R
D

Y
_

C
O

O
R

D
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

_
1

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
_

2
T

Y
P

E
_

C
O

D
E

L
A

N
D

_
U

S
E

_
C

P
L

G
_

S
T

A
T

U
S

n
lu

d
0

.0
3

4
3

0
3

5
7

.6
7

4
3

3
7

5
2

.4
4

n
lu

d
0

.0
6

4
3

0
4

3
0

.9
8

4
3

3
6

6
9

.9
6

C
O

U
N

T
Y

 H
O

U
S

E
V

IC
A

R
 L

A
N

E
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.1
0

4
3

1
0

0
5

.8
1

4
3

3
0

4
3

.9
4

n
lu

d
0

.0
5

4
3

0
6

5
2

.1
1

4
3

3
7

4
3

.0
5

n
lu

d
0

.0
6

4
3

0
0

4
5

.3
3

4
3

3
3

2
6

.5
8

n
lu

d
0

.0
5

4
2

6
2

9
6

.5
4

4
2

7
4

5
3

.5
2

n
lu

d
0

.0
7

4
2

2
9

4
0

.5
9

4
3

4
8

6
2

.8
1

V
A

C
A

N
T

 L
A

N
D

C
H

U
R

C
H

 H
IL

L
 G

R
E

E
N

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.0
9

4
2

1
6

8
0

.9
7

4
3

2
9

3
3

.9
1

n
lu

d
0

.2
2

4
2

0
0

9
1

.0
0

4
4

6
1

7
0

.9
2

n
lu

d
0

.0
3

4
3

5
1

5
8

.6
6

4
3

3
5

6
2

.5
9

n
lu

d
0

.0
7

4
3

5
4

3
0

.6
9

4
3

3
8

5
4

.5
8

n
lu

d
0

.2
5

4
3

0
8

1
6

.2
2

4
3

7
1

5
5

.2
8

1
A

L
L

E
R

T
O

N
 P

A
R

K
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.0
4

4
3

0
5

2
1

.3
0

4
3

3
4

1
3

.4
4

n
lu

d
0

.0
8

4
2

9
7

6
1

.8
1

4
3

4
5

4
9

.5
2

n
lu

d
0

.1
1

4
2

6
5

4
3

.9
1

4
2

7
3

0
1

.9
8

n
lu

d
0

.0
9

4
2

2
8

2
4

.2
5

4
3

2
2

4
5

.9
1

n
lu

d
0

.7
0

4
4

3
4

6
8

.0
9

4
3

8
2

5
0

.3
6

L
IO

N
 H

O
U

S
E

G
R

E
Y

S
T

O
N

E
 P

A
R

K
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.0
2

4
2

9
5

1
3

.3
3

4
3

3
6

1
3

.0
3

2
0

P
A

R
K

 P
L

A
C

E
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.0
2

4
3

0
2

5
1

.6
6

4
3

3
4

1
7

.4
7

n
lu

d
0

.0
3

4
3

0
6

4
9

.1
1

4
3

4
2

2
0

.9
4

n
lu

d
0

.0
6

4
2

9
7

0
4

.3
6

4
3

3
3

9
3

.6
3

n
lu

d
0

.0
4

4
2

9
6

2
4

.0
7

4
3

3
7

6
2

.5
8

n
lu

d
0

.0
7

4
3

9
2

2
0

.3
9

4
2

6
6

6
5

.0
0

n
lu

d
0

.2
0

4
2

6
6

1
6

.9
2

4
2

9
1

0
9

.6
0

n
lu

d
0

.1
2

4
2

6
9

9
1

.7
7

4
3

2
4

7
3

.4
1

G
R

E
E

N
 H

IL
L

 H
O

U
S

E
G

R
E

E
N

 H
IL

L
 L

A
N

E
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
6

4
2

7
7

2
2

.9
7

4
3

4
9

1
3

.7
8

5
5

C
A

R
D

IG
A

N
 L

A
N

E
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.0
9

4
2

8
5

4
1

.4
5

4
3

4
6

8
3

.5
9

n
lu

d
0

.0
6

4
2

8
4

2
3

.3
7

4
3

5
0

3
5

.6
0

4
3

 T
O

 5
5

Q
U

E
E

N
S

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.0
4

4
2

7
4

1
6

.5
9

4
3

5
9

4
8

.0
2

n
lu

d
0

.0
4

4
2

8
5

7
6

.4
4

4
3

4
6

5
6

.0
6

n
lu

d
0

.2
9

4
3

3
1

4
7

.6
0

4
3

7
5

8
6

.5
4

P
IN

E
 H

IL
L

 C
O

U
R

T
P

A
R

K
 A

V
E

N
U

E
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
3

4
3

3
0

7
5

.3
4

4
3

7
5

5
9

.8
9

n
lu

d
0

.7
0

4
3

3
1

5
9

.1
4

4
3

7
4

2
1

.0
0

B
E

E
C

H
 L

O
D

G
E

P
A

R
K

 A
V

E
N

U
E

D
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.2
4

4
4

0
5

5
9

.1
6

4
4

8
4

8
8

.0
6

n
lu

d
0

.3
7

4
3

7
8

8
2

.0
2

4
4

0
5

1
1

.0
5

S
IT

E
 O

F
 K

IR
K

B
Y

 H
O

U
S

E
M

A
IN

 S
T

R
E

E
T

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.1
2

4
4

0
2

8
0

.0
9

4
3

3
0

4
7

.4
5

n
lu

d
0

.0
3

4
3

0
5

0
6

.6
9

4
3

6
6

6
4

.4
2

n
lu

d
0

.7
7

4
2

8
7

1
5

.4
9

4
2

9
1

3
5

.5
9

S
IT

E
 O

F
 4

8
 T

O
 1

2
6

P
A

R
K

W
O

O
D

 C
R

E
S

C
E

N
T

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.1
8

4
2

6
4

7
4

.1
3

4
2

7
8

5
1

.1
7

n
lu

d
0

.1
6

4
2

7
0

2
9

.3
0

4
3

2
3

0
3

.5
5

n
lu

d
0

.2
2

4
2

2
1

3
8

.2
8

4
3

6
8

7
2

.4
2

n
lu

d
0

.2
1

4
2

2
3

1
9

.8
8

4
3

3
1

0
5

.9
7

n
lu

d
0

.1
6

4
2

8
5

4
8

.1
1

4
3

5
2

6
7

.4
7

n
lu

d
0

.1
0

4
2

4
4

3
0

.5
9

4
3

9
0

3
2

.9
7

n
lu

d
1

.3
7

4
1

9
4

1
8

.8
9

4
4

5
9

3
9

.4
5

A
S

H
F

IE
L

D
 H

O
U

S
E

W
E

S
T

O
N

 L
A

N
E

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
2

4
3

2
4

3
0

.1
1

4
3

9
4

0
2

.2
8

n
lu

d
0

.0
3

4
3

4
9

6
0

.3
6

4
3

3
3

5
9

.6
8

n
lu

d
0

.0
7

4
2

2
5

6
6

.3
3

4
3

3
4

9
2

.1
4

n
lu

d
0

.1
6

4
3

2
4

2
1

.5
9

4
3

8
3

5
8

.3
4

n
lu

d
0

.4
1

4
2

4
8

1
3

.1
3

4
3

5
2

4
8

.0
8

V
A

C
A

N
T

 L
A

N
D

 O
F

F
 W

A
T

E
R

L
O

O
 W

A
Y

 A
N

D
 R

A
Y

N
V

IL
L

E
 R

O
A

D
W

A
T

E
R

L
O

O
 W

A
Y

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
P

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 L
a

n
d

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 n

o
w

 V
a

c
a

W
it
h

in
 a

 z
o

n
e

 a
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l

n
lu

d
0

.2
9

4
2

5
9

3
5

.6
4

4
3

5
3

9
4

.9
6

V
A

C
A

N
T

 L
A

N
D

 B
E

T
W

E
E

N
 L

E
E

D
S

 L
IV

E
R

P
O

O
L

 C
A

N
A

L
 A

N
D

 W
Y

T
H

E
R

 L
A

N
E

W
Y

T
H

E
R

 L
A

N
E

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
6

4
3

0
9

9
4

.2
0

4
3

3
2

1
9

.8
4

L
A

N
D

 A
T

 C
O

T
T

O
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 A
N

D
 M

A
R

S
H

 L
A

N
E

C
O

T
T

O
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

C
  

 D
e

re
lic

t
In

d
u

s
tr

y
W

it
h

in
 a

 z
o

n
e

 a
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l

n
lu

d
0

.1
4

4
3

1
1

2
0

.3
1

4
3

3
0

1
7

.6
6

n
lu

d
1

.1
1

4
2

5
8

9
5

.9
2

4
3

5
2

8
5

.8
8

M
E

R
C

H
A

N
T

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 I
N

D
U

S
T

R
IA

L
 E

S
T

A
T

E
W

Y
T

H
E

R
 L

A
N

E
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
In

d
u

s
tr

y
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
1

.5
1

4
2

2
2

3
6

.1
1

4
3

4
3

3
9

.8
1

F
O

R
M

E
R

 S
T

A
N

N
IN

G
L

E
Y

 S
T

A
T

IO
N

 A
N

D
 Y

A
R

D
R

IC
H

A
R

D
S

H
A

W
 L

A
N

E
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
1

.5
3

4
2

2
2

8
1

.5
5

4
3

4
3

0
1

.3
8

F
O

R
M

E
R

 R
A

IL
T

R
A

C
K

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 D

E
P

O
T

 S
T

A
N

N
IN

G
L

E
Y

 S
T

A
T

IO
N

R
IC

H
A

R
D

S
H

A
W

 L
A

N
E

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

a
ilw

a
y
s

A
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
9

.5
4

4
2

2
1

6
3

.9
5

4
4

2
2

5
1

.5
6

C
O

N
E

Y
 P

A
R

K
 I

N
D

U
S

T
R

IA
L

 E
S

T
A

T
E

H
A

R
R

O
G

A
T

E
 R

O
A

D
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.2
4

4
2

2
8

4
8

.5
8

4
3

3
6

6
7

.5
8

V
A

C
A

N
T

 L
A

N
D

 A
T

 L
A

N
E

 E
N

D
L

A
N

E
 E

N
D

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
0

.4
8

4
1

9
5

0
6

.5
8

4
3

3
5

6
3

.2
3

H
O

T
E

L
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

 A
T

 M
ID

 P
O

IN
T

M
ID

 P
O

IN
T

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

a
l 
A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.9
4

4
1

9
5

7
8

.0
2

4
3

3
5

2
9

.2
2

C
A

L
L

 C
E

N
T

R
E

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 A

T
 M

ID
P

O
IN

T
M

ID
 P

O
IN

T
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.4
0

4
1

9
5

6
8

.8
0

4
3

3
5

9
9

.6
4

A
C

C
E

S
S

 R
O

A
D

 A
T

 M
ID

 P
O

IN
T

M
ID

 P
O

IN
T

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
o

a
d

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
4

.1
9

4
2

8
0

2
8

.7
2

4
3

1
2

3
5

.7
3

L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
O

IN
IN

G
 E

L
L

A
N

D
 R

O
A

D
 S

T
A

D
IU

M
E

L
L

A
N

D
 R

O
A

D
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

A
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
0

.5
9

4
2

8
0

4
8

.1
3

4
3

2
2

5
9

.5
1

L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
O

IN
IN

G
 W

IN
E

R
IT

E
G

E
L

D
E

R
D

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

C
a

r 
P

a
rk

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
3

.3
6

4
2

8
0

9
0

.4
2

4
3

1
0

6
6

.6
1

F
O

R
M

E
R

 G
R

E
Y

H
O

U
N

D
 S

T
A

D
IU

M
E

L
L

A
N

D
 R

O
A

D
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

A
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
1

.1
0

4
3

2
1

1
5

.7
3

4
3

1
0

1
2

.9
5

T
H

W
A

IT
E

 G
A

T
E

 S
T

O
U

R
T

O
N

 S
IT

E
 4

T
H

W
A

IT
E

 G
A

T
E

C
  

 D
e

re
lic

t
In

d
u

s
tr

y
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
0

.7
5

4
2

8
0

1
8

.8
9

4
2

6
7

1
6

.5
2

S
IT

E
 C

 F
O

R
M

E
R

 T
O

P
C

L
IF

F
E

 L
A

N
E

 G
A

S
 W

O
R

K
S

T
O

P
C

L
IF

F
E

 L
A

N
E

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.6
5

4
2

7
9

6
4

.6
6

4
2

6
6

4
1

.0
5

S
IT

E
 B

 F
O

R
M

E
R

 T
O

P
C

L
IF

F
E

 L
A

N
E

 G
A

S
 W

O
R

K
S

T
O

P
C

L
IF

F
E

 L
A

N
E

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
2

.9
5

4
2

2
5

4
0

.8
8

4
3

4
5

4
6

.8
8

T
O

W
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 S
T

A
N

N
IN

G
L

E
Y

T
O

W
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
2

.8
9

4
3

2
2

0
3

.1
7

4
3

4
0

8
0

.5
9

T
R

E
N

T
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
R

R
E

 R
O

A
D

T
R

E
N

T
 R

O
A

D
C

  
 D

e
re

lic
t

M
in

e
ra

l 
W

o
rk

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 Q
u

a
rr

ie
s

A
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

1

Page 70



W
A

S
T

E
 S

IT
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

IO
N

 R
E

P
O

R
T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

S
O

U
R

C
E

A
R

E
A

_
H

A
X

_
C

O
O

R
D

Y
_

C
O

O
R

D
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

_
1

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
_

2
T

Y
P

E
_

C
O

D
E

L
A

N
D

_
U

S
E

_
C

P
L

G
_

S
T

A
T

U
S

n
lu

d
0

.9
4

4
3

1
5

3
6

.3
8

4
3

3
4

9
0

.5
8

L
A

N
D

 T
O

 R
E

A
R

 O
F

 6
8

 U
P

P
E

R
 A

C
C

O
M

M
O

D
A

T
IO

N
 R

O
A

D
U

P
P

E
R

 A
C

C
O

M
M

O
D

A
T

IO
N

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
7

4
2

7
3

2
5

.1
9

4
2

8
2

7
8

.3
6

V
A

L
L

E
Y

 M
IL

L
S

V
A

L
L

E
Y

 R
O

A
D

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.8
2

4
2

1
8

5
5

.9
5

4
3

4
2

6
6

.2
2

S
A

N
D

 A
N

D
 G

R
A

V
E

L
 M

E
R

C
H

A
N

T
S

 Y
A

R
D

V
IA

D
U

C
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.6
1

4
2

9
8

8
3

.5
8

4
3

2
8

9
3

.1
7

F
O

R
M

E
R

 H
A

L
IF

A
X

 B
A

N
K

 C
A

R
 P

A
R

K
W

A
T

E
R

 L
A

N
E

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

D
e

ta
ile

d
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.6
1

4
2

9
3

2
0

.0
9

4
3

2
7

7
4

.3
9

F
O

R
M

E
R

 N
A

C
R

O
 S

IT
E

W
A

T
E

R
 L

A
N

E
C

  
 D

e
re

lic
t

In
d

u
s
tr

y
W

it
h

in
 a

 z
o

n
e

 a
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l

n
lu

d
0

.5
4

4
2

7
2

9
0

.6
8

4
3

7
6

9
3

.2
3

S
T

 U
R

B
A

N
S

 S
C

H
O

O
L

W
E

E
T

W
O

O
D

 L
A

N
E

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.6
2

4
2

8
8

3
6

.1
6

4
3

3
5

5
7

.5
0

C
IT

Y
G

A
T

E
 S

IT
E

 B
W

E
L

L
IN

G
T

O
N

 B
R

ID
G

E
 S

T
R

E
E

T
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
W

it
h

in
 a

 z
o

n
e

 a
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l

n
lu

d
0

.4
1

4
2

9
6

4
3

.8
9

4
2

9
9

3
2

.1
1

V
A

C
A

N
T

 L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
O

IN
IN

G
 W

E
S

T
L

A
N

D
 R

O
A

D
 A

N
D

 W
E

S
T

L
A

N
D

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

W
E

S
T

L
A

N
D

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
P

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 L
a

n
d

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 n

o
w

 V
a

c
a

D
e

ta
ile

d
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
8

.2
4

4
2

6
4

2
7

.1
6

4
3

1
4

3
0

.9
8

S
IT

E
 O

F
 F

O
R

M
E

R
 D

U
N

L
O

P
 R

A
N

K
E

N
 D

E
P

O
T

W
H

IT
E

H
A

L
L

 R
O

A
D

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.7
7

4
2

6
0

9
3

.6
5

4
3

5
0

8
9

.2
1

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 P

O
W

E
R

 L
A

N
D

 A
T

 W
Y

T
H

E
R

 B
R

ID
G

E
W

Y
T

H
E

R
 L

A
N

E
C

  
 D

e
re

lic
t

In
d

u
s
tr

y
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
0

.5
7

4
3

2
1

3
1

.2
3

4
3

1
2

9
4

.0
6

O
F

F
IC

E
 B

L
O

C
K

 A
T

 F
O

R
M

E
R

 H
U

N
S

L
E

T
 F

O
R

G
E

 S
IT

E
G

E
O

R
G

E
 M

A
N

N
 W

A
Y

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.4
9

4
3

2
0

3
2

.7
2

4
3

1
2

3
0

.9
2

O
F

F
IC

E
 U

N
IT

S
 2

 A
N

D
 4

G
E

O
R

G
E

 M
A

N
N

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
3

.1
1

4
3

2
0

3
6

.3
9

4
3

1
3

6
4

.3
0

F
O

R
M

E
R

 H
U

N
S

L
E

T
 F

O
R

G
E

T
H

W
A

IT
E

 G
A

T
E

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
3

.1
9

4
2

7
0

4
4

.0
5

4
3

0
6

1
2

.2
1

D
E

R
E

L
IC

T
 R

A
IL

W
A

Y
 L

A
N

D
 O

F
F

 G
E

L
D

E
R

D
 R

O
A

D
G

E
L

D
E

R
D

 R
O

A
D

C
  

 D
e

re
lic

t
R

a
ilw

a
y
s

A
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
0

.7
9

4
3

0
6

5
6

.0
5

4
3

3
1

0
7

.7
8

L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 F
O

R
M

E
R

 B
R

E
W

E
R

Y
 W

H
A

R
F

 M
U

S
E

U
M

B
O

W
M

A
N

 L
A

N
E

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.7
1

4
3

0
5

5
2

.0
5

4
3

3
1

3
8

.9
7

F
O

R
M

E
R

 B
R

E
W

E
R

Y
 W

H
A

R
F

 M
U

S
E

U
M

B
O

W
M

A
N

 L
A

N
E

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
2

.6
5

4
1

9
4

1
8

.9
3

4
4

0
9

0
0

.5
4

IN
D

U
S

T
R

IA
L

 A
R

E
A

 O
F

F
 M

IL
N

E
R

S
 R

O
A

D
M

IL
N

E
R

S
 R

O
A

D
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
In

d
u

s
tr

y
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
0

.3
3

4
2

8
7

2
2

.9
4

4
3

2
2

7
9

.5
0

F
O

R
M

E
R

 T
O

F
F

E
E

 D
E

 B
E

U
R

R
E

 F
A

C
T

O
R

Y
IN

G
R

A
M

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
2

4
2

8
7

7
6

.8
9

4
3

2
3

0
1

.9
7

V
A

C
A

N
T

 L
A

N
D

 A
T

 I
N

G
R

A
M

 R
O

A
D

 A
N

D
 K

E
N

N
E

T
H

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
G

R
A

M
 R

O
A

D
C

  
 D

e
re

lic
t

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.3
3

4
2

8
7

5
6

.1
1

4
3

1
8

9
8

.5
7

F
O

R
M

E
R

 B
A

R
N

E
T

T
 G

L
A

S
S

W
A

R
E

 S
IT

E
IN

G
R

A
M

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
5

4
3

0
6

9
7

.3
4

4
3

1
7

3
2

.9
5

V
A

C
A

N
T

 L
A

N
D

 A
T

 H
U

N
S

L
E

T
 G

R
E

E
N

 W
A

Y
 A

N
D

 H
IL

L
ID

G
E

 R
O

A
D

H
IL

L
ID

G
E

 R
O

A
D

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.3
9

4
3

2
0

7
9

.3
0

4
3

1
9

4
4

.1
4

V
A

L
L

E
Y

 H
O

U
S

E
K

N
O

W
S

T
H

O
R

P
E

 L
A

N
E

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
8

4
2

7
6

6
7

.9
5

4
3

1
7

2
9

.7
1

V
A

C
A

N
T

 L
A

N
D

 A
T

 G
E

L
D

E
R

D
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 P
A

R
K

J
O

H
N

 C
H

A
R

L
E

S
 W

A
Y

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.1
4

4
2

6
6

0
7

.1
7

4
3

2
0

6
1

.1
4

L
A

N
D

 T
O

 R
E

A
R

 O
F

 W
E

S
T

F
IE

L
D

 H
O

U
S

E
L

O
W

E
R

 W
O

R
T

L
E

Y
 R

O
A

D
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.5
0

4
2

4
4

1
1

.1
3

4
3

4
5

7
4

.9
5

V
A

C
A

N
T

 L
A

N
D

 O
F

F
 R

A
IL

S
F

IE
L

D
 R

IS
E

R
A

IL
S

F
IE

L
D

 R
IS

E
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
8

4
2

4
6

9
0

.9
8

4
3

5
1

8
3

.3
4

V
A

C
A

N
T

 L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 D
E

P
O

T
 O

F
F

 W
A

T
E

R
L

O
O

 L
A

N
E

W
A

T
E

R
L

O
O

 L
A

N
E

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.1
0

4
2

4
7

3
8

.9
5

4
3

5
2

5
1

.8
1

n
lu

d
0

.2
3

4
2

5
5

4
7

.6
6

4
3

3
0

2
3

.1
3

n
lu

d
0

.2
0

4
2

2
4

2
3

.0
0

4
3

4
7

6
4

.8
1

n
lu

d
0

.3
7

4
2

5
7

6
9

.3
0

4
3

1
6

7
0

.5
2

C
O

M
P

O
U

N
D

 T
O

 R
E

A
R

 O
F

 U
N

IT
S

 2
 3

 A
N

D
 4

 W
H

IT
E

H
A

L
L

 I
N

D
 E

S
T

A
T

E
A

S
H

F
IE

L
D

 W
A

Y
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
4

4
2

1
2

4
1

.5
9

4
3

4
4

2
4

.3
3

n
lu

d
0

.2
9

4
2

2
2

1
0

.9
1

4
3

4
2

1
0

.9
2

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 W
O

R
K

S
P

A
R

K
F

IE
L

D
 T

E
R

R
A

C
E

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
1

4
2

0
2

9
8

.4
2

4
3

6
5

3
0

.2
4

V
A

C
A

N
T

 L
A

N
D

 A
T

 H
O

L
L

Y
 P

A
R

K
 M

IL
L

S
H

O
L

L
IN

 P
A

R
K

 C
O

U
R

T
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
In

d
u

s
tr

y
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.2
8

4
4

0
6

3
1

.5
0

4
4

8
6

9
4

.8
4

N
O

R
T

O
N

 H
O

U
S

E
D

E
IG

H
T

O
N

 R
O

A
D

D
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.3
0

4
4

0
7

0
6

.7
0

4
4

9
1

4
0

.9
4

V
A

C
A

N
T

 L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 A
R

V
IL

L
E

 T
E

X
T

IL
E

S
S

A
N

D
B

E
C

K
 W

A
Y

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
2

4
3

8
7

9
0

.5
5

4
2

9
8

6
9

.8
9

n
lu

d
0

.3
4

4
3

8
6

9
4

.6
3

4
2

9
6

2
3

.9
6

V
A

C
A

N
T

 S
IT

E
 A

D
J
A

C
E

N
T

 U
N

IT
 1

8
A

S
T

L
E

Y
 W

A
Y

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.4
2

4
3

0
8

6
2

.4
2

4
3

4
8

5
8

.6
7

E
X

P
A

N
S

IO
N

 L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 T
H

O
M

A
S

 D
A

N
B

Y
 C

O
L

L
E

G
E

R
O

U
N

D
H

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.4
1

4
2

9
0

3
8

.3
0

4
3

3
7

2
2

.8
8

L
A

N
D

 A
T

 M
A

R
L

B
O

R
O

U
G

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 A

N
D

 W
E

S
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

M
A

R
L

B
O

R
O

U
G

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

a
l 
A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
7

4
3

7
1

0
8

.3
9

4
3

2
9

0
8

.9
7

F
O

R
M

E
R

 C
O

L
T

O
N

 P
R

IM
A

R
Y

 S
C

H
O

O
L

S
C

H
O

O
L

 L
A

N
E

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
3

4
3

1
2

3
4

.7
6

4
3

1
2

6
1

.6
2

P
L

A
N

T
 H

IR
E

 D
E

P
O

T
M

ID
L

A
N

D
 R

O
A

D
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.3
2

4
3

2
1

6
0

.2
8

4
3

3
7

6
2

.0
3

W
O

R
K

S
H

O
P

S
 A

D
J
A

C
E

N
T

 2
1

 W
A

L
F

O
R

D
 R

O
A

D
W

A
L

F
O

R
D

 R
O

A
D

D
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
In

d
u

s
tr

y
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.1
2

4
3

1
3

0
0

.6
4

4
3

4
6

9
8

.2
1

n
lu

d
1

.1
7

4
2

7
7

9
4

.4
4

4
3

1
6

5
8

.7
5

S
IT

E
 O

F
 W

A
R

E
H

O
U

S
E

 A
T

 1
5

5
 G

E
L

D
E

R
D

 R
O

A
D

G
E

L
D

E
R

D
 R

O
A

D
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
1

.0
1

4
2

3
7

6
2

.7
1

4
2

8
3

8
2

.5
0

L
A

N
D

 A
T

 G
R

E
Y

S
T

O
N

E
 M

IL
L

S
W

A
K

E
F

IE
L

D
 R

O
A

D
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
P

P
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t

n
lu

d
0

.4
3

4
3

0
1

4
4

.1
1

4
3

0
5

7
0

.6
7

P
L

O
T

 1
 A

S
T

R
A

 B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 P

A
R

K
P

A
R

K
S

ID
E

 L
A

N
E

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
O

ff
ic

e
s

D
e

ta
ile

d
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.2
5

4
3

0
0

2
8

.0
4

4
3

0
5

2
2

.4
5

L
A

N
D

 A
T

 T
H

E
 R

E
A

R
 O

F
 A

S
T

R
A

 P
A

R
K

P
A

R
K

S
ID

E
 L

A
N

E
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
In

d
u

s
tr

y
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.1
5

4
2

6
4

1
3

.5
0

4
2

7
1

0
8

.8
4

V
A

C
A

N
T

 L
A

N
D

 B
E

T
W

E
E

N
 M

IL
L

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 A
N

D
 H

IG
H

 S
T

R
E

E
T

H
IG

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.4
1

4
3

9
1

6
7

.2
0

4
3

2
5

1
1

.3
8

V
A

C
A

N
T

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S
 A

T
 B

R
O

O
K

F
IE

L
D

 F
A

R
M

S
E

L
B

Y
 R

O
A

D
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
2

.0
6

4
2

2
4

5
7

.0
0

4
3

4
1

0
0

.2
5

S
IT

E
 O

F
 F

L
E

X
IF

O
R

M
 F

U
R

N
IT

U
R

E
 F

A
C

T
O

R
Y

R
IC

H
A

R
D

S
H

A
W

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
0

4
3

2
2

9
9

.4
5

4
3

4
8

3
2

.6
4

V
A

C
A

N
T

 L
A

N
D

 O
F

F
 C

O
W

P
E

R
 T

E
R

R
A

C
E

 T
O

 R
E

A
R

 O
F

 C
O

M
P

T
O

N
 A

R
M

S
C

O
W

P
E

R
 T

E
R

R
A

C
E

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.1
7

4
2

6
8

3
5

.1
4

4
3

2
8

5
2

.4
1

n
lu

d
0

.6
8

4
2

9
2

1
6

.0
5

4
3

2
6

6
5

.8
3

S
IT

E
 O

F
 B

R
IS

T
O

L
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 M

O
T

O
R

S
B

R
ID

G
E

 R
O

A
D

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

R
e

ta
ili

n
g

D
e

ta
ile

d
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.2
3

4
3

0
0

3
5

.5
9

4
3

3
9

0
5

.8
3

D
U

D
L

E
Y

 H
O

U
S

E
A

L
B

IO
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
6

.5
7

4
3

3
0

9
2

.6
8

4
3

0
3

3
6

.1
9

B
IS

O
N

 C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 W
O

R
K

S
H

A
IG

H
 P

A
R

K
 R

O
A

D
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.5
0

4
2

6
8

8
8

.0
6

4
3

1
8

3
2

.3
9

F
O

R
M

E
R

 G
A

S
W

O
R

K
S

 S
IT

E
 H

A
L

E
S

 R
O

A
D

H
A

L
E

S
 R

O
A

D
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
U

ti
lit

ie
s

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
0

.8
3

4
2

5
0

5
1

.5
5

4
3

4
1

7
9

.5
0

F
O

R
M

E
R

 F
A

C
T

O
R

Y
 S

IT
E

H
E

N
C

O
N

N
E

R
 L

A
N

E
C

  
 D

e
re

lic
t

In
d

u
s
tr

y
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.5
2

4
2

5
6

6
4

.2
5

4
2

6
7

7
5

.5
4

C
A

R
 P

A
R

K
 F

O
R

 A
S

D
A

 O
F

F
IC

E
S

H
O

W
L

E
Y

 P
A

R
K

 C
L

O
S

E
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
1

.3
1

4
2

5
9

1
5

.3
0

4
2

6
3

7
2

.0
6

L
A

N
D

 T
O

 R
E

A
R

 O
F

 W
A

R
E

H
O

U
S

E
H

O
W

L
E

Y
 P

A
R

K
 R

O
A

D
 E

A
S

T
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.4
2

4
3

6
3

0
3

.4
7

4
3

3
6

9
6

.4
8

S
IT

E
 O

F
 F

O
R

M
E

R
 S

U
P

E
R

M
A

R
K

E
T

H
O

L
L

Y
S

H
A

W
 L

A
N

E
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

a
l 
A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.1
3

4
2

2
8

1
9

.8
3

4
3

4
4

6
0

.5
5

L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 R
A

IL
W

A
Y

 A
N

D
 I

N
D

U
S

T
R

IA
L

 U
N

IT
S

IN
T

E
R

C
IT

Y
 W

A
Y

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

a
ilw

a
y
s

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
2

.6
6

4
3

3
0

8
6

.9
9

4
3

1
5

4
3

.6
4

K
N

O
W

S
T

H
O

R
P

E
 W

A
Y

 S
IT

E
 2

9
B

K
N

O
W

S
T

H
O

R
P

E
 W

A
Y

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
3

.4
5

4
3

2
4

2
0

.9
0

4
3

1
8

6
2

.4
9

L
A

N
D

 A
T

 K
N

O
W

S
T

H
O

R
P

E
 L

A
N

E
 A

N
D

 K
N

O
W

S
T

H
O

R
P

E
 G

A
T

E
K

N
O

W
S

T
H

O
R

P
E

 L
A

N
E

C
  

 D
e

re
lic

t
L

a
n

d
fi
ll 

W
a

s
te

 D
is

p
o

s
a

l
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
1

.0
0

4
3

1
9

9
6

.3
9

4
3

2
0

2
8

.7
5

L
A

N
D

 A
T

 K
N

O
W

S
T

H
O

R
P

E
 L

A
N

E
K

N
O

W
S

T
H

O
R

P
E

 L
A

N
E

C
  

 D
e

re
lic

t
In

d
u

s
tr

y
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
6

.0
3

4
3

1
9

7
6

.8
1

4
3

1
7

5
6

.9
2

F
O

R
M

E
R

 R
A

IL
W

A
Y

 S
ID

IN
G

S
 B

E
S

ID
E

 R
IV

E
R

 A
IR

E
K

N
O

W
S

T
H

O
R

P
E

 L
A

N
E

C
  

 D
e

re
lic

t
R

a
ilw

a
y
s

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
2

.7
2

4
3

2
9

1
9

.1
6

4
3

0
3

9
9

.5
9

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 L

A
N

D
 O

F
F

 I
N

T
E

R
M

E
Z

Z
O

 D
R

IV
E

P
O

N
T

E
F

R
A

C
T

 R
O

A
D

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
In

d
u

s
tr

y
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.4
0

4
2

9
8

3
5

.2
2

4
3

1
3

2
8

.9
8

F
O

R
M

E
R

 F
A

C
T

O
R

Y
 S

IT
E

L
A

D
Y

 P
IT

 L
A

N
E

C
  

 D
e

re
lic

t
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.7
1

4
3

0
5

5
6

.3
6

4
3

2
4

6
9

.7
0

L
A

N
D

 B
E

T
W

E
E

N
 B

U
T

T
E

R
L

E
Y

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 A
N

D
 L

E
A

T
H

L
E

Y
 R

O
A

D
L

E
A

T
H

L
E

Y
 R

O
A

D
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.5
4

4
3

0
1

2
7

.5
6

4
3

2
7

1
2

.5
7

L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 2
 L

E
E

D
S

 C
IT

Y
 O

F
F

IC
E

 P
A

R
K

M
E

A
D

O
W

 L
A

N
E

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
U

ti
lit

ie
s

D
e

ta
ile

d
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

2

Page 71



W
A

S
T

E
 S

IT
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

IO
N

 R
E

P
O

R
T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

S
O

U
R

C
E

A
R

E
A

_
H

A
X

_
C

O
O

R
D

Y
_

C
O

O
R

D
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

_
1

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
_

2
T

Y
P

E
_

C
O

D
E

L
A

N
D

_
U

S
E

_
C

P
L

G
_

S
T

A
T

U
S

n
lu

d
0

.4
7

4
3

0
1

1
8

.5
7

4
3

2
6

3
8

.8
8

L
A

N
D

 S
O

U
T

H
 O

F
 A

C
C

E
S

S
 R

O
A

D
 L

E
E

D
S

 C
IT

Y
 O

F
F

IC
E

 P
A

R
K

M
E

A
D

O
W

 L
A

N
E

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
U

ti
lit

ie
s

D
e

ta
ile

d
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
1

.0
0

4
3

0
2

2
6

.3
6

4
3

2
6

4
8

.0
3

L
A

N
D

 A
T

 L
E

E
D

S
 C

IT
Y

 O
F

F
IC

E
 P

A
R

K
M

E
A

D
O

W
 L

A
N

E
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.5
3

4
3

4
5

1
7

.7
2

4
2

8
2

0
3

.6
1

F
O

R
M

E
R

 R
O

T
H

W
E

L
L

 G
A

S
W

O
R

K
S

M
E

Y
N

E
L

L
 A

V
E

N
U

E
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
U

ti
lit

ie
s

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
1

.2
8

4
2

7
9

5
1

.0
2

4
2

9
6

0
1

.6
7

A
R

L
IN

G
T

O
N

 B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 C

E
N

T
R

E
M

IL
L

S
H

A
W

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
d

o
o

r 
R

e
c
re

a
ti
o

n
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.4
7

4
3

0
3

2
1

.8
1

4
2

6
2

2
8

.5
0

O
F

F
 M

O
O

R
 K

N
O

L
L

 L
A

N
E

 M
O

R
L

E
Y

M
O

O
R

 K
N

O
L

L
 L

A
N

E
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.4
1

4
3

0
9

5
0

.6
9

4
3

3
0

4
1

.8
4

F
O

R
M

E
R

 B
W

B
 D

E
P

O
T

N
E

P
T

U
N

E
 S

T
R

E
E

T
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
2

.6
2

4
4

1
5

0
9

.1
3

4
3

3
9

4
6

.5
0

P
R

O
C

T
O

R
 B

R
O

S
 L

A
N

D
 A

T
 N

E
W

 H
O

L
D

N
E

W
 H

O
L

D
C

  
 D

e
re

lic
t

M
in

e
ra

l 
W

o
rk

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 Q
u

a
rr

ie
s

D
e

ta
ile

d
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
3

.2
1

4
4

1
6

2
4

.8
6

4
3

3
9

2
8

.7
0

R
A

C
K

W
O

O
D

 H
E

L
IO

S
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

 S
IT

E
N

E
W

 H
O

L
D

C
  

 D
e

re
lic

t
M

in
e

ra
l 
W

o
rk

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 Q
u

a
rr

ie
s

D
e

ta
ile

d
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
1

.8
1

4
2

0
3

3
2

.6
6

4
4

0
3

7
0

.4
2

F
O

R
M

E
R

 G
A

S
W

O
R

K
S

 A
T

 G
IL

L
 L

A
N

E
 N

E
W

 R
O

A
D

N
E

W
 R

O
A

D
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.4
3

4
2

1
2

6
2

.0
5

4
3

3
0

6
6

.8
8

F
O

R
M

E
R

 M
IL

L
O

C
C

U
P

A
T

IO
N

 L
A

N
E

C
  

 D
e

re
lic

t
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.1
7

4
3

2
5

8
2

.4
4

4
3

2
7

3
1

.7
2

n
lu

d
1

.2
6

4
3

0
7

8
1

.6
7

4
3

0
6

5
6

.0
2

F
O

R
M

E
R

 T
IP

 A
T

 O
L

D
 R

U
N

 R
O

A
D

O
L

D
 R

U
N

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.8
9

4
3

0
8

7
7

.9
7

4
3

0
6

5
8

.9
5

L
A

N
D

 T
O

 R
E

A
R

 O
F

 I
N

D
U

S
T

R
IA

L
 U

N
IT

O
L

D
 R

U
N

 R
O

A
D

C
  

 D
e

re
lic

t
L

a
n

d
fi
ll 

W
a

s
te

 D
is

p
o

s
a

l
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
1

.1
1

4
3

2
1

8
2

.8
9

4
3

1
1

0
2

.6
9

F
O

R
M

E
R

 C
O

N
T

A
IN

E
R

 S
T

O
R

A
G

E
 D

E
P

O
T

P
O

N
T

E
F

R
A

C
T

 R
O

A
D

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
1

.4
9

4
3

3
1

1
5

.3
6

4
3

0
9

9
1

.5
3

F
O

R
M

E
R

 E
X

P
L

O
S

IV
E

S
 F

O
R

M
IN

G
 A

R
E

A
 A

D
J
A

C
E

N
T

 S
K

E
L

T
O

N
 G

R
A

N
G

E
 R

O
A

D
S

K
E

L
T

O
N

 G
R

A
N

G
E

 R
O

A
D

C
  

 D
e

re
lic

t
L

a
n

d
fi
ll 

W
a

s
te

 D
is

p
o

s
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
4

.4
0

4
3

3
4

6
9

.6
9

4
3

0
5

1
6

.9
1

S
IT

E
 O

F
 F

O
R

M
E

R
 I

M
I 

C
O

P
P

E
R

W
O

R
K

S
H

A
IG

H
 P

A
R

K
 R

O
A

D
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
2

.8
5

4
3

3
2

5
8

.3
9

4
3

0
2

9
5

.9
2

F
O

R
M

E
R

 O
F

F
IC

E
S

 A
N

D
 W

O
R

K
S

H
O

P
S

H
A

IG
H

 P
A

R
K

 R
O

A
D

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.5
1

4
3

3
3

3
1

.1
9

4
3

0
2

7
7

.6
7

F
O

R
M

E
R

 V
U

L
C

A
N

 F
O

U
N

D
R

Y
H

A
IG

H
 P

A
R

K
 R

O
A

D
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
4

.4
2

4
3

3
4

6
4

.8
3

4
3

0
2

0
6

.3
6

F
O

R
M

E
R

 T
A

R
 D

IS
T

IL
L

E
R

S
 S

IT
E

P
O

N
T

E
F

R
A

C
T

 R
O

A
D

C
  

 D
e

re
lic

t
In

d
u

s
tr

y
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
1

.4
4

4
2

0
6

0
1

.7
3

4
4

6
0

3
2

.2
5

L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 G
A

R
N

E
T

T
S

 M
IL

L
P

O
O

L
 R

O
A

D
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
L

a
n

d
fi
ll 

W
a

s
te

 D
is

p
o

s
a

l
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
0

.5
6

4
2

8
8

1
3

.8
6

4
3

1
4

6
6

.0
8

L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
O

IN
IN

G
 L

A
N

D
M

A
R

K
 C

O
U

R
T

R
E

V
IE

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.6
0

4
2

6
7

0
9

.8
4

4
2

7
3

6
2

.0
5

L
A

N
D

 A
T

 R
O

D
S

 M
IL

L
S

R
O

D
S

 M
IL

L
S

 L
A

N
E

D
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
In

d
u

s
tr

y
W

it
h

in
 a

 z
o

n
e

 a
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l

n
lu

d
8

.5
2

4
3

3
3

2
9

.4
0

4
3

0
0

2
4

.9
2

L
A

N
D

 N
O

R
T

H
 O

F
 P

O
N

T
E

F
R

A
C

T
 R

O
A

D
P

O
N

T
E

F
R

A
C

T
 R

O
A

D
C

  
 D

e
re

lic
t

R
a

ilw
a

y
s

A
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
0

.7
3

4
4

4
0

3
9

.7
5

4
3

2
6

6
8

.1
6

E
N

T
E

R
P

R
IS

E
 C

O
U

R
T

P
IT

 L
A

N
E

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

2
.4

8
4

4
3

5
4

2
.8

4
4

3
2

6
5

1
.0

9
P

E
C

K
F

IE
L

D
 C

O
L

L
IE

R
Y

 M
IC

K
L

E
F

IE
L

D
R

O
M

A
N

 R
O

A
D

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
M

in
e

ra
l 
W

o
rk

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 Q
u

a
rr

ie
s

A
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
1

.0
4

4
2

1
1

3
8

.3
6

4
3

3
0

5
6

.3
4

L
A

N
D

 T
O

 R
E

A
R

 O
F

 W
E

S
T

O
V

E
R

 W
O

R
K

S
 R

O
U

N
D

 H
IL

L
W

A
T

E
R

L
O

O
 R

O
A

D
C

  
 D

e
re

lic
t

M
in

e
ra

l 
W

o
rk

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 Q
u

a
rr

ie
s

A
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
0

.2
9

4
3

1
4

7
3

.3
9

4
3

5
1

5
2

.1
9

F
O

R
M

E
R

 G
A

IE
T

Y
 P

U
B

L
IC

 H
O

U
S

E
R

O
U

N
D

H
A

Y
 R

O
A

D
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.1
4

4
3

1
4

8
6

.2
2

4
3

5
1

9
5

.0
8

n
lu

d
0

.1
3

4
3

1
4

2
1

.7
5

4
3

5
1

3
3

.5
3

n
lu

d
2

.7
2

4
2

5
6

3
9

.2
5

4
3

2
8

4
5

.3
9

S
T

O
N

E
B

R
ID

G
E

 M
IL

L
S

S
T

O
N

E
B

R
ID

G
E

 L
A

N
E

D
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
In

d
u

s
tr

y
W

it
h

 D
ra

ft
 A

llo
c
a

ti
o

n

n
lu

d
0

.4
1

4
2

3
4

3
5

.9
2

4
3

4
4

9
6

.9
0

S
W

IN
N

O
W

 L
A

N
E

S
W

IN
N

O
W

 L
A

N
E

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
P

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 L
a

n
d

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 n

o
w

 V
a

c
a

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
0

.2
3

4
3

0
9

6
4

.7
7

4
3

4
2

1
1

.8
8

n
lu

d
0

.1
1

4
3

1
0

1
6

.9
8

4
3

4
2

0
7

.5
8

n
lu

d
0

.0
8

4
3

1
0

5
6

.0
5

4
3

4
1

9
5

.8
0

n
lu

d
0

.1
6

4
3

1
0

3
6

.4
4

4
3

4
1

5
7

.3
9

n
lu

d
0

.1
2

4
3

0
9

2
1

.6
6

4
3

4
1

4
9

.5
0

n
lu

d
1

.0
5

4
3

0
0

8
5

.0
6

4
3

3
1

4
9

.0
0

C
A

R
 P

A
R

K
 O

F
F

 P
IT

T
 R

O
W

S
O

V
E

R
E

IG
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

D
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

D
e

ta
ile

d
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
3

.6
1

4
4

5
0

2
2

.5
6

4
4

7
0

6
1

.5
0

E
X

P
L

O
S

IV
E

S
 F

A
C

T
O

R
Y

 A
N

D
 S

T
O

R
E

S
 A

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 7

 A
N

D
 W

IG
H

IL
L

 L
A

N
E

S
T

R
E

E
T

 7
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
In

d
u

s
tr

y
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
1

1
.5

8
4

4
4

3
3

9
.6

4
4

4
6

6
2

0
.7

5
L

A
N

D
 S

O
U

T
H

 O
F

 A
V

E
N

U
E

 A
 W

E
S

T
A

V
E

N
U

E
 A

C
  

 D
e

re
lic

t
N

o
 C

la
s
s
 d

e
fi
n

e
d

 b
e

lo
w

 t
h

is
 d

iv
is

io
n

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
8

.0
6

4
4

4
3

6
3

.3
0

4
4

6
1

8
1

.1
1

H
A

U
L

A
G

E
 D

E
P

O
T

 A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 A
V

E
N

U
E

 B
A

V
E

N
U

E
 B

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

2
.3

2
4

4
4

5
7

4
.6

2
4

4
6

1
6

5
.3

0
V

A
C

A
N

T
 L

A
N

D
 B

E
T

W
E

E
N

 A
V

E
N

U
E

 D
 A

N
D

 A
V

E
N

U
E

 B
A

V
E

N
U

E
 D

C
  

 D
e

re
lic

t
N

o
 C

la
s
s
 d

e
fi
n

e
d

 b
e

lo
w

 t
h

is
 d

iv
is

io
n

A
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
3

.9
2

4
4

4
6

6
2

.6
9

4
4

5
8

8
3

.0
0

V
A

C
A

N
T

 L
A

N
D

 A
T

 A
V

E
N

U
E

 E
 W

E
S

T
T

H
O

R
P

 A
R

C
H

 T
R

A
D

IN
G

 E
S

T
A

T
E

C
  

 D
e

re
lic

t
N

o
 C

la
s
s
 d

e
fi
n

e
d

 b
e

lo
w

 t
h

is
 d

iv
is

io
n

A
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
0

.0
6

4
2

9
7

9
0

.0
0

4
3

3
4

6
9

.8
4

Q
U

E
B

E
C

 H
O

U
S

E
Q

U
E

B
E

C
 S

T
R

E
E

T
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

a
l 
A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.6
0

4
3

0
8

9
9

.2
3

4
3

3
2

3
4

.5
0

S
IT

E
 O

F
 H

O
W

A
R

T
H

 T
IM

B
E

R
E

A
S

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
2

.3
8

4
2

8
5

4
1

.0
5

4
3

5
5

7
3

.6
9

H
E

A
D

IN
G

L
E

Y
 O

F
F

IC
E

 P
A

R
K

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 R
O

A
D

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
8

4
2

7
0

8
7

.8
6

4
3

1
6

5
4

.3
6

R
O

Y
D

S
 B

E
C

K
 H

O
U

S
E

R
IN

G
 R

O
A

D
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

V
a

c
a

n
t 

B
u

ild
in

g
s

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
0

.7
1

4
2

3
0

0
5

.5
0

4
3

4
2

0
4

.2
1

L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 C
A

S
H

 A
N

D
 C

A
R

R
Y

 D
E

P
O

T
IN

T
E

R
C

IT
Y

 W
A

Y
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
M

in
e

ra
l 
W

o
rk

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 Q
u

a
rr

ie
s

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
0

.5
1

4
2

3
1

7
9

.0
0

4
3

4
2

4
4

.8
9

L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 A
N

C
H

O
R

 W
O

R
K

S
 O

F
F

 S
W

IN
N

O
W

 L
A

N
E

S
W

IN
N

O
W

 L
A

N
E

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
M

in
e

ra
l 
W

o
rk

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 Q
u

a
rr

ie
s

A
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
0

.9
1

4
3

0
0

1
4

.5
5

4
3

5
6

2
5

.3
4

C
A

R
R

 M
IL

L
S

B
U

S
L

IN
G

T
H

O
R

P
E

 L
A

N
E

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.1
1

4
2

9
9

8
6

.5
3

4
3

5
5

9
9

.7
6

n
lu

d
0

.8
5

4
2

9
0

6
6

.8
6

4
3

4
3

7
9

.9
5

F
O

R
M

E
R

 M
A

T
E

R
N

IT
Y

 H
O

S
P

IT
A

L
4

4
 H

Y
D

E
 T

E
R

R
A

C
E

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
2

5
.4

5
4

3
7

4
2

3
.6

1
4

3
4

5
7

1
.5

0
V

IC
K

E
R

S
 D

E
F

E
N

C
E

 S
Y

S
T

E
M

S
 F

A
C

T
O

R
Y

M
A

N
S

T
O

N
 L

A
N

E
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.2
1

4
2

6
5

5
7

.7
0

4
3

5
0

9
5

.9
5

n
lu

d
0

.0
8

4
3

0
7

9
7

.9
4

4
3

3
4

9
2

.3
9

n
lu

d
0

.4
0

4
2

9
2

7
0

.7
5

4
3

4
1

5
8

.8
3

W
O

O
D

H
O

U
S

E
 H

A
L

L
C

L
A

R
E

N
D

O
N

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
3

.5
5

4
3

2
2

9
6

.3
5

4
3

1
0

1
1

.7
5

T
H

W
A

IT
E

 F
A

R
M

 T
R

A
IL

E
R

 P
A

R
K

 O
F

F
 S

K
E

L
T

O
N

 G
R

A
N

G
E

 R
O

A
D

S
K

E
L

T
O

N
 G

R
A

N
G

E
 R

O
A

D
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.3
3

4
2

2
0

3
5

.7
3

4
3

7
7

2
4

.5
9

W
O

O
D

B
O

T
T

O
M

 M
IL

L
S

L
O

W
 H

A
L

L
 R

O
A

D
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
In

d
u

s
tr

y
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
1

.1
0

4
2

9
5

3
7

.9
5

4
3

3
3

8
7

.2
5

2
9

W
E

L
L

IN
G

T
O

N
 S

T
R

E
E

T
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
U

ti
lit

ie
s

D
e

ta
ile

d
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.5
2

4
2

4
9

4
2

.5
0

4
2

7
7

1
6

.9
1

T
H

E
 A

N
G

E
L

 P
U

B
L

IC
 H

O
U

S
E

W
A

K
E

F
IE

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

a
l 
A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.8
5

4
3

0
2

1
5

.0
5

4
2

9
9

0
6

.8
0

S
O

U
T

H
 L

E
E

D
S

 S
T

A
D

IU
M

M
ID

D
L

E
T

O
N

 G
R

O
V

E
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

O
u

tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.2
7

4
3

3
9

7
1

.0
5

4
3

4
0

5
4

.2
2

F
O

R
M

E
R

 C
IT

Y
 L

IG
H

T
S

 P
U

B
L

IC
 H

O
U

S
E

K
IL

L
IN

G
B

E
C

K
 B

R
ID

G
E

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
d

o
o

r 
R

e
c
re

a
ti
o

n
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.6
9

4
2

6
5

0
2

.2
3

4
3

5
5

8
2

.7
3

6
K

IR
K

S
T

A
L

L
 H

IL
L

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.7
2

4
2

9
9

0
5

.2
4

4
3

3
2

1
6

.9
6

R
A

IL
W

A
Y

 A
R

C
H

E
S

D
A

R
K

 N
E

V
IL

L
E

 S
T

R
E

E
T

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.1
5

4
1

8
1

4
6

.1
3

4
4

2
6

0
4

.2
5

n
lu

d
0

.1
1

4
2

7
2

4
0

.5
2

4
2

6
4

4
9

.6
6

n
lu

d
2

.8
9

4
2

8
3

6
4

.3
6

4
2

6
6

2
7

.7
3

S
IT

E
 O

F
 F

O
R

M
E

R
 T

IN
G

L
E

Y
 S

T
A

T
IO

N
D

E
W

S
B

U
R

Y
 R

O
A

D
C

  
 D

e
re

lic
t

R
a

ilw
a

y
s

W
it
h

in
 a

 z
o

n
e

 a
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l

n
lu

d
0

.1
1

4
3

0
8

1
2

.7
2

4
3

5
4

2
3

.4
5

n
lu

d
0

.7
2

4
2

4
0

9
9

.7
2

4
3

4
3

9
5

.3
4

C
L

E
A

R
E

D
 L

A
N

D
 A

T
 V

IC
T

O
R

IA
 M

IL
L

S
E

L
D

E
R

 R
O

A
D

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.0
4

4
2

5
2

7
0

.3
6

4
3

7
7

8
8

.3
8

V
E

H
IC

L
E

 B
R

E
A

K
E

R
S

 Y
A

R
D

C
O

R
N

 M
IL

L
 F

O
L

D
C

  
 D

e
re

lic
t

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

3

Page 72



W
A

S
T

E
 S

IT
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

IO
N

 R
E

P
O

R
T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

S
O

U
R

C
E

A
R

E
A

_
H

A
X

_
C

O
O

R
D

Y
_

C
O

O
R

D
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

_
1

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
_

2
T

Y
P

E
_

C
O

D
E

L
A

N
D

_
U

S
E

_
C

P
L

G
_

S
T

A
T

U
S

n
lu

d
0

.3
2

4
2

5
3

0
5

.9
8

4
3

7
7

4
0

.1
3

V
A

C
A

N
T

 C
O

R
N

 M
IL

L
C

O
R

N
 M

IL
L

 F
O

L
D

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.1
4

4
2

5
2

0
3

.5
5

4
3

7
7

5
5

.4
8

n
lu

d
0

.2
5

4
2

9
9

9
5

.4
1

4
3

6
6

5
1

.9
2

R
U

T
L

A
N

D
 L

O
D

G
E

P
O

T
T

E
R

N
E

W
T

O
N

 L
A

N
E

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.6
8

4
2

2
3

2
2

.9
1

4
3

7
0

4
5

.5
8

M
A

C
F

A
R

L
A

N
E

 T
R

A
N

S
P

O
R

T
 D

E
P

O
T

C
A

L
V

E
R

L
E

Y
 L

A
N

E
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.1
0

4
2

6
5

6
9

.7
8

4
2

7
4

4
7

.4
2

n
lu

d
0

.1
1

4
2

7
1

6
1

.8
8

4
3

1
5

4
1

.6
1

n
lu

d
1

.6
2

4
2

5
6

0
2

.0
0

4
3

1
8

1
0

.8
2

L
A

N
D

 T
O

 R
E

A
R

 O
F

 U
N

IT
S

 5
 T

O
 8

 W
H

IT
E

H
A

L
L

 I
N

D
U

S
T

R
IA

L
 E

S
T

A
T

E
A

S
H

F
IE

L
D

 W
A

Y
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
M

in
e

ra
l 
W

o
rk

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 Q
u

a
rr

ie
s

O
u

tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.3
2

4
2

1
9

5
6

.9
1

4
3

4
1

6
1

.3
1

C
A

R
 P

A
R

K
 A

N
D

 L
A

N
D

 T
O

 R
E

A
R

 O
F

 L
E

IG
H

 H
O

U
S

E
V

A
R

L
E

Y
 S

T
R

E
E

T
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

D
e

ta
ile

d
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.5
9

4
3

0
9

2
2

.0
2

4
3

3
5

6
8

.0
2

Q
U

A
R

R
Y

 H
IL

L
 S

IT
E

 B
Y

O
R

K
 S

T
R

E
E

T
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

P
P

 s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t

n
lu

d
0

.1
8

4
3

0
8

6
5

.3
3

4
3

3
6

2
0

.6
4

n
lu

d
0

.1
9

4
3

0
8

0
7

.2
7

4
3

3
5

5
5

.8
0

Q
U

A
R

R
Y

 H
IL

L
 S

IT
E

 D
S

T
 P

E
T

E
R

S
 S

Q
U

A
R

E
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
2

.5
4

4
1

9
3

6
7

.7
0

4
4

1
1

0
4

.6
9

L
O

W
 M

IL
L

S
 I

N
D

U
S

T
R

IA
L

 A
R

E
A

 O
F

F
 G

H
Y

L
L

 R
O

Y
D

G
Y

H
L

L
 R

O
Y

D
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
2

.4
3

4
1

9
4

2
1

.1
7

4
4

0
9

9
8

.9
8

F
O

R
M

E
R

 T
IP

 O
F

F
 M

IL
N

E
R

S
 R

O
A

D
M

IL
N

E
R

S
 R

O
A

D
C

  
 D

e
re

lic
t

In
d

u
s
tr

y
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
0

.9
4

4
2

6
3

3
0

.3
0

4
3

3
0

0
7

.8
8

F
O

R
M

E
R

 C
H

E
M

IC
A

L
 W

O
R

K
S

W
O

R
T

L
E

Y
 M

O
O

R
 R

O
A

D
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
2

.0
2

4
2

6
3

6
8

.0
9

4
3

2
9

5
6

.2
8

C
A

B
B

A
G

E
 H

IL
L

 W
O

R
T

L
E

Y
 M

O
O

R
 R

O
A

D
W

O
R

T
L

E
Y

 M
O

O
R

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.5
8

4
3

0
5

6
3

.8
8

4
3

3
8

6
8

.6
4

C
A

R
 P

A
R

K
 O

F
F

 T
E

M
P

L
A

R
 S

T
R

E
E

T
T

E
M

P
L

A
R

 S
T

R
E

E
T

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
0

.4
9

4
3

0
5

2
3

.5
9

4
3

3
8

0
4

.8
1

C
A

R
 P

A
R

K
 O

F
F

 E
D

W
A

R
D

 S
T

R
E

E
T

E
D

W
A

R
D

 S
T

R
E

E
T

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
0

.1
7

4
3

0
5

1
9

.0
3

4
3

3
7

5
7

.2
5

T
E

M
P

L
A

R
 H

O
U

S
E

 A
N

D
 A

D
J
O

IN
IN

G
 L

A
N

D
L

A
D

Y
 L

A
N

E
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

O
ff

ic
e

s
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
9

.0
7

4
3

3
4

2
1

.0
9

4
3

2
1

0
8

.1
6

L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 K
N

O
S

T
R

O
P

 S
E

W
A

G
E

 W
O

R
K

S
P

O
N

T
E

F
R

A
C

T
 L

A
N

E
C

  
 D

e
re

lic
t

L
a

n
d

fi
ll 

W
a

s
te

 D
is

p
o

s
a

l
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
0

.7
7

4
3

0
2

5
5

.9
2

4
3

2
3

6
8

.1
7

C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 D

E
P

O
T

K
ID

A
C

R
E

 S
T

R
E

E
T

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
2

.9
6

4
3

3
2

4
4

.2
3

4
3

2
6

2
9

.4
2

L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 T
H

O
R

N
E

S
 F

A
R

M
H

A
L

T
O

N
 M

O
O

R
 R

O
A

D
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
2

.1
9

4
2

3
0

8
7

.4
2

4
3

4
6

1
8

.4
2

F
O

R
M

E
R

 S
L

O
A

N
 A

N
D

 D
A

V
ID

S
O

N
 F

O
U

N
D

R
Y

S
T

A
N

N
IN

G
L

E
Y

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.7
3

4
3

1
5

1
4

.1
1

4
3

4
3

9
2

.8
0

B
E

C
K

E
T

T
 W

IN
G

 S
T

 J
A

M
E

S
S

 U
N

IV
E

R
S

IT
Y

 H
O

S
P

IT
A

L
A

L
M

A
 S

T
R

E
E

T
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
In

s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.8
3

4
3

1
5

7
1

.0
8

4
3

4
4

5
6

.8
8

C
A

R
 P

A
R

K
 O

F
F

 A
L

M
A

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 A
N

D
 B

E
C

K
E

T
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

A
L

M
A

 S
T

R
E

E
T

D
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

O
u

tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.8
5

4
2

5
4

5
3

.9
8

4
3

1
7

2
9

.0
9

M
C

H
U

G
H

 S
IT

E
 A

S
H

F
IE

L
D

 W
A

Y
A

S
H

F
IE

L
D

 W
A

Y
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.5
1

4
3

8
7

6
7

.2
7

4
2

9
7

5
3

.9
0

6
A

 A
N

D
 7

 A
S

T
L

E
Y

 W
A

Y
 S

W
IL

L
IN

G
T

O
N

A
S

T
L

E
Y

 W
A

Y
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
M

in
e

ra
l 
W

o
rk

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 Q
u

a
rr

ie
s

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
0

.5
0

4
3

8
7

5
9

.0
1

4
2

9
6

4
0

.2
4

1
C

 A
N

D
 9

B
 A

S
T

L
E

Y
 W

A
Y

 S
W

IL
L

IN
G

T
O

N
A

S
T

L
E

Y
 W

A
Y

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.6
3

4
2

9
4

2
7

.0
5

4
3

2
7

6
5

.3
0

L
A

N
D

 A
T

 B
A

T
H

 R
O

A
D

B
A

T
H

 R
O

A
D

C
  

 D
e

re
lic

t
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
W

it
h

in
 a

 z
o

n
e

 a
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l

n
lu

d
0

.6
3

4
2

9
3

4
0

.7
2

4
3

2
6

3
8

.1
1

L
A

N
D

 A
T

 S
W

E
E

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 W

E
S

T
 A

N
D

 B
A

T
H

 R
O

A
D

S
W

E
E

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 W

E
S

T
C

  
 D

e
re

lic
t

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
W

it
h

in
 a

 z
o

n
e

 a
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l

n
lu

d
0

.5
4

4
2

9
4

1
4

.0
8

4
3

2
6

4
2

.9
5

L
A

N
D

 B
E

T
W

E
E

N
 D

E
R

W
E

N
T

 P
L

A
C

E
 A

N
D

 S
W

E
E

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 W

E
S

T
S

W
E

E
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 W
E

S
T

C
  

 D
e

re
lic

t
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
W

it
h

in
 a

 z
o

n
e

 w
it
h

 D
ra

ft
 A

llo
c
a

ti
o

n

n
lu

d
0

.4
2

4
3

1
4

0
7

.5
0

4
3

4
9

4
5

.5
2

H
O

S
P

IT
A

L
 S

T
A

F
F

 C
A

R
 P

A
R

K
G

L
E

D
H

O
W

 R
O

A
D

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
0

.7
9

4
2

6
9

7
3

.3
0

4
2

6
8

5
9

.4
1

F
O

R
M

E
R

 R
A

IL
W

A
Y

 L
A

N
D

 O
F

F
 B

E
A

C
O

N
 G

R
O

V
E

A
N

D
 E

L
M

F
IE

L
D

 R
O

A
D

E
L

M
F

IE
L

D
 R

O
A

D
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.4
8

4
2

6
0

9
8

.7
2

4
2

6
7

2
9

.0
2

F
O

R
M

E
R

 B
R

IT
A

N
N

IA
 W

O
O

D
K

IR
K

 Q
U

A
R

R
Y

B
R

IT
A

N
N

IA
 R

O
A

D
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
M

in
e

ra
l 
W

o
rk

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 Q
u

a
rr

ie
s

D
e

ta
ile

d
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
3

.2
6

4
2

6
1

4
3

.7
2

4
2

6
6

3
3

.9
7

F
O

R
M

E
R

 B
R

IT
A

N
N

IA
 W

O
O

D
K

IR
K

 Q
U

A
R

R
Y

B
R

IT
A

N
N

IA
 R

O
A

D
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
M

in
e

ra
l 
W

o
rk

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 Q
u

a
rr

ie
s

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
1

.4
6

4
2

8
5

3
7

.0
8

4
3

2
2

7
3

.2
5

F
O

R
M

E
R

 T
IP

B
R

O
W

N
 L

A
N

E
 W

E
S

T
C

  
 D

e
re

lic
t

L
a

n
d

fi
ll 

W
a

s
te

 D
is

p
o

s
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
2

.3
4

4
3

1
0

2
6

.7
2

4
3

2
5

5
0

.4
8

L
C

C
 L

A
N

D
 A

T
 C

A
R

L
IS

L
E

 R
O

A
D

 A
N

D
 S

A
Y

N
E

R
 L

A
N

E
C

A
R

L
IS

L
E

 R
O

A
D

C
  

 D
e

re
lic

t
In

d
u

s
tr

y
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
1

.3
6

4
3

1
1

2
8

.0
0

4
3

2
5

0
9

.4
8

V
A

W
 L

A
N

D
 A

T
 C

L
A

R
E

N
C

E
 R

O
A

D
C

L
A

R
E

N
C

E
 R

O
A

D
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
2

.1
2

4
2

6
7

1
1

.3
9

4
3

3
2

2
6

.5
2

F
O

R
M

E
R

 R
A

IL
W

A
Y

 S
ID

IN
G

S
C

A
R

R
 C

R
O

F
T

S
C

  
 D

e
re

lic
t

R
a

ilw
a

y
s

A
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
1

.0
1

4
2

7
2

9
2

.4
1

4
3

2
8

6
2

.1
0

L
A

N
D

 T
O

 R
E

A
R

 O
F

 I
N

D
U

S
T

R
IA

L
 U

N
IT

S
C

H
E

L
S

E
A

 C
L

O
S

E
C

  
 D

e
re

lic
t

In
d

u
s
tr

y
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
0

.2
8

4
2

5
8

2
3

.6
7

4
3

8
3

4
6

.6
9

L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 W
O

O
D

S
ID

E
 C

O
U

R
T

C
L

A
Y

T
O

N
 W

O
O

D
 C

L
O

S
E

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
3

.2
6

4
2

6
1

8
3

.9
5

4
2

6
4

1
3

.7
7

H
O

W
L

E
Y

 P
A

R
K

 I
N

D
U

S
T

R
IA

L
 E

S
T

A
T

E
H

O
W

L
E

Y
 P

A
R

K
 R

O
A

D
 E

A
S

T
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
M

in
e

ra
l 
W

o
rk

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 Q
u

a
rr

ie
s

A
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
3

.1
0

4
3

5
7

4
3

.5
6

4
3

7
4

5
8

.7
5

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 I
N

D
U

S
T

R
IA

L
 P

A
R

K
 O

F
F

 C
O

A
L

 R
O

A
D

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.3
7

4
3

5
8

1
8

.0
6

4
3

7
4

2
5

.9
0

L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 T
H

E
 C

O
U

R
T

Y
A

R
D

S
V

IC
T

O
R

IA
 R

O
A

D
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.4
0

4
2

6
7

7
9

.2
8

4
3

3
0

0
9

.1
6

L
A

N
D

 A
T

 C
R

O
S

S
 L

A
N

E
 A

N
D

 T
O

N
G

 R
O

A
D

C
R

O
S

S
 L

A
N

E
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
2

.1
6

4
3

1
3

9
8

.9
2

4
3

2
2

0
9

.6
7

IN
D

U
S

T
R

IA
L

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S
 A

T
 A

T
K

IN
S

O
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 G
O

O
D

M
A

N
 S

T
R

E
E

T
G

O
O

D
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

C
  

 D
e

re
lic

t
In

d
u

s
tr

y
P

P
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t

n
lu

d
0

.6
2

4
3

2
4

3
6

.2
5

4
3

1
1

1
0

.5
4

V
A

C
A

N
T

 B
R

IT
IS

H
 W

A
T

E
R

W
A

Y
S

 L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 T
O

 C
A

N
A

L
T

H
W

A
IT

E
 L

A
N

E
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
P

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 L
a

n
d

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 n

o
w

 V
a

c
a

A
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
0

.5
0

4
3

2
6

1
8

.4
7

4
3

1
0

8
4

.2
0

V
A

C
A

N
T

 B
R

IT
IS

H
 W

A
T

E
R

W
A

Y
S

 L
A

N
D

 A
T

 T
H

W
A

IT
E

 L
A

N
E

T
H

W
A

IT
E

 L
A

N
E

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
P

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 L
a

n
d

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 n

o
w

 V
a

c
a

A
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
0

.4
0

4
2

9
1

6
8

.3
8

4
3

3
3

9
4

.9
1

M
U

L
T

I 
S

T
O

R
E

Y
 C

A
R

 P
A

R
K

W
E

L
L

IN
G

T
O

N
 P

L
A

C
E

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

C
a

r 
P

a
rk

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.8
2

4
2

9
1

8
6

.0
9

4
3

3
3

4
6

.3
2

V
A

C
A

N
T

 L
A

N
D

 T
O

 R
E

A
R

 O
F

 M
U

L
T

I 
S

T
O

R
E

Y
 C

A
R

 P
A

R
K

 A
N

D
 O

F
F

IC
E

S
W

E
L

L
IN

G
T

O
N

 P
L

A
C

E
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

O
u

tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.4
0

4
2

9
2

4
4

.4
4

4
3

3
3

9
3

.8
4

O
F

F
IC

E
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 1

W
E

L
L

IN
G

T
O

N
 P

L
A

C
E

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
1

4
2

9
6

0
5

.8
3

4
3

3
3

4
2

.2
4

S
IT

E
 O

F
 P

R
O

P
O

S
E

D
 O

F
F

IC
E

 B
L

O
C

K
W

H
IT

E
H

A
L

L
 Q

U
A

Y
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
5

4
2

9
5

6
2

.8
4

4
3

3
3

1
2

.4
5

S
IT

E
 O

F
 P

R
O

P
O

S
E

D
 H

O
T

E
L

W
H

IT
E

H
A

L
L

 Q
U

A
Y

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

a
l 
A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.4
0

4
2

9
5

8
6

.6
8

4
3

3
2

8
5

.2
1

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
IA

L
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

 B
Y

 C
R

O
S

B
Y

 H
O

M
E

S
W

H
IT

E
H

A
L

L
 Q

U
A

Y
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.2
6

4
2

6
5

3
6

.6
6

4
3

3
2

7
8

.5
5

S
U

N
S

H
IN

E
 M

IL
L

S
 O

R
 A

N
T

W
E

R
P

 M
IL

L
S

W
H

IN
G

A
T

E
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.7
5

4
2

6
1

3
8

.4
1

4
3

3
5

1
7

.4
1

W
E

S
T

 L
E

E
D

S
 H

IG
H

 S
C

H
O

O
L

W
H

IN
G

A
T

E
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
4

.8
1

4
2

3
4

7
5

.0
8

4
4

3
5

9
1

.8
3

F
O

R
M

E
R

 H
IL

T
O

N
 G

R
A

N
G

E
 S

C
H

O
O

L
 F

O
R

 T
H

E
 D

E
A

F
P

O
O

L
 B

A
N

K
 R

O
A

D
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
2

.6
6

4
2

7
6

8
6

.2
5

4
3

2
7

1
2

.9
0

L
A

N
D

 A
T

 W
O

R
T

L
E

Y
 W

E
S

T
 J

U
N

C
T

IO
N

O
L

D
F

IE
L

D
 L

A
N

E
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
2

.0
0

4
2

9
0

5
3

.0
6

4
2

9
3

5
7

.8
8

F
O

R
M

E
R

 C
O

V
E

R
E

D
 R

E
S

E
R

V
O

IR
G

Y
P

S
Y

 L
A

N
E

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.5
4

4
4

0
0

8
0

.4
4

4
2

7
2

1
3

.0
5

F
O

R
M

E
R

 P
L

A
N

T
 D

E
P

O
T

L
O

W
E

R
 M

IC
K

L
E

T
O

W
N

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
4

.0
9

4
3

0
0

4
1

.7
9

4
2

7
2

0
2

.1
4

C
L

E
A

R
E

D
 H

O
U

S
IN

G
 L

A
N

D
T

H
R

O
S

T
L

E
 G

R
O

V
E

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

O
u

td
o

o
r 

R
e

c
re

a
ti
o

n
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.7
9

4
3

0
2

6
2

.0
2

4
2

7
8

1
0

.6
7

C
L

E
A

R
E

D
 H

O
U

S
IN

G
 L

A
N

D
T

H
O

R
P

E
 R

O
A

D
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
9

.9
1

4
2

7
2

5
0

.2
0

4
3

0
0

5
8

.5
0

M
A

N
O

R
 H

O
U

S
E

 F
A

R
M

O
L

D
 R

O
A

D
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
3

.6
1

4
2

7
4

2
2

.3
4

4
2

7
7

2
1

.2
2

G
IL

L
R

O
Y

D
 M

IL
L

S
W

ID
E

 L
A

N
E

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.9
2

4
2

6
3

5
6

.2
5

4
2

7
1

8
0

.6
4

F
O

R
M

E
R

 C
O

A
L

 D
E

P
O

T
H

IG
H

 S
T

R
E

E
T

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.6
5

4
2

5
1

9
9

.8
0

4
2

7
3

1
6

.9
2

V
A

C
A

N
T

 L
A

N
D

B
R

U
N

T
C

L
IF

F
E

 R
O

A
D

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
1

.3
6

4
2

5
0

1
0

.4
8

4
3

6
1

5
1

.4
7

F
O

R
M

E
R

 S
T

 B
E

N
E

D
IC

T
S

 S
C

H
O

O
L

L
E

E
D

S
 A

N
D

 B
R

A
D

F
O

R
D

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
2

.4
8

4
2

7
1

1
5

.9
3

4
3

2
8

4
2

.7
9

E
X

 T
H

O
R

N
H

IL
L

 S
C

H
O

O
L

U
P

P
E

R
 W

O
R

T
L

E
Y

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
2

.6
5

4
2

5
6

7
9

.7
7

4
3

4
7

4
3

.6
9

C
L

E
A

R
E

D
 H

O
U

S
IN

G
 L

A
N

D
C

O
C

K
S

H
O

T
T

 L
A

N
E

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
4

.0
7

4
2

3
0

7
9

.9
5

4
3

3
2

5
4

.6
9

F
O

R
M

E
R

 G
A

S
 W

O
R

K
S

H
O

U
G

H
S

ID
E

 R
O

A
D

C
  

 D
e

re
lic

t
U

ti
lit

ie
s

A
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

4

Page 73



W
A

S
T

E
 S

IT
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

IO
N

 R
E

P
O

R
T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

S
O

U
R

C
E

A
R

E
A

_
H

A
X

_
C

O
O

R
D

Y
_

C
O

O
R

D
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

_
1

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
_

2
T

Y
P

E
_

C
O

D
E

L
A

N
D

_
U

S
E

_
C

P
L

G
_

S
T

A
T

U
S

n
lu

d
9

.1
7

4
2

7
1

1
0

.9
7

4
3

7
1

6
6

.4
4

F
O

R
M

E
R

 F
IL

T
E

R
 B

E
D

S
C

H
U

R
C

H
W

O
O

D
 A

V
E

N
U

E
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
5

.6
1

4
2

8
1

8
6

.2
7

4
3

9
6

0
0

.2
7

U
N

IP
O

L
 S

T
U

D
E

N
T

 A
C

C
O

M
M

O
D

A
T

IO
N

T
IL

E
 L

A
N

E
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
In

s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

a
l 
A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
1

.5
2

4
1

8
5

5
0

.1
0

4
4

1
9

0
3

.5
3

F
O

R
M

E
R

 Y
E

B
 D

E
P

O
T

B
A

C
K

 L
A

N
E

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
9

.6
7

4
3

1
6

6
7

.7
4

4
3

9
4

9
7

.0
5

S
H

A
D

W
E

L
L

 B
O

Y
S

 S
C

H
O

O
L

S
H

A
D

W
E

L
L

 L
A

N
E

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.5
9

4
3

1
2

6
1

.8
6

4
4

0
6

4
0

.5
6

A
L

W
O

O
D

L
E

Y
 G

A
T

E
S

W
IG

T
O

N
 L

A
N

E
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.4
2

4
3

0
2

4
5

.1
7

4
3

9
4

1
5

.6
1

F
O

R
M

E
R

 G
A

S
 H

O
L

D
E

R
 S

T
A

T
IO

N
F

IR
 T

R
E

E
 A

P
P

R
O

A
C

H
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.6
3

4
3

2
0

1
5

.6
1

4
4

0
2

6
6

.7
8

5
8

 T
O

 6
0

W
IG

T
O

N
 L

A
N

E
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
2

.1
1

4
4

2
6

0
1

.7
5

4
4

2
7

0
0

.5
6

A
M

B
U

L
A

N
C

E
 S

T
A

T
IO

N
 A

N
D

 F
O

R
M

E
R

 C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
S

 H
O

M
E

F
R

E
E

L
Y

 L
A

N
E

D
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
In

s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
0

.5
1

4
3

1
9

9
6

.0
7

4
3

3
1

6
3

.5
7

C
L

E
A

R
E

D
 H

O
U

S
IN

G
 S

IT
E

G
L

E
N

S
D

A
L

E
 M

O
U

N
T

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
1

4
.8

6
4

4
2

1
0

8
.3

8
4

2
7

8
3

9
.7

2
F

O
R

M
E

R
 C

O
L

L
IE

R
Y

S
T

A
T

IO
N

 R
O

A
D

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
M

in
e

ra
l 
W

o
rk

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 Q
u

a
rr

ie
s

O
u

tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
3

.0
1

4
4

1
9

4
6

.5
9

4
3

3
9

9
3

.1
6

F
O

R
M

E
R

 A
IC

R
A

F
T

 B
A

T
T

E
R

Y
B

R
IE

R
L

A
N

D
S

 L
A

N
E

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
2

.4
2

4
3

3
2

5
9

.4
7

4
3

5
4

6
2

.6
1

F
O

R
M

E
R

 O
A

K
 T

R
E

E
 S

C
H

O
O

L
O

A
K

 T
R

E
E

 D
R

IV
E

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
0

.7
2

4
3

2
3

9
6

.1
3

4
3

4
2

7
3

.0
0

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

T
O

R
R

E
 M

O
U

N
T

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
2

.8
7

4
2

5
7

8
7

.9
4

4
3

4
9

2
1

.9
1

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

W
Y

T
H

E
R

 P
A

R
K

 H
IL

L
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
5

.1
0

4
2

8
4

2
9

.8
4

4
3

8
1

6
1

.5
0

F
O

R
M

E
R

 M
E

A
N

W
O

O
D

 P
A

R
K

 H
O

S
P

IT
A

L
T

O
N

G
U

E
 L

A
N

E
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
2

.4
5

4
2

8
6

8
6

.8
9

4
3

8
3

2
9

.1
0

F
O

R
M

E
R

 M
E

A
N

W
O

O
D

 P
A

R
K

 H
O

S
P

IT
A

L
T

O
N

G
U

E
 L

A
N

E
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.3
3

4
2

8
9

0
5

.6
7

4
3

8
3

3
0

.9
4

F
O

R
M

E
R

 M
E

A
N

W
O

O
D

 P
A

R
K

 H
O

S
P

IT
A

L
T

O
N

G
U

E
 L

A
N

E
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
2

.1
0

4
3

3
5

0
7

.0
9

4
3

5
4

3
6

.2
0

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

L
O

W
 G

IP
T

O
N

 C
R

E
S

C
E

N
T

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.2
2

4
3

0
2

1
0

.4
2

4
2

7
7

5
2

.1
6

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

T
H

O
R

P
E

 R
O

A
D

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
2

.6
4

4
3

4
3

6
3

.6
9

4
3

3
2

1
4

.8
6

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

N
E

V
IL

L
E

 R
O

A
D

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.4
5

4
3

2
9

1
8

.4
1

4
3

5
2

2
3

.2
3

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

T
H

O
R

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.6
4

4
2

5
7

3
8

.7
5

4
3

7
1

0
4

.8
6

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

L
E

A
 F

A
R

M
 W

A
L

K
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.8
2

4
2

5
3

6
9

.9
9

4
3

5
5

6
7

.3
9

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

B
R

O
A

D
L

E
A

 R
O

A
D

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.4
2

4
2

6
8

5
4

.9
5

4
3

5
9

7
3

.9
7

H
O

U
S

IN
G

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

T
IO

N
 F

L
A

T
S

J
A

C
Q

U
E

S
 C

L
O

S
E

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.5
0

4
2

6
2

0
9

.9
3

4
3

2
9

5
8

.0
0

F
O

R
M

E
R

 Q
U

A
R

R
Y

B
L

U
E

 H
IL

L
 L

A
N

E
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
2

4
2

6
6

3
6

.1
5

4
2

9
1

7
4

.5
8

L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 L
A

N
E

S
ID

E
 M

IL
L

S
C

L
A

R
K

 S
P

R
IN

G
 R

IS
E

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.6
1

4
3

0
0

0
8

.6
9

4
3

4
5

0
2

.8
5

F
O

R
M

E
R

 H
O

L
Y

 R
O

S
A

R
Y

 S
C

H
O

O
L

L
O

F
T

H
O

U
S

E
 T

E
R

R
A

C
E

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.9
7

4
3

0
9

1
6

.1
1

4
3

7
3

0
8

.5
3

W
E

B
T

O
N

 C
O

U
R

T
A

L
L

E
R

T
O

N
 P

A
R

K
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.4
1

4
3

1
4

5
6

.1
3

4
3

3
2

9
1

.5
5

F
O

R
M

E
R

 P
U

B
L

IC
 H

O
U

S
E

U
P

P
E

R
 A

C
C

O
M

M
O

D
A

T
IO

N
 R

O
A

D
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
ta

ili
n

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
3

4
3

0
1

0
8

.4
6

4
2

8
4

3
7

.2
1

n
lu

d
0

.2
4

4
3

9
6

9
0

.7
3

4
2

7
2

4
5

.5
2

R
E

A
R

 O
F

 2
 M

A
IN

 S
T

R
E

E
T

M
A

IN
 S

T
R

E
E

T
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
5

.1
7

4
3

2
6

6
0

.9
9

4
2

6
9

7
5

.9
0

F
O

R
M

E
R

 C
O

A
L

 D
E

P
O

T
L

E
E

D
S

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.4
6

4
2

2
2

8
7

.1
6

4
2

8
9

7
8

.3
4

L
A

N
D

 A
T

 B
R

A
D

F
O

R
D

 R
O

A
D

B
R

A
D

F
O

R
D

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
6

4
3

0
3

3
7

.5
1

4
3

4
8

2
9

.4
3

L
O

V
E

L
L

 P
A

R
K

 S
O

C
IA

L
 C

L
U

B
O

A
T

L
A

N
D

 G
R

E
E

N
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.1
9

4
2

0
0

7
5

.9
4

4
4

5
3

6
5

.1
1

n
lu

d
0

.2
6

4
3

8
0

4
4

.3
2

4
4

5
7

6
0

.3
8

G
A

R
A

G
E

L
A

N
G

W
IT

H
 A

V
E

N
U

E
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
1

4
3

6
1

8
5

.1
1

4
3

5
8

5
2

.6
1

F
O

R
M

E
R

 S
H

O
P

S
S

W
A

R
C

L
IF

F
E

 P
A

R
A

D
E

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
ta

ili
n

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.0
8

4
2

5
1

3
7

.9
2

4
3

5
4

3
6

.1
7

M
O

U
N

T
 C

R
O

S
S

 S
A

L
V

A
T

IO
N

 A
R

M
Y

 H
O

S
T

E
L

B
R

O
A

D
 L

A
N

E
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
In

s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
7

.5
2

4
3

3
0

5
8

.8
1

4
2

8
9

6
4

.5
0

F
O

R
M

E
R

 S
T

 G
E

O
R

G
E

S
 H

O
S

P
IT

A
L

W
O

O
D

 L
A

N
E

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
0

.2
1

4
2

4
0

2
2

.8
9

4
2

9
4

9
3

.3
1

n
lu

d
0

.3
1

4
2

2
9

2
9

.8
1

4
2

8
6

2
6

.2
7

C
L

E
A

R
E

D
 L

A
N

D
W

A
K

E
F

IE
L

D
 R

O
A

D
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
0

.5
0

4
3

3
7

8
2

.9
1

4
2

7
1

9
9

.4
8

C
L

E
A

R
E

D
 L

A
N

D
M

A
IN

 S
T

R
E

E
T

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
0

.4
9

4
2

9
2

4
5

.9
7

4
3

3
1

2
2

.5
0

F
O

R
M

E
R

 L
O

C
A

L
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y
 D

E
P

O
T

W
H

IT
E

H
A

L
L

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
7

4
2

2
6

9
7

.7
4

4
3

2
8

6
3

.1
8

F
O

R
M

E
R

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

C
H

A
U

C
E

R
 G

A
R

D
E

N
S

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
1

4
2

8
0

1
2

.0
9

4
3

5
6

3
7

.0
5

F
O

R
M

E
R

 A
G

E
D

 P
E

R
S

O
N

S
 H

O
M

E
C

A
R

D
IG

A
N

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
2

.6
5

4
1

8
2

8
9

.1
3

4
4

2
5

2
2

.7
2

G
R

E
E

N
W

O
O

D
S

 C
L

O
T

H
IN

G
 W

A
R

E
H

O
U

S
E

 E
T

C
O

T
L

E
Y

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
5

4
3

1
6

0
8

.9
8

4
3

6
5

4
9

.0
9

H
O

U
S

E
 A

N
D

 G
R

O
U

N
D

S
 A

T
 N

O
 9

3
G

L
E

D
H

O
W

 P
A

R
K

 G
R

O
V

E
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.4
6

4
2

1
7

2
1

.5
3

4
3

3
1

8
0

.8
3

H
O

U
S

E
 A

N
D

 G
R

O
U

N
D

S
T

O
F

T
S

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.6
7

4
2

4
0

8
7

.1
9

4
2

9
4

6
6

.7
2

C
H

U
R

C
H

 G
R

O
U

N
D

S
C

H
U

R
C

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.5
0

4
2

6
6

0
8

.4
2

4
3

2
1

0
7

.0
0

H
O

U
S

E
 A

N
D

 G
R

O
U

N
D

S
F

A
W

C
E

T
T

 L
A

N
E

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
9

4
2

2
2

4
5

.6
1

4
3

2
7

0
2

.1
9

F
A

C
T

O
R

Y
N

E
W

 S
T

R
E

E
T

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
2

4
3

6
3

8
9

.7
0

4
2

8
8

4
6

.2
1

W
A

R
E

H
O

U
S

E
O

U
L

T
O

N
 L

A
N

E
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
2

4
2

2
4

3
9

.3
6

4
3

3
6

2
3

.5
3

F
O

R
M

E
R

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

C
L

IF
T

O
N

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.6
5

4
2

9
0

9
1

.7
0

4
3

4
0

8
3

.6
9

D
E

N
IS

O
N

 H
A

L
L

H
A

N
O

V
E

R
 S

Q
U

A
R

E
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
2

.2
0

4
2

7
8

4
6

.5
5

4
3

8
8

4
2

.8
1

T
H

E
 H

E
A

T
H

D
U

N
S

T
A

R
N

 L
A

N
E

D
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
1

.0
0

4
3

1
5

0
8

.9
8

4
3

8
2

9
3

.0
8

M
O

O
R

 A
L

L
E

R
T

O
N

 H
A

L
L

L
ID

G
E

T
T

 L
A

N
E

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.5
2

4
3

6
8

6
0

.7
0

4
3

2
8

9
9

.2
5

G
A

R
D

E
N

 L
A

N
D

M
E

Y
N

E
L

L
 R

O
A

D
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
0

4
4

0
0

0
1

.5
9

4
4

8
3

4
1

.8
8

L
A

 L
O

C
A

N
D

A
 R

E
S

T
A

U
R

A
N

T
W

E
S

T
G

A
T

E
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
R

e
ta

ili
n

g
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.3
0

4
3

6
0

1
8

.9
6

4
3

6
0

3
1

.4
8

S
W

A
R

C
L

IF
F

E
 P

F
I 

H
O

U
S

IN
G

M
IL

L
 G

R
E

E
N

 G
A

R
T

H
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.1
6

4
3

6
8

5
2

.7
5

4
3

6
0

7
6

.8
8

S
W

A
R

C
L

IF
F

E
 P

F
I

A
S

H
T

R
E

E
 G

R
O

V
E

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
7

4
3

6
9

4
4

.3
6

4
3

6
0

4
9

.5
9

S
W

A
R

C
L

IF
F

E
 P

F
I

A
S

H
T

R
E

E
 G

R
O

V
E

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
1

4
3

7
1

4
5

.0
2

4
3

5
9

9
9

.0
5

n
lu

d
0

.9
3

4
3

7
0

2
4

.4
1

4
3

6
1

3
8

.2
3

6
3

 T
O

 1
0

9
 A

N
D

 1
8

0
 T

O
 3

1
2

A
S

T
A

N
K

S
 D

R
IV

E
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
1

.1
7

4
3

7
0

4
4

.9
4

4
3

6
2

4
0

.0
5

6
3

 T
O

 1
0

9
 A

N
D

 1
8

0
 T

O
 3

1
2

A
S

T
A

N
K

S
 D

R
IV

E
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.4
3

4
2

9
5

5
9

.0
6

4
3

6
5

6
9

.1
3

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

 O
F

F
 P

O
T

T
E

R
N

E
W

T
O

N
 M

O
U

N
T

P
O

T
T

E
R

N
E

W
T

O
N

 M
O

U
N

T
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.4
6

4
2

9
8

2
1

.0
9

4
3

6
5

0
0

.1
6

C
L

E
A

R
E

D
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 H

O
U

S
IN

G
P

O
T

T
E

R
N

E
W

T
O

N
 M

O
U

N
T

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
2

.5
5

4
3

0
3

1
3

.8
0

4
3

6
1

0
9

.3
3

S
C

O
T

T
 H

A
L

L
 A

R
E

A
S

 5
 A

N
D

 6
S

C
O

T
T

 H
A

L
L

 G
R

O
V

E
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.9
8

4
3

0
4

5
6

.2
5

4
3

5
8

5
4

.3
8

S
C

O
T

T
 H

A
L

L
 A

R
E

A
 3

S
C

O
T

T
 H

A
L

L
 W

A
L

K
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.6
1

4
3

4
0

7
7

.8
3

4
3

6
6

8
8

.6
6

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

A
S

K
E

T
 C

L
O

S
E

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

5

Page 74



W
A

S
T

E
 S

IT
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

IO
N

 R
E

P
O

R
T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

S
O

U
R

C
E

A
R

E
A

_
H

A
X

_
C

O
O

R
D

Y
_

C
O

O
R

D
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

_
1

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
_

2
T

Y
P

E
_

C
O

D
E

L
A

N
D

_
U

S
E

_
C

P
L

G
_

S
T

A
T

U
S

n
lu

d
0

.7
1

4
3

3
5

3
1

.6
7

4
3

5
0

3
2

.4
1

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

B
E

E
C

H
 C

L
O

S
E

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
8

4
3

3
1

9
5

.7
7

4
3

2
9

7
6

.4
7

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

N
E

V
IL

L
E

 C
L

O
S

E
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.1
1

4
3

3
1

3
2

.2
2

4
3

2
9

2
6

.9
4

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

N
E

V
IL

L
E

 C
L

O
S

E
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
5

4
3

3
1

9
9

.0
8

4
3

2
8

4
8

.0
8

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

N
E

V
IL

L
E

 C
L

O
S

E
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
0

4
3

1
2

3
8

.8
8

4
3

3
3

0
2

.8
1

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 T
O

W
E

R
 B

L
O

C
K

T
H

E
 P

A
R

A
D

E
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.7
8

4
3

5
1

7
0

.5
3

4
3

5
1

7
0

.4
5

C
L

E
A

R
E

D
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 H

O
U

S
IN

G
T

A
R

N
S

ID
E

 D
R

IV
E

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.0
7

4
3

5
1

3
9

.5
0

4
3

5
2

3
3

.2
5

C
L

E
A

R
E

D
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 H

O
U

S
IN

G
T

A
R

N
S

ID
E

 D
R

IV
E

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.1
2

4
3

5
1

1
8

.0
8

4
3

5
0

9
4

.7
7

C
L

E
A

R
E

D
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 H

O
U

S
IN

G
T

A
R

N
S

ID
E

 D
R

IV
E

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
4

4
3

5
2

9
3

.4
2

4
3

6
3

0
6

.0
5

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

K
E

N
T

M
E

R
E

 R
IS

E
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
8

4
3

4
2

9
8

.8
8

4
3

6
7

3
2

.1
7

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

B
O

G
G

A
R

T
 H

IL
L

 G
A

R
D

E
N

S
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
9

4
2

8
6

2
0

.2
0

4
3

4
7

0
2

.3
3

C
L

E
A

R
E

D
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 H

O
U

S
IN

G
B

E
N

S
O

N
 C

O
U

R
T

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.2
8

4
3

5
1

9
7

.9
7

4
3

5
3

6
1

.3
8

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

M
A

R
D

A
L

E
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.7
3

4
3

4
5

6
0

.7
2

4
3

6
4

4
2

.4
5

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

K
E

N
T

M
E

R
E

 A
P

P
R

O
A

C
H

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
4

4
3

0
4

6
5

.4
1

4
2

7
6

6
9

.0
3

C
L

E
A

R
E

D
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 H

O
U

S
IN

G
T

H
O

R
P

E
 R

O
A

D
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.1
8

4
3

0
4

5
5

.5
9

4
2

7
5

9
3

.2
7

C
L

E
A

R
E

D
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 H

O
U

S
IN

G
T

H
O

R
P

E
 R

O
A

D
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
0

4
3

0
3

5
9

.1
9

4
2

7
6

5
0

.0
5

C
L

E
A

R
E

D
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 H

O
U

S
IN

G
T

H
O

R
P

E
 R

O
A

D
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
2

4
3

2
6

0
3

.7
0

4
3

5
6

5
7

.2
5

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

E
A

S
T

E
R

L
Y

 M
O

U
N

T
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
4

4
3

2
6

4
5

.2
3

4
3

5
6

5
6

.4
2

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

E
A

S
T

E
R

L
Y

 M
O

U
N

T
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.5
2

4
3

4
2

2
4

.8
4

4
3

3
4

7
4

.0
0

E
X

T
O

N
 P

L
A

C
E

H
A

L
T

O
N

 M
O

O
R

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.4
8

4
3

0
2

6
7

.5
2

4
3

4
5

2
2

.7
3

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

C
A

R
L

T
O

N
 G

A
T

E
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.5
7

4
2

3
9

4
2

.4
1

4
3

4
7

5
3

.4
4

C
L

E
A

R
E

D
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 H

O
U

S
IN

G
F

A
IR

F
IE

L
D

 S
T

R
E

E
T

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.2
7

4
3

3
9

0
8

.4
7

4
3

3
0

1
3

.4
1

F
O

R
M

E
R

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

T
H

E
 D

E
A

N
E

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.9
2

4
3

1
6

9
6

.2
1

4
2

8
7

7
1

.9
3

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

M
ID

D
L

E
T

O
N

 W
A

Y
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.8
3

4
3

2
4

9
9

.2
0

4
2

8
1

4
5

.8
8

R
E

A
R

 6
1

 T
O

 6
3

W
A

K
E

F
IE

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
4

4
2

6
4

6
4

.0
3

4
2

8
2

6
2

.5
0

L
A

N
D

B
A

N
K

 A
V

E
N

U
E

D
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
In

d
u

s
tr

y
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.8
6

4
2

4
5

7
3

.9
8

4
2

8
7

4
0

.2
9

H
O

U
S

E
 A

N
D

 G
R

O
U

N
D

S
G

E
L

D
E

R
D

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.7
7

4
2

5
6

8
0

.6
7

4
2

8
1

2
0

.6
7

H
O

T
E

L
 A

N
D

 L
E

IS
U

R
E

 C
E

N
T

R
E

B
R

U
N

T
C

L
IF

F
E

 L
A

N
E

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
R

e
ta

ili
n

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
7

4
2

4
2

9
7

.1
7

4
2

8
8

6
0

.3
8

G
IL

D
E

R
S

O
M

E
 S

P
O

R
T

S
 A

N
D

 S
O

C
IA

L
 C

L
U

B
F

IN
K

L
E

 L
A

N
E

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.5
1

4
2

2
6

8
9

.1
9

4
3

6
1

2
5

.0
0

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L
 P

R
E

M
IS

E
S

L
A

S
T

IN
G

H
A

M
 R

O
A

D
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
6

4
2

8
1

8
5

.4
1

4
3

6
7

8
5

.2
2

5
 A

N
D

 5
A

M
O

N
K

B
R

ID
G

E
 R

O
A

D
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

a
l 
A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
4

4
2

7
1

1
2

.1
3

4
3

1
3

8
0

.6
1

S
T

O
R

A
G

E
 D

E
P

O
T

 A
T

 R
O

Y
D

S
 H

A
L

L
 M

O
U

N
T

R
O

Y
D

S
 L

A
N

E
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.2
8

4
3

0
3

9
2

.0
5

4
3

3
8

0
0

.1
1

9
7

 T
O

 1
0

9
V

IC
A

R
 L

A
N

E
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

a
l 
A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.0
8

4
2

9
1

8
7

.0
6

4
3

3
5

7
4

.1
2

n
lu

d
0

.2
5

4
2

9
6

8
8

.2
7

4
3

3
5

1
8

.5
8

4
8

 T
O

 5
0

P
A

R
K

 P
L

A
C

E
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.1
8

4
2

9
4

7
2

.7
2

4
3

3
4

8
2

.2
7

7
8

W
E

L
L

IN
G

T
O

N
 S

T
R

E
E

T
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
2

4
2

2
3

4
2

.8
0

4
2

8
7

4
5

.2
3

F
O

R
M

E
R

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 W

O
R

K
S

 A
T

 M
O

O
R

L
A

N
D

 M
IL

L
S

M
O

O
R

L
A

N
D

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.1
4

4
2

7
3

4
5

.9
5

4
3

2
9

9
3

.8
0

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 S

IT
E

 A
T

 A
M

B
E

R
L

E
Y

 R
O

A
D

 A
N

D
 T

O
N

G
 R

O
A

D
A

M
B

E
R

L
E

Y
 R

O
A

D
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
P

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 L
a

n
d

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 n

o
w

 V
a

c
a

D
e

ta
ile

d
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.4
8

4
2

1
2

9
3

.8
3

4
3

3
1

0
6

.8
3

U
P

P
E

R
M

O
O

R
 W

O
R

K
S

U
P

P
E

R
M

O
O

R
C

  
 D

e
re

lic
t

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.1
9

4
2

0
7

8
5

.0
2

4
3

9
8

1
7

.7
7

n
lu

d
0

.1
2

4
3

6
1

3
5

.5
6

4
3

4
5

2
7

.2
7

n
lu

d
0

.1
8

4
2

6
1

5
1

.1
7

4
4

2
4

8
3

.8
9

n
lu

d
0

.9
3

4
2

8
5

6
3

.7
7

4
3

3
8

1
0

.0
3

F
O

R
M

E
R

 S
C

IE
N

T
IF

IC
 G

A
M

E
S

 F
A

C
T

O
R

Y
K

IR
K

S
T

A
L

L
 R

O
A

D
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
P

P
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t

n
lu

d
0

.6
3

4
2

8
1

8
7

.6
8

4
3

0
2

4
5

.6
9

F
O

R
M

E
R

 C
R

A
V

E
N

 C
A

L
V

E
R

T
 W

O
R

K
S

M
IL

L
S

H
A

W
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
3

.4
4

4
4

2
4

8
0

.6
9

4
2

7
6

9
4

.2
9

F
O

R
M

E
R

 C
O

L
L

IE
R

Y
 Y

A
R

D
 A

N
D

 S
T

A
T

IO
N

S
T

A
T

IO
N

 R
O

A
D

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
M

in
e

ra
l 
W

o
rk

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 Q
u

a
rr

ie
s

O
u

tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
2

8
.6

7
4

4
1

7
2

8
.2

2
4

3
4

2
9

7
.9

7
L

A
N

D
 A

D
J
A

C
E

N
T

 A
6

4
2

 A
N

D
 M

1
A

B
E

R
F

O
R

D
 R

O
A

D
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
M

in
e

ra
l 
W

o
rk

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 Q
u

a
rr

ie
s

A
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
3

.1
0

4
2

3
2

0
0

.5
0

4
4

1
4

9
6

.8
0

F
O

R
M

E
R

 S
P

R
IN

G
F

IE
L

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L
Y

E
A

D
O

N
 M

O
O

R
 R

O
A

D
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.5
5

4
2

0
6

1
7

.9
1

4
4

0
5

5
7

.5
2

L
E

E
D

S
 C

IT
Y

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 D
E

P
O

T
G

R
E

E
N

 L
A

N
E

D
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
0

.7
5

4
2

0
5

9
8

.1
6

4
4

0
4

6
3

.9
5

O
F

F
 G

R
E

E
N

 L
A

N
E

 Y
E

A
D

O
N

G
R

E
E

N
 L

A
N

E
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
P

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 L
a

n
d

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 n

o
w

 V
a

c
a

D
e

ta
ile

d
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
1

.5
0

4
2

0
6

1
5

.4
6

4
4

5
0

4
5

.4
5

C
A

T
T

L
E

 M
A

R
K

E
T

L
E

E
D

S
 R

O
A

D
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
R

e
ta

ili
n

g
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
1

.0
1

4
3

1
5

7
6

.9
1

4
2

7
0

0
7

.0
9

T
H

O
R

P
E

 H
A

L
L

M
ID

D
L

E
T

O
N

 L
A

N
E

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
0

.2
1

4
3

4
4

6
2

.3
3

4
2

8
0

3
5

.9
5

n
lu

d
0

.7
2

4
3

0
3

0
3

.1
1

4
3

4
2

3
6

.8
1

C
A

R
 P

A
R

K
 N

O
R

T
H

 O
F

F
 E

L
M

W
O

O
D

 L
A

N
E

E
L

M
W

O
O

D
 L

A
N

E
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

W
it
h

in
 a

 z
o

n
e

 a
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l

n
lu

d
0

.4
7

4
3

0
2

7
2

.3
8

4
3

4
1

9
0

.3
8

C
A

R
 P

A
R

K
 S

O
U

T
H

 O
F

F
 E

L
M

W
O

O
D

 L
A

N
E

E
L

M
W

O
O

D
 L

A
N

E
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

W
it
h

in
 a

 z
o

n
e

 a
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l

n
lu

d
1

.2
7

4
3

1
3

3
0

.2
8

4
3

3
4

9
0

.9
5

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 B
A

T
C

H
IN

G
 P

L
A

N
T

 O
F

F
 S

H
A

N
N

O
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

S
H

A
N

N
O

N
 S

T
R

E
E

T
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
W

it
h

in
 a

 z
o

n
e

 a
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l

n
lu

d
1

.8
7

4
3

1
1

6
1

.4
2

4
3

3
5

3
1

.7
2

F
O

R
M

E
R

 R
A

IL
W

A
Y

 Y
A

R
D

 O
F

F
 M

A
R

S
H

 L
A

N
E

 A
N

D
 S

H
A

N
N

O
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

M
A

R
S

H
 L

A
N

E
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

a
ilw

a
y
s

W
it
h

in
 a

 z
o

n
e

 a
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l

n
lu

d
4

.6
7

4
3

1
4

5
8

.8
6

4
3

1
9

6
1

.9
9

F
O

R
M

E
R

 O
IL

 T
E

R
M

IN
A

L
S

Y
A

R
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.7
4

4
2

1
4

5
0

.4
1

4
3

4
3

6
2

.4
7

W
O

O
D

N
O

O
K

 F
A

R
M

 B
R

A
D

F
O

R
D

 R
O

A
D

 P
U

D
S

E
Y

B
R

A
D

F
O

R
D

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.7
0

4
3

0
3

7
3

.1
7

4
3

4
4

0
2

.8
3

E
L

M
W

O
O

D
 L

A
N

E
 A

N
D

 H
O

W
A

R
T

H
 P

L
A

C
E

E
L

M
W

O
O

D
 L

A
N

E
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.7
1

4
2

9
8

1
5

.8
3

4
3

2
4

8
2

.4
1

F
O

R
M

E
R

 W
A

R
E

H
O

U
S

E
 S

IT
E

S
W

E
E

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
W

it
h

in
 a

 z
o

n
e

 a
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l

n
lu

d
0

.4
6

4
4

0
8

9
8

.2
0

4
3

3
4

3
2

.4
8

L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 T
O

 S
T

A
T

IO
N

 C
A

R
 P

A
R

K
S

T
A

T
IO

N
 R

O
A

D
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

C
a

r 
P

a
rk

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.6
7

4
4

1
0

3
5

.7
3

4
3

3
3

3
3

.6
7

L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 N
E

W
 S

T
A

T
IO

N
 C

A
R

 P
A

R
K

 E
X

T
E

N
S

IO
N

S
T

A
T

IO
N

 R
O

A
D

C
  

 D
e

re
lic

t
R

a
ilw

a
y
s

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
1

.0
1

4
2

8
2

0
9

.6
6

4
3

0
3

9
0

.1
6

F
O

R
M

E
R

 B
E

E
S

T
O

N
 S

T
A

T
IO

N
 M

IL
L

S
H

A
W

M
IL

L
S

H
A

W
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

a
ilw

a
y
s

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
0

.6
1

4
2

8
3

6
6

.2
4

4
3

3
7

0
8

.7
8

L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 A
L

B
IO

N
 P

A
R

K
 I

N
D

U
S

T
R

IA
L

 E
S

T
A

T
E

A
L

B
IO

N
 W

A
Y

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.6
9

4
2

8
4

4
0

.0
0

4
3

3
6

6
4

.1
4

L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 A
L

B
IO

N
 P

A
R

K
 I

N
D

U
S

T
R

IA
L

 E
S

T
A

T
E

A
L

B
IO

N
 W

A
Y

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
3

4
3

0
4

5
7

.8
3

4
3

4
0

6
0

.6
1

N
O

R
T

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 B

A
C

K
 B

R
U

N
S

W
IC

K
 S

T
R

E
E

T
B

A
C

K
 B

R
U

N
S

W
IC

K
 S

T
R

E
E

T
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.9
5

4
2

3
3

6
9

.1
6

4
3

4
9

1
8

.6
1

W
E

S
T

F
IE

L
D

 M
IL

L
B

R
O

A
D

 L
A

N
E

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.7
4

4
2

4
0

1
0

.2
0

4
3

8
2

1
8

.3
9

F
O

R
M

E
R

 I
N

D
U

S
T

R
IA

L
 S

IT
E

 B
R

O
A

D
G

A
T

E
 L

A
N

E
B

R
O

A
D

G
A

T
E

 L
A

N
E

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

a
l 
A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.2
4

4
2

5
4

5
3

.8
6

4
2

8
0

0
1

.9
1

C
A

R
 A

U
C

T
IO

N
 S

IT
E

B
R

U
N

T
C

L
IF

F
E

 L
A

N
E

D
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
R

e
ta

ili
n

g
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
1

.1
2

4
3

0
2

8
6

.8
3

4
3

5
4

4
3

.6
1

B
U

S
L

IN
G

T
H

O
R

P
E

 L
A

N
E

B
U

S
L

IN
G

T
H

O
R

P
E

 L
A

N
E

C
  

 D
e

re
lic

t
In

d
u

s
tr

y
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

6

Page 75



W
A

S
T

E
 S

IT
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

IO
N

 R
E

P
O

R
T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

S
O

U
R

C
E

A
R

E
A

_
H

A
X

_
C

O
O

R
D

Y
_

C
O

O
R

D
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

_
1

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
_

2
T

Y
P

E
_

C
O

D
E

L
A

N
D

_
U

S
E

_
C

P
L

G
_

S
T

A
T

U
S

n
lu

d
0

.7
8

4
2

9
6

7
1

.7
0

4
3

2
9

9
4

.4
4

G
R

A
N

A
R

Y
 W

H
A

R
F

 W
A

T
E

R
 L

A
N

E
C

A
N

A
L

 W
H

A
R

F
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.8
9

4
2

9
7

6
2

.7
0

4
3

3
1

0
0

.7
8

G
R

A
N

A
R

Y
 W

H
A

R
F

 C
A

N
A

L
 W

H
A

R
F

C
A

N
A

L
 W

H
A

R
F

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

D
e

ta
ile

d
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
1

3
.0

8
4

2
5

4
9

8
.5

8
4

3
8

3
3

0
.0

4
F

O
R

M
E

R
 W

O
O

D
S

ID
E

 Q
U

A
R

R
IE

S
 W

E
S

T
 P

A
R

K
C

L
A

Y
T

O
N

 W
O

O
D

 R
O

A
D

C
  

 D
e

re
lic

t
M

in
e

ra
l 
W

o
rk

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 Q
u

a
rr

ie
s

A
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
1

.4
3

4
2

5
5

4
2

.8
9

4
3

8
0

4
5

.3
1

G
IL

C
H

R
IS

T
S

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

R
IN

G
 R

O
A

D
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
In

d
u

s
tr

y
W

it
h

 D
ra

ft
 A

llo
c
a

ti
o

n

n
lu

d
0

.1
2

4
3

1
5

9
3

.2
7

4
3

2
5

6
5

.1
3

n
lu

d
0

.6
1

4
3

0
0

9
0

.7
0

4
3

2
4

8
0

.7
8

F
O

R
M

E
R

 G
A

S
 D

E
P

O
T

D
E

W
S

B
U

R
Y

 R
O

A
D

C
  

 D
e

re
lic

t
U

ti
lit

ie
s

O
u

tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
2

.3
8

4
3

0
1

9
3

.8
0

4
3

2
4

6
5

.8
4

P
O

T
T

E
R

Y
 F

IE
L

D
S

 H
O

U
S

E
K

ID
A

C
R

E
 S

T
R

E
E

T
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

U
ti
lit

ie
s

O
u

tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.5
2

4
3

1
3

7
8

.3
8

4
3

2
7

7
5

.7
7

S
IT

E
 O

F
 F

O
R

M
E

R
 C

O
L

L
E

G
E

 A
N

N
E

X
E

E
A

S
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
2

.2
1

4
3

1
3

4
9

.5
8

4
3

2
6

1
7

.3
7

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 L

A
N

D
 A

T
 L

O
W

 F
O

L
D

 H
A

M
M

O
N

D
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 A

R
K

 S
T

R
E

E
T

H
A

M
M

O
N

D
 S

T
R

E
E

T
C

  
 D

e
re

lic
t

In
d

u
s
tr

y
P

P
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t

n
lu

d
0

.2
3

4
3

1
4

1
4

.7
3

4
3

2
4

6
9

.6
7

n
lu

d
0

.4
9

4
3

0
8

1
3

.5
6

4
3

3
1

7
3

.8
0

C
A

R
 P

A
R

K
 S

IT
E

E
A

S
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
7

.6
8

4
3

1
4

2
7

.9
4

4
2

5
8

4
7

.3
7

F
O

R
M

E
R

 A
R

D
S

L
E

Y
 S

ID
IN

G
S

 S
O

U
T

H
F

A
L

L
 L

A
N

E
C

  
 D

e
re

lic
t

R
a

ilw
a

y
s

O
u

tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.6
7

4
2

7
7

6
3

.9
0

4
3

1
2

8
0

.9
0

H
O

T
E

L
 A

T
 C

IT
Y

 W
E

S
T

 O
F

F
IC

E
 P

A
R

K
T

H
E

 B
O

U
L

E
V

A
R

D
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

a
l 
A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.1
9

4
3

1
8

5
2

.6
9

4
3

1
6

2
5

.8
9

V
A

C
A

N
T

 L
A

N
D

 A
T

 O
L

D
 M

IL
L

 B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 P

A
R

K
G

IB
R

A
L

T
A

R
 I

S
L

A
N

D
 R

O
A

D
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
In

d
u

s
tr

y
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
0

.3
5

4
2

7
5

3
6

.2
0

4
3

7
0

0
3

.3
0

O
T

L
E

Y
 R

O
A

D
 H

O
L

L
IN

 R
O

A
D

H
O

L
L

IN
 R

O
A

D
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.5
1

4
2

2
8

9
8

.7
3

4
3

4
1

6
7

.5
8

L
A

N
D

 T
O

 R
E

A
R

 O
F

 S
IL

V
E

R
 C

O
U

R
T

IN
T

E
R

C
IT

Y
 W

A
Y

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.0
0

4
3

0
4

1
8

.5
3

4
3

2
0

9
9

.5
3

F
O

R
M

E
R

 R
A

IL
W

A
Y

 L
IN

E
J
A

C
K

 L
A

N
E

C
  

 D
e

re
lic

t
R

a
ilw

a
y
s

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
1

.4
7

4
2

6
4

4
1

.5
5

4
3

1
4

7
4

.2
8

F
O

R
M

E
R

 M
IN

E
R

A
L

 R
A

IL
W

A
Y

K
IR

K
D

A
L

E
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T
C

  
 D

e
re

lic
t

R
a

ilw
a

y
s

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
0

.6
0

4
3

0
3

5
4

.0
0

4
3

0
7

4
4

.4
8

L
A

N
D

 T
O

 R
E

A
R

 O
F

 J
O

H
N

 K
IN

G
 W

O
R

K
S

L
E

N
T

O
N

 D
R

IV
E

C
  

 D
e

re
lic

t
In

d
u

s
tr

y
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
2

.6
3

4
4

0
6

1
6

.3
6

4
3

3
7

0
6

.8
0

O
F

F
 L

O
T

H
E

R
T

O
N

 W
A

Y
 G

A
R

F
O

R
T

H
L

O
T

H
E

R
T

O
N

 W
A

Y
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.4
4

4
3

0
1

2
1

.6
7

4
3

0
1

0
8

.5
7

M
ID

D
L

E
T

O
N

 G
R

O
V

E
 P

H
 2

M
ID

D
L

E
T

O
N

 G
R

O
V

E
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
8

4
2

9
9

9
7

.6
6

4
3

3
1

4
2

.2
3

L
A

N
D

 A
T

 N
E

V
IL

L
E

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 A
N

D
 S

O
V

E
R

E
IG

N
 S

T
R

E
E

T
N

E
V

IL
L

E
 S

T
R

E
E

T
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.6
3

4
3

2
6

3
7

.5
3

4
3

2
7

2
1

.4
2

N
E

W
M

A
R

K
E

T
 A

P
P

R
O

A
C

H
 S

IT
E

 3
N

E
W

M
A

R
K

E
T

 A
P

P
R

O
A

C
H

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
9

.1
6

4
3

2
8

4
0

.7
5

4
3

2
5

8
9

.4
8

F
O

R
M

E
R

 W
H

O
L

E
S

A
L

E
 M

A
R

K
E

T
S

N
E

W
M

A
R

K
E

T
 L

A
N

E
C

  
 D

e
re

lic
t

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
2

.8
8

4
2

7
0

5
5

.3
3

4
3

1
2

2
4

.2
6

F
O

R
M

E
R

 R
O

Y
D

S
 L

A
N

E
 L

O
C

O
M

O
T

IV
E

 S
H

E
D

S
R

O
Y

D
S

 L
A

N
E

C
  

 D
e

re
lic

t
R

a
ilw

a
y
s

O
u

tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.9
9

4
2

9
5

1
7

.3
9

4
3

5
1

5
9

.5
0

S
T

 M
A

R
K

S
 C

H
U

R
C

H
S

T
 M

A
R

K
S

 R
O

A
D

D
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
R

e
lig

io
u

s
 B

u
ild

in
g

s
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
0

.8
7

4
2

9
2

3
4

.5
9

4
3

2
8

6
5

.5
3

R
A

IL
W

A
Y

 T
R

IA
N

G
L

E
 O

F
F

 W
A

T
E

R
 L

A
N

E
W

A
T

E
R

 L
A

N
E

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
R

a
ilw

a
y
s

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
4

.7
8

4
2

6
1

1
1

.5
9

4
3

1
6

7
3

.8
0

F
O

R
M

E
R

 W
O

R
K

IN
G

S
 A

N
D

 T
IP

P
E

D
 L

A
N

D
W

H
IT

E
H

A
L

L
 R

O
A

D
C

  
 D

e
re

lic
t

L
a

n
d

fi
ll 

W
a

s
te

 D
is

p
o

s
a

l
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
1

.2
4

4
2

5
9

3
8

.0
9

4
3

1
6

3
6

.2
7

E
X

P
A

N
S

IO
N

 L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 L
E

T
T

E
R

S
H

O
P

 W
O

R
K

S
W

H
IT

E
H

A
L

L
 R

O
A

D
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
2

4
3

1
7

6
7

.3
0

4
3

1
6

0
1

.5
0

P
L

O
T

 3
B

 O
L

D
 M

IL
L

 M
IL

L
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 P
A

R
K

G
IB

R
A

L
T

A
R

 I
S

L
A

N
D

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
0

4
3

1
8

3
1

.4
8

4
3

1
5

4
4

.3
0

P
L

O
T

 6
B

 O
L

D
 M

IL
L

 B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 P

A
R

K
G

IB
R

L
A

T
A

R
 I

S
L

A
N

D
 R

O
A

D
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
2

.0
8

4
2

8
1

4
8

.2
7

4
3

1
2

7
8

.5
6

F
O

R
M

E
R

 L
U

F
C

 T
R

A
IN

IN
G

 G
R

O
U

N
D

E
L

L
A

N
D

 R
O

A
D

D
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

A
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
2

.8
1

4
2

8
1

7
5

.2
5

4
3

1
4

4
3

.7
8

S
IT

E
 O

F
 W

A
R

E
H

O
U

S
E

S
 A

D
J
O

IN
IN

G
 E

L
L

A
N

D
 R

O
A

D
 S

T
A

D
IU

M
L

O
W

F
IE

L
D

S
 R

O
A

D
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

C
a

r 
P

a
rk

s
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
1

.0
9

4
2

8
4

2
1

.0
5

4
3

1
5

2
3

.3
9

M
A

T
C

H
 D

A
Y

 B
U

S
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 A

R
E

A
L

O
W

F
IE

L
D

S
 R

O
A

D
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
R

o
a

d
s

A
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
0

.5
2

4
2

8
4

1
6

.9
0

4
3

1
4

8
3

.2
5

IN
D

U
S

T
R

IA
L

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S
 O

P
P

O
S

IT
E

 E
A

S
T

 S
T

A
N

D
 O

F
 S

T
A

D
IU

M
L

O
W

F
IE

L
D

S
 R

O
A

D
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
0

.6
2

4
2

8
4

7
1

.8
8

4
3

1
4

5
1

.9
1

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 L

A
N

D
 O

F
F

 S
T

A
D

IU
M

 W
A

Y
L

O
W

F
IE

L
D

S
 R

O
A

D
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

O
u

tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.6
3

4
2

8
5

3
3

.5
0

4
3

1
3

1
9

.7
2

L
A

N
D

 B
E

T
W

E
E

N
 W

E
S

L
E

Y
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 A

N
D

 H
O

X
T

O
N

 M
O

U
N

T
W

E
S

L
E

Y
 S

T
R

E
E

T
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

A
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
1

.0
9

4
2

8
4

4
8

.1
2

4
3

1
2

1
0

.6
9

V
A

C
A

N
T

 L
A

N
D

 E
A

S
T

 O
F

 O
L

D
 P

E
A

C
O

C
K

 P
U

B
L

IC
 H

O
U

S
E

E
L

L
A

N
D

 R
O

A
D

D
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

A
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
0

.4
5

4
2

7
5

9
9

.8
4

4
2

5
8

5
0

.9
5

F
O

R
M

E
R

 R
A

IL
W

A
Y

 L
A

N
D

 O
F

F
 W

O
O

D
K

IR
K

 G
R

O
V

E
W

O
O

D
K

IR
K

 G
R

O
V

E
C

  
 D

e
re

lic
t

R
a

ilw
a

y
s

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
0

.1
0

4
2

9
9

6
1

.7
5

4
3

3
4

1
8

.7
2

R
O

Y
A

L
 E

X
C

H
A

N
G

E
 H

O
U

S
E

B
O

A
R

 L
A

N
E

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

a
l 
A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.8
4

4
3

0
5

0
6

.2
3

4
3

3
6

3
4

.6
4

C
A

R
 P

A
R

K
G

E
O

R
G

E
 S

T
R

E
E

T
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

P
P

 s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t

n
lu

d
0

.4
3

4
3

4
6

5
3

.1
4

4
2

9
2

1
4

.2
5

F
O

R
M

E
R

 G
A

R
A

G
E

L
E

E
D

S
 R

O
A

D
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.5
0

4
2

4
7

9
0

.4
7

4
3

4
5

2
0

.6
5

F
O

R
M

E
R

 F
U

R
N

IT
U

R
E

 F
A

C
T

O
R

Y
A

S
H

B
Y

 V
IE

W
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.5
8

4
3

7
0

8
1

.4
5

4
3

3
9

9
5

.8
9

W
A

R
E

H
O

U
S

E
A

U
S

T
H

O
R

P
E

 L
A

N
E

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.3
2

4
2

2
4

2
8

.2
5

4
2

8
2

6
7

.8
1

H
O

U
S

E
 A

N
D

 G
R

O
U

N
D

S
M

O
O

R
S

ID
E

 R
O

A
D

D
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.2
2

4
3

0
9

5
8

.3
1

4
3

6
1

4
0

.3
6

1
9

4
C

H
A

P
E

L
T

O
W

N
 R

O
A

D
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
In

s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
P

P
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t

n
lu

d
0

.6
6

4
2

6
5

4
1

.5
0

4
2

8
1

8
4

.4
2

F
O

R
M

E
R

 P
E

R
S

E
V

E
R

A
N

C
E

 M
IL

L
S

T
A

T
IO

N
 R

O
A

D
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
5

4
2

6
8

5
6

.8
7

4
3

5
7

8
4

.1
2

F
O

R
M

E
R

 G
L

A
S

S
 C

U
T

T
IN

G
 E

S
T

A
B

L
IS

H
M

E
N

T
S

A
Y

E
R

S
 C

L
O

S
E

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

R
e

ta
ili

n
g

D
e

ta
ile

d
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.5
3

4
2

9
8

4
8

.2
9

4
3

5
1

1
6

.2
2

L
E

O
D

IS
 W

O
R

K
S

S
E

R
V

IA
 H

IL
L

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.0
3

4
2

2
2

7
1

.1
9

4
3

5
5

6
5

.0
0

B
A

N
K

 B
O

T
T

O
M

 M
IL

L
S

S
P

R
IN

G
B

A
N

K
 R

O
A

D
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
In

d
u

s
tr

y
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.2
3

4
3

0
3

6
9

.0
0

4
3

3
3

4
2

.0
3

n
lu

d
0

.3
6

4
3

0
7

8
6

.0
1

4
3

3
5

8
1

.8
7

L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 P
L

A
Y

H
O

U
S

E
S

T
 P

E
T

E
R

S
 S

Q
U

A
R

E
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
1

.5
3

4
2

9
0

0
3

.7
6

4
3

3
2

9
4

.4
1

B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 A

N
D

 I
N

D
U

S
T

R
IA

L
 U

N
IT

S
G

O
T

T
S

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
2

4
2

9
4

7
5

.3
9

4
3

4
0

3
4

.2
0

n
lu

d
2

.0
4

4
2

9
3

8
9

.3
3

4
3

3
2

1
4

.9
5

R
IV

E
R

S
ID

E
 C

A
R

 P
A

R
K

 O
F

F
 W

H
IT

E
H

A
L

L
 R

O
A

D
W

H
IT

E
H

A
L

L
 R

O
A

D
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

O
u

tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.1
7

4
3

0
3

1
7

.1
3

4
3

3
7

6
0

.6
1

n
lu

d
0

.1
3

4
3

0
7

0
5

.1
4

4
3

4
2

0
8

.1
7

F
A

C
T

O
R

IE
S

 A
N

D
 W

A
R

E
H

O
U

S
E

S
C

O
N

C
O

R
D

 S
T

R
E

E
T

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
In

d
u

s
tr

y
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.1
9

4
3

0
7

1
2

.1
6

4
3

4
2

3
0

.3
3

F
A

C
T

O
R

IE
S

 A
N

D
 W

A
R

E
H

O
U

S
E

S
C

O
N

C
O

R
D

 S
T

R
E

E
T

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
In

d
u

s
tr

y
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.3
2

4
2

9
5

3
4

.5
5

4
3

2
8

7
1

.5
0

D
E

P
O

T
S

 E
T

C
M

A
R

S
H

A
L

L
 S

T
R

E
E

T
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.1
1

4
2

9
9

5
5

.0
3

4
3

3
6

1
2

.7
8

n
lu

d
0

.5
3

4
3

5
4

1
8

.1
9

4
3

6
2

0
1

.4
2

S
H

E
L

T
E

R
E

D
 H

O
U

S
IN

G
B

A
IL

E
Y

S
 C

O
U

R
T

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
4

4
3

0
3

3
1

.5
6

4
3

3
1

5
1

.8
9

B
W

B
 O

F
F

IC
E

S
B

R
ID

G
E

 E
N

D
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.5
4

4
3

2
0

7
4

.3
4

4
3

5
3

7
0

.1
7

T
R

A
D

E
X

 W
A

R
E

H
O

U
S

E
C

O
N

W
A

Y
 R

O
A

D
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.8
9

4
2

6
2

9
0

.5
9

4
2

8
3

4
5

.5
8

P
R

O
S

P
E

C
T

 M
IL

L
S

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 R
O

A
D

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.6
8

4
4

0
3

9
0

.1
1

4
3

3
6

5
6

.4
5

IN
D

U
S

T
R

IA
L

 U
N

IT
S

B
A

R
W

IC
K

 R
O

A
D

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
0

4
4

0
4

9
5

.0
0

4
4

8
1

5
8

.6
4

T
H

E
 C

A
T

T
L

E
 M

A
R

K
E

T
H

A
L

L
F

IE
L

D
 L

A
N

E
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

R
e

ta
ili

n
g

P
P

 s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t

n
lu

d
2

6
.5

4
4

4
4

8
4

1
.1

6
4

4
6

8
2

8
.3

0
V

A
C

A
N

T
 U

N
IT

S
T

H
O

R
P

 A
R

C
H

 T
R

A
D

IN
G

 E
S

T
A

T
E

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.7
2

4
4

5
2

7
5

.1
3

4
4

6
7

8
1

.4
4

V
A

C
A

N
T

 U
N

IT
S

 A
T

 A
V

E
N

U
E

 C
 E

A
S

T
T

H
O

R
P

 A
R

C
H

 T
R

A
D

IN
G

 E
S

T
A

T
E

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
2

.4
9

4
4

5
5

3
5

.3
1

4
4

6
4

0
8

.4
5

V
A

C
A

N
T

 U
N

IT
S

T
H

O
R

P
 A

R
C

H
 T

R
A

D
IN

G
 E

S
T

A
T

E
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

7

Page 76



W
A

S
T

E
 S

IT
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

IO
N

 R
E

P
O

R
T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

S
O

U
R

C
E

A
R

E
A

_
H

A
X

_
C

O
O

R
D

Y
_

C
O

O
R

D
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

_
1

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
_

2
T

Y
P

E
_

C
O

D
E

L
A

N
D

_
U

S
E

_
C

P
L

G
_

S
T

A
T

U
S

n
lu

d
2

0
.2

7
4

4
5

1
6

6
.2

0
4

4
6

3
6

9
.8

0
V

A
C

A
N

T
 U

N
IT

S
T

H
O

R
P

 A
R

C
H

 T
R

A
D

IN
G

 E
S

T
A

T
E

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
8

.1
6

4
4

4
9

2
1

.6
1

4
4

6
0

4
3

.6
6

V
A

C
A

N
T

 U
N

IT
S

T
H

O
R

P
 A

R
C

H
 T

R
A

D
IN

G
 E

S
T

A
T

E
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.7
8

4
1

8
2

6
8

.5
0

4
4

2
3

7
8

.2
7

W
H

IT
E

 C
R

O
S

S
 W

O
R

K
S

O
T

L
E

Y
 R

O
A

D
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
d

o
o

r 
R

e
c
re

a
ti
o

n
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
2

.1
2

4
2

0
7

0
0

.4
8

4
4

1
5

2
0

.1
1

B
A

N
K

S
F

IE
L

D
 D

Y
E

W
O

R
K

S
O

T
L

E
Y

 L
A

N
E

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
2

0
.1

8
4

2
2

5
4

6
.6

1
4

4
2

2
3

3
.7

5
Y

E
A

D
O

N
 A

IR
P

O
R

T
 D

E
P

O
T

H
A

R
R

O
G

A
T

E
 R

O
A

D
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
5

4
2

0
2

9
5

.4
2

4
4

1
0

6
7

.2
5

K
IR

K
F

IE
L

D
S

 I
N

D
U

S
T

R
IA

L
 E

S
T

A
T

E
K

IR
K

 L
A

N
E

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.7
2

4
2

1
9

4
7

.3
5

4
3

7
4

5
8

.0
4

C
L

A
R

IA
N

T
 S

IT
E

C
A

L
V

E
R

L
E

Y
 L

A
N

E
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
5

4
2

3
1

7
1

.6
3

4
3

7
5

5
3

.3
3

F
O

R
M

E
R

 T
O

T
A

L
F

IN
A

 F
IL

L
IN

G
 S

T
A

T
IO

N
N

E
W

 R
O

A
D

 S
ID

E
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
ta

ili
n

g
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
1

.7
3

4
2

5
7

0
6

.6
4

4
3

8
1

1
6

.3
3

W
IR

A
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 P
A

R
K

R
IN

G
 R

O
A

D
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
4

.3
2

4
2

7
0

7
6

.5
0

4
3

9
0

5
1

.1
3

G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S
O

T
L

E
Y

 R
O

A
D

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
6

4
3

6
0

3
8

.0
0

4
3

4
8

6
3

.8
3

F
O

R
M

E
R

 Q
U

E
S

T
W

O
R

L
D

 S
T

O
R

E
C

R
O

S
S

 G
A

T
E

S
 R

O
A

D
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

ta
ili

n
g

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
0

.2
1

4
3

5
7

0
4

.0
1

4
3

6
2

0
6

.0
0

n
lu

d
0

.3
0

4
2

4
2

3
8

.9
1

4
3

4
4

2
6

.7
3

4
7

1
S

T
A

N
N

IN
G

L
E

Y
 R

O
A

D
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.8
1

4
2

4
9

5
3

.0
0

4
3

4
3

4
9

.0
3

3
7

7
S

T
A

N
N

IN
G

L
E

Y
 R

O
A

D
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
3

.0
6

4
2

5
7

4
1

.5
0

4
3

3
0

0
7

.9
5

S
IL

V
E

R
 R

O
Y

D
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 P
A

R
K

S
IL

V
E

R
 R

O
Y

D
 H

IL
L

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.3
7

4
2

6
8

4
0

.8
9

4
3

3
2

7
2

.3
4

P
E

N
N

IN
E

 I
N

D
U

S
T

R
IA

L
 E

S
T

A
T

E
M

O
D

D
E

R
 P

L
A

C
E

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.1
4

4
2

9
9

9
0

.6
7

4
3

3
2

0
7

.3
0

A
R

C
H

E
S

 9
9

 T
O

 1
0

3
N

E
V

IL
L

E
 S

T
R

E
E

T
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
7

4
2

8
6

9
1

.7
5

4
3

2
4

7
4

.2
8

B
A

R
K

S
T

O
N

 H
O

U
S

E
C

R
O

Y
D

O
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.8
6

4
2

8
9

6
8

.1
1

4
3

0
0

7
0

.2
0

4
3

2
D

E
W

S
B

U
R

Y
 R

O
A

D
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.8
4

4
3

1
0

8
6

.5
6

4
2

8
1

7
5

.5
2

F
O

R
M

E
R

 S
 R

 G
E

N
T

 F
A

C
T

O
R

Y
R

IN
G

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
5

4
3

0
8

1
5

.6
3

4
3

1
1

3
8

.8
3

U
N

IT
S

 6
 A

N
D

 7
 T

U
L

IP
 R

E
T

A
IL

 P
A

R
K

T
U

L
IP

 S
T

R
E

E
T

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

ta
ili

n
g

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
2

.0
0

4
3

1
6

5
8

.1
7

4
3

2
2

3
9

.2
8

F
O

R
M

E
R

 O
IL

 S
T

O
R

A
G

E
 D

E
P

O
T

B
R

ID
G

E
W

A
T

E
R

 R
O

A
D

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.3
1

4
3

3
9

5
3

.7
7

4
3

3
2

0
4

.5
9

C
L

E
A

R
E

D
 H

O
U

S
IN

G
 L

A
N

D
C

A
R

T
M

E
L

L
 D

R
IV

E
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.0
6

4
2

2
4

1
6

.4
9

4
3

4
7

3
7

.0
0

n
lu

d
2

.6
9

4
2

1
6

8
1

.9
4

4
3

5
3

7
3

.0
8

S
U

N
N

Y
B

A
N

K
 M

IL
L

S
T

O
W

N
 S

T
R

E
E

T
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.2
9

4
2

2
4

2
2

.8
1

4
3

5
3

7
3

.5
9

C
A

P
E

 M
IL

L
S

C
O

A
L

 H
IL

L
 L

A
N

E
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.9
6

4
2

2
3

1
8

.8
9

4
3

5
4

3
4

.9
7

B
R

O
O

M
 M

IL
L

S
C

O
A

L
 H

IL
L

 L
A

N
E

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
2

.1
2

4
2

2
1

3
7

.0
0

4
3

5
7

1
5

.7
0

S
P

R
IN

G
F

IE
L

D
 C

O
M

M
E

R
C

IA
L

 C
E

N
T

R
E

B
A

G
L

E
Y

 L
A

N
E

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.5
5

4
2

6
6

8
3

.4
2

4
2

6
8

6
2

.1
3

F
O

R
M

E
R

 J
O

S
E

P
H

 P
R

IE
S

T
L

E
Y

 C
O

L
L

E
G

E
B

R
ID

G
E

 S
T

R
E

E
T

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.1
8

4
3

9
6

6
6

.1
7

4
3

3
8

1
5

.9
8

n
lu

d
0

.1
7

4
3

0
9

8
7

.9
7

4
3

5
9

4
4

.4
5

n
lu

d
0

.1
5

4
3

1
6

4
9

.8
6

4
3

3
9

5
7

.7
8

T
O

R
R

E
 H

O
U

S
E

T
O

R
R

E
 R

O
A

D
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
1

4
2

1
5

8
3

.5
1

4
4

1
0

1
3

.6
0

F
O

R
M

E
R

 E
L

R
A

M
 I

N
T

E
R

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 W

O
R

K
S

M
O

O
R

F
IE

L
D

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
3

4
2

0
5

7
1

.5
5

4
4

5
6

9
4

.8
8

n
lu

d
0

.1
6

4
2

1
0

3
6

.9
2

4
3

3
1

9
6

.8
3

n
lu

d
0

.1
8

4
2

9
2

8
2

.5
0

4
3

3
8

5
1

.8
8

C
O

N
C

O
R

D
 H

O
U

S
E

H
A

N
O

V
E

R
 L

A
N

E
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.1
1

4
2

7
9

8
4

.9
1

4
3

6
1

1
2

.7
7

8
O

T
L

E
Y

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

ta
ili

n
g

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
0

.6
1

4
3

1
0

8
7

.0
9

4
3

4
6

5
4

.3
6

H
A

R
T

W
E

L
L

S
 L

T
D

R
O

S
E

V
IL

L
E

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

ta
ili

n
g

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
0

.0
1

4
2

7
9

2
3

.9
5

4
3

5
9

7
8

.0
8

n
lu

d
0

.0
5

4
2

9
0

3
1

.7
5

4
3

5
4

6
3

.6
3

n
lu

d
0

.0
7

4
3

0
9

0
4

.5
9

4
3

4
4

4
1

.4
0

n
lu

d
0

.7
3

4
3

0
3

5
3

.2
8

4
3

5
3

1
9

.0
9

V
A

C
A

N
T

 U
N

IT
S

 A
T

 S
H

E
E

P
S

C
A

R
 W

O
R

K
S

S
H

E
E

P
S

C
A

R
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 N

O
R

T
H

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.4
8

4
3

0
3

8
9

.8
6

4
3

5
2

8
4

.2
1

V
A

C
A

N
T

 U
N

IT
S

 A
T

 B
U

S
L

IN
G

T
H

O
R

P
E

 M
IL

L
S

J
A

C
K

S
O

N
 R

O
A

D
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.0
8

4
3

0
5

4
8

.6
9

4
3

7
0

3
6

.7
5

F
O

R
M

E
R

 C
H

A
P

E
L

T
O

W
N

 P
O

L
IC

E
 S

T
A

T
IO

N
T

O
W

N
 S

T
R

E
E

T
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.0
8

4
3

2
1

2
1

.0
8

4
3

5
6

4
3

.4
8

V
A

C
A

N
T

 W
A

R
E

H
O

U
S

E
H

O
V

IN
G

H
A

M
 A

V
E

N
U

E
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.6
4

4
3

1
6

3
8

.3
4

4
3

2
1

1
8

.8
9

V
A

C
A

N
T

 L
A

N
D

B
R

ID
G

E
W

A
T

E
R

 R
O

A
D

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.1
3

4
3

2
7

3
2

.7
3

4
3

3
9

3
6

.0
4

4
0

1
Y

O
R

K
 R

O
A

D
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

ta
ili

n
g

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
0

.9
3

4
3

2
3

5
3

.7
8

4
3

3
9

0
1

.8
4

E
A

G
L

E
 I

N
D

U
S

T
R

IA
L

 E
S

T
A

T
E

T
O

R
R

E
 R

O
A

D
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.1
9

4
3

0
9

0
0

.8
0

4
3

4
0

5
3

.0
0

n
lu

d
0

.3
2

4
2

6
1

2
9

.1
1

4
2

7
5

6
1

.1
7

F
O

R
M

E
R

 H
IG

H
W

A
Y

S
 D

E
P

O
T

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

IO
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

C
  

 D
e

re
lic

t
U

ti
lit

ie
s

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
0

.6
5

4
2

8
6

5
9

.9
7

4
3

3
2

7
9

.7
7

F
O

R
M

E
R

 R
E

G
 V

A
R

D
Y

 M
O

T
O

R
 D

E
A

L
E

R
S

H
IP

A
R

M
L

E
Y

 R
O

A
D

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
ta

ili
n

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
7

4
3

3
4

4
8

.0
8

4
3

4
2

3
3

.8
6

F
O

R
M

E
R

 P
O

L
IC

E
 C

O
M

P
O

U
N

D
B

R
A

N
D

E
R

 D
R

IV
E

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.4
0

4
2

6
2

1
4

.1
7

4
3

5
5

4
5

.3
1

V
A

C
A

N
T

 P
U

B
L

IC
 H

O
U

S
E

 A
N

D
 C

L
U

B
B

R
ID

G
E

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

ta
ili

n
g

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
0

.9
2

4
2

2
7

5
2

.1
2

4
3

3
1

6
9

.2
3

L
A

N
D

 A
T

 C
R

A
W

S
H

A
W

 S
C

H
O

O
L

S
Y

C
A

M
O

R
E

 C
H

A
S

E
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.9
1

4
3

5
7

9
7

.1
6

4
3

5
7

0
2

.5
3

F
O

R
M

E
R

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 D
E

P
O

T
Y

O
R

K
 R

O
A

D
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.4
0

4
2

9
7

0
2

.7
8

4
2

7
7

6
4

.9
7

F
O

R
M

E
R

 M
E

T
H

O
D

IS
T

 M
IS

S
IO

N
 C

H
U

R
C

H
M

ID
D

L
E

T
O

N
 P

A
R

K
 G

R
O

V
E

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
lig

io
u

s
 B

u
ild

in
g

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.7
8

4
2

2
6

5
5

.9
7

4
3

3
6

2
2

.5
6

F
O

R
M

E
R

 R
A

IL
W

A
Y

 L
A

N
D

L
O

W
T

O
W

N
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

a
ilw

a
y
s

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
1

.4
4

4
3

0
4

1
4

.3
9

4
3

8
7

1
6

.8
3

B
R

A
C

K
E

N
H

U
R

S
T

 A
G

E
D

 P
E

R
S

O
N

S
 H

O
M

E
S

C
O

T
T

 H
A

L
L

 R
O

A
D

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
In

s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

a
l 
A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.5
1

4
2

9
6

4
0

.3
8

4
3

1
7

5
7

.4
5

S
H

A
F

T
E

S
B

U
R

Y
 H

O
U

S
E

B
E

E
S

T
O

N
 R

O
A

D
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

a
l 
A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.5
0

4
3

6
8

3
9

.1
7

4
3

5
6

3
6

.8
3

C
L

E
A

R
E

D
 S

IT
E

 A
T

 S
W

A
R

C
L

IF
F

E
 G

R
E

E
N

 A
N

D
 B

A
R

W
IC

K
 R

O
A

D
B

A
R

W
IC

K
 R

O
A

D
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.5
5

4
2

8
4

7
7

.6
9

4
3

0
6

3
4

.9
5

P
A

R
K

L
E

E
S

 A
G

E
D

 P
E

R
S

O
N

S
 H

O
M

E
S

A
IN

T
 A

N
T

H
O

N
Y

S
 R

O
A

D
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

a
l 
A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.7
1

4
2

7
0

8
1

.8
8

4
3

3
7

3
6

.5
0

F
O

R
M

E
R

 H
O

P
E

S
 H

O
U

S
IN

G
S

T
A

N
N

IN
G

L
E

Y
 R

O
A

D
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

a
l 
A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.1
0

4
2

6
8

7
4

.0
8

4
3

2
7

6
8

.6
6

U
P

P
E

R
 W

O
R

T
L

E
Y

 P
R

IM
A

R
Y

 S
C

H
O

O
L

A
S

H
L

E
Y

 R
O

A
D

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.0
0

4
4

2
6

3
8

.2
0

4
4

4
2

2
2

.8
7

N
O

R
T

H
W

A
Y

S
 S

C
H

O
O

L
B

R
A

M
H

A
M

 R
O

A
D

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.6
1

4
4

1
8

1
2

.3
6

4
2

7
9

5
7

.7
5

n
lu

d
0

.1
2

4
3

0
7

6
8

.4
2

4
3

4
4

6
2

.3
6

n
lu

d
1

.2
7

4
2

3
4

9
9

.5
2

4
2

9
9

0
9

.8
9

V
A

L
L

E
Y

 M
IL

L
S

W
H

IT
E

H
A

L
L

 R
O

A
D

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.9
5

4
2

4
9

0
6

.3
8

4
3

8
3

9
6

.8
0

W
O

O
D

S
ID

E
 W

O
R

K
S

L
O

W
 L

A
N

E
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
2

.4
5

4
2

6
2

0
9

.7
4

4
3

5
4

7
1

.2
7

F
O

R
M

E
R

 F
A

C
T

O
R

Y
B

R
ID

G
E

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

ta
ili

n
g

N
o

n
e

8

Page 77



W
A

S
T

E
 S

IT
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

IO
N

 R
E

P
O

R
T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

S
O

U
R

C
E

A
R

E
A

_
H

A
X

_
C

O
O

R
D

Y
_

C
O

O
R

D
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

_
1

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
_

2
T

Y
P

E
_

C
O

D
E

L
A

N
D

_
U

S
E

_
C

P
L

G
_

S
T

A
T

U
S

n
lu

d
1

0
.2

0
4

3
4

4
4

9
.5

6
4

3
4

7
6

9
.3

1
F

O
R

M
E

R
 K

IL
L

IN
G

B
E

C
K

 H
O

S
P

IT
A

L
Y

O
R

K
 R

O
A

D
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
In

s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
4

.0
3

4
3

4
2

5
2

.9
5

4
3

4
5

9
9

.5
5

F
O

R
M

E
R

 K
IL

L
IN

G
B

E
C

K
 H

O
S

P
IT

A
L

Y
O

R
K

 R
O

A
D

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
In

s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
W

it
h

in
 a

 z
o

n
e

 a
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l

n
lu

d
0

.3
4

4
3

1
3

6
1

.0
1

4
3

4
6

3
3

.8
3

5
4

D
O

L
L

Y
 L

A
N

E
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

R
e

ta
ili

n
g

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
0

.2
0

4
3

1
6

1
5

.6
9

4
3

1
7

4
0

.4
2

V
A

C
A

N
T

 P
L

O
T

 A
T

 O
L

D
 M

IL
L

 B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 P

A
R

K
B

O
W

C
L

IF
F

E
 R

O
A

D
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
3

.2
3

4
3

6
9

4
3

.5
0

4
3

8
4

2
1

.4
6

B
R

A
M

L
E

Y
 G

R
A

N
G

E
T

H
O

R
N

E
R

 L
A

N
E

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.0
6

4
2

8
0

7
0

.7
6

4
3

4
0

9
9

.7
5

L
E

E
D

S
 C

IT
Y

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 D
E

P
O

T
K

IR
K

S
T

A
L

L
 R

O
A

D
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

U
ti
lit

ie
s

D
e

ta
ile

d
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.3
7

4
3

5
4

9
0

.8
3

4
3

6
3

3
9

.6
1

F
O

R
M

E
R

 G
A

L
A

 S
O

C
IA

L
 C

L
U

B
S

E
A

C
R

O
F

T
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
In

d
o

o
r 

R
e

c
re

a
ti
o

n
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.5
0

4
3

3
8

7
0

.4
2

4
3

7
6

4
4

.4
9

E
L

M
E

T
E

 H
A

L
L

E
L

M
E

T
E

 L
A

N
E

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.1
4

4
3

0
5

2
2

.1
4

4
3

6
9

4
0

.0
0

n
lu

d
0

.3
8

4
2

5
0

4
3

.9
4

4
3

7
5

8
9

.1
6

F
O

R
M

E
R

 N
U

F
F

IE
L

D
 H

O
S

P
IT

A
L

O
U

T
W

O
O

D
 L

A
N

E
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
In

s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.8
5

4
2

1
9

8
2

.5
6

4
2

8
8

0
1

.2
3

F
O

R
M

E
R

 E
G

G
 P

A
C

K
IN

G
 D

E
P

O
T

W
H

IT
E

H
A

L
L

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.5
0

4
2

8
8

9
8

.4
7

4
3

2
9

4
3

.5
7

L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 P
R

IN
T

IN
G

 W
O

R
K

S
1

2
W

H
IT

E
H

A
L

L
 R

O
A

D
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

D
e

ta
ile

d
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.1
1

4
3

0
9

5
0

.0
3

4
3

4
1

3
0

.0
6

n
lu

d
0

.4
6

4
3

1
0

3
6

.9
1

4
3

6
6

6
5

.8
4

T
H

E
 M

A
N

S
IO

N
M

A
N

S
IO

N
 G

A
T

E
 L

A
N

E
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.3
5

4
3

1
0

2
9

.8
9

4
3

6
7

1
8

.5
6

F
O

R
M

E
R

 S
T

A
B

L
E

S
 A

N
D

 W
O

R
K

S
H

O
P

S
G

L
E

D
H

O
W

 P
A

R
K

 D
R

IV
E

C
  

 D
e

re
lic

t
In

s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
1

.4
4

4
3

0
9

7
3

.2
8

4
3

4
5

6
0

.6
7

V
A

C
A

N
T

 C
A

R
 D

E
A

L
E

R
S

H
IP

R
O

S
E

V
IL

L
E

 R
O

A
D

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
R

e
ta

ili
n

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
2

4
3

1
0

1
5

.8
8

4
3

3
7

8
6

.4
4

n
lu

d
0

.8
4

4
2

2
0

5
1

.6
6

4
2

8
5

4
5

.6
6

D
R

A
K

E
S

 M
IL

L
M

O
O

R
 T

O
P

D
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
In

d
u

s
tr

y
P

P
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t

n
lu

d
0

.1
1

4
2

9
7

6
4

.7
8

4
3

3
3

8
8

.0
0

n
lu

d
0

.1
5

4
2

1
4

8
9

.1
4

4
3

4
3

7
9

.7
5

n
lu

d
0

.3
2

4
2

7
6

7
2

.0
5

4
3

1
5

0
2

.3
9

F
O

R
M

E
R

 P
E

T
R

O
L

 F
IL

L
IN

G
 S

T
A

T
IO

N
G

E
L

D
E

R
D

 R
O

A
D

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
ta

ili
n

g
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.7
1

4
2

4
0

3
4

.1
2

4
3

4
3

1
8

.5
2

V
A

C
A

N
T

 S
IT

E
 A

D
J
A

C
E

N
T

 S
A

F
E

W
A

Y
 S

U
P

E
R

S
T

O
R

E
S

W
IN

N
O

W
 R

O
A

D
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
In

d
u

s
tr

y
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
1

.0
5

4
3

1
1

3
7

.9
5

4
3

2
2

2
2

.2
2

C
L

E
A

R
E

D
 S

IT
E

 A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 D
A

T
A

 C
E

N
T

R
E

D
O

N
IS

T
H

O
R

P
E

 S
T

R
E

E
T

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.4
7

4
2

5
4

0
9

.1
6

4
2

8
1

2
3

.2
5

V
A

C
A

N
T

 L
A

N
D

 A
T

 E
P

S
O

M
 C

O
U

R
T

B
R

U
N

T
C

L
IF

F
E

 A
V

E
N

U
E

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.9
8

4
3

2
1

3
2

.1
9

4
3

0
6

4
6

.2
5

C
A

R
 P

A
R

K
 A

T
 C

O
O

P
E

R
 C

A
M

E
R

O
N

 L
T

D
Q

U
E

E
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

D
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

O
u

tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.7
3

4
3

2
0

5
8

.8
1

4
3

0
6

3
4

.6
2

V
A

C
A

N
T

 L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 C
A

R
 P

A
R

K
Q

U
E

E
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

a
ilw

a
y
s

O
u

tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.1
9

4
2

9
5

5
4

.8
6

4
3

2
1

7
0

.3
4

n
lu

d
0

.2
5

4
2

6
5

3
5

.6
9

4
2

8
3

3
2

.9
5

1
8

C
H

U
R

C
H

 S
T

R
E

E
T

D
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.0
5

4
3

1
1

3
1

.6
7

4
3

4
9

7
4

.2
8

n
lu

d
0

.6
1

4
2

4
9

8
1

.6
1

4
2

7
1

4
6

.4
1

C
L

E
A

R
E

D
 S

IT
E

 A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 C
R

A
M

S
C

E
N

E
 D

E
P

O
T

S
C

O
T

T
 L

A
N

E
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.1
9

4
3

2
4

5
1

.6
4

4
3

0
6

5
7

.4
7

S
O

U
T

H
G

A
T

E
 H

O
U

S
E

P
O

N
T

E
F

R
A

C
T

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
1

4
3

2
7

1
2

.7
0

4
3

2
7

1
5

.1
4

n
lu

d
0

.2
7

4
3

2
3

1
1

.0
5

4
3

4
7

8
4

.2
3

F
O

R
M

E
R

 C
O

M
P

T
O

N
 A

R
M

S
 P

U
B

L
IC

 H
O

U
S

E
C

O
M

P
T

O
N

 R
O

A
D

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

R
e

ta
ili

n
g

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
0

.3
3

4
3

0
0

2
5

.3
9

4
3

0
7

1
9

.5
2

V
A

C
A

N
T

 F
A

C
T

O
R

Y
P

A
R

K
S

ID
E

 L
A

N
E

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.5
0

4
2

5
7

7
1

.1
8

4
3

3
5

5
8

.9
1

F
O

R
M

E
R

 G
R

E
E

N
H

IL
L

 N
U

R
S

E
R

IE
S

H
IL

L
 E

N
D

 R
O

A
D

D
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
1

.0
1

4
3

0
7

6
6

.9
7

4
3

4
0

6
8

.9
5

9
R

E
G

E
N

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

ta
ili

n
g

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
0

.3
8

4
4

1
3

3
8

.1
3

4
3

3
1

0
8

.3
9

V
A

C
A

N
T

 L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 R
O

B
E

R
T

S
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 L
T

D
G

R
E

E
N

 L
A

N
E

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
In

d
u

s
tr

y
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.4
1

4
2

9
4

7
7

.3
9

4
3

2
7

5
8

.4
2

L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 M
A

R
S

H
A

L
L

 M
IL

L
M

A
R

S
H

A
L

L
 S

T
R

E
E

T
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

D
e

ta
ile

d
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
1

.1
2

4
2

6
8

4
2

.1
1

4
3

3
6

7
7

.9
7

4
1

 T
O

 4
5

S
T

A
N

N
IN

G
L

E
Y

 R
O

A
D

C
  

 D
e

re
lic

t
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.7
0

4
2

7
0

0
8

.8
9

4
3

3
6

7
9

.1
4

W
IN

K
E

R
 G

R
E

E
N

 M
IL

L
S

S
T

A
N

N
IN

G
L

E
Y

 R
O

A
D

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.4
2

4
2

3
0

1
2

.5
3

4
3

3
5

0
0

.4
5

7
1

H
O

U
G

H
 S

ID
E

 R
O

A
D

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
O

ff
ic

e
s

P
P

 s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t

n
lu

d
2

.2
6

4
2

9
7

6
9

.7
0

4
3

0
0

5
9

.3
0

V
A

C
A

N
T

 L
A

N
D

 O
F

F
 M

IL
L

E
N

IU
M

 W
A

Y
W

E
S

T
L

A
N

D
 R

O
A

D
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
In

d
u

s
tr

y
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.6
6

4
2

5
7

0
2

.2
5

4
3

5
7

3
0

.8
4

4
0

L
E

E
D

S
 A

N
D

 B
R

A
D

F
O

R
D

 R
O

A
D

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
W

it
h

in
 a

 z
o

n
e

 a
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l

n
lu

d
0

.5
3

4
3

1
0

0
9

.9
3

4
3

6
0

2
3

.0
5

C
L

E
A

R
E

D
 S

IT
E

 A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 T
E

L
E

P
H

O
N

E
 E

X
C

H
A

N
G

E
N

E
W

T
O

N
 R

O
A

D
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
O

ff
ic

e
s

D
e

ta
ile

d
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.1
0

4
2

9
1

6
1

.8
0

4
3

3
5

4
8

.9
2

n
lu

d
1

.0
6

4
3

0
7

3
6

.6
4

4
3

2
8

5
1

.7
0

V
A

C
A

N
T

 L
A

N
D

 B
E

T
W

E
E

N
 C

H
A

D
W

IC
K

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 A
N

D
 B

L
A

C
K

 B
U

L
L

 S
T

R
E

E
T

C
H

A
D

W
IC

K
 S

T
R

E
E

T
C

  
 D

e
re

lic
t

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
7

4
3

0
9

2
2

.0
0

4
3

2
6

3
0

.6
1

V
A

C
A

N
T

 W
A

R
E

H
O

U
S

E
 U

N
IT

C
A

R
L

IS
L

E
 R

O
A

D
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.1
8

4
3

1
2

4
4

.7
7

4
3

1
8

2
5

.9
2

n
lu

d
0

.4
7

4
3

1
6

1
3

.0
2

4
3

1
4

8
6

.7
8

F
O

R
M

E
R

 C
A

R
 S

A
L

E
S

 S
IT

E
L

O
W

 R
O

A
D

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
ta

ili
n

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.9
3

4
3

0
9

3
4

.9
7

4
3

2
3

8
5

.5
8

V
A

C
A

N
T

 L
A

N
D

 B
E

T
W

E
E

N
 S

A
Y

N
E

R
 L

A
N

E
 A

N
D

 H
U

N
S

L
E

T
 R

O
A

D
H

U
N

S
L

E
T

 R
O

A
D

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.1
8

4
3

0
5

1
6

.6
9

4
3

2
8

1
2

.4
1

n
lu

d
0

.3
2

4
2

4
8

6
7

.8
3

4
2

8
8

9
1

.6
3

S
IT

E
 O

F
 D

E
A

N
H

U
R

S
T

 I
N

D
U

S
T

R
IA

L
 E

S
T

A
T

E
G

E
L

D
E

R
D

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
4

4
2

1
3

7
7

.3
4

4
3

4
4

6
7

.1
2

n
lu

d
0

.6
7

4
2

2
0

6
1

.4
5

4
3

7
6

1
1

.6
0

V
A

C
A

N
T

 L
A

N
D

 A
N

D
 P

R
E

M
IS

E
S

 A
T

 4
6

L
O

W
 H

A
L

L
 R

O
A

D
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.1
1

4
3

1
3

4
5

.5
8

4
3

2
4

1
8

.2
2

n
lu

d
0

.5
0

4
3

0
7

7
9

.2
8

4
3

2
7

0
5

.8
6

F
O

R
M

E
R

 M
A

L
T

H
O

U
S

E
 A

N
D

 M
IL

L
C

H
A

D
W

IC
K

 S
T

R
E

E
T

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.7
5

4
2

6
7

0
0

.0
2

4
3

3
1

3
9

.5
3

2
8

0
T

O
N

G
 R

O
A

D
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
2

.3
7

4
2

2
0

6
6

.1
4

4
3

6
2

3
1

.6
1

O
IL

G
E

A
R

 T
O

W
L

E
R

 W
O

R
K

S
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

S
 R

O
A

D
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.1
8

4
2

6
9

5
6

.5
9

4
3

5
7

1
2

.1
4

n
lu

d
0

.4
6

4
4

5
1

3
7

.8
9

4
4

6
9

3
7

.5
6

L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 R
O

F
T

A
 H

O
U

S
E

R
U

D
G

A
T

E
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.2
5

4
2

9
5

8
6

.8
3

4
2

5
8

0
0

.2
5

F
O

R
M

E
R

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 D
E

P
O

T
B

R
A

D
F

O
R

D
 R

O
A

D
C

  
 D

e
re

lic
t

U
ti
lit

ie
s

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
0

.1
7

4
3

6
2

6
4

.7
0

4
3

4
3

0
4

.2
7

F
O

R
M

E
R

 P
E

T
R

O
L

 F
IL

L
IN

G
 S

T
A

T
IO

N
S

T
A

T
IO

N
 R

O
A

D
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
ta

ili
n

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
2

4
2

6
5

4
2

.5
3

4
3

6
3

3
5

.6
4

L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 N
O

 6
7

Q
U

E
E

N
S

W
O

O
D

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.6
1

4
3

4
2

6
5

.2
5

4
3

6
3

5
1

.2
2

S
IT

E
 O

F
 1

4
9

 T
O

 1
8

3
K

E
N

T
M

E
R

E
 A

P
P

R
O

A
C

H
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

a
l 
A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
4

4
3

4
2

9
9

.8
5

4
3

6
3

0
3

.6
2

S
IT

E
 O

F
 1

 T
O

 2
5

A
S

K
E

T
 P

L
A

C
E

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

a
l 
A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.1
3

4
3

0
6

8
4

.4
5

4
3

4
6

6
6

.2
5

n
lu

d
3

.6
3

4
3

1
8

2
7

.3
6

4
3

1
9

5
6

.2
0

F
O

R
M

E
R

 T
O

T
A

L
F

IN
A

E
L

F
 D

E
P

O
T

B
R

ID
G

E
W

A
T

E
R

 R
O

A
D

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.6
0

4
3

8
1

2
4

.0
5

4
3

8
5

3
7

.5
6

W
H

IN
M

O
O

R
 G

A
R

A
G

E
Y

O
R

K
 R

O
A

D
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.5
4

4
3

0
2

2
5

.5
2

4
2

6
1

6
4

.3
8

F
O

R
M

E
R

 G
A

S
 D

E
P

O
T

M
O

O
R

 K
N

O
L

L
 L

A
N

E
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
N

o
n

e

9

Page 78



W
A

S
T

E
 S

IT
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

IO
N

 R
E

P
O

R
T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

S
O

U
R

C
E

A
R

E
A

_
H

A
X

_
C

O
O

R
D

Y
_

C
O

O
R

D
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

_
1

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
_

2
T

Y
P

E
_

C
O

D
E

L
A

N
D

_
U

S
E

_
C

P
L

G
_

S
T

A
T

U
S

n
lu

d
0

.2
8

4
3

1
6

9
7

.0
9

4
3

3
5

9
9

.1
0

F
O

R
M

E
R

 L
IB

R
A

R
Y

 1
1

4
Y

O
R

K
 R

O
A

D
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

o
o

r 
R

e
c
re

a
ti
o

n
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.2
0

4
3

1
6

7
2

.0
9

4
3

4
8

6
0

.4
1

S
T

 J
A

M
E

S
 S

 U
N

IV
E

R
S

IT
Y

 H
O

S
P

IT
A

L
B

E
C

K
E

T
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
In

s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.4
7

4
3

1
5

5
2

.1
7

4
3

4
5

7
5

.4
2

S
T

 J
A

M
E

S
 S

 U
N

IV
E

R
S

IT
Y

 H
O

S
P

IT
A

L
H

IL
L

 S
T

R
E

E
T

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
In

s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.7
5

4
3

0
8

7
8

.4
8

4
3

3
7

0
8

.4
8

Q
U

A
R

R
Y

 H
IL

L
 S

IT
E

 A
 R

E
S

ID
U

A
L

E
A

S
T

G
A

T
E

D
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

W
it
h

in
 a

 z
o

n
e

 a
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l

n
lu

d
0

.6
7

4
3

0
8

6
9

.2
7

4
3

3
7

5
9

.0
0

M
E

T
R

O
H

O
L

S
T

 O
F

F
IC

E
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

 S
IT

E
E

A
S

T
G

A
T

E
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
P

P
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t

n
lu

d
0

.6
3

4
3

0
7

5
6

.2
8

4
3

3
7

3
6

.0
0

M
E

T
R

O
H

O
L

S
T

 H
O

T
E

L
 A

N
D

 L
E

IS
U

R
E

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
  

S
IT

E
E

A
S

T
G

A
T

E
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
P

P
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t

n
lu

d
3

2
.2

1
4

3
3

5
4

9
.6

3
4

3
1

0
1

4
.1

1
F

O
R

M
E

R
 S

K
E

L
T

O
N

 G
R

A
N

G
E

 P
O

W
E

R
 S

T
A

T
IO

N
S

K
E

L
T

O
N

 G
R

A
N

G
E

 R
O

A
D

C
  

 D
e

re
lic

t
U

ti
lit

ie
s

A
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
8

.1
3

4
3

3
3

2
8

.9
1

4
3

1
3

6
7

.2
2

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 G

R
ID

 E
L

E
C

T
R

IC
IT

Y
 D

IS
T

R
IB

U
T

IO
N

 F
A

C
IL

IT
Y

S
K

E
L

T
O

N
 G

R
A

N
G

E
 R

O
A

D
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
U

ti
lit

ie
s

A
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
7

.9
7

4
3

4
0

3
7

.1
6

4
3

1
7

2
6

.3
3

L
a

n
d

 a
d

ja
c
e

n
t 

P
o

n
te

fr
a

c
t 

L
a

n
e

 a
n

d
 S

e
w

a
g

e
 W

o
rk

s
P

o
n

te
fr

a
c
t 

L
a

n
e

C
  

 D
e

re
lic

t
U

ti
lit

ie
s

A
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
3

5
.1

9
4

3
4

4
9

2
.8

9
4

3
1

2
3

9
.9

5
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

P
o

n
te

fr
a

c
t 

L
a

n
e

 a
n

d
 J

4
5

 M
1

P
o

n
te

fr
a

c
t 

L
a

n
e

C
  

 D
e

re
lic

t
U

ti
lit

ie
s

A
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
4

6
.4

8
4

3
4

1
2

4
.0

5
4

3
0

6
9

8
.0

9
L

A
N

D
 A

D
J
A

C
E

N
T

 K
N

O
S

T
R

O
P

 S
E

W
A

G
E

 W
O

R
K

S
P

O
N

T
E

F
R

A
C

T
 L

A
N

E
C

  
 D

e
re

lic
t

U
ti
lit

ie
s

A
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
1

3
.4

5
4

3
3

7
0

6
.2

0
4

3
0

3
3

1
.1

7
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

R
iv

e
r 

A
ir
e

K
N

O
W

S
T

H
O

R
P

E
 L

A
N

E
C

  
 D

e
re

lic
t

U
ti
lit

ie
s

A
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
1

.2
4

4
3

1
2

3
3

.0
2

4
3

4
6

5
2

.5
6

8
3

R
O

S
E

V
IL

L
E

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.9
9

4
3

5
6

0
1

.4
5

4
3

6
8

7
8

.9
5

V
A

C
A

N
T

 I
N

D
U

S
T

R
IA

L
 U

N
IT

L
IM

E
W

O
O

D
 R

O
A

D
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.1
2

4
2

6
4

5
4

.3
1

4
3

1
9

1
4

.4
2

n
lu

d
0

.6
5

4
2

6
4

5
9

.5
5

4
3

1
9

5
1

.9
7

L
A

N
D

 B
E

T
W

E
E

N
 L

O
W

E
R

 W
O

R
T

L
E

Y
 R

O
A

D
 A

N
D

 R
IN

G
 R

O
A

D
F

O
R

S
T

E
R

 P
L

A
C

E
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
P

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 L
a

n
d

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 n

o
w

 V
a

c
a

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
0

.1
8

4
3

1
9

7
7

.4
1

4
3

1
2

9
3

.6
7

O
F

F
IC

E
 U

N
IT

 N
O

 1
G

E
O

R
G

E
 M

A
N

N
 W

A
Y

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.8
8

4
3

1
9

1
4

.3
2

4
3

1
3

5
2

.1
6

V
A

C
A

N
T

 P
L

O
T

S
 A

D
J
A

C
E

N
T

 U
N

IT
 1

G
E

O
R

G
E

 M
A

N
N

 W
A

Y
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.4
0

4
3

2
1

1
9

.0
1

4
3

1
2

1
1

.7
5

V
A

C
A

N
T

 P
L

O
T

 T
O

 R
E

A
R

 O
F

 U
N

IT
S

 2
 A

N
D

 4
G

E
O

R
G

E
 M

A
N

N
 R

O
A

D
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
2

.1
2

4
2

1
8

1
3

.8
0

4
4

2
4

4
4

.6
6

F
O

R
M

E
R

 B
O

R
R

O
W

 P
IT

W
A

R
R

E
N

 H
O

U
S

E
 L

A
N

E
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
6

.9
8

4
2

1
9

9
9

.0
8

4
4

2
3

4
8

.3
4

F
O

R
M

E
R

 B
O

R
R

O
W

 P
IT

W
A

R
R

E
N

 H
O

U
S

E
 L

A
N

E
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
M

in
e

ra
l 
W

o
rk

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 Q
u

a
rr

ie
s

O
u

tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
1

.8
9

4
3

1
3

8
2

.9
2

4
3

4
4

6
8

.8
1

L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 S
T

 J
A

M
E

S
S

 H
O

S
P

IT
A

L
 B

E
C

K
E

T
T

 W
IN

G
A

L
M

A
 S

T
R

E
E

T
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.7
8

4
2

8
8

2
2

.8
6

4
3

2
8

2
6

.5
8

F
O

R
M

E
R

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 D
E

P
O

T
 A

T
 L

O
R

D
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 A

N
D

 S
P

R
IN

G
W

E
L

L
 S

T
R

E
E

T
L

O
R

D
 S

T
R

E
E

T
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.3
8

4
2

8
7

5
3

.0
3

4
3

2
7

8
6

.2
0

C
A

R
 S

H
O

W
R

O
O

M
 W

O
R

K
S

H
O

P
 A

N
D

 R
E

T
A

IL
 P

R
E

M
IS

E
S

S
P

E
N

C
E

 L
A

N
E

D
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
R

e
ta

ili
n

g
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
3

.9
5

4
3

2
9

0
7

.9
7

4
2

9
8

3
0

.3
1

A
R

L
A

 F
O

O
D

S
 C

O
L

D
 S

T
O

R
E

 A
N

D
 D

IS
T

R
IB

U
T

IO
N

 C
E

N
T

R
E

L
E

O
D

IS
 W

A
Y

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
7

.8
4

4
3

3
2

6
3

.0
8

4
2

9
8

6
5

.3
1

A
R

L
A

 F
O

O
D

S
 D

A
IR

Y
 P

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 F
A

C
IL

IT
Y

P
O

N
T

E
F

R
A

C
T

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
2

.3
6

4
3

2
9

6
4

.8
4

4
3

1
6

7
6

.4
1

L
A

N
D

 B
E

T
W

E
E

N
 K

N
O

W
S

T
H

O
R

P
E

 W
A

Y
 A

N
D

 F
O

R
M

E
R

 F
O

U
N

D
R

Y
K

N
O

W
S

T
H

O
R

P
E

 W
A

Y
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
In

d
u

s
tr

y
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
2

.1
2

4
3

3
1

4
9

.3
6

4
3

1
7

2
4

.8
8

L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 V
A

W
 W

O
R

K
S

K
N

O
W

S
T

H
O

R
P

E
 R

O
A

D
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.0
4

4
2

4
4

0
7

.9
4

4
2

8
2

6
4

.0
9

O
F

F
 G

E
L

D
E

R
D

 R
O

A
D

 G
IL

D
E

R
S

O
M

E
G

E
L

D
E

R
D

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
2

.9
9

4
2

7
7

3
1

.3
9

4
3

1
4

8
3

.8
4

L
A

N
D

 A
T

 G
E

L
D

E
R

D
 R

O
A

D
G

E
L

D
E

R
D

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.4
3

4
2

7
7

9
8

.1
1

4
3

1
3

6
3

.5
1

L
A

N
D

 A
T

 L
E

E
D

S
 C

IT
Y

 W
E

S
T

 B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 P

A
R

K
 P

H
 2

T
H

E
 B

O
U

L
E

V
A

R
D

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
U

ti
lit

ie
s

D
e

ta
ile

d
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
1

.8
0

4
2

7
6

5
6

.6
2

4
3

1
3

7
0

.7
0

V
A

C
A

N
T

 L
A

N
D

 A
T

 C
IT

Y
 W

E
S

T
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 P
A

R
K

T
H

E
 B

O
U

L
E

V
A

R
D

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
U

ti
lit

ie
s

D
e

ta
ile

d
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
1

.6
3

4
1

9
6

6
8

.5
0

4
3

3
6

6
2

.3
0

S
IT

E
 O

F
 F

O
R

M
E

R
 G

E
C

 F
O

U
N

D
R

Y
D

IC
K

 L
A

N
E

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.0
7

4
1

9
5

7
2

.0
9

4
3

3
6

6
6

.1
5

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 S

IT
E

 A
T

 M
ID

 P
O

IN
T

 A
N

D
 D

IC
K

 L
A

N
E

M
ID

 P
O

IN
T

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
In

d
u

s
tr

y
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
1

.1
5

4
3

2
4

0
3

.8
2

4
3

1
6

2
3

.4
2

L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 K
N

O
S

T
R

O
P

 S
E

W
A

G
E

 W
O

R
K

S
K

N
O

W
S

T
H

O
R

P
E

 L
A

N
E

C
  

 D
e

re
lic

t
L

a
n

d
fi
ll 

W
a

s
te

 D
is

p
o

s
a

l
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
3

.2
3

4
3

2
2

1
7

.6
9

4
3

1
6

5
7

.6
3

R
A

IL
W

A
Y

 B
A

L
L

A
S

T
 T

IP
K

N
O

W
S

T
H

O
R

P
E

 L
A

N
E

C
  

 D
e

re
lic

t
L

a
n

d
fi
ll 

W
a

s
te

 D
is

p
o

s
a

l
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
1

.2
2

4
3

2
3

0
5

.0
1

4
3

1
7

7
5

.6
9

L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 T
IL

C
O

N
 W

O
R

K
S

K
N

O
W

S
T

H
O

R
P

E
 L

A
N

E
C

  
 D

e
re

lic
t

L
a

n
d

fi
ll 

W
a

s
te

 D
is

p
o

s
a

l
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
1

.8
5

4
3

2
3

8
0

.7
5

4
3

1
7

3
7

.2
3

R
A

IL
W

A
Y

 B
A

L
L

A
S

T
 T

IP
K

N
O

W
S

T
H

O
R

P
E

 L
A

N
E

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

L
a

n
d

fi
ll 

W
a

s
te

 D
is

p
o

s
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
2

4
3

1
7

8
6

.2
5

4
3

2
5

0
3

.3
1

S
IT

E
 O

F
 S

T
 H

IL
D

A
S

 P
R

IM
A

R
Y

 S
C

H
O

O
L

C
R

O
S

S
 G

R
E

E
N

 L
A

N
E

C
  

 D
e

re
lic

t
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
1

.1
3

4
2

8
2

8
1

.8
6

4
3

1
9

6
1

.9
1

P
IG

G
E

R
IE

S
 I

N
D

U
S

T
R

IA
L

 A
R

E
A

B
R

O
W

N
 L

A
N

E
 W

E
S

T
C

  
 D

e
re

lic
t

In
d

u
s
tr

y
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
1

.6
1

4
2

8
1

9
4

.4
5

4
3

1
8

4
6

.0
5

IN
D

U
S

T
R

IA
L

 U
N

IT
S

 A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 S
C

A
T

T
E

R
G

O
O

D
 A

N
D

 J
O

H
N

S
O

N
 W

O
R

K
S

L
O

W
F

IE
L

D
S

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
5

.0
7

4
2

4
6

1
2

.6
1

4
3

6
7

0
8

.4
8

D
A

N
A

 S
P

IC
E

R
 W

O
R

K
S

 S
IT

E
 B

A
B

B
E

Y
 R

O
A

D
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

0
.8

5
4

2
4

9
2

4
.8

0
4

3
6

6
8

5
.4

1
F

O
R

M
E

R
 D

A
N

A
 S

P
IC

E
R

 W
O

R
K

S
 S

IT
E

 A
A

B
B

E
Y

 R
O

A
D

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
8

4
2

0
3

7
3

.1
3

4
4

1
0

7
7

.4
5

K
IR

K
 L

A
N

E
 M

IL
L

S
K

IR
K

 L
A

N
E

D
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.1
2

4
3

4
4

6
0

.9
5

4
2

7
9

9
6

.5
3

n
lu

d
0

.2
2

4
2

9
9

2
9

.6
4

4
3

2
6

8
7

.5
2

n
lu

d
0

.3
2

4
2

9
9

7
0

.7
8

4
3

2
6

3
5

.8
7

O
F

F
IC

E
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 B

 S
W

E
E

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

 S
IT

E
V

IC
T

O
R

IA
 R

O
A

D
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.5
1

4
2

9
8

9
5

.0
9

4
3

2
5

5
2

.3
0

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 O
F

F
IC

E
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

 S
IT

E
S

W
E

E
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.3
3

4
2

9
9

6
8

.4
3

4
3

2
5

5
6

.3
3

H
O

T
E

L
 E

L
E

M
E

N
T

 S
W

E
E

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

 S
IT

E
M

E
A

D
O

W
 R

O
A

D
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

a
l 
A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.0
6

4
2

9
9

0
3

.4
6

4
3

2
6

4
8

.9
8

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
IA

L
 E

L
E

M
E

N
T

 S
W

E
E

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

 S
IT

E
S

T
 B

A
R

N
A

B
A

S
 R

O
A

D
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
8

4
2

8
5

7
3

.0
8

4
3

1
3

7
5

.4
1

M
C

D
O

N
A

L
D

S
 R

E
S

T
A

U
R

A
N

T
E

L
L

A
N

D
 R

O
A

D
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

ta
ili

n
g

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
1

.2
2

4
2

8
6

4
2

.3
7

4
3

1
3

8
2

.2
5

F
O

R
M

E
R

 C
C

L
 S

IT
E

 E
L

L
A

N
D

 R
O

A
D

 A
N

D
 H

O
X

T
O

N
 M

O
U

N
T

E
L

L
A

N
D

 R
O

A
D

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
In

d
u

s
tr

y
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
1

.4
6

4
4

2
1

7
5

.1
6

4
2

7
9

9
1

.5
9

F
O

R
M

E
R

 C
O

A
L

 Y
A

R
D

P
A

R
K

 L
A

N
E

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
In

d
u

s
tr

y
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.3
3

4
4

2
2

0
2

.3
1

4
2

8
0

5
9

.7
2

F
O

R
M

E
R

 C
O

L
IE

R
Y

 O
F

F
IC

E
S

P
A

R
K

 L
A

N
E

D
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
O

ff
ic

e
s

P
P

 s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t

n
lu

d
0

.3
6

4
4

2
2

7
6

.8
9

4
2

8
0

6
2

.9
0

F
O

R
M

E
R

 C
O

A
L

 B
O

A
R

D
 O

F
F

IC
E

S
P

A
R

K
 L

A
N

E
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

O
ff

ic
e

s
P

P
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t

n
lu

d
4

.5
8

4
2

8
8

6
6

.8
1

4
3

6
2

6
6

.8
8

F
O

R
M

E
R

 Y
O

R
K

S
H

IR
E

 S
W

IT
C

H
G

E
A

R
 F

A
C

T
O

R
Y

M
E

A
N

W
O

O
D

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
2

.2
6

4
2

5
4

3
7

.7
4

4
3

8
9

8
3

.8
3

C
O

O
K

R
ID

G
E

 H
O

S
P

IT
A

L
H

O
S

P
IT

A
L

 L
A

N
E

D
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
In

s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
2

3
.1

2
4

1
7

4
7

3
.7

5
4

4
2

9
3

9
.7

9
H

IG
H

 R
O

Y
D

S
 H

O
S

P
IT

A
L

 N
E

A
R

 M
E

N
S

T
O

N
B

R
A

D
F

O
R

D
 R

O
A

D
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
In

s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
1

.5
3

4
2

4
9

7
0

.5
5

4
2

7
4

4
4

.3
4

C
L

IF
F

E
 W

O
R

K
S

 B
R

U
N

T
C

L
IF

F
E

 R
O

A
D

B
R

U
N

T
C

L
IF

F
E

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
5

.2
1

4
3

0
8

0
4

.8
0

4
2

6
2

2
5

.7
2

F
O

R
M

E
R

 A
R

D
S

L
E

Y
 S

ID
IN

G
S

 N
O

R
T

H
S

T
A

T
IO

N
 L

A
N

E
C

  
 D

e
re

lic
t

R
a

ilw
a

y
s

O
u

tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
7

.2
6

4
3

3
4

1
0

.3
2

4
3

3
2

4
2

.9
2

F
O

R
M

E
R

 W
A

T
E

R
L

O
O

 S
ID

IN
G

S
H

A
L

T
O

N
 M

O
O

R
 A

V
E

N
U

E
C

  
 D

e
re

lic
t

R
a

ilw
a

y
s

A
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
6

.2
5

4
3

1
0

8
9

.0
3

4
3

6
5

5
2

.8
0

F
O

R
M

E
R

 C
H

A
P

E
L

 A
L

L
E

R
T

O
N

 H
O

S
P

IT
A

L
H

A
R

E
H

IL
L

S
 L

A
N

E
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
5

.1
8

4
3

1
7

1
0

.0
2

4
2

6
6

5
0

.5
9

F
O

R
M

E
R

 B
R

IC
K

 W
O

R
K

S
L

IN
G

W
E

L
L

 G
A

T
E

 L
A

N
E

C
  

 D
e

re
lic

t
In

d
u

s
tr

y
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
0

.3
3

4
3

0
8

8
5

.5
0

4
3

3
1

1
8

.4
1

T
A

Y
 H

O
M

E
S

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
E

A
S

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
3

.2
0

4
3

6
8

3
6

.3
9

4
3

6
2

2
3

.3
1

S
W

A
R

C
L

IF
F

E
 P

F
I

W
H

IN
M

O
O

R
 W

A
Y

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.0
5

4
3

6
6

8
8

.5
5

4
3

6
2

1
6

.3
9

S
W

A
R

C
L

IF
F

E
 P

F
I

W
H

IN
M

O
O

R
 W

A
Y

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.0
8

4
3

6
9

0
0

.3
8

4
3

6
3

3
0

.0
2

S
W

A
R

C
L

IF
F

E
 P

F
I

W
H

IN
M

O
O

R
 W

A
Y

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.1
2

4
3

0
4

6
7

.8
6

4
3

3
8

9
8

.9
5

n
lu

d
0

.0
5

4
2

6
2

9
6

.7
8

4
2

7
4

5
3

.5
2

1
0

Page 79



W
A

S
T

E
 S

IT
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

IO
N

 R
E

P
O

R
T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

S
O

U
R

C
E

A
R

E
A

_
H

A
X

_
C

O
O

R
D

Y
_

C
O

O
R

D
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

_
1

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
_

2
T

Y
P

E
_

C
O

D
E

L
A

N
D

_
U

S
E

_
C

P
L

G
_

S
T

A
T

U
S

n
lu

d
0

.8
2

4
2

6
2

8
5

.5
0

4
2

7
3

9
1

.8
5

IN
D

U
S

T
R

IA
L

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S
 A

T
 F

O
U

N
T

A
IN

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 A
N

D
 C

H
A

R
T

IS
T

S
 W

A
Y

F
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 S

T
R

E
E

T
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
In

d
u

s
tr

y
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.2
0

4
2

6
8

4
3

.6
3

4
3

3
7

5
8

.0
3

n
lu

d
0

.5
0

4
2

8
0

6
0

.4
5

4
3

4
7

3
8

.8
0

2
1

4
 T

O
 2

2
4

C
A

R
D

IG
A

N
 R

O
A

D
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.0
9

4
2

6
4

0
7

.0
5

4
2

8
4

3
1

.7
2

n
lu

d
0

.0
9

4
2

7
2

5
2

.5
4

4
3

4
6

4
9

.6
6

n
lu

d
0

.3
8

4
2

9
9

3
4

.8
4

4
3

5
0

9
5

.8
8

C
L

A
R

O
 H

O
U

S
E

S
E

R
V

IA
 R

O
A

D
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
In

d
u

s
tr

y
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.0
9

4
4

0
7

0
1

.6
2

4
4

8
7

9
4

.2
6

n
lu

d
0

.5
6

4
2

8
2

0
5

.4
7

4
2

6
5

4
4

.4
1

P
A

L
L

E
T

 S
T

O
R

A
G

E
 D

E
P

O
T

S
T

A
T

IO
N

 L
A

N
E

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
3

4
2

5
0

2
1

.0
2

4
2

7
1

6
6

.0
2

V
A

C
A

N
T

 L
A

N
D

 A
T

 C
R

A
M

S
C

E
N

E
 L

T
D

S
C

O
T

T
 L

A
N

E
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.1
7

4
2

7
5

8
4

.2
9

4
3

1
5

1
3

.9
5

n
lu

d
0

.7
1

4
3

0
9

6
7

.7
0

4
3

0
6

6
6

.1
7

S
IT

E
 O

F
 E

N
T

E
R

P
R

IS
E

 H
O

U
S

E
B

E
L

L
E

 I
S

L
E

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
7

4
3

0
1

5
1

.8
1

4
3

1
7

7
6

.9
2

6
 T

O
 8

A
D

M
IR

A
L

 S
T

R
E

E
T

D
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
In

d
u

s
tr

y
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.4
1

4
2

7
2

2
8

.5
7

4
3

5
0

0
6

.2
8

B
U

R
L

E
Y

 H
IL

L
 I

N
D

U
S

T
R

IA
L

 E
S

T
A

T
E

B
U

R
L

E
Y

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.1
9

4
2

9
6

0
9

.0
0

4
3

2
8

4
4

.9
7

IN
D

U
S

T
R

IA
L

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S
 O

F
F

 F
O

U
N

D
R

Y
 S

T
R

E
E

T
F

O
U

N
D

R
Y

 S
T

R
E

E
T

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
2

4
4

1
2

1
1

.8
0

4
3

3
7

9
8

.7
0

D
E

P
O

T
 S

IT
E

L
O

T
H

E
R

T
O

N
 W

A
Y

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.4
1

4
2

4
4

7
0

.0
5

4
2

8
4

9
4

.2
0

S
IT

E
 O

F
 W

A
R

E
H

O
U

S
E

S
 A

T
 T

R
E

E
F

IE
L

D
 I

N
D

U
S

T
R

IA
L

 E
S

T
A

T
E

G
E

L
D

E
R

D
 R

O
A

D
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
2

.2
6

4
2

6
7

2
9

.9
5

4
3

0
5

4
5

.8
1

L
A

N
D

 T
O

 R
E

A
R

 O
F

 N
IN

A
 W

O
R

K
S

G
E

L
D

E
R

D
 R

O
A

D
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.5
2

4
2

5
6

4
7

.0
8

4
3

1
5

1
2

.6
7

W
H

IT
E

H
A

L
L

 R
O

A
D

 I
N

D
U

S
T

R
IA

L
 E

S
T

A
T

E
A

S
H

F
IE

L
D

 W
A

Y
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
2

4
2

8
0

3
7

.4
8

4
3

6
1

2
3

.6
9

n
lu

d
0

.2
0

4
2

8
0

7
3

.9
5

4
3

6
1

1
1

.3
6

n
lu

d
0

.2
9

4
2

9
3

1
0

.1
0

4
3

3
1

1
8

.8
3

R
IV

E
R

S
ID

E
 C

A
R

 P
A

R
K

W
H

IT
E

H
A

L
L

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
7

4
2

9
4

9
8

.7
5

4
3

3
2

3
7

.5
4

R
IV

E
R

S
ID

E
 C

A
R

 P
A

R
K

W
H

IT
E

H
A

L
L

 R
O

A
D

D
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

O
u

tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
2

.4
9

4
2

5
3

6
2

.3
6

4
3

8
8

5
8

.0
0

C
O

O
K

R
ID

G
E

 H
O

S
P

IT
A

L
S

IL
K

 M
IL

L
 W

A
Y

D
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
In

s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.2
1

4
3

0
7

7
4

.8
6

4
3

2
2

7
1

.8
3

n
lu

d
0

.1
7

4
3

0
7

5
3

.6
4

4
3

2
2

5
4

.9
4

n
lu

d
0

.8
9

4
3

0
9

8
8

.3
4

4
3

2
4

0
1

.7
0

V
A

C
A

N
T

 W
A

R
E

H
O

U
S

E
S

A
Y

N
E

R
 L

A
N

E
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
d

o
o

r 
R

e
c
re

a
ti
o

n
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.1
3

4
3

0
3

4
0

.7
5

4
3

2
3

2
8

.3
8

F
O

R
M

E
R

 C
A

R
 C

O
M

P
O

U
N

D
IV

O
R

Y
 S

T
R

E
E

T
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
6

4
3

0
4

7
2

.2
9

4
3

2
3

2
0

.4
0

U
N

IT
 1

IV
O

R
Y

 S
T

R
E

E
T

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.3
0

4
3

1
3

1
0

.2
5

4
3

2
8

9
7

.7
8

1
2

9
E

A
S

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.0
5

4
3

1
3

1
5

.9
7

4
3

2
8

4
4

.7
6

n
lu

d
0

.1
2

4
3

1
1

3
6

.1
3

4
3

3
4

7
6

.6
4

n
lu

d
0

.4
6

4
3

1
0

8
0

.1
6

4
3

3
0

8
3

.1
1

9
7

E
A

S
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
P

P
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t

n
lu

d
0

.1
4

4
3

0
7

1
1

.6
1

4
3

4
2

5
9

.4
4

n
lu

d
0

.4
7

4
2

8
3

8
5

.3
9

4
3

5
6

8
3

.8
3

4
1

H
E

A
D

IN
G

L
E

Y
 L

A
N

E
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.0
5

4
2

8
4

8
3

.3
1

4
3

4
3

5
5

.2
7

n
lu

d
0

.0
6

4
3

0
2

5
7

.6
4

4
3

4
1

2
5

.3
3

n
lu

d
0

.0
2

4
3

0
0

9
6

.2
3

4
3

4
2

3
8

.2
2

n
lu

d
0

.0
6

4
3

0
2

9
0

.8
3

4
3

4
0

3
9

.9
4

n
lu

d
0

.1
8

4
3

0
4

5
2

.1
4

4
3

3
7

9
2

.1
4

n
lu

d
0

.3
1

4
3

0
4

5
2

.8
9

4
3

3
3

1
4

.8
4

C
H

A
N

C
E

L
L

O
R

 C
O

U
R

T
T

H
E

 C
A

L
L

S
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.0
7

4
2

9
9

0
9

.5
5

4
3

3
6

4
0

.6
6

n
lu

d
0

.3
2

4
2

9
8

7
3

.2
0

4
3

3
9

6
5

.5
2

6
 T

O
 1

4
G

R
E

A
T

 G
E

O
R

G
E

 S
T

R
E

E
T

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

O
ff

ic
e

s
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.0
2

4
2

9
6

9
8

.5
0

4
3

3
7

4
5

.2
0

n
lu

d
0

.0
3

4
2

9
6

9
1

.5
0

4
3

3
6

9
5

.0
0

n
lu

d
0

.1
0

4
3

0
9

1
9

.6
7

4
3

5
5

0
3

.8
6

n
lu

d
1

.3
4

4
2

4
9

4
1

.2
5

4
2

8
0

5
9

.7
3

F
O

R
M

E
R

 H
O

R
S

E
L

L
 F

A
C

T
O

R
Y

N
E

P
S

H
A

W
 L

A
N

E
 S

O
U

T
H

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.8
1

4
2

1
9

7
5

.7
6

4
2

8
2

6
1

.5
5

S
T

A
T

IO
N

 W
O

R
K

S
H

O
D

G
S

O
N

 L
A

N
E

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.1
3

4
2

9
7

1
4

.1
3

4
3

3
5

7
8

.4
7

n
lu

d
1

.1
3

4
2

9
5

9
0

.5
6

4
3

2
9

9
7

.1
9

T
O

W
E

R
 W

O
R

K
S

G
L

O
B

E
 R

O
A

D
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
W

it
h

in
 a

 z
o

n
e

 a
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l

n
lu

d
0

.4
9

4
2

9
6

2
8

.3
5

4
2

9
9

9
4

.1
9

U
N

IT
 6

M
IL

L
E

N
N

IU
M

 W
A

Y
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.8
4

4
3

2
7

5
3

.5
0

4
3

0
9

5
4

.7
8

F
O

R
M

E
R

 P
A

R
K

S
ID

E
 F

L
E

X
IB

L
E

 P
A

C
K

A
G

IN
G

W
A

T
E

R
S

ID
E

 R
O

A
D

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.3
3

4
2

5
3

1
4

.1
3

4
3

4
7

1
3

.8
1

H
IL

L
 T

O
P

 C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L
 C

E
N

T
R

E
H

O
U

G
H

L
E

Y
 L

A
N

E
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.0
8

4
2

7
0

7
9

.7
5

4
3

1
5

2
1

.1
2

n
lu

d
0

.1
1

4
2

7
1

5
5

.4
5

4
3

1
4

8
5

.8
2

n
lu

d
0

.0
7

4
2

7
1

3
7

.0
0

4
3

1
5

5
7

.8
2

n
lu

d
0

.3
8

4
2

9
4

4
3

.5
9

4
3

2
8

6
2

.9
7

1
2

7
 T

O
 1

2
9

W
A

T
E

R
 L

A
N

E
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.0
2

4
2

6
7

6
3

.7
9

4
3

2
9

7
3

.7
5

n
lu

d
0

.1
3

4
2

5
8

3
1

.4
1

4
3

4
1

4
4

.2
5

n
lu

d
0

.4
8

4
2

7
7

8
2

.1
6

4
3

3
7

4
3

.8
4

1
6

2
A

R
M

L
E

Y
 R

O
A

D
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.1
0

4
2

8
9

8
7

.5
3

4
3

2
7

8
6

.4
7

n
lu

d
0

.2
3

4
2

9
3

5
2

.8
6

4
3

2
7

9
2

.2
0

n
lu

d
0

.4
5

4
2

9
4

8
9

.2
0

4
3

2
6

1
1

.9
2

2
0

S
W

E
E

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 W

E
S

T
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.0
5

4
2

8
7

7
4

.3
6

4
3

2
2

3
8

.0
0

n
lu

d
0

.3
8

4
2

9
7

3
6

.2
8

4
3

2
6

6
1

.8
1

2
2

M
A

N
O

R
 R

O
A

D
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.0
8

4
2

9
9

9
7

.9
8

4
3

0
4

1
0

.8
4

n
lu

d
0

.0
3

4
2

0
8

1
1

.0
2

4
3

9
7

4
9

.5
2

n
lu

d
0

.4
4

4
2

0
5

5
3

.7
2

4
4

0
3

0
2

.1
4

R
A

W
D

O
N

 H
O

U
S

E
G

R
E

E
N

 L
A

N
E

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.4
4

4
3

4
3

3
3

.3
6

4
3

4
4

9
1

.8
1

F
O

R
M

E
R

 T
IM

E
P

L
E

X
 L

T
D

K
IL

L
IN

G
B

E
C

K
 D

R
IV

E
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
7

4
2

3
7

7
7

.9
5

4
3

4
5

2
6

.5
5

5
3

1
 T

O
 5

3
3

S
T

A
N

N
IN

G
L

E
Y

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

1
1

Page 80



W
A

S
T

E
 S

IT
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

IO
N

 R
E

P
O

R
T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

S
O

U
R

C
E

A
R

E
A

_
H

A
X

_
C

O
O

R
D

Y
_

C
O

O
R

D
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

_
1

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
_

2
T

Y
P

E
_

C
O

D
E

L
A

N
D

_
U

S
E

_
C

P
L

G
_

S
T

A
T

U
S

n
lu

d
0

.9
1

4
2

4
8

3
8

.2
7

4
3

5
6

9
1

.6
1

S
T

 C
A

T
H

E
R

IN
E

S
 M

IL
L

B
R

O
A

D
 L

A
N

E
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
1

4
2

3
1

3
1

.6
4

4
3

4
8

8
2

.4
8

n
lu

d
0

.0
5

4
2

8
2

0
4

.0
8

4
3

1
9

4
6

.9
7

n
lu

d
0

.4
1

4
2

8
4

4
4

.6
0

4
3

1
9

7
3

.8
0

2
0

B
R

O
W

N
 L

A
N

E
 W

E
S

T
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.0
2

4
3

7
1

1
6

.3
9

4
3

7
3

9
0

.3
0

n
lu

d
0

.0
2

4
3

7
0

7
5

.2
5

4
3

7
3

9
3

.7
7

n
lu

d
0

.0
8

4
1

7
9

7
7

.9
2

4
4

4
4

7
6

.9
5

n
lu

d
1

.4
6

4
2

3
8

2
2

.6
6

4
4

5
5

1
0

.2
3

P
O

O
L

 M
IL

L
S

 I
N

D
U

S
T

R
IA

L
 E

S
T

A
T

E
O

T
L

E
Y

 R
O

A
D

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.3
8

4
1

9
9

8
6

.6
7

4
4

5
8

7
9

.1
3

B
R

ID
G

E
 E

N
D

 A
U

C
T

IO
N

 M
A

R
T

B
IL

L
A

M
S

 H
IL

L
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

R
e

ta
ili

n
g

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
0

.9
2

4
2

2
5

8
4

.4
1

4
3

2
2

7
1

.3
6

A
L

M
A

 W
O

R
K

S
R

O
K

E
R

 L
A

N
E

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.0
4

4
2

2
9

6
5

.1
6

4
3

3
2

9
6

.8
1

n
lu

d
0

.4
7

4
2

1
8

6
9

.0
9

4
3

2
6

5
3

.4
8

F
O

R
M

E
R

 R
A

IL
W

A
Y

 C
U

T
T

IN
G

S
T

A
T

IO
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

C
  

 D
e

re
lic

t
R

a
ilw

a
y
s

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
1

.3
9

4
2

5
3

5
9

.6
4

4
2

8
2

5
4

.0
6

F
O

R
M

E
R

 S
T

R
E

A
M

L
IN

E
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
S

B
R

U
N

T
C

L
IF

F
E

 A
V

E
N

U
E

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.0
2

4
2

9
6

0
1

.2
8

4
3

2
7

7
9

.6
9

n
lu

d
0

.2
0

4
2

7
5

7
5

.8
0

4
2

9
8

8
2

.4
1

n
lu

d
0

.4
3

4
4

1
1

8
0

.3
3

4
3

3
8

7
0

.6
4

T
R

A
N

S
O

R
G

A
N

IC
S

 L
T

D
L

O
T

H
E

R
T

O
N

 W
A

Y
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
4

4
2

7
5

3
1

.4
8

4
3

1
5

6
0

.9
7

P
E

R
E

G
R

IN
E

 H
O

U
S

E
G

E
L

D
E

R
D

 C
L

O
S

E
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.7
6

4
2

7
4

4
1

.7
0

4
3

1
4

6
1

.5
8

F
O

R
M

E
R

 M
O

T
O

R
 D

E
A

L
E

R
S

H
IP

 P
R

E
M

IS
E

S
G

E
L

D
E

R
D

 R
O

A
D

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

R
e

ta
ili

n
g

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
0

.0
7

4
2

8
1

8
1

.0
5

4
3

2
1

2
2

.6
7

n
lu

d
0

.0
6

4
2

7
8

7
7

.8
6

4
3

0
7

9
1

.4
4

n
lu

d
0

.0
7

4
2

8
0

7
9

.8
0

4
3

0
2

2
7

.1
3

n
lu

d
0

.1
3

4
2

9
9

8
0

.6
3

4
3

0
8

1
3

.7
5

n
lu

d
0

.0
3

4
3

0
8

5
9

.1
6

4
3

0
9

8
0

.9
1

n
lu

d
0

.0
4

4
3

0
8

2
9

.8
0

4
3

1
3

5
4

.8
9

n
lu

d
0

.1
3

4
3

1
0

7
7

.7
0

4
3

2
1

2
4

.3
8

n
lu

d
0

.0
5

4
3

0
1

2
0

.8
6

4
3

5
4

1
6

.4
1

n
lu

d
0

.0
7

4
3

0
9

2
6

.1
9

4
3

4
7

4
0

.3
8

n
lu

d
0

.0
6

4
3

0
2

1
6

.0
0

4
3

3
9

5
8

.1
7

n
lu

d
0

.1
2

4
2

9
6

8
5

.9
2

4
3

3
3

2
0

.1
6

n
lu

d
0

.0
9

4
3

0
8

2
6

.9
8

4
3

3
4

8
5

.3
4

n
lu

d
0

.0
2

4
3

0
8

6
0

.3
0

4
3

3
4

9
1

.9
4

n
lu

d
0

.1
0

4
3

2
5

7
6

.6
3

4
2

7
3

9
7

.8
9

n
lu

d
0

.2
6

4
2

8
0

3
3

.8
4

4
3

2
9

2
4

.5
0

1
5

G
R

E
E

N
 L

A
N

E
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
In

s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.2
8

4
1

9
1

1
6

.5
3

4
4

1
7

5
5

.2
0

V
A

C
A

N
T

 L
A

N
D

P
A

R
K

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
7

4
1

9
0

9
1

.5
3

4
4

1
7

0
6

.6
9

L
A

N
D

 A
T

 R
E

A
R

 O
F

 R
E

T
A

IL
 P

A
R

K
P

A
R

K
 R

O
A

D
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
In

d
u

s
tr

y
W

it
h

in
 a

 z
o

n
e

 a
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l

n
lu

d
0

.1
2

4
3

0
9

6
6

.0
6

4
3

3
0

7
8

.7
5

n
lu

d
0

.5
5

4
3

1
0

4
6

.7
2

4
3

2
9

9
6

.1
1

B
A

N
K

 M
IL

L
S

E
A

S
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.1
7

4
2

9
8

6
1

.1
3

4
2

7
5

5
4

.2
2

n
lu

d
2

.4
4

4
1

9
7

6
5

.3
1

4
4

6
5

4
2

.3
9

R
E

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 S

IT
E

 A
T

 W
H

A
R

F
E

D
A

L
E

 G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 H

O
S

P
IT

A
L

N
E

W
A

L
L

 C
A

R
R

 R
O

A
D

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.5
0

4
3

2
2

1
0

.7
2

4
3

3
5

3
9

.1
6

S
IT

E
 O

F
 F

O
R

M
E

R
 M

O
U

N
T

 S
T

 M
A

R
Y

S
 P

R
IM

A
R

Y
 S

C
H

O
O

L
R

A
IN

C
L

IF
F

E
 R

O
A

D
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.2
7

4
1

9
5

7
9

.0
4

4
3

3
7

4
2

.0
5

C
A

R
 P

A
R

K
 A

D
J
A

C
E

N
T

 O
D

E
O

N
 C

IN
E

M
A

D
IC

K
 L

A
N

E
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

D
e

ta
ile

d
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.1
6

4
2

4
3

5
9

.3
4

4
2

9
2

8
2

.5
2

n
lu

d
1

.1
0

4
3

0
1

5
4

.0
0

4
3

0
7

1
2

.8
3

L
IN

D
E

N
 H

O
U

S
E

P
A

R
K

S
ID

E
 L

A
N

E
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.0
5

4
3

1
3

7
6

.3
6

4
3

2
8

4
2

.8
6

n
lu

d
0

.0
9

4
2

6
3

6
3

.2
1

4
2

7
2

5
8

.2
5

n
lu

d
0

.1
1

4
4

3
3

2
8

.6
8

4
3

7
3

9
7

.3
9

n
lu

d
0

.1
5

4
4

3
3

9
7

.2
8

4
3

9
1

5
5

.1
9

n
lu

d
0

.1
5

4
2

7
8

7
7

.1
1

4
3

4
0

5
6

.0
8

n
lu

d
0

.1
3

4
3

1
3

6
4

.5
5

4
2

9
9

3
7

.0
0

n
lu

d
0

.0
5

4
2

9
4

8
0

.5
9

4
3

3
5

1
7

.4
5

n
lu

d
0

.0
9

4
2

9
9

1
4

.6
7

4
3

3
7

5
9

.3
0

n
lu

d
0

.0
6

4
2

9
8

6
6

.5
0

4
3

3
6

4
1

.3
1

n
lu

d
0

.0
5

4
2

9
7

2
1

.6
6

4
3

3
7

7
3

.4
5

n
lu

d
0

.0
6

4
2

9
8

2
9

.7
0

4
3

3
7

6
7

.4
8

n
lu

d
0

.0
9

4
3

0
0

8
1

.2
3

4
3

4
0

3
2

.5
3

n
lu

d
0

.1
1

4
3

1
2

4
4

.5
5

4
3

4
7

4
7

.0
6

7
5

R
O

S
E

V
IL

L
E

 R
O

A
D

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
3

4
3

1
0

8
9

.6
3

4
3

4
1

5
6

.7
8

M
A

B
G

A
T

E
 M

IL
L

S
M

A
B

G
A

T
E

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
1

4
3

1
0

6
3

.8
6

4
3

2
2

1
9

.6
4

n
lu

d
0

.1
2

4
2

4
7

7
5

.4
1

4
3

8
4

9
1

.5
7

F
IL

L
E

D
 L

A
N

D
S

A
L

IS
B

U
R

Y
 M

E
W

S
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.1
6

4
2

4
8

5
7

.3
9

4
3

8
4

0
0

.4
4

F
IL

L
E

D
 L

A
N

D
S

A
L

IS
B

U
R

Y
 M

E
W

S
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.5
1

4
3

0
7

2
8

.0
6

4
3

2
9

7
3

.6
7

B
L

O
C

K
 A

 C
L

A
R

E
N

C
E

 D
O

C
K

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
A

R
M

O
U

R
IE

S
 W

A
Y

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
8

4
3

0
7

9
0

.1
5

4
3

2
9

1
6

.1
2

B
L

O
C

K
 B

 C
L

A
R

E
N

C
E

 D
O

C
K

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
C

H
A

D
W

IC
K

 S
T

R
E

E
T

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.6
3

4
3

0
8

2
9

.1
5

4
3

2
7

9
7

.2
6

B
L

O
C

K
 C

 C
L

A
R

E
N

C
E

 D
O

C
K

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
C

H
A

D
W

IC
K

 S
T

R
E

E
T

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.6
6

4
3

0
8

8
6

.4
0

4
3

2
6

9
8

.0
2

B
L

O
C

K
 D

 C
L

A
R

E
N

C
E

 D
O

C
K

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
A

R
M

O
U

R
IE

S
 D

R
IV

E
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.4
2

4
3

0
9

0
2

.6
8

4
3

2
7

8
7

.9
2

B
L

O
C

K
 E

 C
L

A
R

E
N

C
E

 D
O

C
K

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
A

R
M

O
U

R
IE

S
 D

R
IV

E
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.1
6

4
3

0
8

8
3

.1
8

4
3

2
8

5
6

.9
9

B
L

O
C

K
 F

 C
L

A
R

E
N

C
E

 D
O

C
K

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
A

R
M

O
U

R
IE

S
 D

R
IV

E
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

ta
ili

n
g

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
0

.3
5

4
3

0
9

6
7

.3
4

4
3

2
7

4
9

.3
6

B
L

O
C

K
 G

 C
L

A
R

E
N

C
E

 D
O

C
K

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
A

R
M

O
U

R
IE

S
 D

R
IV

E
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

O
u

tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.8
1

4
3

0
9

7
0

.9
7

4
3

2
8

4
7

.4
0

B
L

O
C

K
 H

 C
L

A
R

E
N

C
E

 D
O

C
K

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
A

R
M

O
U

R
IE

S
 D

R
IV

E
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

O
u

tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
1

.0
6

4
3

1
0

3
1

.8
8

4
3

2
7

8
6

.1
4

M
U

L
T

I 
S

T
O

R
E

Y
 C

A
R

 P
A

R
K

 C
L

A
R

E
N

C
E

 D
O

C
K

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
A

R
M

O
U

R
IE

S
 D

R
IV

E
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

C
a

r 
P

a
rk

s
N

o
n

e

1
2

Page 81



W
A

S
T

E
 S

IT
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

IO
N

 R
E

P
O

R
T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

S
O

U
R

C
E

A
R

E
A

_
H

A
X

_
C

O
O

R
D

Y
_

C
O

O
R

D
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

_
1

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
_

2
T

Y
P

E
_

C
O

D
E

L
A

N
D

_
U

S
E

_
C

P
L

G
_

S
T

A
T

U
S

n
lu

d
1

.0
9

4
4

1
3

7
0

.2
5

4
3

3
9

5
2

.5
0

P
A

R
T

 P
R

O
C

T
O

R
 B

R
O

S
 W

O
R

K
S

N
E

W
 H

O
L

D
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
In

d
u

s
tr

y
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
2

.4
7

4
3

3
1

6
1

.1
9

4
3

0
8

7
9

.0
7

F
O

R
M

E
R

 I
M

I 
Y

O
R

K
S

H
IR

E
 A

L
L

O
Y

S
 W

O
R

K
S

H
A

IG
H

 P
A

R
K

 R
O

A
D

C
  

 D
e

re
lic

t
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
8

.5
7

4
3

3
2

4
1

.5
1

4
3

0
6

7
1

.5
9

IM
I 

A
N

D
 Y

O
R

K
S

H
IR

E
 G

L
A

S
S

 F
A

C
T

O
R

IE
S

H
IA

G
H

 P
A

R
K

 R
O

A
D

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.8
1

4
3

3
1

4
1

.2
8

4
3

0
6

3
3

.1
7

W
A

R
E

H
O

U
S

E
S

 2
 A

N
D

 3
H

A
IG

H
 P

A
R

K
 R

O
A

D
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.8
4

4
1

9
3

2
0

.1
0

4
3

2
7

7
2

.5
9

V
A

C
A

N
T

 P
L

O
T

 A
T

 C
IT

Y
 L

IN
K

 B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 P

A
R

K
P

H
O

E
N

IX
 W

A
Y

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
P

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 L
a

n
d

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 n

o
w

 V
a

c
a

D
e

ta
ile

d
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.6
3

4
1

9
3

3
9

.8
6

4
3

2
9

0
3

.0
7

V
A

C
A

N
T

 S
IT

E
 A

T
 C

IT
Y

 L
IN

K
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 P
A

R
K

P
H

O
E

N
IX

 W
A

Y
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.5
5

4
2

7
9

7
7

.2
6

4
2

6
7

9
6

.6
7

F
O

R
M

E
R

 T
IN

G
L

E
Y

 G
A

S
 W

O
R

K
S

T
O

P
C

L
IF

F
E

 L
A

N
E

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
U

ti
lit

ie
s

P
P

 s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t

n
lu

d
1

.7
1

4
2

8
0

5
5

.4
9

4
2

6
8

5
0

.0
6

P
E

T
 C

A
R

E
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 A

T
 F

O
R

M
E

R
 G

A
S

 W
O

R
K

S
T

O
P

C
L

IF
F

E
 L

A
N

E
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
2

4
3

0
4

0
1

.7
9

4
3

3
0

8
9

.2
1

F
O

R
M

E
R

 L
O

R
R

Y
 P

A
R

K
W

A
T

E
R

L
O

O
 S

T
R

E
E

T
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
6

4
3

0
4

5
6

.0
7

4
3

3
0

9
5

.7
0

F
O

R
M

E
R

 C
A

R
 P

A
R

K
K

E
N

D
E

L
L

 S
T

R
E

E
T

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

D
e

ta
ile

d
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.4
9

4
2

9
0

2
9

.1
6

4
3

2
6

2
4

.4
5

L
O

W
 H

A
L

L
 M

IL
L

S
H

O
L

B
E

C
K

 L
A

N
E

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.8
2

4
2

8
0

4
4

.0
3

4
2

9
8

6
3

.0
8

F
O

R
M

E
R

 R
E

D
F

E
A

R
N

S
 P

L
C

 F
A

C
T

O
R

Y
M

IL
L

S
H

A
W

 P
A

R
K

 L
A

N
E

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.0
5

4
2

8
0

6
4

.1
6

4
2

9
7

8
7

.7
7

U
N

IT
S

 S
U

2
 A

N
D

 S
U

3
M

IL
L

S
H

A
W

 P
A

R
K

 L
A

N
E

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
4

4
2

5
9

0
3

.6
9

4
3

8
3

4
1

.0
1

F
O

R
M

E
R

 C
A

R
N

E
L

L
 M

O
T

O
R

 G
R

O
U

P
 L

T
D

 W
O

R
K

S
C

L
A

Y
T

O
N

 W
O

O
D

 C
L

O
S

E
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.0
7

4
4

1
0

7
3

.7
5

4
4

8
9

4
4

.8
3

W
H

IT
T

A
K

E
R

 H
O

U
S

E
S

A
N

D
B

E
C

K
 W

A
Y

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

O
ff

ic
e

s
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
1

.1
7

4
3

7
1

6
2

.8
3

4
2

9
0

3
9

.2
8

1
8

6
A

B
E

R
F

O
R

D
 R

O
A

D
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.7
3

4
2

5
6

9
9

.1
1

4
2

6
6

1
5

.5
0

F
O

R
M

E
R

 V
E

C
O

 A
U

T
O

M
O

T
IV

E
 L

T
D

H
O

W
L

E
Y

 P
A

R
K

 R
O

A
D

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.4
2

4
2

9
4

0
5

.8
0

4
3

3
3

1
7

.5
0

A
IR

E
S

ID
E

 C
E

N
T

R
E

W
H

IT
E

H
A

L
L

 R
O

A
D

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

R
e

ta
ili

n
g

W
it
h

in
 a

 z
o

n
e

 a
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l

n
lu

d
0

.3
3

4
2

9
2

0
2

.7
6

4
3

3
2

2
7

.7
0

A
IR

E
S

ID
E

 C
E

N
T

R
E

W
H

IT
E

H
A

L
L

 R
O

A
D

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
1

.8
1

4
2

9
9

2
7

.1
9

4
3

0
6

8
9

.4
7

3
0

1
D

E
W

S
B

U
R

Y
 R

O
A

D
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.4
8

4
2

8
8

0
5

.4
5

4
3

3
4

2
5

.1
9

F
O

R
M

E
R

 W
 H

 S
M

IT
H

 A
N

D
 S

O
N

S
 U

N
IT

W
E

L
L

IN
G

T
O

N
 R

O
A

D
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.6
6

4
3

2
2

4
9

.2
2

4
3

2
2

6
3

.5
5

F
O

R
M

E
R

 O
L

D
H

A
M

 S
IG

N
S

 L
T

D
C

R
O

S
S

 G
R

E
E

N
 A

P
P

R
O

A
C

H
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
9

4
3

2
8

6
6

.1
7

4
3

2
3

2
3

.4
1

F
O

R
M

E
R

 N
O

R
M

IC
 I

N
T

E
R

IO
R

S
 W

O
R

K
S

P
O

N
T

E
F

R
A

C
T

 L
A

N
E

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.6
5

4
3

2
8

4
8

.3
8

4
3

0
9

9
2

.1
7

4
W

A
T

E
R

S
ID

E
 R

O
A

D
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.0
5

4
2

6
4

5
5

.6
0

4
2

7
1

1
1

.9
8

n
lu

d
0

.3
5

4
3

1
1

8
4

.2
7

4
3

6
2

0
9

.8
3

E
L

T
O

N
 L

O
D

G
E

N
E

W
T

O
N

 R
O

A
D

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
9

4
2

8
9

4
1

.1
6

4
3

2
9

0
8

.2
0

F
O

R
M

E
R

 S
T

C
 D

IS
T

R
IB

U
T

IO
N

 W
A

R
E

H
O

U
S

E
S

P
R

IN
G

W
E

L
L

 S
T

R
E

E
T

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
2

4
2

8
9

7
8

.4
1

4
3

2
8

8
1

.3
3

3
0

S
P

R
IN

G
W

E
L

L
 R

O
A

D
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.6
9

4
2

7
4

3
1

.3
0

4
3

1
0

6
5

.5
0

F
O

R
M

E
R

 C
R

O
M

P
T

O
N

 P
A

R
K

IN
S

O
N

 L
T

D
 D

E
P

O
T

R
O

Y
D

S
 F

A
R

M
 R

O
A

D
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
9

4
2

8
2

5
6

.0
0

4
3

2
0

6
6

.0
6

U
N

IT
 1

6
W

E
S

T
 V

A
L

E
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
4

.1
4

4
3

2
9

5
2

.3
9

4
3

1
8

0
8

.4
4

U
N

IT
 4

1
K

N
O

W
S

T
H

O
R

P
E

 W
A

Y
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
7

.7
7

4
2

1
7

4
9

.6
9

4
3

7
6

0
3

.6
4

L
O

W
 M

IL
L

S
 A

N
D

 R
IV

E
R

S
ID

E
 M

IL
L

L
O

W
 H

A
L

L
 R

O
A

D
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.8
7

4
1

9
2

9
1

.3
0

4
4

2
0

4
1

.3
0

S
P

R
IN

G
H

E
A

D
 M

IL
L

S
S

P
R

IN
G

F
IE

L
D

 R
O

A
D

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
8

4
2

1
9

4
4

.8
5

4
3

4
2

0
9

.7
3

L
E

IG
H

 H
O

U
S

E
V

A
R

L
E

Y
 S

T
R

E
E

T
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.5
7

4
2

3
9

2
1

.3
5

4
3

4
4

8
2

.3
9

U
N

IT
 2

D
O

L
P

H
IN

 C
O

U
R

T
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
4

4
2

2
8

4
5

.8
3

4
3

3
6

2
6

.8
1

A
L

L
E

N
 B

R
IG

G
 M

IL
L

S
L

A
N

E
 E

N
D

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.5
3

4
2

7
5

5
9

.3
9

4
3

3
8

0
5

.9
1

A
R

M
L

E
Y

 W
O

R
K

S
H

O
P

S
P

IC
K

E
R

IN
G

 S
T

R
E

E
T

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.4
9

4
3

1
5

1
6

.2
3

4
3

4
5

0
2

.3
4

L
A

N
D

 B
E

T
W

E
E

N
 H

IL
L

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 A
N

D
 C

R
O

S
S

 A
L

M
A

 S
T

R
E

E
T

A
L

M
A

 S
T

R
E

E
T

C
  

 D
e

re
lic

t
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.6
6

4
1

9
6

5
1

.8
8

4
3

3
5

0
5

.2
2

U
N

IT
 D

 M
ID

 P
O

IN
T

 O
F

F
IC

E
 P

A
R

K
M

ID
 P

O
IN

T
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
In

d
u

s
tr

y
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
2

.5
3

4
1

9
7

3
9

.0
5

4
3

3
5

6
1

.2
2

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 L

A
N

D
 T

O
 R

E
A

R
 O

F
 M

ID
 P

O
IN

T
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 P
A

R
K

M
ID

 P
O

IN
T

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
In

d
u

s
tr

y
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.8
4

4
1

9
5

6
1

.3
0

4
3

3
4

6
6

.9
5

E
X

T
E

N
S

IO
N

 T
O

 M
ID

 P
O

IN
T

 B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 P

A
R

K
M

ID
 P

O
IN

T
C

  
 D

e
re

lic
t

In
d

u
s
tr

y
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.8
3

4
3

2
3

7
8

.0
4

4
3

2
2

5
3

.2
1

C
L

E
A

R
E

D
 L

A
N

D
 A

D
J
A

C
E

N
T

 C
A

T
T

O
N

S
 F

O
U

N
D

R
Y

C
R

O
S

S
 G

R
E

E
N

 A
P

P
R

O
A

C
H

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
2

.2
9

4
3

2
3

5
5

.3
8

4
3

2
3

4
9

.5
2

C
L

E
A

R
E

D
 L

A
N

D
 A

D
J
A

C
E

N
T

 C
A

T
T

O
N

S
 F

O
U

N
D

R
Y

C
R

O
S

S
 G

R
E

E
N

 A
P

P
R

O
A

C
H

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
In

d
u

s
tr

y
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.3
3

4
4

4
3

8
8

.0
5

4
3

2
7

5
8

.7
0

S
IT

E
 O

F
 M

IC
K

L
E

F
IE

L
D

 J
U

N
IO

R
 S

C
H

O
O

L
G

R
E

A
T

 N
O

R
T

H
 R

O
A

D
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
1

.1
8

4
2

5
0

2
4

.5
5

4
3

8
2

1
8

.4
7

W
O

O
D

S
ID

E
 T

R
A

D
IN

G
 E

S
T

A
T

E
L

O
W

 L
A

N
E

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.6
3

4
2

1
8

7
4

.6
6

4
3

2
6

0
1

.9
5

IN
D

U
S

T
R

IA
L

 P
R

E
M

IS
E

S
C

A
R

L
IS

L
E

 R
O

A
D

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.7
3

4
2

1
5

7
9

.7
5

4
3

4
3

4
8

.5
9

8
3

 T
O

 9
9

B
R

A
D

F
O

R
D

 R
O

A
D

D
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
R

e
ta

ili
n

g
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
1

.2
4

4
3

0
1

4
6

.6
3

4
3

3
4

6
5

.9
8

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 S

IT
E

 A
T

 B
U

R
T

O
N

 A
N

D
 T

R
IN

IT
Y

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 A
R

C
A

D
E

S
T

R
IN

IT
Y

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 A
R

C
A

D
E

D
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
R

e
ta

ili
n

g
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.2
9

4
2

5
8

0
2

.5
5

4
3

2
4

9
8

.8
9

P
R

IM
A

 H
O

U
S

E
R

IN
G

 R
O

A
D

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
3

4
2

3
3

5
3

.9
2

4
3

5
0

3
4

.0
5

S
P

E
N

C
E

 M
IL

L
S

M
IL

L
 L

A
N

E
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.8
4

4
2

2
2

4
7

.6
4

4
3

4
6

0
1

.7
7

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 I
N

D
U

S
T

R
IA

L
 S

IT
E

T
O

W
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
In

d
u

s
tr

y
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
3

.1
3

4
2

2
1

3
7

.6
0

4
3

4
6

1
8

.4
1

S
T

A
N

N
IN

G
L

E
Y

 W
O

R
K

S
T

O
W

N
 S

T
R

E
E

T
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
7

4
2

3
0

3
8

.1
9

4
3

2
8

6
7

.4
9

A
B

IT
IA

 H
O

U
S

E
K

E
N

T
 R

O
A

D
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.2
3

4
2

3
9

0
2

.6
3

4
3

2
4

8
9

.8
9

T
R

O
Y

D
A

L
E

 M
IL

L
S

 I
N

D
U

S
T

R
IA

L
 E

S
T

A
T

E
T

R
O

Y
D

A
L

E
 L

A
N

E
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.6
0

4
3

2
7

9
4

.0
1

4
2

9
2

3
9

.5
0

IN
D

U
S

T
R

IA
L

 E
S

T
A

T
E

 A
T

 W
O

O
D

 L
A

N
E

 A
N

D
 W

A
K

E
F

IE
L

D
 R

O
A

D
W

O
O

D
 L

A
N

E
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
In

d
u

s
tr

y
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
3

.8
2

4
3

2
8

4
4

.8
9

4
2

9
3

5
6

.2
2

IN
D

U
S

T
R

IA
L

 E
S

T
A

T
E

 A
T

 W
O

O
D

 L
A

N
E

 A
N

D
 W

A
K

E
F

IE
L

D
 R

O
A

D
W

O
O

D
 L

A
N

E
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.5
7

4
2

9
8

0
6

.1
1

4
3

2
4

1
1

.6
4

M
S

F
 M

O
T

O
R

 G
R

O
U

P
 S

H
O

W
R

O
O

M
 A

N
D

 W
O

R
K

S
H

O
P

S
M

E
A

D
O

W
 R

O
A

D
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
R

e
ta

ili
n

g
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.2
8

4
3

0
9

1
2

.9
7

4
3

5
8

2
1

.3
4

2
4

1
C

H
A

P
E

L
T

O
W

N
 R

O
A

D
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
ta

ili
n

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.7
3

4
2

2
9

1
5

.6
4

4
3

6
1

1
9

.9
5

B
R

ID
G

E
 W

O
R

K
S

M
O

S
S

 B
R

ID
G

E
 R

O
A

D
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.4
3

4
3

0
4

7
7

.3
0

4
3

5
1

6
1

.8
0

1
0

5
S

H
E

E
P

S
C

A
R

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 N
O

R
T

H
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
1

4
2

3
8

7
2

.9
5

4
2

8
2

8
6

.1
5

O
W

L
E

T
 H

A
L

L
B

R
A

D
F

O
R

D
 R

O
A

D
F

  
 R

e
-d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

In
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

a
l 
A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
7

4
2

9
5

6
6

.8
9

4
3

2
9

4
9

.4
2

C
A

R
 P

A
R

K
 A

D
J
 G

L
O

B
E

 M
IL

L
S

G
L

O
B

E
 R

O
A

D
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
In

d
u

s
tr

y
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
1

.6
5

4
1

8
5

4
6

.9
2

4
4

2
2

1
3

.0
8

F
O

R
M

E
R

 S
IL

V
E

R
 C

R
O

S
S

 W
O

R
K

S
B

A
C

K
 L

A
N

E
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.1
0

4
3

0
7

0
7

.0
2

4
3

2
6

5
8

.1
1

R
E

G
 V

A
R

D
Y

 S
H

O
W

R
O

O
M

S
H

U
N

S
L

E
T

 R
O

A
D

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
R

e
ta

ili
n

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.4
1

4
3

0
7

9
3

.1
3

4
3

2
6

0
7

.0
6

R
E

G
 V

A
R

D
Y

 W
O

R
K

S
H

O
P

S
C

H
A

D
W

IC
K

 S
T

R
E

E
T

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
2

.8
2

4
2

6
5

0
0

.2
8

4
3

1
7

9
5

.9
5

R
IN

G
W

A
Y

S
 G

A
R

A
G

E
 C

O
M

P
L

E
X

R
IN

G
 R

O
A

D
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
R

e
ta

ili
n

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.8
5

4
3

2
8

3
6

.3
9

4
3

1
7

9
7

.9
8

V
A

C
A

N
T

 L
A

N
D

 T
O

 R
E

A
R

 O
F

 W
O

R
K

S
K

N
O

W
S

T
H

O
R

P
E

 W
A

Y
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
P

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 L
a

n
d

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 n

o
w

 V
a

c
a

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
4

.7
6

4
4

1
1

0
0

.8
9

4
3

3
6

6
1

.4
7

F
O

R
M

E
R

 D
U

P
O

N
T

 W
O

R
K

S
A

B
E

R
F

O
R

D
 R

O
A

D
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.7
8

4
3

1
2

1
4

.5
2

4
3

1
0

9
9

.6
1

F
O

R
M

E
R

 R
A

IL
W

A
Y

 S
ID

IN
G

S
M

ID
L

A
N

D
 R

O
A

D
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

a
ilw

a
y
s

N
o

n
e

1
3

Page 82



W
A

S
T

E
 S

IT
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

IO
N

 R
E

P
O

R
T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

S
O

U
R

C
E

A
R

E
A

_
H

A
X

_
C

O
O

R
D

Y
_

C
O

O
R

D
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

_
1

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
_

2
T

Y
P

E
_

C
O

D
E

L
A

N
D

_
U

S
E

_
C

P
L

G
_

S
T

A
T

U
S

n
lu

d
2

.3
3

4
3

1
3

0
6

.3
9

4
3

1
1

0
4

.3
4

R
E

Y
N

O
L

D
 W

O
R

K
S

M
ID

L
A

N
D

 R
O

A
D

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.7
2

4
2

0
2

1
6

.9
6

4
4

5
8

1
0

.9
5

F
O

R
M

E
R

 A
L

L
 S

A
IN

T
S

 P
R

IM
A

R
Y

 S
C

H
O

O
L

C
A

T
T

L
E

 M
A

R
K

E
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
0

4
2

6
8

9
3

.9
2

4
3

3
3

7
6

.4
1

C
L

E
A

R
E

D
 L

A
N

D
 A

T
 H

A
R

T
L

E
Y

S
 Y

A
R

D
M

O
D

D
E

R
 A

V
E

N
U

E
C

  
 D

e
re

lic
t

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
6

4
2

6
7

7
9

.6
1

4
3

3
3

2
7

.6
3

C
L

E
A

R
E

D
 L

A
N

D
 B

E
T

W
E

E
N

 M
O

D
D

E
R

 P
L

A
C

E
 A

N
D

 S
T

A
T

IO
N

 R
O

A
D

M
O

D
D

E
R

 P
L

A
C

E
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
4

4
4

2
3

3
0

.6
2

4
2

8
0

5
8

.6
9

4
4

P
A

R
K

 L
A

N
E

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

V
a

c
a

n
t 

B
u

ild
in

g
s

O
u

tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
1

.8
5

4
2

9
1

6
1

.0
5

4
3

3
0

1
5

.9
4

M
O

N
K

B
R

ID
G

E
 W

O
R

K
S

W
H

IT
E

H
A

L
L

 R
O

A
D

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
2

2
.7

3
4

3
0

6
0

4
.3

6
4

3
0

0
9

3
.7

2
L

A
N

D
 A

D
J
 M

ID
D

L
E

T
O

N
 R

A
IL

W
A

Y
 A

N
D

 O
L

D
 R

U
N

 R
O

A
D

O
L

D
 R

U
N

 R
O

A
D

C
  

 D
e

re
lic

t
M

in
e

ra
l 
W

o
rk

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 Q
u

a
rr

ie
s

A
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
0

.3
9

4
3

4
6

9
6

.0
8

4
3

5
3

1
5

.4
5

T
H

E
 W

IL
S

O
N

S
 A

R
M

S
M

O
R

E
S

D
A

L
E

 L
A

N
E

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

R
e

ta
ili

n
g

O
u

tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
1

.3
8

4
2

8
3

7
4

.5
0

4
2

4
7

5
7

.0
6

F
O

R
M

E
R

 S
L

A
U

G
H

T
E

R
H

O
U

S
E

W
O

O
L

L
IN

 C
R

E
S

C
E

N
T

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
In

d
u

s
tr

y
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.6
3

4
3

2
5

9
3

.4
0

4
2

7
8

9
0

.2
1

L
A

N
D

W
A

K
E

F
IE

L
D

 R
O

A
D

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.3
8

4
2

3
3

3
3

.5
8

4
3

4
1

4
4

.6
6

IN
D

U
S

T
R

IA
L

 W
A

R
E

H
O

U
S

E
 U

N
IT

S
S

W
IN

N
O

W
 C

L
O

S
E

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.7
2

4
2

3
7

3
7

.3
5

4
3

9
5

7
7

.8
7

S
T

 G
A

B
R

IE
L

S
 H

O
M

E
 F

O
R

 R
E

T
IR

E
D

 C
L

E
R

G
Y

S
C

O
T

L
A

N
D

 L
A

N
E

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

a
l 
A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.2
8

4
2

0
9

4
9

.8
6

4
4

1
2

0
3

.5
9

M
O

T
O

R
 M

E
C

H
A

N
IC

S
 A

N
D

 H
O

U
S

E
S

M
A

R
S

H
A

L
L

 S
T

R
E

E
T

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

R
e

ta
ili

n
g

D
e

ta
ile

d
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.3
7

4
2

0
5

4
2

.5
4

4
4

0
5

0
6

.1
4

H
E

N
S

H
A

W
 W

O
R

K
S

H
E

N
S

H
A

W
 L

A
N

E
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
In

d
u

s
tr

y
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.4
3

4
1

7
0

7
0

.0
9

4
4

3
1

4
6

.8
0

H
O

M
E

 F
A

R
M

 H
IG

H
 R

O
Y

D
S

 H
O

S
P

IT
A

L
B

IN
G

L
E

Y
 R

O
A

D
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

V
a

c
a

n
t 

B
u

ild
in

g
s

D
e

ta
ile

d
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
1

.3
0

4
2

9
1

3
0

.8
8

4
3

9
0

9
1

.2
0

C
L

E
A

R
E

D
 H

O
U

S
IN

G
T

Y
N

W
A

L
D

 W
A

L
K

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.2
8

4
2

7
8

9
6

.1
1

4
3

4
6

5
5

.7
4

F
O

R
M

E
R

 C
O

N
V

E
N

T
 A

T
 2

3
2

B
U

R
L

E
Y

 R
O

A
D

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

a
l 
A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.8
1

4
2

5
7

9
8

.6
6

4
3

5
3

7
3

.0
3

F
O

R
M

E
R

 D
IM

B
L

E
B

Y
 A

G
E

D
 P

E
R

S
O

N
S

 H
O

M
E

B
R

O
A

D
 L

A
N

E
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

a
l 
A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.3
1

4
2

4
0

4
7

.8
0

4
3

7
2

4
7

.0
3

G
L

E
N

W
O

O
D

 H
O

T
E

L
N

E
W

 R
O

A
D

 S
ID

E
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

a
l 
A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.8
9

4
2

0
7

1
3

.2
5

4
4

5
4

0
2

.9
1

F
O

W
L

E
R

S
 T

IM
B

E
R

 Y
A

R
D

A
L

B
IO

N
 S

T
R

E
E

T
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.2
8

4
2

1
1

3
2

.6
7

4
4

5
6

0
1

.0
3

P
L

A
N

T
 D

E
P

O
T

E
A

S
T

 B
U

S
K

 L
A

N
E

D
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.3
5

4
3

2
9

8
6

.5
5

4
3

7
2

7
4

.4
1

1
8

P
A

R
K

 A
V

E
N

U
E

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.4
3

4
3

0
9

8
9

.2
5

4
3

3
3

3
5

.0
5

F
O

R
M

E
R

 B
R

IT
IS

H
 L

E
G

IO
N

 C
L

U
B

M
IL

L
 S

T
R

E
E

T
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

o
o

r 
R

e
c
re

a
ti
o

n
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.2
7

4
2

2
3

4
6

.2
6

4
3

2
6

5
4

.5
6

O
Y

E
Z

 S
T

A
T

IO
N

E
R

Y
 W

A
R

E
H

O
U

S
E

L
IT

T
L

E
M

O
O

R
 R

O
A

D
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.5
3

4
2

9
0

0
9

.1
3

4
3

5
5

4
6

.0
5

F
O

R
M

E
R

 C
L

IF
F

D
E

N
E

 H
O

M
E

 F
O

R
 P

H
Y

S
IC

A
L

L
Y

 D
IS

A
B

L
E

D
C

L
IF

F
 R

O
A

D
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

a
l 
A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.4
5

4
2

8
1

2
5

.1
4

4
3

5
7

9
2

.5
8

S
P

R
IN

G
B

A
N

K
  

F
O

R
M

E
R

 T
E

M
P

O
R

A
R

Y
 S

C
H

O
O

L
 N

O
 5

3
H

E
A

D
IN

G
L

E
Y

 L
A

N
E

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.4
4

4
2

4
6

7
2

.7
5

4
4

4
9

5
8

.5
0

F
O

R
M

E
R

 M
O

N
K

M
A

N
S

 R
E

S
T

A
U

R
A

N
T

S
W

A
L

L
O

W
 D

R
IV

E
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
R

e
ta

ili
n

g
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.5
3

4
3

0
0

9
5

.5
8

4
3

8
8

0
4

.2
1

F
L

A
T

S
 A

N
D

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 C
E

N
T

R
E

Q
U

E
E

N
S

H
IL

L
 G

A
R

D
E

N
S

D
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.3
1

4
2

9
6

6
3

.6
7

4
3

6
5

4
2

.5
5

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

 O
F

F
 P

O
T

T
E

R
N

E
W

T
O

N
 M

O
U

N
T

P
O

T
T

E
R

N
E

W
T

O
N

 M
O

U
N

T
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.4
5

4
3

3
3

5
5

.6
3

4
3

5
2

2
1

.3
1

F
O

R
M

E
R

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 F
L

A
T

S
O

A
K

 T
R

E
E

 G
R

O
V

E
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
1

4
3

1
4

3
1

.4
2

4
3

0
0

5
9

.4
8

F
O

R
M

E
R

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

L
O

W
 G

R
A

N
G

E
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.5
2

4
3

2
6

9
5

.5
0

4
3

5
6

8
8

.6
9

F
O

R
M

E
R

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

E
A

S
T

E
R

L
Y

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.9
4

4
3

0
5

3
2

.6
6

4
2

7
5

3
9

.4
5

F
O

R
M

E
R

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

T
H

O
R

P
E

 V
IE

W
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.5
3

4
2

6
9

9
1

.5
3

4
3

6
1

3
5

.1
9

F
O

R
M

E
R

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 M
A

IS
O

N
E

T
T

E
S

F
O

X
C

R
O

F
T

 G
R

E
E

N
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.5
9

4
2

9
5

8
4

.7
0

4
3

4
8

6
3

.5
3

L
A

N
D

 A
T

 W
O

O
D

H
O

U
S

E
 L

A
N

E
 A

N
D

 S
T

 M
A

R
K

S
 R

O
A

D
S

T
 M

A
R

K
S

 R
O

A
D

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
1

.5
2

4
3

3
6

1
4

.4
4

4
3

3
6

4
2

.3
8

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

N
E

V
IL

L
E

 C
R

E
S

C
E

N
T

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.4
4

4
4

0
8

6
0

.1
3

4
2

6
1

9
9

.8
2

D
U

N
F

O
R

D
 H

O
U

S
E

G
R

E
E

N
 L

A
N

E
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

V
a

c
a

n
t 

B
u

ild
in

g
s

D
e

ta
ile

d
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.2
6

4
3

2
2

0
0

.7
8

4
3

8
7

8
3

.5
7

F
O

R
M

E
R

 C
A

R
 S

H
O

W
R

O
O

M
D

E
V

O
N

S
H

IR
E

 L
A

N
E

F
  

 R
e

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.5
5

4
2

2
7

9
3

.4
6

4
2

9
2

3
8

.6
8

L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 5
1

W
H

IT
E

H
A

L
L

 R
O

A
D

D
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

O
u

tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
2

.0
5

4
4

0
5

6
2

.7
3

4
4

8
2

7
8

.1
6

S
U

P
E

R
M

A
R

K
E

T
 R

E
D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

 S
IT

E
H

O
R

S
E

F
A

IR
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
R

e
ta

ili
n

g
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
1

.0
8

4
3

3
3

5
9

.8
4

4
3

6
0

5
6

.6
6

F
O

R
M

E
R

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

A
M

B
E

R
T

O
N

 T
E

R
R

A
C

E
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.4
8

4
3

3
4

2
0

.5
9

4
3

6
0

2
5

.9
5

F
O

R
M

E
R

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

A
M

B
E

R
T

O
N

 T
E

R
R

A
C

E
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
1

4
3

3
4

3
6

.1
1

4
3

5
9

3
8

.1
9

F
O

R
M

E
R

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

A
M

B
E

R
T

O
N

 T
E

R
R

A
C

E
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.4
2

4
2

3
7

6
9

.2
8

4
3

4
7

6
1

.5
0

S
IT

E
 O

F
 4

7
 T

O
 8

5
 A

N
D

 3
8

 T
O

 7
6

F
A

IR
F

IE
L

D
 S

T
R

E
E

T
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
8

4
2

3
7

4
2

.6
9

4
3

4
7

1
6

.4
7

C
L

E
A

R
E

D
 L

A
N

D
 A

D
J
A

C
E

N
T

 N
O

 7
8

F
A

IR
F

IE
L

D
 S

T
R

E
E

T
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
4

4
2

8
6

4
7

.4
2

4
3

0
7

3
3

.9
5

C
A

R
 P

A
R

K
 A

D
J
A

C
E

N
T

 S
H

O
P

P
IN

G
 C

E
N

T
R

E
T

O
W

N
 S

T
R

E
E

T
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

O
u

tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.8
4

4
3

0
5

9
1

.1
6

4
3

5
1

5
1

.9
4

C
A

R
 S

H
O

W
R

O
O

M
S

 A
N

D
 R

E
T

A
IL

 W
A

R
E

H
O

U
S

E
S

H
E

E
P

S
C

A
R

 W
A

Y
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
R

e
ta

ili
n

g
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.3
2

4
3

0
6

3
4

.7
0

4
3

5
1

5
0

.6
8

S
C

O
T

T
H

A
L

L
 M

O
T

O
R

S
 W

O
R

K
S

H
O

P
S

H
E

E
P

S
C

A
R

 W
A

Y
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
R

e
ta

ili
n

g
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.2
8

4
3

5
2

8
7

.4
4

4
2

8
9

0
3

.7
5

P
E

T
R

O
L

 F
IL

L
IN

G
 S

T
A

T
IO

N
 A

N
D

 D
W

E
L

L
IN

G
 H

O
U

S
E

L
E

E
D

S
 R

O
A

D
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
R

e
ta

ili
n

g
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
2

.5
6

4
3

4
0

1
8

.7
8

4
2

7
8

1
3

.3
0

R
O

T
H

W
E

L
L

 W
E

S
T

 P
R

IM
A

R
Y

 S
C

H
O

O
L

S
T

O
N

E
 B

R
IG

 L
A

N
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
1

.8
2

4
2

0
8

5
2

.6
4

4
4

0
8

1
1

.8
0

S
O

U
T

H
 V

IE
W

 P
R

IM
A

R
Y

 S
C

H
O

O
L

R
U

F
F

O
R

D
 A

V
E

N
U

D
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
1

.2
6

4
3

9
9

6
2

.3
6

4
2

7
0

6
0

.3
8

M
E

T
H

L
E

Y
 P

R
IM

A
R

Y
 S

C
H

O
O

L
P

IN
F

O
L

D
 L

A
N

D
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
1

.6
9

4
3

0
7

2
7

.5
2

4
2

5
4

4
6

.4
1

E
A

S
T

 A
R

D
S

L
E

Y
 P

R
IM

A
R

Y
 S

C
H

O
O

L
 S

O
U

T
H

 S
IT

E
M

A
IN

 S
T

R
E

E
T

D
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
1

.5
4

4
2

5
4

0
8

.7
0

4
3

9
9

4
2

.8
8

C
O

O
K

R
ID

G
E

 P
R

IM
A

R
Y

 S
C

H
O

O
L

T
IN

S
H

IL
L

 D
R

IV
E

D
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
1

.0
9

4
2

3
8

2
0

.3
4

4
3

8
2

0
3

.8
4

S
T

 M
A

R
G

A
R

E
T

S
 C

 O
F

 E
 P

R
IM

A
R

Y
 S

C
H

O
O

L
T

O
W

N
 S

T
R

E
E

T
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
1

.6
9

4
4

1
9

1
6

.4
5

4
3

0
4

8
7

.0
6

K
IP

P
A

X
 G

IB
S

O
N

 L
A

N
E

 P
R

IM
A

R
Y

 S
C

H
O

O
L

G
IB

S
O

N
 L

A
N

E
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
O

u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
1

.0
4

4
2

0
3

2
9

.4
6

4
4

5
2

5
0

.9
8

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 S
U

P
E

R
M

A
R

K
E

T
 S

IT
E

 O
F

F
 B

O
N

D
G

A
T

E
 A

N
D

 M
Y

E
R

S
 C

R
O

F
T

B
O

N
D

G
A

T
E

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.9
0

4
3

7
0

5
5

.4
1

4
2

9
1

5
0

.2
2

M
IN

E
R

V
A

 I
N

D
U

S
T

R
IA

L
 E

S
T

A
T

E
A

B
E

R
F

O
R

D
 R

O
A

D
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
3

.2
6

4
1

8
7

5
6

.0
9

4
4

2
5

7
5

.6
5

C
O

O
P

E
R

 L
IG

H
T

IN
G

 P
R

E
M

IS
E

S
N

E
T

H
E

R
F

IE
L

D
 R

O
A

D
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.9
7

4
1

8
7

0
8

.2
8

4
4

2
7

1
5

.2
2

B
R

O
O

K
 C

R
O

M
P

T
O

N
 M

O
T

O
R

S
 P

R
E

M
IS

E
S

N
E

T
H

E
R

F
IE

L
D

 R
O

A
D

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.5
1

4
3

0
0

1
4

.3
3

4
3

2
8

2
1

.4
2

H
IN

D
L

E
 V

A
L

V
E

S
G

R
E

A
T

 W
IL

S
O

N
 S

T
R

E
E

T
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.4
6

4
2

8
9

7
2

.5
5

4
3

3
1

9
7

.0
6

L
A

N
D

 T
O

 R
E

A
R

 O
F

 H
A

L
F

 R
O

U
N

D
H

O
U

S
E

G
R

A
IN

G
E

R
S

 W
A

Y
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
P

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 L
a

n
d

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 n

o
w

 V
a

c
a

D
e

ta
ile

d
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.9
1

4
2

6
1

9
6

.5
5

4
3

3
7

5
0

.3
8

T
O

W
E

R
 W

O
R

K
S

M
O

O
R

F
IE

L
D

 R
O

A
D

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.4
1

4
2

8
8

6
1

.8
8

4
3

1
0

3
5

.1
4

F
O

R
M

E
R

 B
E

E
S

T
O

N
 M

A
N

O
R

 A
 P

 H
M

A
N

O
R

F
IE

L
D

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
In

s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

a
l 
A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
2

4
2

5
8

6
8

.6
3

4
3

5
4

1
9

.1
4

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 A
N

D
 L

A
N

D
 T

O
 E

A
S

T
 O

F
 K

IR
K

S
T

A
L

L
 H

A
L

L
B

R
O

A
D

 L
A

N
E

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

O
ff

ic
e

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.7
1

4
2

6
0

1
8

.5
2

4
2

7
6

1
0

.8
8

F
IE

L
D

 M
IL

L
S

S
C

A
T

C
H

E
R

D
 L

A
N

E
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.6
0

4
2

0
9

6
2

.0
0

4
4

0
8

4
3

.4
2

S
O

U
T

H
 V

IE
W

 I
N

F
A

N
T

S
 S

C
H

O
O

L
R

U
F

F
O

R
D

 A
V

E
N

U
E

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
2

4
3

0
6

2
8

.1
2

4
3

4
8

4
3

.5
5

G
A

S
 H

O
L

D
E

R
 S

T
A

T
IO

N
S

H
E

E
P

S
C

A
R

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 N
O

R
T

H
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
U

ti
lit

ie
s

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
0

.6
6

4
3

4
2

2
9

.5
8

4
3

4
1

6
4

.0
8

F
O

R
M

E
R

 H
IG

H
W

A
Y

S
 D

E
P

O
T

O
L

D
 Y

O
R

K
 R

O
A

D
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
N

o
n

e

1
4

Page 83



W
A

S
T

E
 S

IT
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

IO
N

 R
E

P
O

R
T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

S
O

U
R

C
E

A
R

E
A

_
H

A
X

_
C

O
O

R
D

Y
_

C
O

O
R

D
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

_
1

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
_

2
T

Y
P

E
_

C
O

D
E

L
A

N
D

_
U

S
E

_
C

P
L

G
_

S
T

A
T

U
S

n
lu

d
0

.6
6

4
2

6
2

7
9

.2
8

4
3

5
1

8
2

.8
2

R
E

A
R

 O
F

 S
T

 A
N

N
S

 M
IL

L
S

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L
 R

O
A

D
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
4

4
2

0
5

7
1

.5
3

4
4

1
0

7
4

.9
0

T
H

E
 O

L
D

 M
IL

L
M

IR
Y

 L
A

N
E

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
8

4
2

9
8

1
0

.4
4

4
3

0
5

6
1

.2
0

3
1

1
D

E
W

S
B

U
R

Y
 R

O
A

D
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
2

4
2

9
7

4
7

.7
7

4
3

1
6

9
4

.7
1

C
L

E
A

R
E

D
 S

IT
E

 O
F

 4
5

 T
O

 6
0

B
R

E
T

T
 G

A
R

D
E

N
S

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
6

4
3

3
7

3
3

.3
9

4
3

6
0

8
0

.4
1

F
E

A
R

N
V

IL
L

E
 H

O
U

S
E

D
IB

 L
A

N
E

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.9
7

4
3

0
3

7
6

.5
8

4
3

5
6

7
2

.1
6

C
L

E
A

R
E

D
 H

O
U

S
IN

G
 L

A
N

D
 A

D
J
 3

3
S

C
O

T
T

 H
A

L
L

 D
R

IV
E

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
8

4
3

2
4

9
7

.0
5

4
3

5
6

7
0

.8
3

L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
O

IN
IN

G
 2

3
 T

O
 2

9
S

T
 W

IL
F

R
ID

S
 A

V
E

N
U

E
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.0
7

4
3

3
0

6
4

.6
7

4
3

5
4

5
6

.5
8

S
IT

E
 O

F
 O

A
K

W
O

O
D

 P
R

IM
A

R
Y

 S
C

H
O

O
L

T
H

O
R

N
 W

A
L

K
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
0

.2
7

4
3

4
1

7
9

.8
9

4
3

6
9

1
6

.9
2

L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
O

IN
IN

G
 9

7
 -

 1
0

1
A

S
K

E
T

 D
R

IV
E

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.4
2

4
3

5
7

0
5

.6
6

4
3

6
1

1
2

.4
7

S
E

A
C

R
O

F
T

 G
R

A
N

G
E

T
H

E
 G

R
E

E
N

C
  

 D
e

re
lic

t
In

s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
1

4
3

5
5

7
6

.5
5

4
3

6
1

4
6

.2
8

S
IT

E
 O

F
 F

O
R

M
E

R
 Y

O
U

T
H

 C
L

U
B

S
E

A
C

R
O

F
T

 C
R

E
S

C
E

N
T

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
In

s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
3

4
3

6
0

9
6

.1
8

4
3

6
8

0
7

.5
5

F
O

R
M

E
R

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 C
E

N
T

R
E

H
E

B
D

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
In

s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
7

4
3

1
9

9
6

.4
5

4
3

1
4

9
0

.4
9

V
A

C
A

N
T

 L
A

N
D

S
E

V
E

R
N

 W
A

Y
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
In

d
u

s
tr

y
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
1

.7
3

4
3

2
0

8
2

.8
9

4
3

4
7

9
5

.2
2

F
O

R
M

E
R

 R
E

C
L

A
M

A
T

IO
N

 C
E

N
T

R
E

S
T

A
N

L
E

Y
 R

O
A

D
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
U

ti
lit

ie
s

D
e

ta
ile

d
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.3
0

4
3

0
5

7
7

.0
0

4
3

3
9

7
5

.3
1

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 A
N

D
 C

A
R

 P
A

R
K

T
R

A
F

A
L

G
A

R
 S

T
R

E
E

T
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.4
0

4
3

0
8

1
3

.1
3

4
3

4
1

4
9

.7
2

R
E

G
E

N
T

S
 P

A
R

K
 H

O
U

S
E

L
E

Y
L

A
N

D
S

 R
O

A
D

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
0

.9
6

4
2

9
0

2
7

.2
5

4
3

3
6

1
2

.0
0

P
U

B
L

IC
 C

A
R

 P
A

R
K

W
E

S
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
0

.2
5

4
2

9
0

8
2

.7
5

4
3

3
7

7
3

.8
0

1
7

M
A

R
L

B
O

R
O

U
G

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
O

ff
ic

e
s

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
1

.4
9

4
2

9
9

7
2

.8
8

4
3

2
3

3
6

.6
2

L
A

N
D

 T
O

 R
E

A
R

 O
F

 E
N

T
E

R
P

R
IS

E
 H

O
U

S
E

A
P

E
X

 V
IE

W
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

o
a

d
s

W
it
h

in
 a

 z
o

n
e

 a
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l

n
lu

d
0

.7
4

4
2

9
8

8
8

.5
0

4
3

4
1

8
2

.1
2

C
 C

A
R

 P
A

R
K

P
O

R
T

L
A

N
D

 C
R

E
S

C
E

N
T

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
2

.1
2

4
2

8
7

1
4

.1
7

4
3

3
6

9
5

.9
8

Y
O

R
K

S
H

IR
E

 C
H

E
M

IC
A

L
S

 P
L

C
K

IR
K

S
T

A
L

L
 R

O
A

D
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.8
8

4
2

8
5

6
1

.3
4

4
3

3
6

2
6

.4
5

Y
O

R
K

S
H

IR
E

 C
H

E
M

IC
A

L
S

 P
L

C
W

E
L

L
IN

G
T

O
N

 R
O

A
D

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.5
5

4
2

7
3

9
3

.6
2

4
3

1
5

8
1

.6
9

W
A

L
L

A
C

E
 A

R
N

O
L

D
 T

O
U

R
S

 C
O

A
C

H
 D

E
P

O
T

G
E

L
D

E
R

D
 R

O
A

D
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

R
o

a
d

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
3

.0
4

4
2

3
8

8
1

.8
6

4
3

6
6

3
3

.6
9

W
D

S
 T

O
O

L
IN

G
 A

ID
S

 L
T

D
P

O
L

L
A

R
D

 L
A

N
E

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.1
5

4
4

4
6

0
4

.0
9

4
3

2
2

9
0

.7
0

S
IT

E
 O

F
 W

O
O

D
L

A
N

D
S

 M
O

T
E

L
G

R
E

A
T

 N
O

R
T

H
 R

O
A

D
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
In

s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

a
l 
A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.4
5

4
3

0
9

4
3

.3
3

4
3

9
5

3
7

.5
3

IN
G

L
E

D
E

W
 C

O
U

R
T

S
A

N
D

R
IN

G
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
9

4
2

9
4

5
2

.9
2

4
3

5
3

6
7

.3
4

1
7

5
 A

N
D

 1
7

7
 A

N
D

 L
A

N
D

 T
O

 R
E

A
R

W
O

O
D

H
O

U
S

E
 S

T
R

E
E

T
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
R

e
ta

ili
n

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.4
4

4
1

9
9

8
4

.1
5

4
4

5
5

3
4

.6
8

A
S

H
F

IE
L

D
 W

O
R

K
S

W
E

S
T

G
A

T
E

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
6

4
4

0
4

4
3

.9
1

4
4

7
9

1
5

.2
0

B
R

ID
G

E
N

D
 H

O
U

S
E

B
O

S
T

O
N

 R
O

A
D

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
7

4
2

8
0

5
1

.8
0

4
3

5
5

6
8

.1
9

4
9

 T
O

 5
1

C
A

R
D

IG
A

N
 R

O
A

D
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
In

s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

a
l 
A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.6
4

4
3

0
9

8
7

.5
2

4
2

9
1

6
7

.0
3

G
R

A
S

S
E

D
 A

R
E

A
, 

A
D

J
 N

O
. 

1
5

1
N

E
W

H
A

L
L

 G
A

T
E

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
L

a
n

d
fi
ll 

W
a

s
te

 D
is

p
o

s
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
4

4
3

0
4

0
2

.2
7

4
2

8
5

8
0

.7
2

L
A

N
D

 A
T

 W
E

S
T

E
R

N
 E

N
D

 O
F

M
A

N
O

R
 F

A
R

M
 R

O
A

D
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
0

.5
1

4
4

0
3

2
5

.1
1

4
3

3
5

6
5

.8
0

F
O

R
M

E
R

 C
A

R
 S

A
L

E
S

 S
H

O
W

R
O

O
M

 A
N

D
 L

A
N

D
W

A
K

E
F

IE
L

D
 R

O
A

D
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
ta

ili
n

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.8
8

4
3

1
8

3
5

.2
5

4
3

3
5

1
1

.2
3

4
B

E
R

K
IN

G
 A

V
E

N
U

E
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.8
4

4
3

1
2

6
8

.2
7

4
3

3
2

6
9

.1
9

S
T

 M
A

R
Y

'S
 C

H
U

R
C

H
 &

 P
R

E
S

B
Y

T
E

R
Y

C
H

U
R

C
H

 R
O

A
D

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

R
e

lig
io

u
s
 B

u
ild

in
g

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
3

.5
9

4
3

2
2

3
1

.4
3

4
2

9
9

8
3

.8
4

L
A

N
D

 B
O

U
N

D
E

D
 B

Y
 M

O
T

O
R

W
A

Y
 A

6
1

 A
N

D
 A

6
3

9
W

A
K

E
F

IE
L

D
 R

O
A

D
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
L

a
n

d
fi
ll 

W
a

s
te

 D
is

p
o

s
a

l
A

llo
c
a

te
d

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
lu

d
0

.5
8

4
2

4
0

0
4

.6
7

4
3

4
4

6
1

.6
0

V
A

C
A

N
T

 L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 U
N

IT
 2

D
O

L
P

H
IN

 C
O

U
R

T
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.2
4

4
3

1
1

5
2

.4
1

4
3

3
8

2
5

.1
4

A
G

N
E

S
 S

T
E

W
A

R
T

 C
.E

. 
H

IG
H

 S
C

H
O

O
L

C
R

O
M

W
E

L
L

 S
T

R
E

E
T

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
1

.7
3

4
3

1
4

2
9

.9
6

4
2

9
5

4
6

.7
3

M
E

R
L

Y
N

 R
E

E
S

 H
IG

H
 S

C
H

O
O

L
M

ID
D

L
E

T
O

N
 R

O
A

D
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
8

4
2

4
4

4
3

.6
7

4
3

4
4

1
7

.8
4

C
L

E
A

R
E

D
 H

O
U

S
IN

G
 L

A
N

D
E

L
D

E
R

 R
O

A
D

A
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
6

4
2

4
3

3
6

.0
5

4
3

4
6

1
5

.6
3

R
E

M
O

V
A

L
 V

A
N

 P
A

R
K

B
A

T
H

 L
A

N
E

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
2

4
2

4
7

3
5

.9
5

4
3

4
4

8
3

.5
0

C
R

A
V

E
N

 M
IL

L
S

A
S

H
B

Y
 A

V
E

N
U

E
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.6
9

4
2

1
1

3
0

.6
1

4
3

4
6

7
5

.1
3

C
A

R
 P

A
R

K
C

O
T

E
 L

A
N

E
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
0

.3
6

4
2

7
9

5
2

.4
4

4
3

5
5

7
6

.0
8

C
A

R
D

IG
A

N
 H

O
U

S
E

C
A

R
D

IG
A

N
 R

O
A

D
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
4

4
2

0
4

4
6

.7
0

4
4

5
3

8
0

.9
5

F
O

R
M

E
R

 G
A

S
 H

O
L

D
E

R
 S

T
A

T
IO

N
C

R
O

W
 L

A
N

E
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
U

ti
lit

ie
s

W
it
h

in
 a

 z
o

n
e

 a
llo

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l

n
lu

d
2

.5
0

4
1

9
5

4
1

.1
3

4
4

1
7

1
0

.3
0

A
G

E
D

 P
E

R
S

O
N

S
 F

L
A

T
S

S
H

A
K

E
S

P
E

A
R

 R
O

A
D

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
8

4
3

1
3

9
0

.8
1

4
3

4
8

3
3

.7
0

R
O

S
E

V
IL

L
E

 C
E

N
T

R
E

G
L

E
D

H
O

W
 R

O
A

D
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.9
0

4
2

5
9

8
5

.7
3

4
4

0
1

2
7

.9
1

A
S

D
A

 C
A

R
 P

A
R

K
H

O
L

T
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
1

.1
5

4
2

6
1

3
4

.9
3

4
3

9
9

1
2

.3
8

S
O

U
T

H
E

R
N

 C
A

R
 P

A
R

K
F

A
R

R
E

R
 L

A
N

E
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
1

.1
8

4
3

1
2

7
1

.5
4

4
3

4
4

7
2

.4
6

P
R

IM
R

O
S

E
 H

IL
L

 H
IG

H
 S

C
H

O
O

L
H

IL
L

 S
T

R
E

E
T

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

u
ild

in
g

s
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
2

.5
0

4
2

2
2

1
2

.7
2

4
3

6
1

3
3

.4
5

Y
O

R
K

S
H

IR
E

 E
L

E
C

T
R

IC
IT

Y
 S

U
B

 S
T

A
T

IO
N

 A
N

D
 D

E
P

O
T

B
A

G
L

E
Y

 L
A

N
E

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
U

ti
lit

ie
s

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
0

.2
7

4
2

9
8

2
6

.5
9

4
3

5
1

6
9

.8
4

L
E

O
D

IS
 W

O
R

K
S

W
O

O
D

H
O

U
S

E
 S

T
R

E
E

T
D

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 /
 c

o
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
D

e
ta

ile
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
e

rm
is

s
io

n

n
lu

d
0

.4
7

4
2

8
5

0
2

.5
0

4
3

3
5

3
3

.4
2

H
A

Z
E

L
 P

R
O

D
U

C
T

S
A

R
M

L
E

Y
 R

O
A

D
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.4
1

4
3

6
4

5
1

.5
6

4
2

8
5

4
5

.3
4

L
A

N
D

 T
O

 R
E

A
R

 O
F

 7
7

 T
O

 7
9

A
B

E
R

F
O

R
D

 R
O

A
D

B
  

 V
a

c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

R
e

ta
ili

n
g

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
0

.6
2

4
2

3
5

2
4

.3
8

4
3

4
4

7
3

.4
8

V
A

C
A

N
T

 T
R

A
N

S
P

O
R

T
 D

E
P

O
T

S
W

IN
N

O
W

 V
IE

W
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.5
4

4
3

0
9

7
6

.8
9

4
3

2
6

5
3

.9
1

V
A

C
A

N
T

 W
A

R
E

H
O

U
S

E
 U

N
IT

C
A

R
L

IS
L

E
 R

O
A

D
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

S
to

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 W
a

re
h

o
u

s
in

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
8

4
2

6
8

8
6

.1
1

4
3

3
7

3
3

.0
3

4
1

 T
O

 4
5

S
T

A
N

N
IN

G
L

E
Y

 R
O

A
D

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
R

e
ta

ili
n

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.5
7

4
2

9
4

5
3

.9
8

4
3

3
0

2
8

.3
4

1
8

 T
O

 2
2

G
L

O
B

E
 R

O
A

D
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.3
4

4
3

1
1

9
0

.4
5

4
3

4
5

6
6

.6
0

1
7

 T
O

 1
9

D
O

L
L

Y
 L

A
N

E
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.4
2

4
3

5
3

2
6

.6
6

4
3

7
3

2
3

.2
8

F
U

L
D

E
N

E
 H

O
U

S
E

R
IN

G
 R

O
A

D
B

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

In
d

u
s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.2
8

4
2

3
1

4
0

.6
1

4
3

5
2

6
2

.0
3

S
IT

E
 O

F
 F

O
R

M
E

R
 B

L
U

E
 M

O
O

N
 P

U
B

L
IC

 H
O

U
S

E
S

U
M

M
E

R
F

IE
L

D
 D

R
IV

E
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
R

e
ta

ili
n

g
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.8
5

4
2

1
2

3
2

.8
0

4
3

3
1

4
5

.6
3

W
E

S
T

O
V

E
R

 W
O

R
K

S
U

P
P

E
R

M
O

O
R

E
  

 I
n

 u
s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
In

d
u

s
tr

y
N

o
n

e

n
lu

d
0

.4
4

4
4

0
6

6
8

.3
6

4
4

8
1

6
5

.7
8

C
A

R
 P

A
R

K
H

A
L

L
F

IE
L

D
 L

A
N

E
E

  
 I

n
 u

s
e

 -
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

N
o

n
e

n
lu

d
0

.6
5

4
4

0
6

6
8

.3
6

4
4

8
1

6
5

.7
8

S
IT

E
 O

F
 F

O
R

M
E

R
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 D

E
P

O
T

 A
N

D
 M

A
N

S
IO

N
H

A
L

L
F

IE
L

D
 L

A
N

E
A

  
 V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
S

to
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
N

o
n

e

u
c
s

3
.2

3
4

2
0

8
5

9
.8

3
4

3
4

3
1

5
.6

1
L

a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 S
it
e

 r
e

f 
2

5
0

0
3

3
0

P
u

d
s
e

y
 N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

3
.3

2
4

3
1

6
1

1
.6

1
4

2
9

8
1

2
.1

1
L

a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 S
it
e

 r
e

f 
2

1
0

2
5

6
0

H
u

n
s
le

t

u
c
s

0
.0

1
4

3
0

7
4

8
.9

7
4

3
3

2
6

3
.8

0
L

a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 S
it
e

 r
e

f 
2

0
0

0
3

5
0

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.0

4
4

3
0

6
1

0
.4

5
4

3
3

7
4

0
.7

3
L

a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 S
it
e

 r
e

f 
2

0
0

0
4

6
0

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.0

4
4

3
0

4
8

8
.4

8
4

3
3

2
5

6
.5

5
L

a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 S
it
e

 r
e

f 
2

0
0

0
4

8
0

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

1
5

Page 84



W
A

S
T

E
 S

IT
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

IO
N

 R
E

P
O

R
T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

S
O

U
R

C
E

A
R

E
A

_
H

A
X

_
C

O
O

R
D

Y
_

C
O

O
R

D
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

_
1

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
_

2
T

Y
P

E
_

C
O

D
E

L
A

N
D

_
U

S
E

_
C

P
L

G
_

S
T

A
T

U
S

u
c
s

0
.0

5
4

3
0

5
3

2
.7

5
4

3
3

3
5

5
.6

7
L

a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 S
it
e

 r
e

f 
2

0
0

2
5

8
0

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.1

1
4

2
5

0
2

8
.8

1
4

3
4

4
1

9
.9

7
L

a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 S
it
e

 r
e

f 
2

4
0

0
4

9
0

A
rm

le
y

u
c
s

0
.1

9
4

3
0

8
9

8
.5

7
4

3
5

2
4

5
.1

1
L

a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 S
it
e

 r
e

f 
3

4
0

1
9

3
0

C
h

a
p

e
l 
A

lle
rt

o
n

u
c
s

0
.0

3
4

3
0

2
2

2
.3

9
4

3
3

6
0

6
.1

1
L

a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 S
it
e

 r
e

f 
2

0
0

2
8

7
0

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.0

1
4

3
0

2
9

5
.1

3
4

3
3

7
7

8
.9

8
L

a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 S
it
e

 r
e

f 
2

0
0

2
9

1
0

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.0

3
4

3
0

0
6

0
.9

4
4

3
3

3
2

6
.8

8
L

a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 S
it
e

 r
e

f 
2

0
0

0
4

6
0

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.0

3
4

2
8

6
4

4
.0

2
4

3
6

8
9

6
.6

1
L

a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 S
it
e

 r
e

f 
2

6
0

2
6

5
0

W
e

e
tw

o
o

d

u
c
s

0
.0

2
4

2
9

1
6

4
.6

1
4

3
4

6
2

0
.1

8
L

a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 S
it
e

 r
e

f 
2

0
0

3
0

3
0

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.8

5
4

2
9

9
0

0
.7

0
4

3
2

6
5

7
.0

5
L

a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 S
it
e

 r
e

f 
2

0
0

3
0

4
0

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.5

3
4

3
1

0
0

9
.8

8
4

3
6

0
2

3
.0

5
L

a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 S
it
e

 r
e

f 
3

4
0

2
0

5
0

C
h

a
p

e
l 
A

lle
rt

o
n

u
c
s

0
.0

3
4

3
0

3
5

7
.6

7
4

3
3

7
5

2
.4

4
L

a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 S
it
e

 r
e

f 
2

0
0

3
0

5
0

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.0

5
4

3
0

6
5

2
.1

1
4

3
3

7
4

3
.0

5
L

a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 S
it
e

 r
e

f 
2

0
0

3
1

0
0

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.0

6
4

3
0

0
4

5
.3

3
4

3
3

3
2

6
.5

8
L

a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 S
it
e

 r
e

f 
2

0
0

3
1

2
0

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.0

3
4

3
5

1
5

8
.6

6
4

3
3

5
6

2
.5

9
L

a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 S
it
e

 r
e

f 
3

2
0

0
2

4
0

H
a

lt
o

n

u
c
s

0
.0

4
4

3
0

5
2

1
.3

0
4

3
3

4
1

3
.4

4
L

a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 S
it
e

 r
e

f 
2

0
0

3
1

7
0

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.0

8
4

2
9

7
6

1
.8

1
4

3
4

5
4

9
.5

2
L

a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 S
it
e

 r
e

f 
2

0
0

3
1

5
0

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.0

3
4

2
9

5
8

7
.9

0
4

3
2

8
6

5
.2

2
L

a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 S
it
e

 r
e

f 
2

0
0

3
1

8
1

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.1

1
4

2
6

5
4

3
.9

1
4

2
7

3
0

1
.9

8
L

a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 S
it
e

 r
e

f 
2

3
0

2
9

5
0

M
o

rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

4
.7

6
4

2
5

4
3

7
.7

4
4

3
8

9
8

3
.8

3
L

a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 S
it
e

 r
e

f 
2

6
0

2
6

9
0

C
o

o
k
ri
d

g
e

u
c
s

0
.2

9
4

2
9

3
1

0
.1

0
4

3
3

1
1

8
.8

3
L

a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 S
it
e

 r
e

f 
2

0
0

3
2

0
2

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.0

2
4

3
0

2
5

1
.6

6
4

3
3

4
1

7
.4

7
L

a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 S
it
e

 r
e

f 
2

0
0

3
2

4
0

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.0

3
4

3
0

6
4

9
.1

1
4

3
4

2
2

0
.9

4
L

a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 S
it
e

 r
e

f 
2

0
0

3
2

5
0

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.0

6
4

2
9

7
0

4
.3

6
4

3
3

3
9

3
.6

3
L

a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 S
it
e

 r
e

f 
2

0
0

3
2

6
0

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.0

4
4

2
9

6
2

4
.0

7
4

3
3

7
6

2
.5

8
L

a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 S
it
e

 r
e

f 
2

0
0

3
2

9
0

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.0

9
4

2
8

5
4

1
.4

5
4

3
4

6
8

3
.5

9
L

a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 S
it
e

 r
e

f 
2

6
0

2
7

1
0

H
e

a
d

in
g

le
y

u
c
s

0
.0

4
4

2
7

4
1

6
.5

9
4

3
5

9
4

8
.0

2
L

a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 S
it
e

 r
e

f 
2

6
0

2
7

3
0

H
e

a
d

in
g

le
y

u
c
s

0
.0

4
4

2
8

5
7

6
.4

4
4

3
4

6
5

6
.0

6
L

a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 S
it
e

 r
e

f 
2

6
0

2
7

4
0

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.2

4
4

4
0

5
5

9
.1

6
4

4
8

4
8

8
.0

6
L

a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 S
it
e

 r
e

f 
3

1
0

0
2

9
0

W
e

th
e

rb
y

u
c
s

0
.0

3
4

3
0

5
0

6
.6

9
4

3
6

6
6

4
.4

2
L

a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 S
it
e

 r
e

f 
3

4
0

2
1

0
0

C
h

a
p

e
l 
A

lle
rt

o
n

u
c
s

0
.6

4
4

3
0

3
7

3
.1

9
4

3
4

3
9

9
.9

8
L

a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 S
it
e

 r
e

f 
2

0
0

3
3

0
0

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.1

8
4

2
6

4
7

4
.1

3
4

2
7

8
5

1
.1

7
L

a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 S
it
e

 r
e

f 
2

3
0

3
0

0
0

M
o

rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

0
.2

1
4

2
2

3
1

9
.8

8
4

3
3

1
0

5
.9

7
L

a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 S
it
e

 r
e

f 
2

5
0

2
6

1
0

P
u

d
s
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

0
.1

6
4

2
8

5
4

8
.1

1
4

3
5

2
6

7
.4

7
L

a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 S
it
e

 r
e

f 
2

6
0

2
7

5
0

H
e

a
d

in
g

le
y

u
c
s

0
.1

0
4

2
4

4
3

0
.5

9
4

3
9

0
3

2
.9

7
L

a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 S
it
e

 r
e

f 
2

7
0

0
1

7
0

H
o

rs
fo

rt
h

u
c
s

0
.0

3
4

3
4

9
6

0
.3

6
4

3
3

3
5

9
.6

8
L

a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 S
it
e

 r
e

f 
3

2
0

0
3

1
0

H
a

lt
o

n

u
c
s

0
.5

4
4

3
1

0
4

6
.7

2
4

3
2

9
9

6
.4

1
B

a
n

k
 M

ill
s
, 

N
e

p
tu

n
e

 S
tr

e
e

t
R

ic
h

m
o

n
d

 H
ill

u
c
s

0
.9

1
4

3
0

9
5

3
.1

7
4

3
2

6
4

6
.2

7
D

e
p

o
t 

C
a

rl
is

le
 R

o
a

d
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.1

9
4

3
0

0
6

5
.3

1
4

3
2

6
1

4
.3

3
H

u
rl
e

y
 H

o
u

s
e

 D
e

w
s
b

u
ry

 R
o

a
d

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.4

7
4

3
0

1
1

9
.5

8
4

3
2

6
3

8
.8

8
L

a
n

d
 s

o
u

th
 o

f 
A

c
c
e

s
s
 r

o
a

d
 M

e
a

d
o

w
 L

a
n

e
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.5

5
4

3
0

1
2

7
.5

6
4

3
2

7
0

6
.9

4
L

a
n

d
 a

d
j 
to

 L
e

e
d

s
 O

ff
ic

e
 P

a
rk

 M
e

a
d

o
w

 L
a

n
e

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.9

1
4

2
9

9
0

3
.8

0
4

3
4

1
6

7
.7

7
C

 a
n

d
 D

 c
a

r 
p

a
rk

 P
o

rt
la

n
d

 C
re

s
c
e

n
t

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.2

3
4

2
9

4
7

5
.3

9
4

3
4

0
3

4
.9

5
S

t 
G

e
o

rg
e

's
 c

h
u

rc
h

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 c

e
n

tr
e

 G
re

a
t 

G
e

o
rg

e
 S

tr
e

e
t

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.2

0
4

2
9

2
2

5
.4

1
4

3
4

0
0

8
.9

2
S

t 
A

n
n

e
's

 A
n

n
e

x
e

 W
o

o
d

h
o

u
s
e

 S
q

u
a

re
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.1

7
4

2
9

2
3

2
.3

3
4

3
4

1
8

5
.8

0
C

a
r 

p
a

rk
 a

d
j 
to

 W
o

o
d

h
o

u
s
e

 H
a

ll,
 H

y
d

e
 S

tr
e

e
t

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.1

5
4

2
8

9
8

4
.5

8
4

3
4

2
1

3
.7

2
C

la
re

n
d

o
n

 R
o

a
d

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.1

2
4

2
9

0
6

6
.7

4
4

3
4

3
4

3
.6

6
N

o
 4

4
 H

y
d

e
 T

e
rr

a
c
e

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.0

3
4

2
9

0
5

7
.3

1
4

3
4

2
5

6
.8

7
R

e
a

r 
o

f 
3

8
 C

la
re

n
d

o
n

 R
o

a
d

, 
B

a
c
k
 H

y
d

e
 T

e
rr

a
c
e

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.1

5
4

2
9

1
1

6
.5

9
4

3
4

4
9

4
.8

7
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
e

le
c
tr

ic
it
y
 s

u
b

 -
 s

ta
ti
o

n
 M

o
u

n
t 

P
re

s
to

n
 S

tr
e

e
t

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.1

4
4

3
0

4
6

6
.9

4
4

3
3

8
9

5
.9

1
F

o
rm

e
r 

A
B

C
 C

in
e

m
a

, 
V

ic
a

r 
L

a
n

e
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.3

0
4

3
0

5
7

7
.0

0
4

3
3

9
7

5
.3

1
B

u
ild

in
g

 a
n

d
 C

a
r 

P
a

rk
 N

ile
 S

tr
e

e
t 

a
n

d
 T

ra
fa

lg
a

r 
S

tr
e

e
t

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.0

4
4

3
0

9
4

3
.1

3
4

3
3

4
7

6
.9

7
N

o
 8

0
 Y

o
rk

 S
tr

e
e

t
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.0

2
4

3
0

8
6

0
.9

4
4

3
3

4
9

0
.3

8
N

e
x
t 

to
 5

 S
t 

P
e

te
r'
s
 P

la
c
e

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.1

3
4

3
0

8
3

1
.8

3
4

3
3

4
8

5
.7

3
9

1
 S

t 
P

e
te

r'
s
 B

u
ild

in
g

s
 Y

o
rk

 S
tr

e
e

t
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.0

7
4

3
0

6
0

2
.2

5
4

3
3

3
9

7
.4

1
C

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

C
ro

s
s
 Y

o
rk

 S
tr

e
e

t 
a

n
d

 B
a

c
k
 Y

o
rk

 S
tr

e
e

t
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.0

9
4

3
0

4
8

9
.6

1
4

3
3

3
9

7
.9

5
8

4
 -

 8
6

 K
ir
k
g

a
te

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.0

2
4

3
0

4
3

9
.8

3
4

3
3

2
7

6
.1

1
2

8
 T

h
e

 C
a

lls
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.0

2
4

3
0

2
6

3
.8

3
4

3
3

0
9

0
.2

7
3

6
 -

 4
4

 B
ri
d

g
e

 E
n

d
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.1

5
4

3
0

5
7

7
.6

7
4

3
3

7
7

9
.7

5
C

h
in

a
to

w
n

 T
e

m
p

la
r 

L
a

n
e

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.0

5
4

3
0

5
4

4
.4

5
4

3
3

7
5

8
.8

4
T

e
m

p
la

r 
H

o
u

s
e

 L
a

d
y
 L

a
n

e
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.0

1
4

3
0

4
2

9
.0

0
4

3
3

6
2

5
.6

4
5

 -
 7

 H
a

re
w

o
o

d
 S

tr
e

e
t

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.0

8
4

2
9

4
3

8
.5

3
4

3
3

7
2

8
.2

0
P

o
lic

e
 H

e
a

d
q

u
a

rt
e

rs
, 

G
ra

c
e

 S
tr

e
e

t
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.0

2
4

2
9

2
5

0
.4

4
4

3
3

9
8

2
.1

1
1

3
 -

 1
4

 W
a

v
e

rl
e

y
 H

o
u

s
e

 W
o

o
d

h
o

u
s
e

 S
q

u
a

re
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.0

5
4

3
1

2
1

1
.9

8
4

3
3

6
3

0
.3

6
9

6
 M

a
rs

h
 L

a
n

e
R

ic
h

m
o

n
d

 H
ill

u
c
s

0
.0

2
4

3
1

1
8

5
.6

4
4

3
3

6
2

7
.0

0
B

u
ild

in
g

 a
d

j 
to

 9
6

 M
a

rs
h

 L
a

n
e

 M
a

rs
h

 L
a

n
e

/S
h

a
n

n
o

n
 S

tr
e

e
t

R
ic

h
m

o
n

d
 H

ill

u
c
s

0
.0

1
4

3
1

1
7

0
.6

1
4

3
3

6
3

0
.5

5
8

6
-9

4
 M

a
rs

h
 L

a
n

e
R

ic
h

m
o

n
d

 H
ill

u
c
s

1
.8

2
4

3
1

1
6

0
.1

7
4

3
3

5
3

1
.7

2
F

o
rm

e
r 

R
a

ilw
a

y
 Y

a
rd

 M
a

rs
h

 L
a

n
e

/S
h

a
n

n
o

n
 S

tr
e

e
t

R
ic

h
m

o
n

d
 H

ill

u
c
s

0
.1

1
4

3
0

2
9

4
.2

0
4

3
4

1
1

6
.9

5
H

u
m

e
 H

o
u

s
e

 L
o

v
e

ll 
P

a
rk

 R
o

a
d

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.0

6
4

3
0

2
5

7
.6

4
4

3
4

1
2

5
.3

3
T

o
w

e
r 

H
o

u
s
e

, 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
o

u
s
e

 S
tr

e
e

t
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.4

7
4

3
0

2
7

2
.3

8
4

3
4

1
9

0
.3

8
L

e
e

d
s
 M

e
t 

C
a

r 
P

a
rk

 E
lm

w
o

o
d

 R
o

a
d

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

1
6

Page 85



W
A

S
T

E
 S

IT
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

IO
N

 R
E

P
O

R
T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

S
O

U
R

C
E

A
R

E
A

_
H

A
X

_
C

O
O

R
D

Y
_

C
O

O
R

D
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

_
1

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
_

2
T

Y
P

E
_

C
O

D
E

L
A

N
D

_
U

S
E

_
C

P
L

G
_

S
T

A
T

U
S

u
c
s

0
.7

2
4

3
0

3
0

3
.1

1
4

3
4

2
3

6
.8

1
P

u
b

lic
 C

a
r 

P
a

rk
 E

lm
w

o
o

d
 S

tr
e

e
t

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.1

7
4

3
0

8
2

5
.3

1
4

3
4

2
3

5
.4

2
R

iv
ie

ra
 T

e
x
ti
le

s
 S

k
in

n
e

r 
L

a
n

e
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.4

0
4

3
0

8
1

3
.1

3
4

3
4

1
4

9
.7

2
R

e
g

e
n

ts
 P

a
rk

 H
o

u
s
e

 L
e

y
la

n
d

s
 R

o
a

d
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.2

9
4

3
0

7
3

0
.2

0
4

3
4

0
7

9
.8

8
C

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

B
y
ro

n
 S

tr
e

e
t 

a
n

d
 B

ri
d

g
e

 S
tr

e
e

t
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.5

8
4

3
0

5
6

3
.8

8
4

3
3

8
6

8
.6

4
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
 T

e
m

p
la

r 
S

tr
e

e
t

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.6

1
4

3
0

5
2

2
.3

4
4

3
3

7
9

1
.5

6
C

a
r 

p
a

rk
 T

e
m

p
la

r 
S

tr
e

e
t

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.2

8
4

3
0

3
9

1
.9

2
4

3
3

8
0

0
.1

1
9

7
 -

 1
0

9
 V

ic
a

r 
L

a
n

e
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

2
.0

5
4

3
0

8
3

6
.1

9
4

3
3

7
3

3
.2

2
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
 Q

u
a

rr
y
 H

ill
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.5

9
4

3
0

9
2

2
.9

1
4

3
3

5
6

7
.2

8
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
 Q

u
a

rr
y
 H

ill
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.1

9
4

3
0

8
6

5
.3

3
4

3
3

6
1

9
.2

2
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
 Q

u
a

rr
y
 H

ill
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.1

7
4

3
0

3
1

7
.1

3
4

3
3

7
6

0
.6

1
F

o
rm

e
r 

O
d

e
o

n
 C

in
e

m
a

 H
e

a
d

ro
w

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.1

1
4

2
9

9
5

5
.0

2
4

3
3

6
1

2
.7

8
N

a
r 

W
e

s
t 

U
p

p
e

r 
B

a
s
in

g
h

a
ll 

S
tr

e
e

t
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.0

5
4

2
9

8
3

1
.4

8
4

3
3

7
6

8
.2

0
A

b
o

v
e

 B
a

r 
3

8
 H

e
a

d
ro

w
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.0

5
4

2
9

7
6

1
.5

5
4

3
3

7
6

9
.0

9
A

b
o

v
e

 Q
u

o
 V

a
d

is
 H

e
a

d
ro

w
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.0

2
4

2
9

7
7

8
.6

4
4

3
3

7
5

1
.4

4
7

a
 S

o
u

th
 P

a
ra

d
e

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.0

5
4

2
9

8
9

0
.1

9
4

3
3

7
5

3
.0

2
3

 S
o

u
th

 P
a

ra
d

e
 (

P
h

o
e

n
ix

 H
o

u
s
e

)
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.1

1
4

2
9

8
0

0
.6

7
4

3
3

5
4

9
.2

0
B

a
n

k
 I

n
fi
rm

a
ry

 S
tr

e
e

t
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.0

1
4

2
9

6
4

3
.4

1
4

3
3

5
4

7
.6

1
4

2
 P

a
rk

 P
la

c
e

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.0

2
4

2
9

5
7

0
.2

1
4

3
3

6
0

1
.1

1
1

5
 P

a
rk

 P
la

c
e

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.2

1
4

2
9

3
9

2
.5

6
4

3
3

9
6

9
.6

1
J
o

s
e

p
h

's
 W

e
ll 

C
a

r 
P

a
rk

 C
h

o
rl
e

y
 L

a
n

e
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.0

6
4

2
9

0
7

6
.0

8
4

3
3

9
2

9
.0

0
3

4
 D

e
n

is
o

n
 H

a
ll 

H
a

n
o

v
e

r 
S

q
u

a
re

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.0

4
4

2
9

0
3

2
.0

0
4

3
3

9
0

5
.9

1
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
 n

e
x
t 

to
 O

a
k
 H

o
u

s
e

 P
a

rk
 L

a
n

e
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.0

5
4

2
8

9
9

3
.9

7
4

3
3

9
1

4
.2

0
O

a
k
 H

o
u

s
e

 P
a

rk
 L

a
n

e
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.2

4
4

2
8

8
9

2
.5

9
4

3
3

7
6

6
.0

0
C

h
a

rl
ie

 B
ro

w
n

s
 A

b
b

e
y
 S

tr
e

e
t

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.1

9
4

2
8

8
6

3
.6

6
4

3
3

8
2

7
.7

5
A

ir
e

to
n

 H
o

u
s
e

 S
t 

A
n

d
re

w
's

 P
la

c
e

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.3

7
4

2
9

0
4

3
.2

2
4

3
3

7
2

2
.8

8
W

in
s
to

n
s
 a

n
d

 L
a

n
d

 t
o

 r
e

a
r 

H
a

rc
o

u
rt

 P
la

c
e

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.9

6
4

2
9

0
2

7
.2

5
4

3
3

6
1

2
.0

0
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
 W

e
s
t 

S
tr

e
e

t
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.6

2
4

2
8

8
3

6
.1

6
4

3
3

5
5

7
.5

0
C

it
y
 G

a
te

, 
W

e
lli

n
g

to
n

 B
ri
d

g
e

 S
tr

e
e

t
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

1
.5

2
4

2
9

0
0

4
.6

9
4

3
3

2
9

4
.1

3
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 I
n

d
u

s
tr

ia
l 
U

n
it
s
 G

o
tt

s
 R

o
a

d
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

2
.5

4
4

2
8

9
6

4
.2

3
4

3
3

1
5

6
.9

7
L

a
n

d
 n

e
x
t 

to
 R

o
u

n
d

h
o

u
s
e

 G
ra

in
g

e
rs

 W
a

y
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.1

3
4

2
9

1
5

8
.9

5
4

3
3

5
4

9
.4

6
B

ri
d

g
e

 H
o

u
s
e

, 
W

e
s
tg

a
te

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.0

8
4

2
9

1
8

6
.3

4
4

3
3

5
7

8
.3

4
C

o
m

p
to

n
 H

o
u

s
e

, 
W

e
s
tg

a
te

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.1

1
4

2
9

2
1

2
.7

5
4

3
3

5
8

6
.5

2
E

b
o

r 
C

o
u

rt
, 

W
e

s
tg

a
te

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.0

3
4

2
9

2
3

4
.3

8
4

3
3

9
7

7
.1

7
C

o
rn

e
r 

B
ra

n
d

o
n

 R
o

a
d

/W
o

o
d

h
o

u
s
e

 S
q

u
a

re
 W

o
o

d
h

o
u

s
e

 S
q

u
a

re
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.1

6
4

2
9

6
9

9
.8

4
4

3
3

3
4

3
.5

5
2

4
 -

 3
5

 A
ir
e

 S
tr

e
e

t
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

1
.0

4
4

2
9

5
3

7
.4

8
4

3
3

3
8

2
.8

3
R

o
y
a

l 
M

a
il 

H
o

u
s
e

, 
A

ir
e

 S
tr

e
e

t
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.3

0
4

2
9

5
2

1
.3

9
4

3
3

5
0

7
.0

3
1

6
 -

 2
5

 Y
o

rk
 P

la
c
e

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

1
.1

1
4

2
9

2
0

9
.7

5
4

3
3

7
8

5
.1

7
M

a
rl
b

o
ro

u
g

h
 G

ra
n

g
e

 D
u

n
c
o

m
b

e
 S

tr
e

e
t/

P
a

rk
 L

a
n

e
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.2

5
4

2
9

0
8

2
.7

5
4

3
3

7
7

3
.8

0
1

7
 (

B
T

 B
u

ild
in

g
) 

M
a

rl
b

o
ro

u
g

h
 S

tr
e

e
t

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

1
.9

1
4

2
9

1
9

8
.9

7
4

3
3

3
5

8
.2

5
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
re

a
r 

o
f 

W
e

lli
n

g
to

n
 P

la
c
e

 (
s
tr

e
e

t)
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

2
.1

2
4

2
9

4
2

2
.6

7
4

3
3

2
1

3
.0

6
W

h
it
e

h
a

ll 
R

o
a

d
 C

a
r 

P
a

rk
 W

h
it
e

h
a

ll 
R

o
a

d
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

4
.7

7
4

2
9

3
0

7
.8

7
4

3
3

2
9

1
.2

8
A

ir
e

s
id

e
 C

e
n

tr
e

, 
 W

h
it
e

h
a

ll 
R

o
a

d
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.2

3
4

2
9

0
8

7
.1

6
4

3
3

2
2

5
.7

2
L

a
n

d
 o

ff
 M

o
n

k
 B

ri
d

g
e

 W
h

it
e

h
a

ll 
R

o
a

d
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.1

3
4

2
9

1
3

0
.9

5
4

3
3

1
5

1
.4

2
L

a
n

d
 o

ff
 M

o
n

k
 B

ri
d

g
e

 W
h

it
e

h
a

ll 
R

o
a

d
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

1
.8

5
4

2
9

1
6

1
.0

5
4

3
3

0
1

5
.9

4
M

o
n

k
 B

ri
d

g
e

 F
o

rg
e

, 
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
 W

h
it
e

h
a

ll 
R

o
a

d
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.2

0
4

2
9

3
0

1
.6

3
4

3
3

0
1

5
.9

7
L

a
n

d
 o

ff
 G

lo
b

e
 R

o
a

d
 G

lo
b

e
 R

o
a

d
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

1
.7

0
4

2
9

5
3

9
.2

8
4

3
3

0
0

0
.6

3
T

o
w

e
r 

W
o

rk
s
, 

G
lo

b
e

 R
o

a
d

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.2

6
4

2
9

5
6

6
.8

9
4

3
2

9
4

9
.4

2
C

a
r 

P
a

r 
o

p
p

o
s
it
e

 T
o

w
e

r 
W

o
rk

s
 G

lo
b

e
 R

o
a

d
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.1

7
4

2
9

6
2

2
.9

7
4

3
2

8
9

2
.1

7
9

9
- 

1
0

3
 W

a
te

r 
L

a
n

e
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.6

4
4

2
9

3
2

1
.4

7
4

3
2

7
7

3
.9

7
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
M

id
la

n
d

 M
ill

s
 W

a
te

r 
L

a
n

e
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

1
.9

8
4

2
9

4
1

0
.3

8
4

3
2

7
0

8
.4

2
L

a
n

d
 S

w
e

e
t 

S
tr

e
e

t 
W

e
s
t/

D
e

rw
e

n
t 

P
la

c
e

 B
a

th
 R

o
a

d
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.7

1
4

2
9

8
1

5
.8

3
4

3
2

4
8

2
.4

1
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
 S

w
e

e
t 

S
tr

e
e

t
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

1
.4

9
4

2
9

9
7

2
.8

8
4

3
2

3
3

6
.6

2
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 H
o

u
s
e

/A
p

e
x
 V

ie
w

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.6

3
4

3
0

0
9

0
.7

0
4

3
2

4
8

1
.4

1
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
 C

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

D
e

w
s
b

u
ry

 R
o

a
d

/H
o

lm
e

s
 S

tr
e

e
t

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.7

7
4

3
0

2
5

5
.9

2
4

3
2

3
6

8
.1

7
W

a
it
e

 L
a

n
d

/W
o

rk
s
 K

id
a

c
re

 S
tr

e
e

t
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.3

7
4

3
0

8
4

9
.1

7
4

3
2

6
0

7
.7

7
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
 C

h
a

d
w

ic
k
 S

tr
e

e
t

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

6
.5

7
4

3
0

9
0

1
.0

5
4

3
2

8
3

6
.0

0
C

la
re

n
c
e

 D
o

c
k
, 

C
la

re
n

c
e

 D
o

c
k

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

1
.5

1
4

3
0

0
1

4
.3

3
4

3
2

8
2

1
.4

2
H

in
d

le
 V

a
lv

e
s
 G

re
a

t 
W

ils
o

n
 S

tr
e

e
t/

V
ic

to
ri
a

 R
o

a
d

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.6

0
4

2
9

8
8

4
.6

6
4

3
2

8
9

3
.1

7
H

a
lif

a
c
 B

a
n

k
 C

a
r 

P
a

rk
 W

a
te

r 
L

a
n

e
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.1

2
4

2
9

8
7

7
.0

9
4

3
3

1
3

1
.5

5
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
H

ilt
o

n
 H

o
te

l 
L

it
tl
e

 N
e

v
ill

e
 S

tr
e

e
t

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.9

8
4

2
9

7
6

3
.3

3
4

3
3

0
9

9
.5

3
G

ra
n

a
ry

 W
h

a
rf

/C
a

n
a

l 
W

h
a

rf
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.0

5
4

2
9

1
0

3
.8

3
4

3
3

0
7

8
.0

3
M

o
n

k
 B

ri
d

g
e

 F
o

rg
e

 W
h

it
e

h
a

ll 
R

o
a

d
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.3

2
4

3
0

2
7

3
.6

4
4

3
4

4
1

4
.9

8
Is

la
n

d
 B

y
 H

a
lif

a
x
 C

la
y
 P

it
 L

a
n

e
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

1
.5

1
4

3
0

1
0

0
.0

5
4

3
4

3
1

4
.2

3
V

e
n

tu
ra

 H
o

u
s
e

/H
e

p
w

o
rt

h
 h

o
u

s
e

 C
la

y
 P

it
 L

a
n

e
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.2

4
4

3
0

9
7

7
.4

4
4

3
3

3
3

4
.4

1
C

lu
b

 c
o

rn
e

r 
M

ill
 S

tr
e

e
t/

M
a

rs
h

 L
a

n
e

R
ic

h
m

o
n

d
 H

ill

u
c
s

2
.2

6
4

3
0

5
4

8
.5

1
4

3
3

1
1

7
.4

8
B

re
w

e
ry

 W
h

a
rf

 B
o

w
m

a
n

 L
a

n
e

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.5

9
4

3
0

5
3

1
.4

7
4

3
2

4
0

3
.4

2
D

a
rn

e
ll 

W
o

rk
s
 L

e
a

th
le

y
 R

o
a

d
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.1

2
4

3
0

3
4

0
.7

5
4

3
2

3
2

8
.3

8
W

a
s
te

 g
ro

u
n

d
 I

v
o

ry
 S

tr
e

e
t

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

1
.6

1
4

3
0

8
9

9
.2

3
4

3
3

2
3

4
.5

0
H

o
w

a
rt

h
 T

im
b

e
r 

E
a

s
t 

S
tr

e
e

t
R

ic
h

m
o

n
d

 H
ill

1
7

Page 86



W
A

S
T

E
 S

IT
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

IO
N

 R
E

P
O

R
T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

S
O

U
R

C
E

A
R

E
A

_
H

A
X

_
C

O
O

R
D

Y
_

C
O

O
R

D
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

_
1

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
_

2
T

Y
P

E
_

C
O

D
E

L
A

N
D

_
U

S
E

_
C

P
L

G
_

S
T

A
T

U
S

u
c
s

0
.2

6
4

3
0

9
8

3
.5

6
4

3
3

0
6

2
.4

4
T

ri
n

it
y
 W

o
rk

s
 N

e
p

tu
n

e
 S

tr
e

e
t

R
ic

h
m

o
n

d
 H

ill

u
c
s

0
.1

5
4

3
0

6
1

7
.8

4
4

3
3

4
2

1
.5

5
4

4
 Y

o
rk

 S
tr

e
e

t
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.1

0
4

3
0

5
7

0
.9

8
4

3
3

4
0

8
.9

5
S

it
e

 a
t 

C
ro

s
s
 Y

o
rk

 S
tr

e
e

t 
C

ro
s
s
 Y

o
rk

 S
tr

e
e

t
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.2

3
4

3
1

1
1

6
.0

1
4

3
3

0
2

2
.6

4
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
E

a
s
t 

S
t 

a
n

d
 B

o
w

 S
tr

e
e

t 
E

a
s
t 

K
in

g
 S

tr
e

e
t

R
ic

h
m

o
n

d
 H

ill

u
c
s

0
.0

9
4

3
0

1
2

8
.9

7
4

3
9

2
0

7
.8

9
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
L

in
g

fi
e

ld
 G

ro
v
e

, 
M

o
o

r 
A

lle
rt

o
n

N
o

rt
h

u
c
s

0
.1

9
4

3
0

1
4

7
.6

7
4

3
9

5
4

6
.4

5
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
F

ir
 T

re
e

 G
re

e
n

, 
M

o
o

r 
A

lle
rt

o
n

N
o

rt
h

u
c
s

0
.1

1
4

3
0

6
6

7
.8

4
4

3
9

1
8

4
.4

3
L

a
n

d
 o

ff
 R

in
g

 R
o

a
d

, 
M

o
o

rt
o

w
n

M
o

o
rt

o
w

n

u
c
s

0
.0

2
4

3
2

3
4

1
.1

9
4

3
8

7
5

2
.8

4
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
D

e
v
o

n
s
h

ir
e

 L
a

n
e

, 
S

tr
e

e
t 

L
a

n
e

 t
o

w
n

 c
e

n
tr

e
R

o
u

n
d

h
a

y

u
c
s

0
.0

3
4

3
2

0
7

0
.4

5
4

3
8

8
1

1
.8

8
2

n
d

 F
lo

o
r 

O
ff

ic
e

 s
u

it
e

, 
D

e
v
o

n
s
h

ir
e

 H
o

u
s
e

 o
ff

ic
e

 c
o

m
p

le
x

R
o

u
n

d
h

a
y

u
c
s

0
.0

2
4

2
9

9
9

1
.2

8
4

3
8

5
5

7
.5

2
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
S

to
n

e
g

a
te

 R
o

a
d

 /
 K

in
g

 L
a

n
e

M
o

o
rt

o
w

n

u
c
s

0
.2

8
4

2
9

2
5

5
.6

6
4

3
8

7
4

7
.8

8
L

a
n

d
 o

ff
 S

a
x
o

n
 R

o
a

d
N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.2

7
4

2
9

3
8

2
.0

2
4

3
8

8
2

7
.9

4
L

a
n

d
 o

ff
 T

y
n

w
a

ld
 D

ri
v
e

N
o

rt
h

u
c
s

0
.1

1
4

2
9

3
1

5
.6

4
4

3
8

9
2

9
.6

3
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
T

y
n

w
a

ld
 C

lo
s
e

N
o

rt
h

u
c
s

0
.2

5
4

2
9

1
9

8
.3

6
4

3
8

8
3

5
.3

3
L

a
n

d
 o

ff
 T

y
n

w
a

ld
 R

o
a

d
N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.0

5
4

2
9

1
0

6
.6

7
4

3
8

7
7

7
.1

3
L

a
n

d
 o

ff
 A

ld
e

rt
o

n
 R

is
e

N
o

rt
h

u
c
s

0
.2

6
4

2
9

0
2

0
.6

1
4

3
8

6
8

5
.4

5
L

a
n

d
 o

ff
 A

ld
e

rt
o

n
 C

re
s
c
e

n
t

N
o

rt
h

u
c
s

0
.1

0
4

2
9

3
6

0
.3

9
4

3
9

2
2

7
.0

4
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
C

ra
n

m
e

r 
G

a
rd

e
n

s
N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.0

8
4

2
9

2
8

0
.4

4
4

3
9

0
1

8
.9

2
L

a
n

d
 o

ff
 T

y
n

w
a

ld
 M

o
u

n
t

N
o

rt
h

u
c
s

0
.0

5
4

2
9

2
5

7
.4

8
4

3
9

0
5

0
.5

0
L

a
n

d
 o

ff
 T

y
n

w
a

ld
 H

ill
N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.0

6
4

2
9

2
0

0
.3

3
4

3
9

1
6

6
.2

6
L

a
n

d
 o

ff
 C

ra
n

m
e

r 
B

a
n

k
N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.0

5
4

2
9

1
4

7
.1

7
4

3
9

1
9

5
.6

9
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 1

9
-2

9
 C

ra
n

m
e

r 
B

a
n

k
N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.0

8
4

2
9

1
2

1
.8

8
4

3
9

2
2

7
.9

7
L

a
n

d
 o

ff
 D

e
a

n
s
w

o
o

d
 V

ie
w

N
o

rt
h

u
c
s

0
.0

5
4

2
9

7
2

5
.5

8
4

3
9

2
0

1
.8

3
L

a
n

d
 o

ff
 L

in
g

fi
e

ld
 V

ie
w

N
o

rt
h

u
c
s

0
.0

5
4

2
9

7
6

2
.4

4
4

3
9

0
7

6
.8

1
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
L

in
g

fi
e

ld
 C

re
s
c
e

n
t

N
o

rt
h

u
c
s

0
.1

0
4

2
9

7
0

5
.0

8
4

3
9

1
7

2
.9

2
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
L

in
g

fi
e

ld
 B

a
n

k
N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.1

0
4

2
9

7
4

6
.4

6
4

3
9

1
1

4
.2

0
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
L

in
g

fi
e

ld
 W

a
lk

N
o

rt
h

u
c
s

0
.1

7
4

3
0

2
0

6
.5

8
4

3
8

8
6

0
.7

5
L

a
n

d
 o

ff
 Q

u
e

e
n

s
h

ill
 R

o
a

d
M

o
o

rt
o

w
n

u
c
s

1
.4

4
4

3
0

4
1

4
.3

9
4

3
8

7
1

6
.8

3
B

ra
c
k
e

n
h

u
rs

t,
 o

ff
 F

ie
ld

h
o

u
s
e

 D
ri
v
e

M
o

o
rt

o
w

n

u
c
s

0
.1

4
4

3
0

1
5

4
.9

2
4

3
8

3
7

3
.2

3
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
M

o
o

rl
a

n
d

 R
is

e
M

o
o

rt
o

w
n

u
c
s

0
.0

9
4

3
1

1
4

1
.1

3
4

3
8

8
8

7
.1

9
L

a
n

d
 o

ff
 T

h
e

 S
p

in
n

e
y

M
o

o
rt

o
w

n

u
c
s

0
.1

6
4

3
0

4
5

7
.5

5
4

3
7

7
8

8
.4

5
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
G

le
d

h
o

w
 V

a
lle

y
 R

o
a

d
 &

 H
a

rr
o

g
a

te
 R

o
a

d
M

o
o

rt
o

w
n

u
c
s

0
.0

3
4

3
0

4
8

8
.5

2
4

3
7

2
9

7
.5

0
P

ro
p

e
rt

y
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 1

7
0

, 
H

a
rr

o
g

a
te

 R
o

a
d

C
h

a
p

e
l 
A

lle
rt

o
n

u
c
s

0
.0

3
4

3
0

4
7

4
.9

7
4

3
7

0
3

8
.4

5
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 1

&
6

 S
ta

in
b

e
c
k
 C

o
rn

e
r,

 H
a

rr
o

g
a

te
 R

o
a

d
C

h
a

p
e

l 
A

lle
rt

o
n

u
c
s

0
.0

8
4

3
0

1
8

2
.4

5
4

3
7

4
5

5
.0

6
L

a
n

d
 o

ff
 W

o
o

d
 L

a
n

e
C

h
a

p
e

l 
A

lle
rt

o
n

u
c
s

0
.1

1
4

2
9

8
9

0
.6

6
4

3
7

2
2

7
.6

4
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

C
a

rr
h

o
lm

e
 V

ie
w

M
o

o
rt

o
w

n

u
c
s

0
.0

5
4

3
0

6
5

9
.5

4
4

3
6

8
2

9
.0

7
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

h
u

rc
h

 L
a

n
e

 &
 H

a
rr

o
g

a
te

 L
a

n
e

C
h

a
p

e
l 
A

lle
rt

o
n

u
c
s

0
.1

4
4

3
0

5
2

2
.1

4
4

3
6

9
4

0
.0

0
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 3

1
 H

a
rr

o
g

a
te

 R
o

a
d

C
h

a
p

e
l 
A

lle
rt

o
n

u
c
s

0
.0

6
4

3
0

2
2

6
.3

6
4

3
6

9
1

7
.6

3
L

a
n

d
 o

ff
 H

e
n

c
o

n
n

e
r 

L
a

n
e

C
h

a
p

e
l 
A

lle
rt

o
n

u
c
s

0
.1

1
4

3
0

3
6

2
.2

0
4

3
6

6
7

4
.2

2
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
1

 -
 2

1
 H

e
n

c
o

n
n

e
r 

A
v
e

n
u

e
C

h
a

p
e

l 
A

lle
rt

o
n

u
c
s

0
.1

0
4

3
0

3
3

2
.3

5
4

3
6

5
4

1
.3

5
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

 t
o

 8
5

 N
e

w
to

n
 L

o
d

g
e

 D
ri
v
e

C
h

a
p

e
l 
A

lle
rt

o
n

u
c
s

0
.1

4
4

3
0

3
7

3
.1

9
4

3
6

5
4

3
.8

3
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 8

4
 N

e
w

to
n

 L
o

d
g

e
 D

ri
v
e

C
h

a
p

e
l 
A

lle
rt

o
n

u
c
s

0
.2

5
4

2
9

9
9

5
.6

3
4

3
6

6
5

1
.9

2
R

u
tl
a

n
d

 L
o

d
g

e
, 

S
c
o

tt
h

a
ll 

R
o

a
d

C
h

a
p

e
l 
A

lle
rt

o
n

u
c
s

0
.9

7
4

3
0

2
7

1
.5

0
4

3
6

1
9

6
.5

3
P

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 a

t 
S

c
o

tt
h

a
ll 

S
q

u
a

re
C

h
a

p
e

l 
A

lle
rt

o
n

u
c
s

0
.1

1
4

2
9

7
5

8
.0

9
4

3
6

9
4

0
.6

7
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
M

ile
s
 H

ill
 C

re
s
c
e

n
t

C
h

a
p

e
l 
A

lle
rt

o
n

u
c
s

0
.4

6
4

2
9

8
2

1
.0

9
4

3
6

5
0

0
.1

6
P

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 a

t 
P

o
tt

e
rn

e
w

to
n

 M
o

u
n

t 
/ 

G
ro

v
e

C
h

a
p

e
l 
A

lle
rt

o
n

u
c
s

0
.3

1
4

2
9

6
6

3
.6

7
4

3
6

5
4

2
.5

5
P

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 a

t 
P

o
tt

e
rn

e
w

to
n

 M
o

u
n

t
C

h
a

p
e

l 
A

lle
rt

o
n

u
c
s

0
.3

1
4

2
9

5
7

4
.0

6
4

3
6

5
6

9
.9

7
P

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 a

t 
c
o

rn
e

r 
o

f 
P

o
tt

e
n

e
w

to
n

 M
o

u
n

t 
&

 L
a

n
e

C
h

a
p

e
l 
A

lle
rt

o
n

u
c
s

0
.5

4
4

3
3

7
2

6
.0

8
4

3
7

0
7

0
.9

7
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
W

e
th

e
rb

y
 R

o
a

d
R

o
u

n
d

h
a

y

u
c
s

0
.1

7
4

3
2

7
7

8
.9

7
4

3
6

9
5

6
.7

8
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 f

ro
n

t 
o

f 
1

, 
W

e
th

e
rb

y
 R

o
a

d
R

o
u

n
d

h
a

y

u
c
s

0
.1

2
4

3
2

2
5

6
.3

3
4

3
6

2
9

4
.0

0
3

5
7

, 
R

o
u

n
d

h
a

y
 R

o
a

d
R

o
u

n
d

h
a

y

u
c
s

0
.1

3
4

3
3

3
6

7
.9

0
4

3
6

2
8

5
.9

1
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
E

a
s
te

rl
y
 R

o
a

d
 &

 O
a

k
w

o
o

d
 L

a
n

e
R

o
u

n
d

h
a

y

u
c
s

0
.6

7
4

3
3

1
2

5
.4

2
4

3
6

3
5

0
.2

3
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
2

0
6

-2
3

2
 O

a
k
w

o
o

d
 L

a
n

e
R

o
u

n
d

h
a

y

u
c
s

0
.3

0
4

3
3

2
8

5
.6

9
4

3
6

4
3

6
.9

1
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
H

o
lli

n
 H

ill
 H

o
u

s
e

 &
 c

o
tt

a
g

e
s
, 

O
a

k
w

o
o

d
 L

a
n

e
R

o
u

n
d

h
a

y

u
c
s

0
.3

2
4

3
3

6
9

8
.0

7
4

3
6

5
2

2
.2

2
L

a
n

d
 o

ff
 B

e
lle

 v
u

e
 A

v
e

n
u

e
R

o
u

n
d

h
a

y

u
c
s

0
.0

7
4

3
3

8
0

7
.4

8
4

3
6

5
8

1
.9

5
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
B

e
lle

 v
u

e
 A

v
e

n
u

e
 &

 N
o

rt
h

 L
a

n
e

R
o

u
n

d
h

a
y

u
c
s

0
.1

4
4

3
3

6
5

6
.1

4
4

3
6

8
1

3
.6

7
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 2

4
 E

lm
e

te
 D

ri
v
e

R
o

u
n

d
h

a
y

u
c
s

0
.8

7
4

3
3

7
4

4
.7

8
4

3
6

8
9

2
.9

9
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
9

-2
5

 L
a

d
y
w

o
o

d
 M

e
a

d
R

o
u

n
d

h
a

y

u
c
s

0
.1

4
4

3
3

8
6

7
.3

8
4

3
6

4
8

5
.1

1
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
D

ib
 L

a
n

e
 &

 E
a

s
te

rl
y
 R

o
a

d
R

o
u

n
d

h
a

y

u
c
s

0
.0

8
4

3
3

8
0

7
.3

8
4

3
6

0
9

2
.9

7
L

a
n

d
 i
n

 F
e

a
rn

v
ill

e
 C

lo
s
e

H
a

re
h

ill
s

u
c
s

0
.2

6
4

3
3

7
3

3
.3

9
4

3
6

0
8

0
.4

1
'F

e
a

rn
v
ill

e
' o

ff
 D

ib
 L

a
n

e
H

a
re

h
ill

s

u
c
s

0
.1

2
4

3
3

6
7

0
.3

0
4

3
6

0
2

3
.4

8
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

e
a

rn
v
ill

e
 D

ri
v
e

 &
 D

ib
 L

a
n

e
H

a
re

h
ill

s

u
c
s

0
.0

9
4

3
3

4
0

6
.7

2
4

3
6

0
7

5
.7

3
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
A

m
b

e
rt

o
n

 C
lo

s
e

 &
 A

m
b

e
rt

o
n

 T
e

rr
a

c
e

H
a

re
h

ill
s

u
c
s

0
.1

2
4

3
3

3
6

8
.1

7
4

3
6

0
1

6
.6

4
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
th

e
 j
u

n
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
A

m
b

e
rt

o
n

 T
e

rr
a

c
e

 &
 M

o
n

ta
g

u
e

 A
v
e

n
u

e
H

a
re

h
ill

s

u
c
s

0
.1

7
4

2
4

4
9

9
.5

2
4

3
7

2
5

1
.2

3
L

it
tl
e

 H
a

w
k
s
w

o
rt

h
 W

o
o

d
, 

e
n

d
 o

f 
O

u
tw

o
o

d
 W

a
lk

H
o

rs
fo

rt
h

u
c
s

0
.3

6
4

2
4

2
3

0
.4

5
4

3
7

3
4

2
.4

1
T

ri
a

n
g

le
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 O

u
tw

o
o

d
 L

a
n

e
, 

W
o

o
d

 L
a

n
e

 &
 C

ra
g

g
w

o
o

d
 R

o
a

d
H

o
rs

fo
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.1

7
4

2
4

3
9

4
.9

3
4

3
7

4
2

3
.2

7
P

a
rt

 o
f 

C
ra

g
g

 W
o

o
d

 C
ra

g
g

w
o

o
d

 C
lo

s
e

H
o

rs
fo

rt
h

u
c
s

0
.2

7
4

2
4

0
1

5
.7

8
4

3
7

0
8

8
.5

3
W

o
o

d
s
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
N

o
's

 1
2

-2
6

 N
e

w
la

y
w

o
o

d
 R

is
e

H
o

rs
fo

rt
h

u
c
s

0
.1

3
4

2
5

1
3

1
.0

5
4

3
6

9
2

0
.7

3
B

e
tw

e
e

n
 1

1
1

 &
 1

1
3

  
T

h
e

 W
o

o
d

w
a

y
 P

.H
. 

V
e

s
p

e
r 

R
o

a
d

K
ir
k
s
ta

ll

u
c
s

0
.1

1
4

2
5

1
9

2
.1

3
4

3
6

8
2

6
.5

0
B

e
tw

e
e

n
 N

o
's

 3
&

5
 W

o
o

d
h

a
ll 

D
ri
v
e

K
ir
k
s
ta

ll

1
8

Page 87



W
A

S
T

E
 S

IT
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

IO
N

 R
E

P
O

R
T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

S
O

U
R

C
E

A
R

E
A

_
H

A
X

_
C

O
O

R
D

Y
_

C
O

O
R

D
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

_
1

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
_

2
T

Y
P

E
_

C
O

D
E

L
A

N
D

_
U

S
E

_
C

P
L

G
_

S
T

A
T

U
S

u
c
s

0
.6

6
4

2
5

3
4

0
.0

5
4

3
6

4
8

5
.2

3
P

a
rt

 o
f 

P
e

tr
o

l 
S

ta
ti
o

n
, 

A
b

b
e

y
 R

o
a

d
K

ir
k
s
ta

ll

u
c
s

0
.2

5
4

2
5

6
1

4
.0

6
4

3
6

3
8

2
.2

9
C

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

V
e

s
p

e
r 

L
a

n
e

 &
 A

b
b

e
y
 R

o
a

d
, 

A
b

b
e

y
 R

o
a

d
K

ir
k
s
ta

ll

u
c
s

0
.1

1
4

2
6

5
8

3
.0

2
4

3
5

7
7

7
.1

3
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 T

h
e

 R
e

c
to

ry
 -

  
S

t 
S

te
p

h
e

n
's

 C
 o

f 
E

 c
h

u
rc

h
, 

S
ta

ti
o

n
K

ir
k
s
ta

ll

u
c
s

0
.1

4
4

2
6

6
3

4
.6

6
4

3
5

7
2

0
.9

4
S

it
e

 o
f 

A
lm

h
o

u
s
e

s
 a

d
j 
to

 N
o

 9
1

 K
ir
k
s
ta

ll 
L

a
n

e
K

ir
k
s
ta

ll

u
c
s

0
.3

0
4

2
6

8
3

5
.0

9
4

3
5

7
9

8
.7

8
H

e
a

d
in

g
le

y
 S

ta
ti
o

n
 &

 W
o

rk
s
, 

S
a

y
e

rs
 C

lo
s
e

K
ir
k
s
ta

ll

u
c
s

0
.7

1
4

2
6

5
0

4
.4

5
4

3
5

5
8

2
.7

3
K

ir
k
s
ta

ll 
H

ill
  

(N
o

 6
)

K
ir
k
s
ta

ll

u
c
s

0
.1

5
4

2
6

3
9

8
.0

9
4

3
5

4
9

3
.3

3
L

ib
e

ra
l 
C

lu
b

 &
 C

a
r 

p
a

rk
, 

B
e

e
c
ro

ft
 S

tr
e

e
t

K
ir
k
s
ta

ll

u
c
s

0
.2

5
4

2
6

3
4

8
.9

7
4

3
5

5
2

1
.8

6
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 s

h
o

p
p

in
g

 c
e

n
tr

e
 o

n
 C

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
R

o
a

d
K

ir
k
s
ta

ll

u
c
s

0
.4

0
4

2
6

2
1

6
.4

2
4

3
5

5
4

5
.3

1
P

u
b

lic
 H

o
u

s
e

 &
 C

lu
b

 B
ri
d

g
e

 R
o

a
d

K
ir
k
s
ta

ll

u
c
s

0
.0

9
4

2
6

4
5

0
.8

3
4

3
5

4
9

2
.6

2
C

a
r 

p
a

rk
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
n

o
. 

2
8

 K
ir
k
s
ta

ll 
L

a
n

e
 &

 B
e

e
c
ro

ft
 S

tr
e

e
t

K
ir
k
s
ta

ll

u
c
s

0
.3

0
4

2
6

6
8

1
.0

0
4

3
5

4
4

1
.6

4
N

o
's

 5
6

-6
6

 &
 1

5
6

-1
7

0
, 

A
rg

ie
 A

v
e

n
u

e
K

ir
k
s
ta

ll

u
c
s

0
.2

3
4

2
6

7
7

8
.0

5
4

3
5

3
4

2
.3

0
F

o
rm

e
r 

g
a

ra
g

e
 c

o
u

rt
s
, 

A
rg

ie
 A

v
e

n
u

e
K

ir
k
s
ta

ll

u
c
s

0
.1

2
4

2
6

6
0

1
.7

0
4

3
5

2
1

2
.0

7
G

a
ra

g
e

 c
o

u
rt

 &
 p

a
rk

in
g

 a
re

a
, 

G
ilb

e
rt

 C
lo

s
e

K
ir
k
s
ta

ll

u
c
s

0
.1

7
4

2
6

6
0

0
.3

1
4

3
5

1
4

3
.2

9
A

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

K
ir
k
d

e
n

e
, 

 C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
R

o
a

d
K

ir
k
s
ta

ll

u
c
s

0
.2

1
4

2
6

5
5

7
.5

0
4

3
5

0
9

6
.8

1
F

o
rm

e
r 

fi
lli

n
g

 s
ta

ti
o

n
 a

t 
1

1
8

, 
C

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
R

o
a

d
K

ir
k
s
ta

ll

u
c
s

0
.6

3
4

2
6

2
8

0
.5

5
4

3
5

1
8

2
.7

2
R

e
a

r 
o

f 
S

t 
A

n
n

e
's

 M
ill

s
, 

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
R

o
a

d
K

ir
k
s
ta

ll

u
c
s

0
.1

9
4

2
7

0
9

4
.5

0
4

3
4

7
8

3
.3

1
P

e
tr

o
l 
fi
lli

n
g

 s
ta

ti
o

n
, 

K
ir
k
s
ta

ll 
R

o
a

d
K

ir
k
s
ta

ll

u
c
s

0
.2

6
4

2
7

7
2

2
.9

7
4

3
4

9
1

3
.7

8
F

a
c
to

ry
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 B

u
rl
e

y
 M

e
th

o
d

is
t 

C
h

u
rc

h
, 

C
a

rd
ig

a
n

 L
a

n
e

K
ir
k
s
ta

ll

u
c
s

0
.3

1
4

2
7

7
8

0
.4

8
4

3
4

4
6

2
.4

2
B

e
tw

e
e

n
 S

t 
M

a
tt

h
ia

s
 S

tr
e

e
t 

&
 W

o
ls

e
y
 R

o
a

d
, 

K
ir
k
s
ta

ll 
R

o
a

d
K

ir
k
s
ta

ll

u
c
s

1
.0

6
4

2
8

0
7

0
.7

1
4

3
4

0
9

9
.7

5
L

e
e

d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

D
e

p
o

t,
 W

ill
o

w
 R

o
a

d
K

ir
k
s
ta

ll

u
c
s

0
.2

8
4

2
8

0
4

1
.3

2
4

3
4

4
5

3
.5

9
A

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

c
lu

b
, 

W
ill

o
w

 L
a

n
e

K
ir
k
s
ta

ll

u
c
s

0
.3

3
4

2
8

0
6

5
.4

5
4

3
4

7
5

2
.0

2
W

o
rk

s
 b

u
ild

in
g

 2
1

0
-2

3
0

, 
C

a
rd

ig
a

n
 L

a
n

e
K

ir
k
s
ta

ll

u
c
s

0
.2

9
4

2
8

6
2

0
.2

0
4

3
4

7
0

2
.3

3
C

le
a

re
d

 c
a

n
a

l 
h

o
u

s
in

g
, 

B
e

n
s
o

n
 C

o
u

rt
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.2

5
4

2
8

2
7

1
.7

8
4

3
4

2
1

9
.3

8
In

 f
ro

n
t 

o
f 

R
a

d
io

 A
ir
e

, 
K

ir
k
s
ta

ll 
R

o
a

d
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.9

9
4

2
6

7
6

1
.9

2
4

3
4

9
6

6
.8

6
R

o
a

d
s
id

e
 v

e
rg

e
, 

s
o

u
th

s
id

e
 o

f 
C

o
m

m
e

c
ia

l 
R

o
a

d
K

ir
k
s
ta

ll

u
c
s

0
.0

5
4

2
9

0
3

1
.7

5
4

3
5

4
6

3
.6

3
F

o
rm

e
r 

P
o

s
t 

&
 S

o
rt

in
g

 O
ff

ic
e

, 
W

o
o

d
h

o
u

s
e

 S
tr

e
e

t
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.2

9
4

2
9

4
5

2
.9

2
4

3
5

3
6

7
.3

4
1

7
5

 &
 1

7
7

 &
 l
a

n
d

 t
o

 r
e

a
r 

o
f 

W
o

o
d

h
o

u
s
e

 S
tr

e
e

t
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.1

2
4

2
9

5
0

4
.9

5
4

3
5

3
3

9
.5

9
L

a
n

d
 e

it
h

e
r 

s
id

e
 o

f 
M

id
g

e
le

y
 P

la
c
e

, 
H

o
lb

o
rn

 A
p

p
ro

a
c
h

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.2

2
4

2
9

5
6

9
.9

5
4

3
5

3
6

4
.0

8
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
c
o

rn
e

r 
o

f 
M

o
o

rs
id

e
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

lu
b

, 
W

o
o

d
h

o
u

s
e

 S
tr

e
e

t
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.4

5
4

2
9

8
2

7
.3

4
4

3
5

2
4

7
.5

8
C

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

C
ra

v
e

n
 R

o
a

d
, 

in
 f

ro
n

t 
o

f 
G

ra
ft

o
n

 S
c
h

o
o

l,
 C

a
m

b
ri
d

g
e

 R
o

a
d

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.2

5
4

2
9

9
4

6
.9

3
4

3
5

0
9

5
.8

8
W

e
s
t 

c
o

rn
e

r 
o

f 
S

e
rv

ia
 H

ill
, 

S
e

rv
ia

 R
o

a
d

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.3

2
4

3
0

0
1

9
.5

0
4

3
5

0
7

2
.5

5
E

a
s
t 

c
o

rn
e

r 
o

f 
S

e
rv

ia
 H

ill
, 

S
e

rv
ia

 R
o

a
d

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.9

9
4

2
9

5
1

7
.3

9
4

3
5

1
5

9
.5

0
S

t 
M

a
rk

's
 c

h
u

rc
h

, 
S

t 
M

a
rk

's
 R

o
a

d
 (

E
3

a
:6

)
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.7

8
4

2
9

4
4

4
.0

0
4

3
5

2
0

8
.4

2
W

e
s
t 

o
f 

S
t 

M
a

rk
's

 c
h

u
rc

h
, 

S
t 

M
a

rk
's

 R
o

a
d

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.6

4
4

3
0

1
4

3
.7

9
4

3
5

1
8

5
.8

2
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

a
m

b
ri
d

g
e

 R
o

a
d

 &
 M

e
a

n
w

o
o

d
 R

o
a

d
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.0

6
4

3
0

3
4

4
.0

8
4

3
5

0
2

1
.7

3
1

2
0

 -
 1

3
4

, 
M

e
a

n
w

o
o

d
 R

o
a

d
, 

O
rm

o
n

d
e

 P
la

c
e

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.0

4
4

3
0

1
9

4
.1

7
4

3
5

1
7

1
.8

8
F

a
c
to

ry
, 

1
9

3
-1

9
7

, 
M

e
a

n
w

o
o

d
 R

o
a

d
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

1
.1

2
4

3
0

2
8

6
.8

3
4

3
5

4
4

3
.6

1
S

it
e

 o
ff

 B
u

s
lin

g
th

o
rp

e
 L

a
n

e
 /

 S
to

n
e

g
a

te
C

h
a

p
e

l 
A

lle
rt

o
n

u
c
s

0
.0

2
4

3
0

1
9

1
.1

1
4

3
5

5
5

1
.0

5
1

3
7

, 
B

u
s
lin

g
th

o
rp

e
 L

a
n

e
C

h
a

p
e

l 
A

lle
rt

o
n

u
c
s

0
.3

8
4

3
0

1
5

9
.2

8
4

3
5

6
0

7
.6

2
L

a
n

d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 B

u
s
lin

g
th

o
rp

e
 L

a
n

e
, 

L
o

rr
y
 B

a
n

k
 &

 S
c
o

tt
h

ill
 S

tr
e

e
t

C
h

a
p

e
l 
A

lle
rt

o
n

u
c
s

0
.0

8
4

3
0

0
1

7
.5

6
4

3
5

5
6

7
.1

9
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

o
t 

1
3

6
, 

B
u

s
lin

g
th

o
rp

e
 L

a
n

e
 a

t 
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
M

e
a

n
w

o
o

d
 R

o
a

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.1

1
4

3
0

2
2

4
.9

1
4

3
5

5
2

3
.9

4
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
B

u
s
lin

g
th

o
rp

e
 V

a
le

 &
 B

u
s
lin

g
th

o
rp

e
 L

a
n

e
C

h
a

p
e

l 
A

lle
rt

o
n

u
c
s

0
.1

2
4

3
0

4
1

9
.7

5
4

3
5

4
9

9
.4

8
L

a
n

d
 i
n

 f
ro

n
t 

o
f 

1
 -

 2
1

 S
c
o

tt
 H

a
ll 

D
ri
v
e

C
h

a
p

e
l 
A

lle
rt

o
n

u
c
s

0
.9

7
4

3
0

3
7

6
.5

8
4

3
5

6
7

2
.1

6
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
5

1
-7

7
, 

S
c
o

tt
 H

a
ll 

R
o

a
d

C
h

a
p

e
l 
A

lle
rt

o
n

u
c
s

0
.0

7
4

3
0

2
0

2
.5

0
4

3
5

3
6

2
.0

0
L

a
n

d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 S

to
c
k
s
 S

tr
e

e
t 

&
 P

e
n

ra
e

v
o

n
  

A
v
e

n
u

e
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.0

6
4

3
0

8
8

8
.0

2
4

3
5

9
7

8
.1

9
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
2

7
5

, 
C

h
a

p
e

l 
A

lle
rt

o
n

 R
o

a
d

 -
 B

a
c
k
 S

h
o

le
b

ro
k
e

 A
v
e

n
u

e
C

h
a

p
e

l 
A

lle
rt

o
n

u
c
s

0
.1

7
4

3
0

9
8

7
.9

7
4

3
5

9
4

4
.4

5
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
N

e
w

to
n

 R
o

a
d

 &
 W

o
o

d
la

n
d

 G
ro

v
e

C
h

a
p

e
l 
A

lle
rt

o
n

u
c
s

0
.1

8
4

3
0

7
4

4
.2

5
4

3
5

8
5

0
.9

7
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 C

e
n

tr
e

, 
4

0
, 

R
e

g
in

a
ld

 T
e

rr
a

c
e

C
h

a
p

e
l 
A

lle
rt

o
n

u
c
s

0
.0

8
4

3
0

9
6

5
.8

9
4

3
5

6
8

5
.1

3
1

4
6

 &
 1

4
8

 C
h

a
p

e
l 
A

lle
rt

o
n

 R
o

a
d

 &
 1

, 
G

ra
n

g
e

 A
v
e

n
u

e
C

h
a

p
e

l 
A

lle
rt

o
n

u
c
s

0
.0

5
4

3
0

9
5

7
.4

1
4

3
5

6
4

9
.6

9
1

4
4

 C
h

a
p

e
l 
A

lle
rt

o
n

 R
o

a
d

 &
 2

, 
G

ra
n

g
e

 A
v
e

n
u

e
C

h
a

p
e

l 
A

lle
rt

o
n

u
c
s

0
.1

1
4

3
0

8
1

2
.7

2
4

3
5

4
2

3
.4

5
L

a
n

d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 1

3
1

 &
 1

3
7

 C
h

a
p

e
l 
A

lle
rt

o
n

 R
o

a
d

C
h

a
p

e
l 
A

lle
rt

o
n

u
c
s

0
.3

8
4

2
4

5
7

5
.8

8
4

3
9

0
3

6
.0

5
L

a
n

d
 s

o
u

th
 o

f 
H

a
ig

h
 W

o
o

d
 c

re
s
c
e

n
t

C
o

o
k
ri
d

g
e

u
c
s

0
.6

8
4

2
5

3
0

1
.5

3
4

3
8

8
4

8
.3

1
C

o
o

k
ri
d

g
e

 H
o

s
p

it
a

l 
(a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

N
o

 1
9

),
 S

ilk
 M

ill
 W

a
y

C
o

o
k
ri
d

g
e

u
c
s

0
.4

1
4

2
5

4
0

9
.3

0
4

3
8

7
9

8
.0

5
S

o
c
ia

l 
C

e
n

tr
e

, 
C

o
o

k
ri
d

g
e

 H
o

s
p

it
a

l,
 S

ilk
 M

ill
 W

a
y

C
o

o
k
ri
d

g
e

u
c
s

0
.3

5
4

2
5

1
5

1
.5

5
4

3
8

5
9

9
.7

5
B

e
tw

e
e

n
 S

p
ri
n

g
 W

o
o

d
 &

 S
ilk

 M
ill

 A
p

p
ro

a
c
h

C
o

o
k
ri
d

g
e

u
c
s

0
.1

0
4

2
5

0
1

2
.0

5
4

3
8

6
4

9
.0

8
A

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

1
3

2
, 

S
ilk

 M
ill

 A
p

p
ro

a
c
h

C
o

o
k
ri
d

g
e

u
c
s

0
.1

9
4

2
5

0
8

6
.3

8
4

3
8

7
0

4
.8

0
R

e
a

r 
o

f 
6

8
 -

 8
6

m
 S

ilk
 M

ill
 A

p
p

ro
a

c
h

C
o

o
k
ri
d

g
e

u
c
s

0
.3

7
4

2
5

6
2

5
.6

7
4

3
8

7
7

7
.7

0
E

a
s
t 

o
f 

S
ilk

 M
ill

 M
e

w
s
, 

S
ilk

 M
ill

 A
p

p
ro

a
c
h

C
o

o
k
ri
d

g
e

u
c
s

1
.7

3
4

2
5

7
0

6
.6

4
4

3
8

1
1

6
.3

3
W

ir
a

 H
o

u
s
e

, 
C

la
y
to

n
 W

o
o

d
 R

is
e

 /
 R

in
g

 R
o

a
d

W
e

e
tw

o
o

d

u
c
s

0
.2

6
4

2
5

8
2

8
.2

6
4

3
8

1
9

0
.0

6
F

a
c
to

ry
 o

p
p

o
s
it
e

 W
ir
a

 H
o

u
s
e

, 
C

la
y
to

n
 W

o
o

d
 R

is
e

W
e

e
tw

o
o

d

u
c
s

0
.3

1
4

2
5

8
2

1
.0

5
4

3
8

3
4

5
.9

2
A

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

W
o

o
d

s
id

e
 C

o
u

rt
, 

C
la

y
to

n
 W

o
o

d
 C

lo
s
e

W
e

e
tw

o
o

d

u
c
s

0
.2

4
4

2
5

9
0

3
.6

9
4

3
8

3
4

1
.2

3
A

d
jo

in
in

g
 E

3
B

:1
2

, 
o

p
p

o
s
it
e

 N
L

U
D

 4
7

2
0

0
1

0
4

2
, 

C
la

y
to

n
 W

o
o

d
 C

lo
s
e

W
e

e
tw

o
o

d

u
c
s

1
.1

5
4

2
5

6
5

5
.2

2
4

3
8

2
4

6
.3

6
C

la
y
to

n
 W

o
o

d
 P

o
n

d
s
, 

C
la

y
to

n
 W

o
o

d
 R

o
a

d
W

e
e

tw
o

o
d

u
c
s

1
4

.5
1

4
2

5
4

9
8

.5
8

4
3

8
3

3
0

.0
4

W
o

o
d

s
id

e
 Q

u
a

rr
y
, 

C
la

y
to

n
 W

o
o

d
 R

o
a

d
W

e
e

tw
o

o
d

u
c
s

0
.3

1
4

2
5

6
9

1
.3

9
4

3
8

0
1

6
.0

8
A

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

1
 -

 6
1

 C
la

y
to

n
 W

o
o

d
 C

o
u

rt
, 

R
in

g
 R

o
a

d
W

e
e

tw
o

o
d

u
c
s

0
.1

9
4

2
5

5
6

7
.3

3
4

3
7

9
6

0
.4

7
A

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

6
1

-6
7

 F
ill

in
g

fi
r 

D
ri
v
e

, 
R

in
g

 R
o

a
d

W
e

e
tw

o
o

d

u
c
s

0
.0

9
4

2
5

6
8

1
.1

7
4

3
7

8
0

0
.9

5
B

e
tw

e
e

n
 2

3
 &

 2
5

 F
ill

in
g

fi
r 

D
ri
v
e

W
e

e
tw

o
o

d

u
c
s

0
.1

9
4

2
5

7
0

7
.1

9
4

3
7

8
3

2
.2

8
E

n
d

 o
f 

L
a

tc
h

m
e

re
V

ie
w

, 
L

a
tc

h
m

e
re

 V
ie

w
/ 

F
ill

in
g

fi
r 

D
ri
v
e

W
e

e
tw

o
o

d

u
c
s

0
.1

0
4

2
5

9
1

2
.1

6
4

3
7

7
9

4
.0

9
E

n
d

 o
f 

O
ld

 F
a

rm
 W

a
lk

, 
L

a
tc

h
m

e
re

 R
o

a
d

W
e

e
tw

o
o

d

1
9

Page 88



W
A

S
T

E
 S

IT
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

IO
N

 R
E

P
O

R
T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

S
O

U
R

C
E

A
R

E
A

_
H

A
X

_
C

O
O

R
D

Y
_

C
O

O
R

D
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

_
1

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
_

2
T

Y
P

E
_

C
O

D
E

L
A

N
D

_
U

S
E

_
C

P
L

G
_

S
T

A
T

U
S

u
c
s

1
.3

6
4

2
5

2
7

0
.3

6
4

3
7

7
8

4
.8

8
V

e
h

ic
le

 B
re

a
k
e

rs
 Y

a
rd

, 
C

o
rn

 M
ill

 F
o

ld
H

o
rs

fo
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.6

4
4

2
0

6
3

2
.4

5
4

3
9

7
9

9
.8

2
r/

o
T

h
e

 S
h

ir
e

s
 &

 4
 -

 7
 L

o
w

 F
o

ld
, 

N
e

w
 R

o
a

d
 S

id
e

A
ir
e

b
o

ro
u

g
h

u
c
s

0
.1

9
4

2
0

7
8

5
.0

2
4

3
9

8
1

7
.7

7
F

o
rm

e
r 

fi
lli

n
g

 s
ta

ti
o

n
, 

N
e

w
 R

o
a

d
 S

id
e

A
ir
e

b
o

ro
u

g
h

u
c
s

0
.2

0
4

2
0

9
2

0
.5

8
4

3
9

7
8

4
.8

6
A

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

N
o

 4
, 

J
o

h
n

 S
tr

e
e

t
O

tl
e

y
 &

 W
h

a
rf

e
d

a
le

u
c
s

0
.0

2
4

2
0

8
1

0
.1

6
4

3
9

7
4

7
.0

0
N

e
w

 R
o

a
d

 S
id

e
A

ir
e

b
o

ro
u

g
h

u
c
s

0
.1

0
4

2
1

2
0

8
.8

0
4

4
1

0
4

7
.4

5
Q

u
a

rr
y
 M

o
u

n
t,

 A
le

x
a

n
d

ra
 T

e
rr

a
c
e

, 
Y

e
a

d
o

n
A

ir
e

b
o

ro
u

g
h

u
c
s

0
.0

8
4

2
1

1
2

5
.5

2
4

4
1

2
5

9
.6

3
G

a
ra

g
e

s
, 

A
lb

e
rt

 S
q

u
a

re
A

ir
e

b
o

ro
u

g
h

u
c
s

0
.1

1
4

2
1

1
8

6
.3

4
4

4
1

2
3

3
.8

3
A

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

W
o

rl
d

's
 E

n
d

, 
C

e
m

e
te

ry
 R

o
a

d
A

ir
e

b
o

ro
u

g
h

u
c
s

0
.1

0
4

2
0

8
5

1
.4

8
4

4
1

3
5

3
.6

6
G

a
ra

g
e

s
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

H
a

w
th

o
rn

e
 C

re
s
c
e

n
t,

 H
a

w
 L

a
n

e
A

ir
e

b
o

ro
u

g
h

u
c
s

0
.1

3
4

2
0

7
4

9
.8

0
4

4
1

2
0

4
.7

0
C

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

H
a

w
th

o
rn

e
 L

a
n

e
 &

 S
ilv

e
r 

L
a

n
e

 ,
 Y

e
a

d
o

n
A

ir
e

b
o

ro
u

g
h

u
c
s

0
.0

6
4

2
0

3
5

9
.6

4
4

4
1

2
2

7
.1

9
E

n
d

 o
f 

P
a

rk
 G

ro
v
e

, 
Y

e
a

d
o

n
A

ir
e

b
o

ro
u

g
h

u
c
s

0
.2

0
4

2
0

4
3

8
.5

5
4

4
1

0
7

1
.6

8
R

e
a

r 
o

f 
1

5
 -

 2
1

, 
K

ir
k
 L

a
n

e
, 

Y
e

a
d

o
n

A
ir
e

b
o

ro
u

g
h

u
c
s

0
.1

1
4

2
1

0
6

0
.5

3
4

4
1

1
2

1
.3

9
C

o
rn

e
r 

H
ig

h
 S

tr
e

e
t 

&
 H

a
rp

e
r 

L
a

n
e

A
ir
e

b
o

ro
u

g
h

u
c
s

0
.2

9
4

2
0

9
5

1
.1

3
4

4
1

2
0

3
.7

4
O

p
p

o
s
it
e

 C
o

n
s
o

rt
 H

o
u

s
e

, 
M

a
rs

h
a

ll 
S

tr
e

e
t

A
ir
e

b
o

ro
u

g
h

u
c
s

0
.2

4
4

2
1

0
4

3
.9

5
4

4
1

2
2

7
.2

5
A

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

&
 b

e
h

in
d

 N
o

 4
 M

a
rs

h
a

ll 
S

tr
e

e
t

A
ir
e

b
o

ro
u

g
h

u
c
s

0
.0

3
4

2
0

9
7

5
.6

1
4

4
1

1
6

9
.7

3
6

7
, 

K
in

g
 S

tr
e

e
t,

 Y
e

a
d

o
n

 (
 u

p
p

e
r 

fl
o

o
rs

)
A

ir
e

b
o

ro
u

g
h

u
c
s

0
.0

9
4

2
0

7
2

5
.4

8
4

4
1

1
4

1
.7

2
A

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

N
o

 8
 T

o
w

n
 S

tr
e

e
t,

 Y
e

a
d

o
n

A
ir
e

b
o

ro
u

g
h

u
c
s

0
.3

7
4

2
0

8
1

2
.4

5
4

4
1

0
2

5
.0

6
In

 f
ro

n
t 

o
f 

A
b

b
e

y
 G

a
rt

h
, 

W
e

ll 
H

ill
A

ir
e

b
o

ro
u

g
h

u
c
s

0
.1

7
4

2
0

6
4

8
.0

2
4

4
0

9
7

8
.0

3
C

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

H
a

rp
e

r 
T

e
rr

a
c
e

 &
 S

o
u

th
v
ie

w
 R

o
a

d
A

ir
e

b
o

ro
u

g
h

u
c
s

0
.7

9
4

2
2

8
7

9
.4

5
4

3
8

1
8

2
.8

6
R

e
a

r 
o

f 
1

2
 &

 1
4

, 
W

e
s
t 

E
n

d
 R

is
e

H
o

rs
fo

rt
h

u
c
s

0
.1

5
4

2
3

1
2

2
.7

6
4

3
4

8
7

9
.0

0
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
c
o

rn
e

r 
o

f 
B

ro
a

d
 L

a
n

e
 &

 S
w

in
n

o
w

 L
a

n
e

B
ra

m
le

y

u
c
s

0
.4

2
4

2
3

7
6

9
.2

8
4

3
4

7
6

1
.5

0
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
F

a
ir
fi
e

ld
 S

tr
e

e
t 

- 
N

o
's

 4
7

 -
 8

5
B

ra
m

le
y

u
c
s

0
.5

7
4

2
3

9
4

2
.4

1
4

3
4

7
5

3
.4

4
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
F

a
ir
fi
e

ld
 S

tr
e

e
t 

- 
N

o
's

 9
9

 -
 1

5
3

B
ra

m
le

y

u
c
s

0
.3

8
4

2
3

7
4

2
.6

9
4

3
4

7
1

6
.4

4
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
F

a
ir
fi
e

ld
 S

tr
e

e
t 

- 
N

o
's

 3
8

- 
7

6
B

ra
m

le
y

u
c
s

0
.0

6
4

2
4

0
8

9
.3

0
4

3
4

6
5

7
.6

7
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

S
ta

ti
o

n
 M

o
u

n
t 

a
n

d
 T

e
rr

a
c
e

, 
o

n
 R

o
s
e

m
o

n
t 

T
e

rr
a

c
e

B
ra

m
le

y

u
c
s

0
.5

8
4

2
4

0
0

4
.6

7
4

3
4

4
6

1
.6

0
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
B

ra
m

le
y
 S

ta
ti
o

n
, 

S
w

in
n

o
w

 R
o

a
d

 /
 S

ta
n

n
in

g
le

y
 R

o
a

d
B

ra
m

le
y

u
c
s

0
.5

6
4

2
4

0
4

9
.1

1
4

3
4

3
1

8
.5

2
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 S

a
fe

w
a

y
's

 s
u

p
e

rm
a

rk
e

t,
 S

w
in

n
o

w
 R

o
a

d
A

rm
le

y

u
c
s

0
.1

8
4

2
3

9
5

9
.5

6
4

3
4

3
1

9
.1

7
L

a
n

d
 i
n

 f
ro

n
t 

o
f 

S
a

fe
w

a
y
's

 s
u

p
e

rm
a

rk
e

t,
 S

w
in

n
o

w
 R

o
a

d
A

rm
le

y

u
c
s

1
.3

6
4

2
3

6
8

1
.9

2
4

3
4

4
0

4
.9

7
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 S

u
n

n
y
s
id

e
 R

o
a

d
, 

S
ta

n
n

in
g

le
y
 B

y
p

a
s
s

B
ra

m
le

y

u
c
s

0
.1

8
4

2
3

4
1

7
.3

9
4

3
4

6
5

9
.7

0
A

llo
tm

e
n

ts
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 4

3
2

 S
ta

n
n

in
g

le
y
 R

o
a

d
B

ra
m

le
y

u
c
s

0
.1

1
4

2
2

6
4

5
.9

4
4

3
4

7
8

6
.8

3
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
W

a
g

o
n

 &
 H

o
rs

e
s
 P

H
, 

T
o

w
n

 S
tr

e
e

t
B

ra
m

le
y

u
c
s

0
.1

0
4

2
2

4
1

1
.7

5
4

3
4

5
9

7
.5

3
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
K

e
ig

h
le

y
 P

la
c
e

P
u

d
s
e

y
 N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.0

5
4

2
2

4
5

0
.3

1
4

3
4

7
0

8
.7

0
W

o
rk

s
 o

ff
 V

ic
k
e

rs
d

a
le

, 
e

n
d

 o
f 

G
ro

v
e

 s
tr

e
e

t
B

ra
m

le
y

u
c
s

0
.0

4
4

2
2

3
6

7
.3

6
4

3
4

7
5

2
.4

8
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
A

d
a

's
 P

la
c
e

 /
 H

a
y
d

n
's

 T
e

rr
a

c
e

B
ra

m
le

y

u
c
s

0
.2

7
4

2
2

4
2

1
.6

7
4

3
4

7
5

8
.3

6
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
A

rt
h

u
r 

S
tr

e
e

t/
F

e
rn

 T
e

rr
a

c
e

/ 
G

ro
v
e

 S
tr

e
e

t
B

ra
m

le
y

u
c
s

0
.2

1
4

2
2

4
0

4
.8

4
4

3
4

6
9

3
.2

5
D

e
p

o
t 

o
n

 A
rt

h
u

r 
S

tr
e

e
t/

G
ro

v
e

 S
tr

e
e

t
B

ra
m

le
y

u
c
s

3
.9

7
4

2
2

2
1

4
.6

3
4

3
4

6
1

8
.4

1
S

ta
n

n
in

g
le

y
 W

o
rk

s
, 

T
o

w
n

 S
tr

e
e

t
B

ra
m

le
y

u
c
s

0
.1

1
4

2
2

2
5

8
.8

9
4

3
4

5
0

8
.9

7
L

a
n

d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 T

o
w

n
 S

tr
e

e
t/

 W
o

o
d

's
 R

o
w

 &
 V

e
rn

o
n

 P
la

c
e

B
ra

m
le

y

u
c
s

0
.0

8
4

2
2

3
0

5
.7

7
4

3
4

5
4

0
.7

8
S

c
ra

p
 m

e
ta

l 
y
a

rd
 o

ff
 T

o
w

n
 S

tr
e

e
t/

 F
o

w
le

r'
s
 P

la
c
e

B
ra

m
le

y

u
c
s

0
.0

9
4

2
2

0
2

3
.9

7
4

3
4

2
4

4
.7

7
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
B

o
o

c
o

c
k
 S

tr
e

e
t 

o
ff

 V
a

rl
e

y
 S

tr
e

e
t

P
u

d
s
e

y
 N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.3

2
4

2
1

9
5

6
.9

1
4

3
4

1
6

1
.3

1
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
L

e
ig

h
 H

o
u

s
e

, 
V

a
rl
e

y
 S

tr
e

e
t

P
u

d
s
e

y
 N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.1

7
4

2
2

0
9

1
.0

2
4

3
4

2
4

9
.1

8
L

a
n

d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 1

0
8

 &
 9

6
 R

ic
h

a
rd

s
h

a
w

 L
a

n
e

P
u

d
s
e

y
 N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.2

4
4

2
2

0
2

6
.1

9
4

3
4

1
6

8
.9

2
W

a
re

h
o

u
s
e

 a
d

ja
c
e

n
t 

to
 1

7
1

, 
R

ic
h

a
rd

s
h

a
w

 L
a

n
e

P
u

d
s
e

y
 N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

2
.9

5
4

2
2

5
4

0
.8

8
4

3
4

5
4

6
.8

8
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 r
e

a
r 

o
f 

O
ff

c
o

 H
o

u
s
e

, 
T

o
w

n
 S

tr
e

e
t

B
ra

m
le

y

u
c
s

0
.1

4
4

2
4

8
2

8
.6

2
4

3
4

5
7

2
.5

0
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 B

a
rl
e

y
 M

o
w

 P
H

, 
L

o
w

e
r 

T
o

w
n

 S
tr

e
e

t
B

ra
m

le
y

u
c
s

0
.1

1
4

2
4

7
3

8
.6

3
4

3
4

4
1

1
.5

8
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 4

0
1

, 
S

ta
n

n
in

g
le

y
 R

o
a

d
A

rm
le

y

u
c
s

0
.0

7
4

2
4

6
8

6
.3

3
4

3
4

4
2

0
.1

6
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
B

a
c
k
 L

a
n

e
 &

 S
ta

n
n

in
g

le
y
 R

o
a

d
A

rm
le

y

u
c
s

0
.8

1
4

2
4

9
5

3
.0

0
4

3
4

3
4

9
.0

3
C

lif
to

n
 H

o
u

s
e

, 
3

7
7

, 
S

ta
n

n
in

g
le

y
 R

o
a

d
A

rm
le

y

u
c
s

0
.0

4
4

2
4

8
1

3
.6

6
4

3
4

4
2

4
.0

5
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 3

8
7

, 
S

ta
n

n
in

g
le

y
 R

o
a

d
A

rm
le

y

u
c
s

0
.1

3
4

2
4

4
3

5
.6

7
4

3
4

0
7

8
.4

1
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 G

ra
n

g
e

 B
u

n
g

a
lo

w
, 

S
p

ri
n

g
 V

a
lle

y
A

rm
le

y

u
c
s

0
.2

8
4

2
4

4
4

3
.6

7
4

3
4

4
1

7
.8

4
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
S

c
a

rb
ro

' j
u

n
c
ti
o

n
 o

ff
 S

ta
n

n
in

g
le

y
 R

o
a

d
/ 

E
ld

e
r 

R
o

a
d

A
rm

le
y

u
c
s

0
.3

0
4

2
4

2
3

8
.9

1
4

3
4

4
2

6
.7

3
4

7
3

, 
S

ta
n

n
in

g
le

y
 R

o
a

d
A

rm
le

y

u
c
s

0
.7

2
4

2
4

0
9

9
.7

2
4

3
4

3
9

5
.3

4
L

a
n

d
 o

ff
 E

ld
e

r 
R

o
a

d
/ 

S
w

in
n

o
w

 R
o

a
d

A
rm

le
y

u
c
s

0
.1

5
4

2
4

3
7

0
.6

6
4

3
4

7
9

5
.0

0
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
H

e
n

le
y
 C

re
s
c
e

n
t/

 H
e

n
le

y
 V

ie
w

B
ra

m
le

y

u
c
s

0
.1

4
4

2
4

2
5

1
.9

4
4

3
4

7
2

6
.6

7
L

a
n

d
 o

ff
 M

e
lb

o
u

rn
e

 G
ro

v
e

/B
ri
g

h
to

n
 C

lif
f

B
ra

m
le

y

u
c
s

0
.5

1
4

2
4

3
5

3
.3

6
4

3
4

6
7

6
.3

1
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
3

0
-3

4
, 

B
a

th
 L

a
n

e
B

ra
m

le
y

u
c
s

0
.2

6
4

2
4

3
3

6
.0

5
4

3
4

6
1

5
.6

3
W

o
rk

s
 s

it
e

, 
B

a
th

 L
a

n
e

B
ra

m
le

y

u
c
s

0
.3

2
4

2
4

7
3

5
.9

5
4

3
4

4
8

3
.5

0
C

ra
v
e

n
 M

ill
s
, 

D
a

is
y
fi
e

ld
 R

o
a

d
B

ra
m

le
y

u
c
s

0
.0

6
4

2
1

8
9

4
.3

6
4

3
4

4
0

5
.1

4
W

ils
o

n
's

 Y
a

rd
, 

S
u

n
fi
e

ld
P

u
d

s
e

y
 N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.1

0
4

2
1

7
9

6
.4

2
4

3
4

3
3

1
.3

1
W

o
rk

s
 o

ff
 B

ra
d

fo
rd

 R
o

a
d

, 
a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 4

1
P

u
d

s
e

y
 N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.2

1
4

2
1

7
4

8
.1

1
4

3
4

4
1

0
.0

3
C

lu
b

, 
6

8
-7

2
, 

B
ra

d
fo

rd
 R

o
a

d
P

u
d

s
e

y
 N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.2

4
4

2
1

2
4

1
.5

9
4

3
4

4
2

4
.3

3
L

a
n

d
 o

ff
 B

ra
d

fo
rd

 R
o

a
d

/ 
C

a
rl
is

le
 S

tr
e

e
t

P
u

d
s
e

y
 N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.2

3
4

2
1

0
6

2
.9

5
4

3
4

3
5

4
.4

7
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
O

w
lc

o
te

s
 L

a
n

e
, 

a
t 

e
n

d
 o

f 
W

o
o

d
la

n
d

s
 A

v
e

n
u

e
P

u
d

s
e

y
 N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.4

2
4

2
1

2
6

5
.4

2
4

3
4

2
7

9
.8

6
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
W

o
o

d
 N

o
o

k
, 

to
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
N

e
w

 P
u

d
s
e

y
 S

ta
ti
o

n
P

u
d

s
e

y
 N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.3

2
4

2
1

0
7

5
.2

0
4

3
4

5
1

6
.7

0
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
D

a
w

s
o

n
's

 C
o

rn
e

r,
 B

ra
d

fo
rd

 R
o

a
d

/ 
C

o
te

 L
a

n
e

P
u

d
s
e

y
 N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.4

5
4

2
1

1
4

5
.3

8
4

3
4

5
9

9
.2

2
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 C

iv
ic

 H
a

ll,
 D

a
w

s
o

n
's

 C
o

rn
e

r
P

u
d

s
e

y
 N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.6

9
4

2
1

1
3

0
.6

1
4

3
4

6
7

5
.1

3
C

a
r 

p
a

rk
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
C

iv
ic

 H
a

ll,
 D

a
w

s
o

n
's

 C
o

rn
e

r
P

u
d

s
e

y
 N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.1

0
4

2
1

6
7

5
.4

2
4

3
4

9
5

6
.4

4
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 L

ib
e

ra
l 
C

lu
b

, 
O

ld
 R

o
a

d
P

u
d

s
e

y
 N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.1

7
4

2
1

5
5

8
.7

5
4

3
5

3
0

9
.1

9
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
H

ig
h

 B
a

n
k
 S

tr
e

e
t,

 o
ff

 L
o

w
 B

a
n

k
 S

tr
e

e
t

P
u

d
s
e

y
 N

o
rt

h

2
0

Page 89



W
A

S
T

E
 S

IT
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

IO
N

 R
E

P
O

R
T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

S
O

U
R

C
E

A
R

E
A

_
H

A
X

_
C

O
O

R
D

Y
_

C
O

O
R

D
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

_
1

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
_

2
T

Y
P

E
_

C
O

D
E

L
A

N
D

_
U

S
E

_
C

P
L

G
_

S
T

A
T

U
S

u
c
s

1
.3

1
4

2
1

5
8

4
.4

4
4

3
5

4
2

4
.4

4
A

llo
tm

e
n

t 
g

a
rd

e
n

s
 o

ff
 R

e
d

 L
a

n
e

P
u

d
s
e

y
 N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.0

9
4

2
1

6
7

5
.7

3
4

3
5

2
7

0
.2

5
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 M

a
rs

d
e

n
 C

o
u

rt
, 

W
a

te
r 

L
a

n
e

/ 
C

h
a

rl
e

s
 S

tr
e

e
t

P
u

d
s
e

y
 N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.0

8
4

2
1

8
4

7
.7

3
4

3
5

6
1

2
.8

3
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 6

5
,K

ir
k
le

e
s
 D

ri
v
e

 &
 2

, 
K

ir
k
le

e
s
 G

a
rt

h
P

u
d

s
e

y
 N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.4

4
4

2
1

8
8

9
.2

2
4

3
5

4
5

7
.4

0
L

a
n

d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 C

h
e

rr
y
 T

re
e

 D
ri
v
e

 /
 H

ig
h

 S
tr

e
e

t 
(H

3
B

:5
8

)
P

u
d

s
e

y
 N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.4

2
4

2
1

8
4

3
.3

0
4

3
5

3
8

1
.0

9
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
T

o
w

n
 S

tr
e

e
t/

 C
h

e
rr

y
 T

re
e

 D
ri
v
e

 (
H

3
B

:5
9

)
P

u
d

s
e

y
 N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.5

3
4

2
9

0
0

9
.1

3
4

3
5

5
4

6
.1

1
C

lif
fd

e
n

e
, 

C
lif

f 
R

o
a

d
H

e
a

d
in

g
le

y

u
c
s

0
.2

2
4

2
8

8
0

9
.6

4
4

3
5

7
4

8
.8

8
5

, 
G

ro
s
v
e

n
o

r 
R

o
a

d
H

e
a

d
in

g
le

y

u
c
s

0
.0

7
4

2
8

5
8

1
.7

0
4

3
5

6
3

3
.3

1
3

5
, 

H
e

a
d

in
g

le
y
 L

a
n

e
H

e
a

d
in

g
le

y

u
c
s

0
.5

3
4

2
8

3
8

5
.3

9
4

3
5

6
8

3
.8

3
B

u
c
k
in

g
h

a
m

 H
o

u
s
e

, 
4

1
, 

H
e

a
d

in
g

le
y
 L

a
n

e
H

e
a

d
in

g
le

y

u
c
s

1
.5

8
4

2
8

2
0

8
.0

6
4

3
5

8
8

4
.2

8
L

a
n

d
 a

ro
u

n
d

 S
t 

C
o

lu
m

b
a

's
 C

h
u

rc
h

, 
H

e
a

d
in

g
le

y
 L

a
n

e
H

e
a

d
in

g
le

y

u
c
s

0
.2

5
4

2
8

1
1

5
.5

7
4

3
5

7
9

0
.6

6
5

3
, 

H
e

a
d

in
g

le
y
 L

a
n

e
/S

p
ri
n

g
 B

a
n

k
 C

o
tt

a
g

e
s

H
e

a
d

in
g

le
y

u
c
s

0
.0

7
4

2
7

9
1

5
.8

8
4

3
6

0
8

4
.4

7
G

a
ra

g
e

 a
d

ja
c
e

n
t 

to
 H

e
a

d
in

g
le

y
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

l,
 B

e
n

n
e

tt
 R

o
a

d
H

e
a

d
in

g
le

y

u
c
s

0
.0

9
4

2
7

7
6

1
.8

0
4

3
6

0
7

0
.0

2
2

5
/2

7
 B

e
n

n
e

tt
 R

o
a

d
H

e
a

d
in

g
le

y

u
c
s

0
.3

6
4

2
7

9
5

2
.4

4
4

3
5

5
7

6
.0

8
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 C

a
rd

ig
a

n
 H

o
u

s
e

, 
C

a
rd

ig
a

n
 R

o
a

d
H

e
a

d
in

g
le

y

u
c
s

0
.0

5
4

2
7

9
0

9
.9

5
4

3
5

8
9

3
.8

0
G

a
ra

g
e

, 
2

 S
t 

M
ic

h
a

e
l's

 L
a

n
e

H
e

a
d

in
g

le
y

u
c
s

0
.3

4
4

2
7

3
2

3
.0

2
4

3
6

1
8

7
.4

7
S

it
e

 a
t 

R
o

k
e

b
y
 G

a
rd

e
n

s
H

e
a

d
in

g
le

y

u
c
s

0
.1

6
4

2
7

7
4

7
.5

3
4

3
6

3
9

6
.7

7
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
O

tl
e

y
 R

o
a

d
 &

 S
t 

A
n

n
e

's
 R

o
a

d
H

e
a

d
in

g
le

y

u
c
s

1
.4

6
4

2
7

1
6

0
.1

9
4

3
7

0
9

9
.5

3
R

e
s
e

rv
o

ir
 (

c
o

v
e

re
d

) 
C

h
u

rc
h

w
o

o
d

 A
v
e

n
u

e
W

e
e

tw
o

o
d

u
c
s

0
.1

0
4

2
7

7
1

7
.5

8
4

3
7

0
4

3
.3

8
6

, 
H

o
lli

n
 L

a
n

e
W

e
e

tw
o

o
d

u
c
s

0
.1

3
4

2
7

7
0

2
.3

3
4

3
6

8
6

4
.4

5
L

a
n

d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 1

9
 &

 2
3

 C
o

tt
a

g
e

 R
o

a
d

W
e

e
tw

o
o

d

u
c
s

0
.3

6
4

2
8

1
8

5
.4

1
4

3
6

7
8

5
.2

2
5

/5
a

 M
o

n
k
 B

ri
d

g
e

 R
o

a
d

 /
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
L

a
n

e
W

e
e

tw
o

o
d

u
c
s

0
.0

9
4

2
8

7
0

5
.0

3
4

3
6

7
2

5
.1

4
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 f

ro
n

t 
o

f 
5

6
1

 &
 5

6
3

, 
M

e
a

n
w

o
o

d
 R

o
a

d
W

e
e

tw
o

o
d

u
c
s

0
.0

9
4

2
8

3
5

5
.6

2
4

3
5

7
6

6
.7

1
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 1

-8
, 

T
h

e
 P

o
p

la
rs

, 
o

ff
 H

e
a

d
in

g
le

y
 L

a
n

e
H

e
a

d
in

g
le

y

u
c
s

0
.2

0
4

2
8

3
7

3
.6

9
4

3
6

2
2

1
.5

3
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
3

9
-5

5
 S

h
ir
e

 O
a

k
 R

o
a

d
H

e
a

d
in

g
le

y

u
c
s

0
.2

3
4

2
8

0
3

7
.4

8
4

3
6

1
2

3
.6

9
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 H

e
a

d
in

g
le

y
 H

a
ll,

 S
h

ir
e

 O
a

k
 R

o
a

d
H

e
a

d
in

g
le

y

u
c
s

0
.1

7
4

2
8

5
4

7
.9

5
4

3
5

2
6

7
.4

7
5

4
 &

 5
4

a
 B

ru
d

e
n

e
ll 

R
o

a
d

, 
a

n
d

 s
it
e

 t
o

 r
e

a
r

H
e

a
d

in
g

le
y

u
c
s

0
.0

1
4

2
9

7
6

3
.6

4
4

3
5

8
3

5
.4

2
B

u
ild

in
g

 t
o

 r
e

a
r 

o
f 

3
6

0
, 

M
e

a
n

w
o

o
d

 R
o

a
d

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.0

1
4

2
9

7
4

7
.1

7
4

3
5

8
4

2
.6

3
B

u
ild

in
g

 t
o

 r
e

a
r 

o
f 

3
6

4
, 

M
e

a
n

w
o

o
d

 R
o

a
d

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.1

5
4

3
6

2
6

6
.1

7
4

3
4

3
0

2
.3

8
F

o
rm

e
r 

fi
lli

n
g

 s
ta

ti
o

n
, 

(a
d

j 
S

ilk
s
to

n
e

 C
o

u
rt

) 
R

in
g

 R
o

a
d

, 
H

a
lt
o

n
H

a
lt
o

n

u
c
s

0
.0

2
4

3
6

1
5

7
.9

2
4

3
4

3
8

4
.0

3
T

o
p

 f
lo

o
rs

 o
f 

2
0

-2
4

, 
S

ta
ti
o

n
 R

o
a

d
H

a
lt
o

n

u
c
s

0
.1

0
4

3
6

2
4

3
.5

3
4

3
4

3
3

8
.2

8
A

d
jo

in
in

g
 C

u
rr

y
's

, 
R

in
g

 R
o

a
d

H
a

lt
o

n

u
c
s

0
.1

2
4

3
6

1
3

5
.5

6
4

3
4

5
2

7
.2

7
F

o
rm

e
r 

fi
lli

n
g

 s
ta

ti
o

n
, 

S
ta

ti
o

n
 R

o
a

d
B

u
rm

a
n

to
ft

s

u
c
s

0
.1

2
4

3
6

2
0

8
.8

9
4

3
4

4
9

2
.5

6
U

p
p

e
r 

fl
o

o
rs

 5
2

 &
 5

2
a

 C
ro

s
s
g

a
te

s
 C

e
n

tr
e

, 
S

ta
ti
o

n
 R

o
a

d
H

a
lt
o

n

u
c
s

0
.2

0
4

3
5

9
5

7
.6

4
4

3
4

5
4

3
.6

6
C

lu
b

 c
a

r 
p

a
rk

, 
O

rc
h

a
rd

 R
o

a
d

B
u

rm
a

n
to

ft
s

u
c
s

0
.2

4
4

3
5

5
3

5
.0

8
4

3
4

7
0

3
.6

7
In

 f
ro

n
t 

o
f 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 C

e
n

tr
e

, 
M

a
ry

fi
e

ld
 A

v
e

n
u

e
B

u
rm

a
n

to
ft

s

u
c
s

0
.3

2
4

3
5

1
1

0
.9

5
4

3
4

6
9

5
.1

7
C

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

B
ri
d

le
 p

a
th

 &
 Y

o
rk

 R
o

a
d

B
u

rm
a

n
to

ft
s

u
c
s

0
.5

8
4

3
5

3
1

7
.2

0
4

3
4

7
5

7
.9

8
C

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

Y
o

rk
 R

o
a

d
 /

 C
ro

s
s
g

a
te

s
 R

o
a

d
B

u
rm

a
n

to
ft

s

u
c
s

0
.1

8
4

3
5

1
2

4
.9

2
4

3
4

8
3

0
.7

3
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

&
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
8

0
2

 F
o

u
n

d
ry

 L
a

n
e

B
u

rm
a

n
to

ft
s

u
c
s

0
.1

7
4

3
5

1
5

8
.1

6
4

3
5

0
4

1
.8

8
A

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 O

ff
ic

e
, 

M
o

re
s
d

a
le

 L
a

n
e

S
e

a
c
ro

ft

u
c
s

0
.1

2
4

3
5

1
1

8
.0

8
4

3
5

0
9

4
.7

7
N

o
's

 3
9

-4
5

, 
T

a
rn

s
id

e
 D

ri
v
e

S
e

a
c
ro

ft

u
c
s

0
.2

6
4

3
4

9
7

1
.3

3
4

3
5

0
8

6
.1

1
In

 f
ro

n
t 

o
f 

9
8

-1
2

8
, 

M
o

re
s
d

a
le

 L
a

n
e

S
e

a
c
ro

ft

u
c
s

0
.4

6
4

3
4

3
3

1
.4

7
4

3
4

4
9

6
.4

4
O

ff
ic

e
 u

n
it
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 K

e
rn

e
l 
H

o
u

s
e

, 
K

ill
in

g
b

e
c
k
 D

ri
v
e

B
u

rm
a

n
to

ft
s

u
c
s

0
.8

6
4

3
4

3
0

6
.0

8
4

3
4

3
7

8
.3

0
C

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

K
ill

in
g

b
e

c
k
 D

ri
v
e

, 
Y

o
rk

 R
o

a
d

B
u

rm
a

n
to

ft
s

u
c
s

0
.6

6
4

3
4

2
2

9
.5

8
4

3
4

1
6

4
.0

8
F

o
rm

e
r 

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 D

e
p

o
t,

 O
ld

 Y
o

rk
 R

o
a

d
B

u
rm

a
n

to
ft

s

u
c
s

0
.0

3
4

3
5

2
0

1
.6

7
4

3
3

6
0

8
.2

5
B

e
tw

e
e

n
 H

a
ll 

&
 N

o
. 

3
1

, 
C

h
a

p
e

l 
S

tr
e

e
t

H
a

lt
o

n

u
c
s

0
.1

0
4

3
5

0
6

5
.1

4
4

3
3

4
4

7
.9

8
U

p
p

e
r 

fl
o

o
rs

, 
1

8
4

-2
1

0
, 

S
e

lb
y
 R

o
a

d
H

a
lt
o

n

u
c
s

0
.2

7
4

3
4

9
0

4
.9

1
4

3
3

3
4

4
.9

7
C

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

Ir
w

in
 A

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 &
 T

e
m

p
le

n
e

w
s
a

m
 R

o
a

d
H

a
lt
o

n

u
c
s

0
.3

2
4

3
4

8
4

6
.8

3
4

3
3

4
1

0
.4

5
C

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

S
e

lb
y
 R

o
a

d
, 

a
d

ja
c
e

n
t 

Ir
w

in
 A

rm
s
, 

T
e

m
p

le
n

e
w

s
a

m
 R

o
a

d
H

a
lt
o

n

u
c
s

0
.0

1
4

3
4

9
2

5
.3

4
4

3
3

4
4

0
.5

9
2

2
1

 &
 2

2
3

 S
e

lb
y
 R

o
a

d
H

a
lt
o

n

u
c
s

0
.8

6
4

3
4

9
0

0
.1

6
4

3
3

6
8

0
.0

9
P

a
rt

 o
f 

re
c
re

a
ti
o

n
 g

ro
u

n
d

, 
P

ri
m

ro
s
e

 L
a

n
e

H
a

lt
o

n

u
c
s

0
.1

9
4

3
0

9
0

0
.8

0
4

3
4

0
5

3
.0

0
B

ry
a

n
 S

tr
e

e
t 

m
ill

s
, 

M
ill

w
ri
g

h
t 

S
tr

e
e

t
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.1

2
4

3
0

9
2

1
.6

6
4

3
4

1
4

9
.5

0
C

a
r 

p
a

rk
, 

M
ill

w
ri
g

h
t 

S
tr

e
e

t
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.0

7
4

3
0

9
0

4
.5

9
4

3
4

4
4

1
.4

0
F

o
rm

e
r 

c
e

n
tr

a
l 
g

a
ra

g
e

, 
H

e
n

b
u

ry
 S

tr
e

e
t 

/ 
B

ri
s
to

l 
S

tr
e

e
t

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.1

2
4

3
0

7
6

8
.4

2
4

3
4

4
6

2
.3

6
U

n
it
 7

,9
,1

1
, 

S
h

e
e

p
s
c
a

r 
G

ro
v
e

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.2

4
4

3
0

6
5

2
.1

9
4

3
4

3
4

2
.2

0
V

e
rg

e
 t

o
 r

o
a

d
, 

N
o

rt
h

 S
tr

e
e

t
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.8

6
4

3
0

5
5

7
.1

7
4

3
4

5
0

3
.0

3
V

e
rg

e
 t

o
 C

la
y
p

it
 L

a
n

e
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.3

1
4

3
0

9
2

9
.3

5
4

3
4

6
9

7
.9

3
In

 f
ro

n
t 

o
f 

A
in

s
le

y
's

 B
a

k
e

ry
, 

M
a

n
o

r 
S

tr
e

e
t

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.4

2
4

3
0

8
6

2
.4

2
4

3
4

8
5

8
.6

7
E

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 l
a

n
d

 a
d

ja
c
e

n
t 

to
 T

h
o

m
a

s
 D

a
n

b
y
 C

o
lle

g
e

, 
R

o
u

n
d

h
a

y
 R

o
a

d
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

2
.9

0
4

3
0

9
1

8
.9

5
4

3
4

9
2

6
.1

6
A

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

&
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
T

h
o

m
a

s
 D

a
n

b
y
 C

o
lle

g
e

, 
R

o
u

n
d

h
a

y
 R

o
a

d
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.1

3
4

3
0

7
5

7
.9

4
4

3
4

8
8

8
.0

9
A

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 R

a
m

g
a

rh
ia

 S
ik

h
 C

e
n

tr
e

, 
C

h
a

p
e

lt
o

w
n

 R
o

a
d

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.1

9
4

3
0

7
6

9
.4

4
4

3
5

0
0

0
.0

9
A

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 R

a
m

g
a

rh
ia

 S
ik

h
 C

e
n

tr
e

, 
c
o

rn
e

r 
o

f 
C

h
a

p
e

lt
o

w
n

 R
o

a
d

 /
 B

a
rr

a
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.3

2
4

3
0

6
2

8
.3

7
4

3
4

8
4

3
.5

5
G

a
s
 h

o
ld

e
r 

s
ta

ti
o

n
, 

S
h

e
e

p
s
c
a

r 
S

tr
e

e
t 

N
o

rt
h

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

1
.0

4
4

3
0

5
4

9
.2

3
4

3
4

7
5

3
.7

2
V

e
rg

e
 a

t 
c
o

rn
e

r 
M

e
a

n
w

o
o

d
 R

o
a

d
, 

C
la

y
p

it
 L

a
n

e
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.2

6
4

3
0

3
3

7
.5

1
4

3
4

8
2

9
.4

3
R

e
a

r 
o

f 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

 /
 L

o
v
e

ll 
P

a
rk

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

lu
b

, 
O

a
tl
a

n
d

 G
re

e
n

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.5

7
4

3
0

3
6

4
.5

0
4

3
4

5
1

8
.6

8
C

o
rn

e
r 

C
la

y
p

it
 L

a
n

e
 &

 L
o

v
e

ll 
P

a
rk

 R
o

a
d

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.1

4
4

3
0

2
2

1
.9

8
4

3
4

6
4

4
.7

8
A

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 N

o
 7

4
, 

C
a

rl
to

n
 R

is
e

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.6

3
4

3
0

0
7

1
.3

2
4

3
4

8
0

1
.9

1
L

a
n

d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 C

a
rl
to

n
 H

ill
 &

 H
a

w
k
in

s
 D

ri
v
e

, 
L

e
ic

e
s
te

r 
P

la
c
e

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.2

4
4

3
0

0
6

8
.5

8
4

3
4

9
9

2
.9

3
A

t 
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
S

e
rv

ia
 H

ill
 &

 G
ro

s
v
e

n
o

r 
H

ill
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.4

8
4

3
0

2
6

7
.5

2
4

3
4

5
2

2
.7

3
C

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

C
a

rl
to

n
 C

h
a

s
e

, 
C

a
rl
to

n
 C

a
rr

, 
C

a
rl
to

n
 G

a
te

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

2
1

Page 90



W
A

S
T

E
 S

IT
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

IO
N

 R
E

P
O

R
T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

S
O

U
R

C
E

A
R

E
A

_
H

A
X

_
C

O
O

R
D

Y
_

C
O

O
R

D
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

_
1

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
_

2
T

Y
P

E
_

C
O

D
E

L
A

N
D

_
U

S
E

_
C

P
L

G
_

S
T

A
T

U
S

u
c
s

0
.1

3
4

2
3

7
8

8
.5

0
4

3
8

0
2

2
.7

5
B

e
tw

e
e

n
 5

4
a

 &
 4

2
, 

T
o

w
n

 S
tr

e
e

t
H

o
rs

fo
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.0

4
4

2
3

7
0

6
.7

5
4

3
7

9
9

4
.6

9
3

3
-3

7
, 

T
o

w
n

 S
tr

e
e

t
H

o
rs

fo
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.0

4
4

2
3

7
2

0
.7

7
4

3
7

9
6

2
.1

1
2

2
-2

8
, 

T
o

w
n

 S
tr

e
e

t
H

o
rs

fo
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.1

7
4

2
3

5
8

0
.5

5
4

3
7

8
5

0
.6

4
G

a
rd

e
n

 o
f 

R
e

s
t,

 T
h

e
 G

re
e

n
H

o
rs

fo
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.7

4
4

2
4

0
1

0
.2

0
4

3
8

2
1

8
.3

9
F

o
rm

e
r 

in
d

u
s
tr

ia
l 
s
it
e

, 
B

ro
a

d
g

a
te

 L
a

n
e

H
o

rs
fo

rt
h

u
c
s

0
.1

9
4

2
4

0
6

4
.5

0
4

3
8

1
5

3
.2

5
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 8

 K
e

rr
y
 H

ill
H

o
rs

fo
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.1

3
4

2
3

9
0

3
.7

0
4

3
8

1
2

3
.0

8
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 K

e
rr

y
 H

o
u

s
e

, 
1

0
 T

o
w

n
 S

tr
e

e
t

H
o

rs
fo

rt
h

u
c
s

0
.1

3
4

2
4

4
3

8
.9

7
4

3
8

6
7

9
.7

5
B

ro
o

k
fo

o
t 

C
o

u
rt

 c
a

r 
p

a
rk

, 
L

o
w

 L
a

n
e

H
o

rs
fo

rt
h

u
c
s

0
.2

2
4

2
4

3
7

0
.8

9
4

3
8

7
8

3
.3

6
W

o
o

d
la

n
d

 a
d

ja
c
e

n
t 

to
 M

ill
s
, 

L
o

w
 L

a
n

e
H

o
rs

fo
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.4

5
4

2
9

5
7

4
.8

6
4

3
4

8
6

8
.4

8
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
W

o
o

d
h

o
u

s
e

 L
a

n
e

, 
S

t 
M

a
rk

s
 R

o
a

d
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.1

5
4

2
9

6
2

5
.8

8
4

3
4

8
6

7
.2

3
V

e
rg

e
 i
n

 f
ro

n
t 

o
f 

s
h

o
p

 a
t 

5
, 

B
le

n
h

e
im

 W
a

y
, 

S
t 

M
a

rk
s
 R

o
a

d
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.1

3
4

2
9

7
9

2
.6

3
4

3
4

8
9

8
.6

6
In

fr
o

n
t 

o
f 

5
, 

W
in

fi
e

ld
 P

la
c
e

, 
L

e
ic

e
s
te

r 
P

la
c
e

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.2

0
4

2
9

9
5

6
.4

5
4

3
4

6
4

7
.4

8
A

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

B
le

n
h

e
im

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

l,
 L

o
ft

h
o

u
s
e

 P
la

c
e

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.0

7
4

2
9

9
2

0
.8

0
4

3
4

6
7

9
.3

6
N

o
.7

8
 &

 a
d

ja
c
e

n
t 

la
n

d
, 

L
o

ft
h

o
u

s
e

 P
la

c
e

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.3

2
4

2
6

1
2

9
.1

1
4

2
7

5
6

1
.1

7
C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o

n
 S

tr
e

e
t 

d
e

p
o

t,
 C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o

n
 S

tr
e

e
t

M
o

rl
e

y
 N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.7

1
4

2
6

0
1

8
.5

2
4

2
7

6
1

0
.8

8
F

ie
ld

 M
ill

s
, 

S
c
a

tc
h

e
rd

 L
a

n
e

M
o

rl
e

y
 N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.0

6
4

2
6

2
9

5
.4

2
4

2
7

4
4

6
.1

9
F

o
u

n
ta

in
 S

tr
e

e
t

M
o

rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

0
.1

5
4

2
6

3
3

7
.1

1
4

2
7

6
3

3
.9

6
1

0
 1

0
a

, 
1

0
b

, 
re

a
r 

o
f 

8
 W

e
s
le

y
 S

tr
e

e
t

M
o

rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

0
.0

4
4

2
6

4
8

1
.5

9
4

2
7

4
6

7
.2

5
3

,5
,7

,9
,1

1
,1

3
,1

5
, 

F
o

u
n

ta
in

 S
tr

e
e

t
M

o
rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

0
.2

3
4

2
6

4
2

5
.2

1
4

2
7

3
8

1
.1

3
L

a
n

d
 b

e
y
o

n
d

 N
o

. 
2

7
, 

H
u

n
g

e
r 

H
ill

M
o

rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

0
.0

5
4

2
6

4
9

1
.1

6
4

2
7

3
6

4
.0

0
S

o
m

e
rs

e
t 

H
o

u
s
e

, 
1

6
, 

K
in

g
 S

tr
e

e
t

M
o

rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

0
.1

0
4

2
6

5
6

9
.7

8
4

2
7

4
4

7
.4

2
S

t 
P

a
u

l's
 H

o
u

s
e

, 
H

ig
h

 S
tr

e
e

t
M

o
rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

0
.0

6
4

2
6

5
4

5
.1

3
4

2
7

4
5

1
.3

4
N

e
w

 P
a

v
ill

io
n

, 
H

ig
h

 S
tr

e
e

t
M

o
rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

0
.0

6
4

2
6

6
2

7
.1

1
4

2
7

4
5

1
.2

3
1

9
 (

R
u

s
s
e

ll 
H

o
u

s
e

),
 H

ig
h

 S
tr

e
e

t
M

o
rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

0
.0

7
4

2
6

5
6

8
.7

3
4

2
7

3
7

1
.7

7
A

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 1

5
, 

S
o

u
th

 Q
u

e
e

n
 S

tr
e

e
t,

 c
o

rn
e

r 
o

f 
S

t 
P

a
u

l's
 S

tr
e

e
t

M
o

rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

0
.9

0
4

2
6

5
8

6
.9

7
4

2
7

1
7

9
.7

7
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
B

ri
d

g
e

 S
tr

e
e

t/
 M

a
g

p
ie

 L
a

n
e

/ 
G

le
n

 R
o

a
d

M
o

rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

0
.1

1
4

2
6

4
7

1
.8

1
4

2
7

1
1

9
.9

6
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
A

lb
io

n
 H

o
te

l 
P

u
b

, 
M

ill
 S

tr
e

e
t

M
o

rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

0
.0

6
4

2
6

4
8

3
.2

5
4

2
7

1
6

0
.7

6
Y

a
rd

 t
o

 r
e

a
r 

o
f 

W
e

lli
n

g
to

n
 M

ill
s
, 

M
ill

 S
tr

e
e

t
M

o
rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

0
.0

6
4

2
6

5
0

1
.6

7
4

2
7

1
7

0
.3

3
W

e
lli

n
g

to
n

 M
ill

s
, 

B
ri
d

g
e

 S
tr

e
e

t
M

o
rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

0
.0

9
4

2
6

4
4

9
.3

4
4

2
7

1
5

4
.7

2
L

a
n

d
 o

p
p

o
s
it
e

 4
4

 &
 4

6
 H

ig
h

 S
tr

e
e

t
M

o
rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

0
.0

4
4

2
6

4
7

5
.0

6
4

2
7

1
7

8
.6

9
N

o
's

 6
5

 &
 6

7
, 

H
ig

h
 S

tr
e

e
t

M
o

rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

0
.1

8
4

2
6

6
8

7
.7

6
4

2
7

5
3

2
.6

7
M

e
lb

o
u

rn
e

 a
n

d
 A

d
e

la
id

e
 M

ill
s
, 

M
e

lb
o

u
rn

e
 S

tr
e

e
t

M
o

rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

0
.1

5
4

2
6

6
8

8
.8

3
4

2
7

5
5

3
.5

0
M

e
lb

o
u

rn
e

 a
n

d
 A

d
e

la
id

e
 M

ill
s
, 

M
e

lb
o

u
rn

e
 S

tr
e

e
t

M
o

rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

0
.1

5
4

2
6

7
8

6
.3

8
4

2
7

8
3

6
.0

5
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 C

it
y
 M

ill
s
, 

Il
fo

rd
 S

tr
e

e
t

M
o

rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

0
.2

0
4

2
6

8
1

9
.0

3
4

2
7

7
1

3
.6

7
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
2

2
-2

8
, 

(e
v
e

n
s
) 

S
o

u
th

 P
a

ra
d

e
M

o
rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

0
.1

3
4

2
6

8
0

1
.0

9
4

2
7

7
4

7
.0

6
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 C

it
y
 M

ill
s
, 

T
e

n
n

y
s
o

n
 S

tr
e

e
t 

/ 
S

o
u

th
 P

a
ra

d
e

M
o

rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

0
.0

2
4

2
6

4
2

4
.9

1
4

2
7

8
4

6
.3

8
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
  

N
o

. 
2

9
 (

 T
h

e
 T

o
w

n
 H

o
u

s
e

),
 C

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
S

tr
e

e
t

M
o

rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

0
.0

2
4

2
6

3
7

5
.5

0
4

2
7

8
9

7
.5

7
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 L

ib
ra

ry
, 

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
S

tr
e

e
t

M
o

rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

0
.1

7
4

2
1

9
1

3
.6

4
4

3
6

5
0

2
.2

4
E

a
s
t 

o
f 

'O
a

k
la

n
d

s
', 

R
in

g
 R

o
a

d
, 

R
o

d
le

y
P

u
d

s
e

y
 N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.3

4
4

2
2

0
9

3
.5

7
4

3
6

1
3

4
.2

5
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 w

e
s
t 

o
f 

s
u

b
 s

ta
ti
o

n
 o

ff
 O

a
k
la

n
d

s
 R

o
a

d
P

u
d

s
e

y
 N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

1
.5

0
4

2
2

2
1

2
.7

2
4

3
6

1
6

4
.2

7
L

a
n

d
 s

u
rr

o
u

n
d

in
g

 e
le

c
tr

ic
it
y
 s

u
b

 s
ta

ti
o

n
, 

B
a

g
le

y
 L

a
n

e
P

u
d

s
e

y
 N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.1

2
4

2
2

4
0

8
.4

5
4

3
6

3
4

1
.6

2
L

a
n

d
 e

a
s
t 

o
f 

1
9

3
, 

T
o

w
n

 S
tr

e
e

t,
 R

o
d

le
y

P
u

d
s
e

y
 N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

1
.1

5
4

2
2

4
7

2
.5

3
4

3
6

1
0

1
.2

7
L

a
n

d
 s

o
u

th
 w

e
s
t 

o
f 

3
7

, 
C

lu
b

 L
a

n
e

P
u

d
s
e

y
 N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.1

8
4

2
2

3
5

9
.7

7
4

3
6

2
4

2
.3

3
R

e
a

r 
o

f 
2

0
-2

6
, 

C
lu

b
 L

a
n

e
P

u
d

s
e

y
 N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.5

1
4

2
2

6
8

9
.1

9
4

3
6

1
2

5
.0

0
W

o
o

d
e

s
o

n
 H

o
u

s
e

 &
 b

u
ild

in
g

s
, 

T
o

w
n

 S
tr

e
e

t 
/ 

L
a

s
ti
n

g
h

a
m

 R
o

a
d

P
u

d
s
e

y
 N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.3

2
4

2
2

6
0

3
.9

2
4

3
6

0
6

0
.1

3
L

a
n

d
 o

p
p

o
s
it
e

 2
8

 -
 4

0
, 

(e
v
e

n
s
) 

L
a

s
ti
n

g
h

a
m

 R
o

a
d

P
u

d
s
e

y
 N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.6

2
4

2
2

8
3

8
.0

9
4

3
5

7
9

6
.5

0
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
1

8
, 

H
o

rt
o

n
 C

lo
s
e

B
ra

m
le

y

u
c
s

0
.1

7
4

2
3

4
9

1
.1

9
4

3
5

6
8

5
.0

8
L

a
n

d
 s

o
u

th
 o

f 
R

o
s
s
 G

ro
v
e

B
ra

m
le

y

u
c
s

0
.1

2
4

2
3

4
9

9
.8

4
4

3
5

5
0

9
.9

5
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 f

ro
n

t 
o

f 
8

2
-1

0
0

 (
e

v
e

n
s
),

 L
a

n
g

le
y
 R

o
a

d
B

ra
m

le
y

u
c
s

0
.1

6
4

2
4

3
4

5
.7

3
4

3
5

9
7

4
.8

8
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 s

o
u

th
 o

f 
2

-6
0

, 
G

a
n

n
e

rs
 W

a
y

B
ra

m
le

y

u
c
s

0
.1

0
4

2
4

3
8

4
.1

6
4

3
5

9
4

3
.1

4
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 n

o
rt

h
 o

f 
3

5
-4

9
 (

o
d

d
s
),

 G
a

n
n

e
rs

 W
a

y
B

ra
m

le
y

u
c
s

0
.2

0
4

2
4

3
5

6
.7

3
4

3
5

6
8

9
.2

2
3

4
2

 &
 a

llo
tm

e
n

t 
g

a
rd

e
n

s
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
B

ro
a

d
 L

a
n

e
B

ra
m

le
y

u
c
s

0
.0

9
4

2
4

6
7

9
.5

5
4

3
5

8
7

1
.4

5
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

o
t 

4
6

, 
G

a
n

n
e

rs
 R

is
e

B
ra

m
le

y

u
c
s

0
.2

1
4

2
4

5
6

4
.1

9
4

3
5

8
6

2
.7

4
1

0
-1

6
, 

(e
v
e

n
s
) 

G
a

n
n

e
rs

 H
ill

 (
 &

 G
a

n
n

e
rs

 G
a

rt
h

)
B

ra
m

le
y

u
c
s

0
.6

1
4

2
4

9
4

6
.2

2
4

3
5

9
7

3
.9

1
L

a
n

d
 e

it
h

e
r 

s
id

e
 o

f 
S

t 
C

a
th

e
ri
n

e
' s

 G
re

e
n

B
ra

m
le

y

u
c
s

0
.1

7
4

2
4

7
7

0
.6

7
4

3
5

8
9

2
.3

8
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 f
ro

n
t 

o
f 

5
-3

1
, 

(o
d

d
s
) 

S
t 

C
a

th
e

ri
n

e
's

 H
ill

B
ra

m
le

y

u
c
s

0
.1

5
4

2
4

9
2

3
.2

0
4

3
5

6
6

6
.1

9
L

a
n

d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 5

1
-5

7
, 

S
t 

C
a

th
e

ri
n

e
's

 C
re

s
c
e

n
t 

&
 l
a

n
d

 a
d

ja
c
e

n
t 

to
 2

3
0

,
B

ra
m

le
y

u
c
s

0
.1

0
4

2
4

3
0

9
.7

8
4

3
5

2
7

3
.5

9
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
3

0
3

-3
1

3
, 

U
p

p
e

r 
T

o
w

n
 S

tr
e

e
t 

(W
e

s
to

v
e

r 
R

o
a

d
)

B
ra

m
le

y

u
c
s

0
.1

2
4

2
4

2
3

2
.5

9
4

3
5

1
4

4
.4

2
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
4

5
-5

9
, 

W
e

s
to

v
e

r 
R

o
a

d
B

ra
m

le
y

u
c
s

0
.2

1
4

2
4

6
1

2
.6

6
4

3
5

0
3

4
.9

2
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 S

t 
P

e
te

r'
s
 C

o
u

rt
, 

L
o

w
e

r 
T

o
w

n
 S

tr
e

e
t

B
ra

m
le

y

u
c
s

0
.1

2
4

2
4

2
1

2
.3

0
4

3
5

3
9

1
.5

2
3

3
1

, 
U

p
p

e
r 

T
o

w
n

 S
tr

e
e

t 
&

 1
, 

H
a

y
le

s
 Y

a
rd

B
ra

m
le

y

u
c
s

0
.1

7
4

3
2

3
1

3
.1

6
4

3
5

6
6

2
.1

3
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 H

o
v
in

g
h

a
m

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

l,
 S

t 
W

ilf
ri
d

's
 D

ri
v
e

H
a

re
h

ill
s

u
c
s

0
.5

9
4

3
2

3
5

1
.3

4
4

3
5

7
0

4
.8

0
L

a
n

d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 S

t 
W

ilf
ri
d

's
 D

ri
v
e

 &
 E

a
s
te

rl
y
 R

o
a

d
H

a
re

h
ill

s

u
c
s

0
.1

1
4

3
2

2
8

6
.1

4
4

3
5

5
9

3
.3

6
L

a
n

d
 a

lo
n

g
 H

o
v
in

g
h

a
m

 G
ro

v
e

H
a

re
h

ill
s

u
c
s

0
.2

8
4

3
2

4
9

7
.0

5
4

3
5

6
7

0
.8

3
L

a
n

d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 2

9
 &

 7
1

, 
S

t 
W

ilf
ri
d

's
 A

v
e

n
u

e
H

a
re

h
ill

s

u
c
s

0
.3

2
4

3
2

6
0

3
.7

0
4

3
5

6
5

7
.2

5
L

a
n

d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 1

5
 &

 6
7

, 
E

a
s
te

rl
y
 M

o
u

n
t

H
a

re
h

ill
s

u
c
s

0
.2

4
4

3
2

6
4

5
.2

3
4

3
5

6
5

6
.4

2
L

a
n

d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 2

0
 &

 6
2

, 
E

a
s
te

rl
y
 M

o
u

n
t

H
a

re
h

ill
s

u
c
s

0
.1

3
4

3
2

8
5

3
.1

1
4

3
5

8
0

9
.5

6
L

a
n

d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 A

m
b

e
rt

o
n

 R
o

a
d

 &
 P

la
c
e

 &
 G

ip
to

n
 W

o
o

d
 R

o
a

d
H

a
re

h
ill

s

u
c
s

0
.1

9
4

3
2

9
0

0
.1

3
4

3
5

5
1

9
.0

9
L

a
n

d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 1

1
7

 &
  

1
5

1
, 

F
o

u
n

d
ry

 A
v
e

n
u

e
H

a
re

h
ill

s

2
2

Page 91



W
A

S
T

E
 S

IT
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

IO
N

 R
E

P
O

R
T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

S
O

U
R

C
E

A
R

E
A

_
H

A
X

_
C

O
O

R
D

Y
_

C
O

O
R

D
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

_
1

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
_

2
T

Y
P

E
_

C
O

D
E

L
A

N
D

_
U

S
E

_
C

P
L

G
_

S
T

A
T

U
S

u
c
s

0
.0

5
4

3
2

4
5

2
.9

2
4

3
5

3
9

1
.1

4
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

h
a

ts
w

o
rt

h
 C

lo
s
e

 &
 R

o
a

d
H

a
re

h
ill

s

u
c
s

0
.1

3
4

3
2

3
9

1
.3

0
4

3
5

4
9

0
.0

3
L

a
n

d
 f

ro
n

ti
n

g
 2

7
-5

3
, 

S
t 

W
ilf

ri
d

's
 D

ri
v
e

H
a

re
h

ill
s

u
c
s

0
.5

4
4

3
2

0
7

4
.3

4
4

3
5

3
7

0
.1

7
L

a
n

d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 M

ila
n

 S
tr

e
e

t,
 C

o
n

w
a

y
 R

o
a

d
 &

 H
a

re
h

ill
s
 L

a
n

e
H

a
re

h
ill

s

u
c
s

0
.7

9
4

2
6

9
7

3
.3

0
4

2
6

8
5

9
.4

1
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
1

-1
7

, 
o

ff
 E

lm
fi
e

ld
 R

o
a

d
M

o
rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

0
.1

5
4

2
6

4
1

3
.5

0
4

2
7

1
0

8
.8

4
V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 M

ill
 S

tr
e

e
t 

&
 H

ig
h

 S
tr

e
e

t
M

o
rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

0
.0

3
4

2
6

3
1

3
.7

7
4

2
8

0
7

7
.3

0
1

5
, 

1
9

-2
7

, 
Q

u
e

e
n

 S
tr

e
e

t
M

o
rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

0
.0

1
4

2
6

3
2

0
.5

2
4

2
8

1
7

3
.2

8
4

, 
4

a
 M

o
rl
e

y
 B

o
tt

o
m

s
 /

  
C

h
e

a
p

s
id

e
M

o
rl
e

y
 N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.1

2
4

2
6

3
8

9
.8

1
4

2
8

1
6

8
.5

9
1

-9
 &

 r
o

u
g

h
 l
a

n
d

 s
ta

n
d

in
g

 t
o

 e
a

s
t 

o
f 

C
h

a
p

e
l 
H

ill
M

o
rl
e

y
 N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.0

1
4

2
6

3
6

3
.3

4
4

2
8

1
4

2
.3

1
6

, 
M

o
rl
e

y
 B

o
tt

o
m

s
 /

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 R

o
a

d
M

o
rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

0
.0

1
4

2
6

3
7

8
.4

4
4

2
8

1
4

2
.3

1
8

 -
 1

2
, 

S
ta

ti
o

n
 R

o
a

d
M

o
rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

0
.0

5
4

2
6

4
1

2
.7

3
4

2
8

1
0

5
.9

5
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 s

o
u

th
 w

e
s
t 

o
f 

G
ri
ff

in
 H

o
u

s
e

, 
S

ta
ti
o

n
 R

o
a

d
, 

(T
ro

y
 H

ill
)

M
o

rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

0
.1

1
4

2
6

4
7

6
.9

1
4

2
8

2
0

2
.3

9
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 e

a
s
t 

o
f 

3
4

, 
C

h
a

p
e

l 
H

ill
M

o
rl
e

y
 N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.0

3
4

2
6

4
2

8
.7

3
4

2
8

1
9

0
.1

3
1

8
-2

8
, 

C
h

a
p

e
l 
H

ill
M

o
rl
e

y
 N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.0

2
4

2
6

3
0

1
.1

9
4

2
8

1
5

4
.9

5
1

,3
,5

, 
B

ru
n

s
w

ic
k
 S

tr
e

e
t 

/ 
M

o
rl
e

y
 B

o
tt

o
m

s
M

o
rl
e

y
 N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.0

1
4

2
6

2
7

6
.7

5
4

2
8

1
6

5
.2

2
1

1
 &

 1
1

a
, 

B
ru

n
s
w

ic
k
 S

tr
e

e
t

M
o

rl
e

y
 N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.0

8
4

2
6

5
8

5
.4

7
4

2
8

2
2

2
.9

8
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 2

4
 &

 2
8

, 
N

e
w

b
a

n
k
 S

tr
e

e
t

M
o

rl
e

y
 N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.3

4
4

2
6

4
6

4
.0

3
4

2
8

2
6

2
.5

0
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
B

a
n

k
 A

v
e

n
u

e
M

o
rl
e

y
 N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.8

9
4

2
6

2
9

0
.5

9
4

2
8

3
4

5
.5

8
P

ro
s
p

e
c
t 

M
ill

s
, 

V
ic

to
ri
a

 R
o

a
d

M
o

rl
e

y
 N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.1

6
4

2
6

3
5

7
.3

5
4

2
8

3
2

4
.2

3
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
W

o
rk

in
g

 M
e

n
's

 C
lu

b
, 

V
ic

to
ri
a

 A
v
e

n
u

e
M

o
rl
e

y
 N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.3

0
4

2
6

5
9

4
.3

8
4

2
8

1
2

4
.6

2
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 e

a
s
t 

o
f 

1
0

, 
A

lb
e

rt
 R

o
a

d
M

o
rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

0
.5

6
4

2
6

5
3

0
.8

9
4

2
8

1
8

2
.2

2
F

o
rm

e
r 

P
e

rs
e

rv
e

ra
n

c
e

 M
ill

, 
S

ta
ti
o

n
 R

o
a

d
M

o
rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

0
.0

6
4

2
6

3
1

8
.8

4
4

2
8

0
5

1
.4

1
T

ro
y
 M

ill
s
, 

T
ro

y
 R

o
a

d
M

o
rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

0
.1

8
4

2
6

8
5

0
.6

7
4

2
8

0
4

3
.2

3
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
1

9
-2

5
, 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 C
o

u
rt

M
o

rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

0
.1

9
4

2
6

8
8

5
.2

6
4

2
8

0
1

6
.0

5
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
2

7
 &

 2
9

 &
 t

o
 n

o
rt

h
 o

f 
3

2
 o

f 
C

a
m

b
ri
d

g
e

 C
o

u
rt

M
o

rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

0
.1

2
4

2
6

9
8

7
.3

4
4

2
8

0
0

4
.8

0
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 &

 r
e

a
r 

o
f 

1
8

-2
0

, 
B

ru
n

s
w

ic
k
 T

e
rr

a
c
e

M
o

rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

0
.0

8
4

2
6

9
3

5
.9

5
4

2
8

1
6

7
.5

2
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 e

a
s
t 

o
f 

C
ra

n
k
 C

o
tt

a
g

e
, 

V
a

lle
y
 R

o
a

d
M

o
rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

0
.1

4
4

2
6

9
1

8
.4

8
4

2
8

2
9

4
.7

2
L

a
n

d
 o

p
p

o
s
it
e

 1
3

3
, 

N
e

w
 B

a
n

k
 S

tr
e

e
t

M
o

rl
e

y
 N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.1

5
4

2
4

3
3

0
.4

5
4

3
5

5
6

2
.5

7
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 n

o
rt

h
 o

f 
9

, 
P

a
rk

 R
is

e
B

ra
m

le
y

u
c
s

0
.1

3
4

2
4

9
5

7
.3

0
4

3
5

2
9

8
.2

2
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 f

ro
n

t 
o

f 
3

5
-5

7
, 

L
a

n
d

s
e

e
r 

R
o

a
d

B
ra

m
le

y

u
c
s

0
.4

1
4

2
4

8
1

3
.1

3
4

3
5

2
4

8
.0

8
V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
 o

ff
 W

a
te

rl
o

o
 W

a
y
 &

 R
a

y
n

v
ill

e
 R

o
a

d
B

ra
m

le
y

u
c
s

0
.1

0
4

2
4

7
3

8
.9

5
4

3
5

2
5

1
.8

1
V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
 o

ff
 W

a
te

rl
o

o
 W

a
y

B
ra

m
le

y

u
c
s

0
.3

5
4

2
4

9
8

7
.8

1
4

3
5

1
8

8
.5

5
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 s

o
u

th
 o

f 
4

6
-9

2
 L

a
n

d
s
e

e
r 

D
ri
v
e

B
ra

m
le

y

u
c
s

0
.2

4
4

2
4

9
5

3
.6

7
4

3
5

2
2

5
.5

2
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 n

o
rt

h
 o

f 
4

6
-9

0
, 

L
a

n
d

s
e

e
r 

D
ri
v
e

B
ra

m
le

y

u
c
s

0
.3

8
4

2
4

6
9

0
.9

8
4

3
5

1
8

3
.3

4
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 d

e
p

o
t 

o
ff

 W
a

te
rl
o

o
 L

a
n

e
B

ra
m

le
y

u
c
s

0
.0

9
4

2
5

1
4

1
.9

8
4

3
5

7
9

9
.8

4
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 f

ro
n

t 
o

f 
9

-2
1

, 
B

ro
a

d
le

a
 G

a
rd

e
n

s
B

ra
m

le
y

u
c
s

1
.1

1
4

2
5

8
9

5
.9

2
4

3
5

2
8

5
.8

8
M

e
rc

h
a

n
t 

C
o

u
n

ty
 I

n
d

u
s
tr

ia
l 
E

s
ta

te
, 

W
y
th

e
r 

L
a

n
e

A
rm

le
y

u
c
s

1
.0

8
4

2
5

1
3

7
.9

2
4

3
5

4
3

6
.1

7
M

o
u

n
t 

C
ro

s
s
, 

B
ro

a
d

 L
a

n
e

B
ra

m
le

y

u
c
s

1
.2

1
4

2
5

3
7

4
.3

6
4

3
5

5
9

6
.0

5
C

le
a

re
d

 s
it
e

 o
f 

fo
rm

e
r 

4
0

-8
6

 &
 2

9
-7

5
 B

ro
a

d
le

a
 R

o
a

d
 &

 4
9

-9
5

 B
ro

a
d

le
a

B
ra

m
le

y

u
c
s

0
.6

0
4

2
5

5
0

4
.3

8
4

3
5

5
4

1
.1

1
C

le
a

re
d

 s
it
e

 o
f 

7
-4

7
, 

B
ro

a
d

le
a

 S
tr

e
e

t
B

ra
m

le
y

u
c
s

0
.1

8
4

2
5

5
9

9
.5

8
4

3
5

6
0

0
.3

9
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 f

ro
n

t 
o

f 
2

9
-7

5
, 

B
ro

a
d

le
a

 T
e

rr
a

c
e

B
ra

m
le

y

u
c
s

0
.2

4
4

2
5

4
5

6
.1

4
4

3
5

1
7

3
.1

2
L

a
n

d
 o

n
 j
u

n
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
R

a
y
n

v
ill

e
 A

v
e

n
u

e
 &

 V
ic

to
ri
a

 P
a

rk
 A

v
e

n
u

e
A

rm
le

y

u
c
s

1
.7

7
4

2
6

0
9

3
.6

5
4

3
5

0
8

9
.2

1
N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
P

o
w

e
r 

la
n

d
 a

t 
W

y
th

e
r 

B
ri
d

g
e

, 
W

y
th

e
r 

L
a

n
e

A
rm

le
y

u
c
s

0
.3

2
4

2
5

8
6

8
.3

9
4

3
5

4
1

9
.1

4
L

a
n

d
 e

a
s
t 

o
f 

K
ir
k
s
ta

ll 
H

a
ll,

 B
ro

a
d

 L
a

n
e

A
rm

le
y

u
c
s

0
.3

4
4

2
6

0
7

3
.1

5
4

3
4

9
3

5
.7

6
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 n

o
rt

h
 e

a
s
t 

o
f 

L
a

s
e

r 
C

e
n

tr
e

, 
L

e
n

h
u

rs
t 

A
v
e

n
u

e
A

rm
le

y

u
c
s

0
.8

3
4

2
5

0
5

1
.5

5
4

3
4

1
7

9
.5

0
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
&

 n
o

rt
h

 o
f 

4
8

-5
6

, 
H

e
n

c
o

n
n

e
r 

L
a

n
e

A
rm

le
y

u
c
s

2
.6

5
4

2
5

6
7

9
.7

7
4

3
4

7
4

3
.6

9
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 e

a
s
t 

a
n

d
 w

e
s
t 

o
f 

B
o

rr
o

w
d

a
le

 C
re

s
c
e

n
t

A
rm

le
y

u
c
s

2
.8

7
4

2
5

7
8

7
.9

4
4

3
4

9
2

1
.9

1
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 e

a
s
t 

a
n

d
 w

e
s
t 

o
f 

W
y
th

e
r 

P
a

rk
 H

ill
A

rm
le

y

u
c
s

0
.4

4
4

2
5

7
9

5
.3

1
4

3
4

7
5

0
.0

7
O

p
e

n
 l
a

n
d

 e
x
te

n
d

in
g

 f
ro

m
 R

a
y
n

v
ill

e
 C

re
s
c
e

n
t 

to
 W

y
th

e
r 

P
a

rk
 H

ill
A

rm
le

y

u
c
s

0
.9

6
4

2
5

2
8

6
.9

1
4

3
4

7
3

4
.3

3
H

ill
 T

o
p

 M
ill

s
/ 

P
la

n
e

t 
W

o
rk

s
, 

O
ff

 H
o

u
g

h
ly

 L
a

n
e

A
rm

le
y

u
c
s

1
.0

2
4

2
5

5
4

4
.6

1
4

3
3

8
3

4
.5

8
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 n
o

rt
h

 &
 e

a
s
t 

o
f 

S
t 

M
a

ry
's

 H
o

s
p

it
a

l 
, 

G
re

e
n

 H
ill

 R
o

a
d

A
rm

le
y

u
c
s

0
.5

4
4

2
5

6
9

8
.7

7
4

3
3

8
7

4
.7

0
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 f
ro

n
t 

o
f 

S
t 

M
a

ry
's

 H
o

s
p

it
a

l 
, 

G
re

e
n

 H
ill

 R
o

a
d

A
rm

le
y

u
c
s

0
.1

9
4

2
5

9
6

9
.7

1
4

3
4

1
6

9
.9

7
L

a
n

d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 A

rm
le

y
 T

e
n

n
is

 C
o

u
rt

s
 &

 S
ta

n
n

in
g

le
y
 R

o
a

d
A

rm
le

y

u
c
s

0
.4

4
4

2
5

8
4

5
.5

3
4

3
4

3
1

7
.2

0
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 r
e

a
r 

o
f 

T
h

e
 Y

o
rk

s
h

ir
e

m
a

n
 P

H
, 

C
o

c
k
s
h

o
tt

 L
a

n
e

A
rm

le
y

u
c
s

0
.1

3
4

2
5

8
3

1
.4

1
4

3
4

1
4

4
.2

5
2

1
1

, 
S

ta
n

n
in

g
le

y
 R

o
a

d
A

rm
le

y

u
c
s

0
.1

3
4

3
1

4
2

1
.7

5
4

3
5

1
3

3
.5

3
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
R

o
u

n
d

h
a

y
 R

o
a

d
 &

 G
a

th
o

rn
e

 T
e

rr
a

c
e

 /
 S

tr
e

e
t

H
a

re
h

ill
s

u
c
s

0
.2

2
4

3
1

4
8

7
.1

6
4

3
5

2
0

1
.2

7
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
9

5
 -

1
0

9
, 

R
o

u
n

d
h

a
y
 R

o
a

d
H

a
re

h
ill

s

u
c
s

0
.0

4
4

3
1

5
1

2
.3

9
4

3
5

6
2

3
.6

7
1

 -
 1

1
, 

H
a

re
s
 V

ie
w

H
a

re
h

ill
s

u
c
s

0
.1

7
4

3
1

9
6

8
.4

2
4

3
5

7
5

9
.0

6
B

u
ild

in
g

s
 a

t 
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
R

o
u

n
d

h
a

y
 R

o
a

d
 &

 H
a

re
h

ill
s
 L

a
n

e
, 

H
a

re
h

ill
s
 C

H
a

re
h

ill
s

u
c
s

0
.3

1
4

3
3

2
1

9
.0

9
4

3
5

6
3

9
.5

8
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
A

m
b

e
rt

o
n

 C
re

s
c
e

n
t 

&
 A

m
b

e
rt

o
n

 R
o

a
d

H
a

re
h

ill
s

u
c
s

0
.3

5
4

3
3

1
3

8
.7

8
4

3
5

8
2

3
.9

2
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
2

4
-3

4
, 

L
a

w
re

n
c
e

 R
o

a
d

H
a

re
h

ill
s

u
c
s

0
.2

0
4

3
3

2
1

8
.0

0
4

3
5

8
5

7
.7

7
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 f

ro
n

t 
o

f 
3

0
-4

2
, 

A
m

b
e

rt
o

n
 L

a
n

e
 &

 1
0

2
-1

1
4

, 
A

m
b

e
rt

o
n

 C
re

s
c
e

n
t

H
a

re
h

ill
s

u
c
s

0
.1

3
4

3
3

3
6

1
.8

3
4

3
5

7
6

9
.5

6
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 C

e
n

tr
e

, 
A

m
b

e
rt

o
n

 G
a

rd
e

n
s
 /

 A
m

b
e

rt
o

n
 G

ro
v
e

H
a

re
h

ill
s

u
c
s

1
.0

7
4

3
3

0
6

4
.6

7
4

3
5

4
5

6
.5

8
G

ip
to

n
 O

n
e

 S
to

p
 S

h
o

p
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 T
h

o
rn

 W
a

lk
H

a
re

h
ill

s

u
c
s

4
.1

9
4

2
8

0
2

8
.7

2
4

3
1

2
3

5
.7

3
C

a
r 

p
a

rk
 D

, 
E

lla
n

d
 R

o
a

d
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

2
.8

1
4

2
8

1
7

5
.2

5
4

3
1

4
4

3
.7

8
W

a
re

h
o

u
s
e

s
 t

o
 n

o
rt

h
 o

f 
E

lla
n

d
 R

o
a

d
 S

ta
d

iu
m

, 
L

o
w

 F
ie

ld
s
 R

o
a

d
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.4

1
4

2
8

8
6

2
.7

7
4

3
1

0
3

5
.1

4
B

e
e

s
to

n
 M

a
n

o
r,

 M
a

n
o

r 
F

ie
ld

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.1

3
4

2
8

5
4

8
.3

1
4

3
0

7
1

7
.7

3
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 w

e
s
t 

o
f 

O
ld

 W
h

it
e

 H
a

rt
 P

u
b

, 
T

o
w

n
 S

tr
e

e
t

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.5

5
4

2
8

4
7

7
.6

9
4

3
0

6
3

4
.9

5
P

a
rk

 L
e

e
s
 A

g
e

d
 P

e
rs

o
n

's
 H

o
m

e
, 

S
t 

A
n

th
o

n
y
's

 R
o

a
d

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

1
.8

6
4

2
8

9
6

8
.1

1
4

3
0

0
7

0
.2

0
C

o
n

c
o

u
rs

e
 H

o
u

s
e

 E
s
ta

te
, 

D
e

w
s
b

u
ry

 R
o

a
d

/O
a

k
h

u
rs

t 
A

v
e

n
u

e
B

e
e

s
to

n

2
3

Page 92



W
A

S
T

E
 S

IT
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

IO
N

 R
E

P
O

R
T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

S
O

U
R

C
E

A
R

E
A

_
H

A
X

_
C

O
O

R
D

Y
_

C
O

O
R

D
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

_
1

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
_

2
T

Y
P

E
_

C
O

D
E

L
A

N
D

_
U

S
E

_
C

P
L

G
_

S
T

A
T

U
S

u
c
s

0
.1

7
4

2
8

9
8

4
.2

5
4

2
9

6
8

4
.0

6
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 n

o
rt

h
 o

f 
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
R

in
g

 R
o

a
d

 (
B

e
e

s
to

n
 P

a
rk

) 
&

 P
a

rk
w

o
o

d
 R

o
a

B
e

e
s
to

n

u
c
s

0
.8

2
4

2
8

6
0

3
.1

3
4

2
9

3
4

5
.8

9
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
9

6
-1

4
0

, 
P

a
rk

w
o

o
d

 R
o

a
d

 &
 2

-3
2

, 
P

a
rk

w
o

o
d

 C
re

s
c
e

n
t

B
e

e
s
to

n

u
c
s

0
.7

5
4

2
8

7
5

7
.8

9
4

2
9

1
4

0
.1

4
4

8
-1

2
6

, 
P

a
rk

w
o

o
d

 C
re

s
c
e

n
t

B
e

e
s
to

n

u
c
s

0
.1

0
4

2
8

5
7

0
.6

3
4

3
0

0
0

2
.2

4
C

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

C
a

rd
in

a
l 
R

o
a

d
 &

 C
a

rd
in

a
l 
W

a
lk

, 
C

a
rd

in
a

l 
R

o
a

d
B

e
e

s
to

n

u
c
s

0
.0

9
4

2
8

4
8

7
.8

1
4

2
9

4
1

9
.3

9
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 s

o
u

th
 o

f 
B

ri
d

g
e

 F
a

rm
h

o
u

s
e

B
e

e
s
to

n

u
c
s

0
.1

8
4

2
9

0
1

5
.1

6
4

2
9

7
7

4
.6

6
S

o
u

th
 o

f 
1

7
, 

R
in

g
 R

o
a

d
, 

B
e

e
s
to

n
 P

a
rk

B
e

e
s
to

n

u
c
s

2
.0

8
4

2
9

7
5

7
.8

2
4

3
0

0
5

8
.2

5
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 s

o
u

th
 &

 e
a

s
t 

o
f 

M
ill

e
n

n
iu

m
 W

a
y

B
e

e
s
to

n

u
c
s

0
.4

1
4

2
9

6
4

3
.8

9
4

2
9

9
3

2
.1

1
L

a
n

d
 a

d
jo

in
in

g
 W

e
s
tl
a

n
d

 R
o

a
d

 &
 S

q
u

a
re

, 
W

e
s
tl
a

n
d

B
e

e
s
to

n

u
c
s

0
.1

1
4

2
6

4
8

9
.4

2
4

3
3

8
8

0
.4

8
L

a
n

d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 P

a
rk

 M
o

u
n

t 
/ 

P
a

rk
 S

tr
e

e
t/

 P
a

rk
 R

o
a

d
A

rm
le

y

u
c
s

0
.2

3
4

2
6

6
1

6
.8

6
4

3
3

6
9

4
.3

7
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
th

e
 V

ic
a

ra
g

e
, 

A
rm

le
y
 R

id
g

e
 R

o
a

d
A

rm
le

y

u
c
s

0
.1

2
4

2
6

4
2

1
.5

5
4

3
3

7
0

9
.7

8
L

a
n

d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 3

2
 &

 3
7

 M
o

o
rf

ie
ld

 R
o

a
d

A
rm

le
y

u
c
s

0
.9

1
4

2
6

1
9

6
.5

5
4

3
3

7
5

0
.3

8
W

o
rk

s
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
6

0
-7

4
 M

o
o

rf
ie

ld
 R

o
a

d
A

rm
le

y

u
c
s

0
.3

2
4

2
6

7
2

0
.4

1
4

3
3

5
3

3
.8

8
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
9

4
 -

 1
0

8
, 

T
o

w
n

 S
tr

e
e

t
A

rm
le

y

u
c
s

0
.3

2
4

2
6

7
7

9
.6

7
4

3
3

3
2

7
.6

3
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 w

e
s
t 

o
f 

M
o

d
d

e
r 

P
la

c
e

A
rm

le
y

u
c
s

1
.3

7
4

2
6

8
4

0
.8

9
4

3
3

2
7

2
.3

4
P

e
n

n
in

e
 I

n
d

u
s
tr

ia
l 
E

s
ta

te
, 

M
o

d
d

e
r 

P
la

c
e

A
rm

le
y

u
c
s

0
.3

0
4

2
6

8
9

3
.9

2
4

3
3

3
7

6
.4

1
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
N

e
tt

o
, 

M
o

d
d

e
r 

A
v
e

n
u

e
A

rm
le

y

u
c
s

0
.0

7
4

2
6

9
1

6
.6

4
4

3
3

3
3

7
.5

8
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 s

o
u

th
 o

f 
3

8
, 

C
a

rr
 C

ro
ft

s
A

rm
le

y

u
c
s

0
.2

5
4

2
6

8
8

6
.7

0
4

3
3

1
2

8
.1

3
T

o
n

g
 R

o
a

d
A

rm
le

y

u
c
s

0
.3

4
4

2
6

6
7

1
.4

5
4

3
3

1
1

8
.2

2
2

8
0

 (
R

a
tc

lif
fe

 U
K

 L
td

),
 T

o
n

g
 R

o
a

d
A

rm
le

y

u
c
s

0
.1

4
4

2
7

0
5

1
.9

5
4

3
3

5
5

9
.5

3
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 c

lin
ic

, 
T

h
e

a
k
e

r 
L

a
n

e
A

rm
le

y

u
c
s

1
.3

0
4

2
6

8
5

5
.8

1
4

3
3

6
7

7
.9

7
F

a
r 

F
o

ld
, 

E
y
re

s
 M

ill
 S

id
e

A
rm

le
y

u
c
s

0
.2

8
4

2
6

8
8

6
.1

1
4

3
3

7
3

3
.0

3
B

u
ild

in
g

s
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
4

1
-4

5
, 

S
ta

n
n

in
g

le
y
 R

o
a

d
A

rm
le

y

u
c
s

0
.1

2
4

2
7

4
7

5
.0

5
4

3
3

5
6

0
.9

8
A

rm
le

y
 M

a
n

o
r,

 M
is

tr
e

s
s
 L

a
n

e
A

rm
le

y

u
c
s

0
.0

3
4

2
6

9
5

1
.3

8
4

3
3

4
1

3
.0

8
B

e
c
k
y
's

 M
ill

, 
7

1
a

 T
o

w
n

 S
tr

e
e

e
t

A
rm

le
y

u
c
s

0
.0

8
4

2
6

9
8

9
.2

7
4

3
3

3
9

6
.4

2
L

a
n

d
 n

o
rt

h
 o

f 
L

e
is

u
re

 C
e

n
tr

e
, 

C
a

rr
 C

ro
ft

s
A

rm
le

y

u
c
s

0
.0

5
4

2
7

0
1

5
.4

6
4

3
3

4
9

7
.0

3
1

-1
3

, 
G

e
ld

e
r 

R
o

a
d

A
rm

le
y

u
c
s

0
.2

1
4

2
7

1
3

3
.0

5
4

3
3

4
3

0
.3

0
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
2

7
-3

3
, 

(A
m

b
e

r 
C

a
rs

) 
T

o
w

n
 S

tr
e

e
t

A
rm

le
y

u
c
s

0
.0

7
4

2
7

0
8

9
.0

3
4

3
3

4
2

8
.5

0
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 n

o
rt

h
 o

f 
1

1
, 

H
a

ll 
R

o
a

d
A

rm
le

y

u
c
s

0
.0

4
4

2
7

0
9

9
.5

0
4

3
3

5
2

9
.6

3
F

ir
s
t 

fl
o

o
r 

o
f 

3
6

 &
 3

8
 T

o
w

n
 S

tr
e

e
t

A
rm

le
y

u
c
s

0
.0

2
4

2
7

1
8

3
.1

7
4

3
3

5
3

5
.1

3
8

 T
o

w
n

 S
tr

e
e

t
A

rm
le

y

u
c
s

0
.7

1
4

2
7

0
8

1
.8

8
4

3
3

7
3

6
.5

0
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 w
e

s
t 

o
f 

th
e

 C
e

c
ils

, 
S

ta
n

n
in

g
le

y
 R

o
a

d
A

rm
le

y

u
c
s

0
.0

5
4

2
7

2
7

6
.9

5
4

3
3

5
2

3
.0

0
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 e

a
s
t 

o
f 

1
3

 S
to

c
k
s
 H

ill
A

rm
le

y

u
c
s

0
.0

9
4

2
7

7
6

1
.4

5
4

3
3

4
9

0
.5

2
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 s

o
u

th
 o

f 
2

2
 A

b
b

o
tt

 R
o

a
d

A
rm

le
y

u
c
s

0
.1

9
4

2
7

1
3

8
.6

1
4

3
3

9
6

9
.6

3
A

rm
le

y
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

l,
 R

o
m

b
o

ld
s
 A

v
e

n
u

e
A

rm
le

y

u
c
s

0
.1

9
4

2
7

5
2

1
.6

3
4

3
3

9
4

0
.8

4
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 7

7
, 

C
a

n
a

l 
R

o
a

d
A

rm
le

y

u
c
s

0
.1

7
4

2
7

3
6

7
.8

3
4

3
3

7
6

4
.3

0
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 s

o
u

th
 o

f 
2

1
-3

5
, 

S
a

lis
b

u
ry

 G
ro

v
e

A
rm

le
y

u
c
s

0
.1

5
4

2
7

4
8

6
.1

4
4

3
3

8
1

1
.4

7
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 s

o
u

th
 o

f 
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

a
n

a
l 
R

o
a

d
 /

 A
v
ia

ry
 R

o
a

d
A

rm
le

y

u
c
s

0
.2

7
4

2
7

3
2

5
.1

9
4

2
8

2
7

8
.3

6
V

a
lle

y
 M

ill
s
, 

V
a

lle
y
 R

o
a

d
M

o
rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

0
.1

1
4

2
7

2
9

9
.3

8
4

2
7

8
9

6
.7

2
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 f

ro
n

t 
o

f 
4

1
-6

3
, 

D
e

n
s
h

a
w

 G
ro

v
e

M
o

rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

0
.1

1
4

2
7

1
8

5
.4

1
4

2
7

9
0

7
.0

5
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 f

ro
n

t 
o

f 
1

6
-4

6
, 

D
e

n
s
h

a
w

 D
ri
v
e

M
o

rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

0
.3

8
4

2
9

8
1

0
.4

4
4

3
0

5
6

1
.2

0
3

1
1

, 
D

e
w

s
b

u
ry

 R
o

a
d

M
o

rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

0
.1

9
4

2
9

8
2

2
.3

6
4

3
0

6
0

4
.0

6
6

, 
M

a
tr

ix
 C

o
u

rt
M

o
rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

1
.8

1
4

2
9

9
2

7
.1

9
4

3
0

6
8

9
.4

7
C

re
s
c
e

n
t 

W
o

rk
s
, 

D
e

w
s
b

u
ry

 R
o

a
d

B
e

e
s
to

n

u
c
s

0
.1

1
4

2
9

9
5

2
.7

3
4

3
0

8
0

2
.8

8
C

re
s
c
e

n
t 

G
ra

n
g

e
, 

D
e

w
s
b

u
ry

 R
o

a
d

B
e

e
s
to

n

u
c
s

0
.1

2
4

2
9

8
0

7
.3

5
4

3
1

4
1

0
.3

0
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 3

, 
G

re
e

n
m

o
u

n
t 

T
e

rr
a

c
e

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.4

0
4

2
9

8
3

5
.2

2
4

3
1

3
2

8
.9

8
F

o
rm

e
r 

fa
c
to

ry
 s

it
e

, 
L

a
d

y
 P

it
 L

a
n

e
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.3

2
4

2
9

7
4

7
.7

7
4

3
1

6
9

4
.7

1
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 e
a

s
t 

o
f 

3
3

-4
4

,F
o

lly
 L

a
n

e
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.1

0
4

2
9

9
2

7
.2

7
4

3
1

5
2

3
.0

6
L

a
n

d
 o

p
p

o
s
it
e

 9
3

-1
0

1
, 

B
is

m
a

rk
 S

tr
e

e
t

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.4

1
4

2
9

9
9

8
.6

4
4

3
1

4
9

2
.9

9
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
  

1
1

5
-1

3
3

, 
B

is
m

a
rk

 S
tr

e
e

t
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.2

0
4

2
8

2
8

4
.1

7
4

3
3

1
2

8
.4

7
T

h
e

 H
a

w
th

o
rn

s
, 

H
o

ld
fo

rt
h

 P
la

c
e

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

2
.2

3
4

2
8

3
6

1
.8

8
4

3
3

1
8

6
.0

0
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 G
a

s
 s

it
e

, 
A

rm
le

y
 G

y
ra

to
ry

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.2

8
4

2
8

3
9

1
.6

0
4

3
3

3
3

0
.8

8
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 f

ro
n

t 
o

f 
B

ri
ti
s
h

 G
a

s
 s

it
e

, 
C

a
n

a
l 
S

tr
e

e
t

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.0

9
4

2
8

2
2

9
.0

0
4

3
3

4
2

9
.9

5
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 n

o
rt

h
 o

f 
1

-9
 H

e
d

le
y
 G

a
rd

e
n

s
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.2

3
4

2
8

3
1

5
.6

7
4

3
3

3
8

6
.1

9
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 n

o
rt

h
 o

f 
c
lu

b
, 

H
e

d
le

y
 C

h
a

s
e

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.9

3
4

2
8

2
7

9
.4

1
4

3
3

4
2

3
.2

0
L

a
n

d
 a

lo
n

g
 s

o
u

th
e

rn
 s

id
e

 o
f 

C
a

n
a

l 
S

tr
e

e
t

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.8

8
4

2
8

0
7

9
.0

9
4

3
3

8
3

6
.7

8
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 f

ro
n

t 
o

f 
F

a
rn

e
ll,

 C
a

s
tl
e

to
n

 R
o

a
d

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.3

4
4

2
8

3
5

9
.0

0
4

3
3

5
5

9
.1

6
C

a
r 

p
a

rk
 t

o
 e

a
s
t 

o
f 

A
lb

io
n

 W
a

y
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.6

1
4

2
8

3
6

6
.2

4
4

3
3

7
0

8
.7

8
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 A

lb
io

n
 P

a
rk

 I
n

d
u

s
tr

ia
l 
E

s
ta

te
, 

A
lb

io
n

 W
a

y
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.3

4
4

2
8

4
6

2
.8

9
4

3
3

6
5

8
.1

6
L

a
n

d
 o

p
p

o
s
it
e

 t
o

 P
e

te
r'
s
 F

u
rn

it
u

re
 W

a
re

h
o

u
s
e

, 
A

lb
io

n
 W

a
y

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.2

2
4

2
8

5
7

1
.5

6
4

3
3

3
2

8
.5

9
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 R

e
g

 V
a

rd
y
 D

e
a

le
rs

h
ip

, 
A

rm
le

y
 R

o
a

d
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.6

5
4

2
8

6
5

9
.9

7
4

3
3

2
7

9
.7

7
F

o
rm

e
r 

R
e

g
 V

a
rd

y
 D

e
a

le
rs

h
ip

, 
A

rm
le

y
 R

o
a

d
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.4

8
4

2
8

8
0

5
.4

5
4

3
3

4
2

5
.1

9
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 R

o
v
e

r 
/ 

M
G

 g
a

ra
g

e
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.9

3
4

2
8

5
6

3
.7

7
4

3
3

8
1

0
.0

3
F

o
rm

e
r 

s
c
ie

n
ti
fi
c
 g

a
m

e
s
 f

a
c
to

ry
, 

K
ir
k
s
ta

ll 
R

o
a

d
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.1

6
4

2
8

8
2

3
.0

3
4

3
3

9
7

2
.8

8
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 w

e
s
t 

o
f 

ju
n

c
ti
o

n
 B

u
rl
e

y
 S

tr
e

e
t 

/ 
S

t 
A

n
d

re
w

's
 S

tr
e

e
t

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

2
.7

2
4

2
5

6
3

9
.2

5
4

3
2

8
4

5
.3

9
S

to
n

e
b

ri
d

g
e

 M
ill

s
, 

S
to

n
e

b
ri
d

g
e

 L
a

n
e

W
o

rt
le

y

u
c
s

2
.1

3
4

4
0

3
2

0
.6

4
4

4
7

8
6

1
.3

0
M

ic
k
le

th
w

a
it
e

 F
a

rm
, 

B
o

s
to

n
 R

o
a

d
W

e
th

e
rb

y

u
c
s

0
.0

9
4

4
0

2
9

5
.2

0
4

4
8

2
3

3
.7

5
T

im
b

e
r 

Y
a

rd
, 

M
a

rk
e

t 
P

la
c
e

W
e

th
e

rb
y

u
c
s

0
.0

5
4

4
0

2
2

1
.8

9
4

4
8

3
2

9
.3

4
F

o
rm

e
r 

o
ff

ic
e

s
, 

4
2

, 
W

e
s
tg

a
te

W
e

th
e

rb
y

u
c
s

0
.3

0
4

4
0

0
0

1
.5

9
4

4
8

3
4

1
.8

8
1

a
 L

o
c
a

n
d

a
 R

e
s
ta

u
ra

n
t,

 W
e

s
tg

a
te

W
e

th
e

rb
y

2
4

Page 93



W
A

S
T

E
 S

IT
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

IO
N

 R
E

P
O

R
T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

S
O

U
R

C
E

A
R

E
A

_
H

A
X

_
C

O
O

R
D

Y
_

C
O

O
R

D
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

_
1

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
_

2
T

Y
P

E
_

C
O

D
E

L
A

N
D

_
U

S
E

_
C

P
L

G
_

S
T

A
T

U
S

u
c
s

0
.0

5
4

4
0

5
2

4
.2

0
4

4
8

2
0

4
.2

5
A

d
j.
 N

o
. 

1
4

 H
o

rs
fa

ir
W

e
th

e
rb

y

u
c
s

1
.1

0
4

4
0

6
6

8
.3

6
4

4
8

1
6

5
.7

8
L

e
e

d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

D
e

p
o

t,
 H

a
llf

ie
ld

 L
a

n
e

W
e

th
e

rb
y

u
c
s

0
.0

9
4

4
0

8
2

1
.7

5
4

4
8

1
9

9
.0

9
L

a
n

d
 i
n

 f
ro

n
t 

o
f 

2
1

-3
7

, 
F

ir
s
t 

A
v
e

n
u

e
W

e
th

e
rb

y

u
c
s

0
.4

7
4

4
0

6
1

1
.3

0
4

4
8

2
2

2
.1

6
F

o
rm

e
r 

w
o

rk
s
, 

H
a

llf
ie

ld
 L

a
n

e
W

e
th

e
rb

y

u
c
s

0
.3

0
4

4
0

4
9

5
.0

0
4

4
8

1
5

8
.6

4
C

a
tt

le
 M

a
rk

e
t,

 H
a

llf
ie

ld
 L

a
n

e
W

e
th

e
rb

y

u
c
s

1
.0

8
4

3
4

0
7

4
.1

0
4

3
6

9
2

7
.8

0
S

it
e

 l
o

c
a

te
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

W
e

th
e

rb
y
 R

o
a

d
 a

n
d

 E
a

s
te

rl
y
 R

o
a

d
R

o
u

n
d

h
a

y

u
c
s

0
.6

5
4

3
4

3
3

7
.3

2
4

3
7

0
2

6
.1

3
B

a
rn

c
ro

ft
 T

o
w

e
rs

, 
B

a
rn

c
ro

ft
 D

ri
v
e

S
e

a
c
ro

ft

u
c
s

0
.2

7
4

3
4

1
7

9
.8

9
4

3
6

9
1

6
.9

2
1

0
3

 t
o

 1
1

7
, 

A
s
k
e

t 
D

ri
v
e

S
e

a
c
ro

ft

u
c
s

0
.4

2
4

3
4

0
9

4
.4

3
4

3
6

7
2

3
.6

2
S

it
e

 i
n

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 E
a

s
te

rl
y
 R

o
a

d
 a

n
d

 A
s
k
e

t 
D

ri
v
e

S
e

a
c
ro

ft

u
c
s

0
.1

7
4

3
4

3
6

0
.2

7
4

3
6

2
6

8
.8

4
S

it
e

 o
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

A
s
k
e

t 
L

a
n

e
 a

n
d

 A
s
k
e

t 
W

a
lk

S
e

a
c
ro

ft

u
c
s

0
.0

9
4

3
4

7
4

0
.4

7
4

3
6

3
6

1
.7

6
S

it
e

 i
n

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 4

 a
n

d
 6

 o
ff

 A
s
k
e

t 
L

a
n

e
S

e
a

c
ro

ft

u
c
s

1
.9

1
4

3
4

5
2

9
.6

4
4

3
6

3
9

6
.1

9
S

it
e

 i
n

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 K
e

n
tm

e
re

 A
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 a
n

d
 A

s
k
e

t 
D

ri
v
e

S
e

a
c
ro

ft

u
c
s

0
.1

1
4

3
4

5
7

6
.7

2
4

3
6

4
8

5
.8

8
T

h
e

 i
s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 c
o

rn
e

r 
o

f 
T

h
e

 R
e

in
S

e
a

c
ro

ft

u
c
s

0
.5

2
4

3
4

6
3

4
.7

2
4

3
6

6
9

1
.0

0
T

h
e

 s
it
e

 i
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 B

o
g

g
a

rt
 H

ill
 R

o
a

d
 a

n
d

 T
h

e
 R

e
in

S
e

a
c
ro

ft

u
c
s

0
.5

1
4

3
4

3
7

1
.4

3
4

3
6

6
4

9
.8

6
S

it
e

 o
ff

 B
o

g
g

a
rt

 H
ill

 G
a

rd
e

n
s

S
e

a
c
ro

ft

u
c
s

0
.3

9
4

3
4

3
0

0
.9

1
4

3
6

7
3

2
.1

7
6

 t
o

 6
4

 B
o

g
g

a
rt

 H
ill

 G
a

rd
e

n
s

S
e

a
c
ro

ft

u
c
s

0
.1

7
4

3
4

5
2

8
.5

8
4

3
6

7
8

6
.8

6
L

a
n

d
 o

ff
 B

o
g

g
a

rt
 H

ill
 C

re
s
c
e

n
t

S
e

a
c
ro

ft

u
c
s

0
.2

1
4

3
4

6
6

0
.0

1
4

3
6

7
7

3
.3

4
L

a
n

d
 i
n

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 B
o

g
g

a
rt

 H
ill

 C
re

s
c
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 B

o
g

g
a

rt
 H

ill
 R

o
a

d
S

e
a

c
ro

ft

u
c
s

0
.1

4
4

3
4

9
5

2
.8

6
4

3
6

8
9

8
.9

8
L

a
n

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 c
o

rn
e

r 
o

f 
B

o
g

g
a

rt
 H

ill
 D

ri
v
e

 a
n

d
 K

e
n

tm
e

re
 A

v
e

n
u

e
S

e
a

c
ro

ft

u
c
s

0
.1

9
4

3
4

8
9

8
.0

3
4

3
6

2
2

0
.5

0
S

it
e

 a
c
ro

s
s
 R

o
s
g

ill
 W

a
lk

S
e

a
c
ro

ft

u
c
s

0
.6

6
4

3
4

9
3

9
.0

9
4

3
6

1
3

3
.0

0
S

it
e

 i
s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 c
o

rn
e

r 
o

f 
K

e
n

tm
e

re
 A

v
e

n
u

e
 a

n
d

 B
ro

o
k
la

n
d

s
 L

a
n

e
S

e
a

c
ro

ft

u
c
s

0
.2

9
4

3
4

8
2

3
.7

2
4

3
5

8
3

8
.2

8
S

it
e

 i
s
 o

ff
 B

ro
o

k
la

n
d

s
 L

a
n

e
S

e
a

c
ro

ft

u
c
s

0
.2

3
4

3
4

7
0

8
.3

8
4

3
5

7
4

2
.2

2
S

it
e

 o
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

B
ro

o
k
la

n
d

s
 V

ie
w

 a
n

d
 B

ro
o

k
la

n
d

s
 A

v
e

n
u

e
S

e
a

c
ro

ft

u
c
s

0
.1

4
4

3
4

5
9

5
.7

8
4

3
5

7
7

3
.6

3
s
it
e

 o
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

B
ro

o
k
la

n
d

s
 D

ri
v
e

 a
n

d
 B

ro
o

k
la

n
d

s
 V

ie
w

S
e

a
c
ro

ft

u
c
s

0
.2

4
4

3
5

7
0

2
.4

1
4

3
6

2
0

4
.7

1
S

it
e

 o
ff

 S
e

a
c
ro

ft
 A

v
e

n
u

e
S

e
a

c
ro

ft

u
c
s

0
.4

2
4

3
5

7
0

5
.6

6
4

3
6

1
1

2
.4

7
S

it
e

 b
e

h
in

d
 S

e
a

c
ro

ft
 G

ra
n

g
e

 C
e

n
tr

e
S

e
a

c
ro

ft

u
c
s

0
.4

9
4

3
5

3
9

9
.5

3
4

3
6

0
3

8
.2

7
S

it
e

 i
n

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 B
ro

o
k
la

n
d

s
 A

v
e

n
u

e
 a

n
d

 M
a

lh
a

m
 C

lo
s
e

S
e

a
c
ro

ft

u
c
s

0
.1

5
4

3
5

4
8

7
.2

2
4

3
6

0
9

9
.9

2
S

it
e

 o
ff

 B
a

ile
y
's

 L
a

n
e

 b
e

h
in

d
 t

h
e

 E
a

s
t 

L
e

e
d

s
 L

a
b

o
u

r 
C

lu
b

S
e

a
c
ro

ft

u
c
s

0
.1

0
4

3
5

7
5

3
.4

8
4

3
5

9
9

6
.0

6
S

it
e

 t
o

 E
a

s
t 

o
f 

Y
o

rk
 R

o
a

d
, 

S
e

a
c
ro

ft
S

e
a

c
ro

ft

u
c
s

0
.2

5
4

3
5

8
0

2
.9

8
4

3
6

1
2

4
.3

3
S

it
e

 -
a

llo
tm

e
n

t 
g

a
rd

e
n

s
 n

o
rt

h
 o

f 
H

a
n

s
b

y
 G

a
te

, 
S

e
a

c
ro

ft
S

e
a

c
ro

ft

u
c
s

0
.1

8
4

3
5

8
4

4
.0

0
4

3
5

9
9

6
.7

3
S

it
e

  
n

o
rt

h
 o

f 
C

h
u

rc
h

 C
lo

s
e

, 
S

e
a

c
ro

ft
S

e
a

c
ro

ft

u
c
s

0
.3

3
4

3
5

4
7

8
.6

6
4

3
5

8
6

9
.1

9
S

it
e

 n
o

rt
h

 o
f 

S
t.

 J
a

m
e

s
  

A
p

p
ro

a
c
h

, 
S

e
a

c
ro

ft
.

S
e

a
c
ro

ft

u
c
s

0
.0

9
4

3
5

3
0

9
.7

0
4

3
5

9
0

4
.9

1
S

it
e

  
N

o
rt

h
 o

f 
R

e
d

m
ir
e

 V
ie

w
, 

S
e

a
c
ro

ft
S

e
a

c
ro

ft

u
c
s

0
.3

1
4

3
5

5
7

6
.5

5
4

3
6

1
4

6
.2

8
S

it
e

 n
e

x
t 

to
 C

ri
c
k
e

te
rs

 A
rm

s
, 

o
ff

 S
e

a
c
ro

ft
 C

re
s
c
e

n
t,

 S
e

a
c
ro

ft
S

e
a

c
ro

ft

u
c
s

0
.1

0
4

3
5

6
3

1
.8

0
4

3
6

1
4

8
.1

2
S

it
e

 e
a

s
t 

o
f 

S
e

a
c
ro

ft
 C

re
s
c
e

n
t,

 n
e

x
t 

to
 c

lin
ic

, 
S

e
a

c
ro

ft
S

e
a

c
ro

ft

u
c
s

1
.4

2
4

3
5

4
5

3
.7

2
4

3
6

3
0

6
.6

3
S

it
e

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 S
e

a
c
ro

ft
 C

re
s
c
e

n
t 

&
 B

a
ile

y
s
 L

a
n

e
, 

S
e

a
c
ro

ft
S

e
a

c
ro

ft

u
c
s

0
.8

7
4

3
5

2
9

5
.3

5
4

3
6

3
2

7
.0

5
S

it
e

 s
o

u
th

 o
f 

R
o

s
g

ill
 D

ri
v
e

 &
 w

e
s
t 

o
f 

B
a

ile
y
s
 L

a
n

e
, 

S
e

a
c
ro

ft
.

S
e

a
c
ro

ft

u
c
s

0
.4

0
4

3
5

2
8

7
.7

0
4

3
6

0
9

4
.6

6
S

it
e

 n
o

rt
h

 w
e

s
t 

o
f 

B
ro

o
k
la

n
d

s
 A

v
e

n
u

e
, 

S
e

a
c
ro

ft
.

S
e

a
c
ro

ft

u
c
s

0
.5

6
4

3
4

2
5

9
.0

4
4

3
6

1
0

4
.2

6
S

it
e

 n
o

rt
h

 e
a

s
t 

o
f 

F
o

x
w

o
o

d
 F

a
rm

 W
a

y
, 

S
c
a

rc
ro

ft
.

H
a

re
h

ill
s

u
c
s

0
.2

4
4

3
5

5
3

5
.2

8
4

3
6

6
0

1
.4

1
S

it
e

 o
n

 c
o

rn
e

r 
o

f 
E

a
s
td

e
a

n
 D

ri
v
e

 &
 E

a
s
td

e
a

n
 R

is
e

, 
S

c
a

rc
ro

ft
.

S
e

a
c
ro

ft

u
c
s

0
.0

6
4

3
5

2
6

7
.0

2
4

3
6

5
2

3
.0

8
S

it
e

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 R
a

m
s
h

e
a

d
 G

ro
v
e

 &
 N

o
rt

h
 P

a
rk

w
a

y
, 

S
e

a
c
ro

ft
.

S
e

a
c
ro

ft

u
c
s

0
.1

5
4

3
5

1
6

1
.2

5
4

3
6

4
8

6
.5

5
S

it
e

 o
n

 c
o

rn
e

r 
o

f 
P

ig
e

o
n

 C
o

te
 R

o
a

d
 &

 N
o

rt
h

 P
a

rk
w

a
y
, 

S
e

a
c
ro

ft
.

S
e

a
c
ro

ft

u
c
s

0
.1

3
4

3
5

0
2

4
.2

2
4

3
6

8
6

0
.5

2
S

it
e

 o
n

 c
o

rn
e

r 
o

f 
R

a
m

s
h

e
a

d
 H

ill
 &

 K
e

n
tm

e
re

 A
v
e

n
u

e
, 

S
e

a
c
ro

ft
.

S
e

a
c
ro

ft

u
c
s

0
.1

4
4

3
5

0
4

4
.9

8
4

3
6

5
5

8
.2

8
S

it
e

 w
e

s
t 

o
f 

K
e

n
tm

e
re

 A
v
e

n
u

e
, 

S
e

a
c
ro

ft
.

S
e

a
c
ro

ft

u
c
s

0
.1

5
4

3
5

8
4

6
.5

3
4

3
6

3
5

0
.5

3
S

it
e

 n
o

rt
h

 o
f 

S
e

a
c
ro

ft
 G

a
te

, 
S

e
a

c
ro

ft
.

S
e

a
c
ro

ft

u
c
s

0
.1

7
4

3
5

8
1

6
.4

4
4

3
6

4
4

1
.0

9
S

it
e

 o
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

R
in

g
 R

o
a

d
 S

e
a

c
ro

ft
 a

n
d

 Y
o

rk
 R

o
a

d
S

e
a

c
ro

ft

u
c
s

0
.1

4
4

3
5

3
9

3
.1

3
4

3
6

8
2

1
.2

2
S

it
e

 o
ff

 R
a

m
s
h

e
a

d
 A

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 n
e

x
t 

to
 S

e
a

c
ro

ft
 I

n
d

u
s
tr

ia
l 
E

s
ta

te
S

e
a

c
ro

ft

u
c
s

0
.9

9
4

3
5

6
0

2
.0

0
4

3
6

8
7

9
.7

5
S

it
e

 o
ff

 L
im

e
w

o
o

d
 R

o
a

d
, 

in
 S

e
a

c
ro

ft
 I

n
d

u
s
tr

ia
l 
E

s
ta

te
S

e
a

c
ro

ft

u
c
s

3
.6

5
4

3
5

6
1

8
.0

2
4

3
7

1
7

1
.6

3
S

it
e

 (
s
p

o
rt

s
 g

ro
u

n
d

) 
in

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 R
in

g
 R

o
a

d
 (

s
e

a
c
ro

ft
) 

a
n

d
 C

o
a

l 
R

o
a

d
W

h
in

m
o

o
r

u
c
s

0
.2

8
4

3
5

9
1

1
.5

8
4

3
7

4
8

1
.5

0
S

it
e

 i
n

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 N
a

b
u

rn
 P

la
c
e

 a
n

d
 N

a
b

u
rn

 R
o

a
d

W
h

in
m

o
o

r

u
c
s

0
.0

7
4

3
6

0
7

8
.5

8
4

3
7

4
0

1
.9

1
S

it
e

 a
t 

th
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
N

a
b

u
rn

 D
ri
v
e

W
h

in
m

o
o

r

u
c
s

0
.3

3
4

3
6

0
9

6
.1

8
4

3
6

8
0

7
.5

5
S

it
e

 o
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

S
h

e
rb

u
rn

 R
o

a
d

 N
o

rt
h

 a
n

d
 Y

o
rk

 R
o

a
d

W
h

in
m

o
o

r

u
c
s

0
.1

7
4

3
6

3
9

6
.3

6
4

3
6

5
5

4
.9

1
S

it
e

 i
n

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 W
h

in
m

o
o

r 
W

a
y
 a

n
d

 F
a

rn
d

a
le

 P
la

c
e

W
h

in
m

o
o

r

u
c
s

0
.2

3
4

3
6

0
9

5
.7

7
4

3
6

3
1

4
.0

0
S

it
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

e
n

tr
e

 o
f 

M
ill

 G
re

e
n

 C
lo

s
e

W
h

in
m

o
o

r

u
c
s

0
.7

5
4

4
3

0
9

2
.0

6
4

4
5

7
7

9
.5

3
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
1

1
 &

 1
2

 L
e

e
 O

rc
h

a
rd

 H
o

lg
a

te
 L

a
n

e
W

e
th

e
rb

y

u
c
s

0
.2

2
4

4
3

1
3

8
.0

3
4

4
5

5
8

8
.3

3
L

a
n

d
 a

d
j 
C

a
s
tl
e

 S
te

a
d

 P
in

e
 T

re
e

 A
v
e

n
u

e
W

e
th

e
rb

y

u
c
s

0
.4

0
4

4
3

3
5

7
.4

4
4

4
5

4
7

4
.1

4
H

ig
h

 S
tr

e
e

t
W

e
th

e
rb

y

u
c
s

1
.1

4
4

4
2

9
0

4
.3

8
4

4
5

4
3

8
.8

0
H

o
ly

d
e

n
e

 N
u

rs
e

ri
e

s
 S

t 
M

a
ry

's
 S

tr
e

e
t

W
e

th
e

rb
y

u
c
s

0
.2

6
4

3
0

1
4

4
.4

8
4

2
7

9
5

8
.2

5
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
n

o
s
 1

8
 &

 1
9

 M
id

d
le

to
n

 P
a

rk
 C

re
s
c
e

n
t

M
id

d
le

to
n

u
c
s

1
.8

1
4

3
0

2
6

6
.6

1
4

2
7

8
1

0
.6

7
C

le
a

re
d

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 l
a

n
d

 a
t 

T
h

o
rp

e
 R

o
a

d
M

id
d

le
to

n

u
c
s

1
.2

2
4

3
0

2
1

0
.7

7
4

2
7

7
5

2
.1

6
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
T

h
o

rp
e

 R
o

a
d

M
id

d
le

to
n

u
c
s

0
.3

0
4

3
0

3
5

9
.1

9
4

2
7

6
5

0
.0

5
L

a
n

d
 o

p
p

o
s
it
e

 n
o

s
 7

5
 -

 1
0

1
 T

h
o

rp
e

 R
o

a
d

M
id

d
le

to
n

u
c
s

0
.1

8
4

3
0

4
5

5
.5

9
4

2
7

5
9

3
.2

7
L

a
n

d
 o

p
p

o
s
it
e

 1
0

7
 -

 1
1

3
 T

h
o

rp
e

 R
o

a
d

M
id

d
le

to
n

u
c
s

0
.4

4
4

3
0

4
6

5
.4

1
4

2
7

6
6

9
.0

3
C

le
a

re
d

 l
a

n
d

 a
n

d
 v

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s
 a

t 
A

c
re

 M
o

u
n

t
M

id
d

le
to

n

u
c
s

1
.5

4
4

3
0

5
4

4
.0

0
4

2
7

6
8

5
.5

9
V

a
c
a

n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
s
, 

e
a

s
t 

o
f 

A
c
re

 M
o

u
n

t
M

id
d

le
to

n

u
c
s

0
.2

6
4

3
0

1
8

3
.4

9
4

2
7

4
7

1
.4

6
B

u
ild

in
g

s
 a

t 
8

-1
4

 T
h

o
rp

e
 S

tr
e

e
t

M
id

d
le

to
n

u
c
s

4
.2

0
4

3
0

0
4

4
.1

9
4

2
7

2
1

0
.2

7
C

le
a

re
d

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 L

a
n

d
 a

t 
T

h
ro

s
tl
e

 G
ro

v
e

M
id

d
le

to
n

u
c
s

0
.3

9
4

2
9

8
5

7
.6

1
4

2
7

1
8

4
.8

5
L

a
n

d
 b

e
h

in
d

 M
id

d
le

to
n

 S
k
ill

s
 C

e
n

tr
e

, 
T

h
ro

s
lt
e

 M
t

M
id

d
le

to
n

u
c
s

0
.2

2
4

2
9

4
6

7
.4

4
4

2
7

3
9

7
.4

1
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
1

4
9

-1
5

1
 S

is
s
o

n
s
 R

o
a

d
M

id
d

le
to

n

2
5

Page 94



W
A

S
T

E
 S

IT
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

IO
N

 R
E

P
O

R
T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

S
O

U
R

C
E

A
R

E
A

_
H

A
X

_
C

O
O

R
D

Y
_

C
O

O
R

D
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

_
1

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
_

2
T

Y
P

E
_

C
O

D
E

L
A

N
D

_
U

S
E

_
C

P
L

G
_

S
T

A
T

U
S

u
c
s

0
.1

3
4

2
9

4
7

0
.1

4
4

2
7

5
0

6
.3

8
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
3

 &
 4

 S
is

s
o

n
s
 V

ie
w

M
id

d
le

to
n

u
c
s

0
.2

1
4

2
9

7
5

6
.6

9
4

2
7

6
1

7
.1

9
L

a
n

d
 &

 v
a

c
a

n
t 

fl
a

ts
 1

8
-3

2
 S

is
s
o

n
s
 A

v
e

/L
a

n
e

M
id

d
le

to
n

u
c
s

0
.4

0
4

2
9

7
0

2
.7

8
4

2
7

7
6

4
.9

7
S

it
e

 o
f 

fo
rm

e
r 

M
e

th
o

d
is

t 
M

is
s
o

n
 C

h
u

rc
h

, 
M

id
d

le
to

n
 P

a
rk

 G
ro

v
e

M
id

d
le

to
n

u
c
s

0
.1

2
4

4
1

6
4

6
.0

0
4

3
0

4
4

9
.0

5
L

a
n

d
 a

d
j.
 t

o
 1

2
 R

o
b

in
s
o

n
 L

a
n

e
B

a
rw

ic
k
 &

 K
ip

p
a

x

u
c
s

0
.2

1
4

4
1

4
2

0
.5

6
4

3
0

3
3

1
.5

0
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
7

 W
e

s
tf

ie
ld

 L
a

n
e

B
a

rw
ic

k
 &

 K
ip

p
a

x

u
c
s

0
.0

3
4

4
1

5
9

6
.3

4
4

3
0

2
6

1
.6

7
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
1

7
-1

9
 C

ro
s
s
 H

ill
s

B
a

rw
ic

k
 &

 K
ip

p
a

x

u
c
s

0
.5

1
4

4
0

3
2

5
.1

1
4

3
3

5
6

5
.8

0
F

o
rm

e
r 

g
a

ra
g

e
 B

a
rr

o
w

b
y
 L

a
/W

a
k
e

fi
e

ld
 R

d
G

a
rf

o
rt

h
 &

 S
w

ill
in

g

u
c
s

0
.1

2
4

4
0

2
8

0
.0

9
4

3
3

0
4

7
.4

5
C

le
a

re
d

 S
it
e

 a
d

j.
 7

 B
a

rl
e

y
 H

ill
 R

o
a

d
G

a
rf

o
rt

h
 &

 S
w

ill
in

g

u
c
s

0
.0

5
4

4
0

1
8

3
.1

6
4

3
3

0
9

0
.6

4
G

a
ra

g
e

s
 &

 L
a

n
d

 a
d

j 
5

2
 B

a
rl
e

y
 H

ill
 R

o
a

d
G

a
rf

o
rt

h
 &

 S
w

ill
in

g

u
c
s

0
.1

3
4

4
0

1
9

3
.8

0
4

3
2

9
9

5
.1

1
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
2

1
/2

3
 B

a
rl
e

y
 H

ill
 R

o
a

d
G

a
rf

o
rt

h
 &

 S
w

ill
in

g

u
c
s

0
.1

1
4

3
4

3
3

2
.6

1
4

2
8

1
6

6
.3

3
L

a
n

d
 i
n

 f
ro

n
t 

o
f 

H
e

a
lt
h

 C
e

n
tr

e
, 

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
S

t.
R

o
th

w
e

ll

u
c
s

0
.0

7
4

3
4

4
1

4
.3

4
4

2
8

0
3

0
.9

8
L

a
n

d
 &

 B
u

ild
in

g
 a

t 
B

u
tc

h
e

r 
H

ill
R

o
th

w
e

ll

u
c
s

0
.1

0
4

3
4

3
7

8
.5

9
4

2
7

9
9

7
.8

6
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
B

a
in

e
s
 S

tr
e

e
t,

 o
ff

 B
u

tc
h

e
r 

H
ill

R
o

th
w

e
ll

u
c
s

0
.1

7
4

3
4

3
9

9
.4

2
4

2
8

0
6

9
.0

3
T

e
le

p
h

o
n

e
 E

x
c
h

a
n

g
e

, 
B

u
tc

h
e

r 
H

ill
R

o
th

w
e

ll

u
c
s

0
.1

1
4

3
4

4
8

1
.0

0
4

2
8

0
3

9
.8

3
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
T

o
w

n
 H

a
ll,

 M
a

rs
h

 S
tr

e
e

t
R

o
th

w
e

ll

u
c
s

0
.1

7
4

3
4

6
7

5
.2

2
4

2
8

2
1

9
.5

6
L

a
n

d
 a

d
j 
to

 B
la

c
k
b

u
rn

 H
a

ll,
 B

a
c
k
 G

ill
e

tt
 L

a
n

e
R

o
th

w
e

ll

u
c
s

0
.1

5
4

3
4

5
8

6
.2

3
4

2
8

2
2

1
.1

6
F

o
rm

e
r 

B
u

ild
in

g
 Y

a
rd

, 
o

ff
 W

e
s
t 

P
a

ra
d

e
R

o
th

w
e

ll

u
c
s

0
.1

7
4

3
4

5
6

2
.6

3
4

2
8

1
7

4
.3

1
F

o
rm

e
r 

c
h

a
p

e
l 
re

a
r 

o
f 

C
o

a
c
h

 &
 H

o
rs

e
s
 P

H
 W

e
s
t 

P
d

e
R

o
th

w
e

ll

u
c
s

0
.1

3
4

3
1

4
7

8
.0

8
4

3
1

6
0

5
.9

2
F

o
rm

e
r 

Y
E

B
 o

ff
ic

e
s
, 

L
o

w
 R

o
a

d
H

u
n

s
le

t

u
c
s

0
.5

7
4

3
2

1
3

1
.1

3
4

3
1

2
9

4
.0

6
V

a
c
a

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

, 
G

e
o

rg
e

 M
a

n
n

 R
o

a
d

H
u

n
s
le

t

u
c
s

1
.3

9
4

3
2

1
9

1
.9

1
4

3
1

0
9

8
.8

9
F

o
rm

e
r 

C
o

n
ta

in
e

r 
D

e
p

o
t,

 T
h

w
a

it
e

 L
a

/P
o

n
te

fr
a

c
t 

L
a

n
e

H
u

n
s
le

t

u
c
s

1
.0

5
4

3
2

1
1

3
.5

5
4

3
1

0
1

2
.9

5
L

a
n

d
s
c
a

p
e

d
 A

re
a

 a
t 

T
h

w
a

it
e

 G
a

te
H

u
n

s
le

t

u
c
s

0
.1

0
4

3
0

7
4

8
.5

0
4

3
2

1
4

1
.8

3
F

o
rm

e
r 

P
u

b
lic

 H
o

u
s
e

, 
G

ra
p

e
 S

t.
/P

e
a

rs
o

n
 S

t.
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.2

7
4

3
0

8
1

2
.0

0
4

3
2

1
3

2
.5

5
V

a
c
a

n
t 

ff
ic

e
 B

u
ild

in
g

, 
G

ra
p

e
 S

tr
e

e
t

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.1

9
4

3
0

7
6

5
.8

3
4

3
2

0
8

9
.8

3
V

a
c
a

n
t 

In
d

u
s
tr

ia
l 
B

u
ild

in
g

, 
G

ra
p

e
 S

tr
e

e
t

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.1

3
4

3
0

7
2

9
.1

7
4

3
2

0
6

3
.7

8
F

o
rm

e
r 

Y
o

rk
lin

e
 D

e
p

o
t,

 G
ra

p
e

 S
tr

e
e

t
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.0

6
4

3
0

4
6

2
.6

6
4

3
2

0
6

8
.8

1
V

a
c
a

n
t 

W
o

rk
s
, 

1
2

1
 J

a
c
k
 L

a
n

e
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.6

8
4

3
0

4
3

4
.1

4
4

3
1

9
7

8
.6

7
F

o
rm

e
r 

R
a

ilw
a

y
 L

in
e

, 
J
a

c
k
 L

a
n

e
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.4

3
4

3
0

4
0

6
.5

8
4

3
2

1
8

7
.7

5
F

o
rm

e
r 

R
a

ilw
a

y
 L

in
e

, 
J
a

c
k
 L

a
n

e
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.1

7
4

3
0

7
5

3
.6

4
4

3
2

2
5

4
.9

4
A

d
j.
 A

ir
e

d
a

le
 W

o
rk

s
, 

K
it
s
o

n
 R

o
a

d
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

1
.0

5
4

3
0

9
4

0
.1

6
4

3
2

3
8

5
.5

3
L

a
n

d
 o

ff
 b

ro
o

k
fi
e

ld
 S

tr
e

e
t,

 H
u

n
s
le

t 
R

o
a

d
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.1

1
4

3
0

3
8

7
.1

7
4

3
2

1
9

7
.8

3
V

a
c
a

n
t 

L
a

n
d

 o
ff

 K
id

a
c
re

 S
tr

e
e

t
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.5

4
4

3
0

9
5

6
.0

6
4

3
3

8
0

8
.0

2
S

t.
 P

e
te

r'
s
 C

 o
f 

E
 M

id
d

le
 S

c
h

o
o

l,
 S

t 
M

a
ry

's
 S

tr
e

e
t

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.6

0
4

3
1

0
3

4
.1

1
4

3
3

8
2

2
.8

8
R

ip
o

n
 D

io
s
c
e

s
 O

ff
ic

e
s
, 

S
t 

M
a

ry
's

 S
tr

e
e

t
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.0

3
4

3
1

0
7

2
.5

6
4

3
3

7
6

3
.6

4
F

o
rm

e
rl
y
 'T

h
e

 C
o

n
v
e

n
t',

 S
t 

M
a

ry
's

 S
tr

e
e

t
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.3

2
4

3
1

1
3

6
.4

3
4

3
3

7
4

7
.1

8
S

t.
 P

a
tr

ic
k
s
 C

h
u

rc
h

, 
R

id
e

r 
S

tr
e

e
t

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.1

9
4

3
1

3
5

8
.3

8
4

3
3

9
0

7
.9

5
J
u

n
c
ti
o

n
 B

u
rm

a
n

to
ft

s
 S

tr
e

e
t/

N
ip

p
e

t 
L

a
n

e
, 

B
u

rm
a

n
to

ft
s
 S

tr
e

e
t

B
u

rm
a

n
to

ft
s

u
c
s

0
.8

3
4

3
1

7
9

6
.6

7
4

3
3

7
7

7
.1

7
A

m
e

n
it
y
 A

re
a

 o
ff

 O
x
to

n
 W

a
y

B
u

rm
a

n
to

ft
s

u
c
s

0
.3

0
4

3
1

7
0

2
.3

1
4

3
3

6
0

0
.2

6
F

o
rm

e
r 

R
ic

h
m

o
n

d
 H

ill
 L

ib
ra

ry
, 

Y
o

rk
 R

o
a

d
R

ic
h

m
o

n
d

 H
ill

u
c
s

0
.2

3
4

3
1

7
6

1
.2

2
4

3
3

6
0

0
.1

3
A

m
e

n
it
y
 S

p
a

c
e

 a
d

j.
 t

o
 L

ib
ra

ry
, 

Y
o

rk
 R

o
a

d
R

ic
h

m
o

n
d

 H
ill

u
c
s

0
.8

8
4

3
1

8
3

5
.2

5
4

3
3

5
1

1
.2

3
F

a
c
to

ry
, 

B
e

rk
in

g
 A

v
e

n
u

e
R

ic
h

m
o

n
d

 H
ill

u
c
s

0
.1

1
4

3
1

6
2

9
.1

0
4

3
3

3
2

3
.8

1
L

a
n

d
 o

p
p

o
s
it
e

 2
3

 H
a

ll 
P

la
c
e

, 
L

a
v
e

n
d

e
r 

W
a

lk
R

ic
h

m
o

n
d

 H
ill

u
c
s

0
.1

2
4

3
1

5
2

9
.1

1
4

3
3

3
6

7
.0

3
L

a
n

d
 o

p
p

o
s
it
e

 1
 L

a
v
e

n
d

e
r 

W
a

lk
R

ic
h

m
o

n
d

 H
ill

u
c
s

0
.4

1
4

3
1

4
5

6
.2

0
4

3
3

2
9

1
.5

0
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
H

a
m

p
to

n
 S

tr
e

e
t,

 U
p

p
e

r 
A

c
c
o

m
o

d
a

ti
o

n
 R

o
a

d
R

ic
h

m
o

n
d

 H
ill

u
c
s

0
.8

2
4

3
1

3
2

2
.9

2
4

3
3

1
7

4
.7

0
S

t 
M

a
ry

's
 R

C
 C

h
u

rc
h

 &
 P

re
s
b

y
te

ry
, 

C
h

u
rc

h
 R

o
a

d
R

ic
h

m
o

n
d

 H
ill

u
c
s

0
.3

3
4

3
1

2
4

0
.8

4
4

3
3

3
1

0
.7

2
C

o
u

n
c
il 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 t

o
w

e
r 

b
lo

c
k
, 

T
h

e
 P

a
ra

d
e

R
ic

h
m

o
n

d
 H

ill

u
c
s

0
.8

4
4

3
1

2
6

8
.2

7
4

3
3

2
6

9
.1

9
L

a
n

d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 C

h
u

rc
h

 R
o

a
d

 &
 P

ro
v
id

e
n

c
e

 S
tr

e
e

t
R

ic
h

m
o

n
d

 H
ill

u
c
s

0
.1

9
4

3
1

1
8

5
.8

0
4

3
0

9
8

7
.9

9
A

d
j.
 t

o
 a

llo
tm

e
n

ts
, 

T
e

lf
o

rd
 T

e
rr

a
c
e

H
u

n
s
le

t

u
c
s

0
.1

8
4

3
1

1
3

5
.1

3
4

3
0

6
2

3
.3

7
G

ra
s
s
e

d
 a

re
a

 t
o

 r
e

a
r 

o
f 

2
-1

0
 S

a
n

d
o

n
 M

o
u

n
t

H
u

n
s
le

t

u
c
s

1
8

.9
8

4
3

1
7

9
2

.3
5

4
3

0
0

3
4

.8
6

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
A

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
,S

to
u

rt
o

n
 N

o
rt

h
H

u
n

s
le

t

u
c
s

1
.0

9
4

3
2

0
3

6
.5

0
4

3
0

5
2

7
.9

5
S

to
u

rt
o

n
 V

a
lly

 F
a

rm
 E

s
ta

te
, 

V
a

lle
y
 F

a
rm

 R
o

a
d

H
u

n
s
le

t

u
c
s

0
.4

5
4

3
1

0
6

9
.6

1
4

3
0

0
6

5
.7

8
G

ra
s
s
e

d
 A

re
a

 t
o

 r
e

a
r 

o
f 

B
e

lle
 I

s
le

 P
a

ra
d

e
H

u
n

s
le

t

u
c
s

1
8

.7
7

4
3

0
5

1
9

.6
9

4
3

0
2

9
2

.6
0

L
a

n
d

 a
d

j.
 t

o
 M

id
d

le
to

n
 R

a
ilw

a
y
, 

O
ld

 R
u

n
 R

o
a

d
H

u
n

s
le

t

u
c
s

0
.1

6
4

3
0

7
0

3
.2

5
4

3
0

7
1

1
.9

4
L

a
n

d
 o

p
p

o
s
it
e

 T
h

e
 E

n
g

in
e

 P
H

, 
O

ld
 R

u
n

 R
o

a
d

H
u

n
s
le

t

u
c
s

0
.7

5
4

3
0

1
4

2
.5

8
4

3
0

7
2

7
.5

0
D

e
p

o
t 

o
n

 P
a

rk
s
id

e
 L

a
n

e
B

e
e

s
to

n

u
c
s

0
.4

6
4

3
0

1
4

3
.6

8
4

3
0

5
7

4
.3

8
P

lo
t 

1
 A

s
tr

a
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rk

, 
P

a
rk

s
id

e
 L

a
n

e
B

e
e

s
to

n

u
c
s

0
.3

0
4

3
0

0
2

9
.0

2
4

3
0

5
2

4
.5

3
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
A

s
tr

e
 P

a
rk

, 
P

a
rk

s
id

e
 L

a
n

e
B

e
e

s
to

n

u
c
s

0
.6

0
4

3
0

3
5

4
.0

0
4

3
0

7
4

4
.4

8
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
J
o

h
n

 K
in

g
 W

o
rk

s
, 

L
e

n
to

n
 D

ri
v
e

B
e

e
s
to

n

u
c
s

0
.1

7
4

3
1

7
3

7
.9

7
4

2
9

5
9

7
.3

4
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
H

ig
h

la
n

d
s
 W

a
lk

H
u

n
s
le

t

u
c
s

0
.2

4
4

3
1

6
6

3
.9

2
4

2
9

5
7

4
.6

3
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
O

ri
o

n
 W

a
lk

H
u

n
s
le

t

u
c
s

0
.2

3
4

3
1

3
9

7
.2

2
4

2
8

9
8

6
.6

1
L

a
n

d
 o

ff
 B

ro
o

m
 R

o
a

d
H

u
n

s
le

t

u
c
s

0
.2

0
4

3
1

5
9

3
.3

9
4

2
9

0
9

4
.5

2
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
1

5
-2

3
 B

ro
o

m
 P

la
c
e

H
u

n
s
le

t

u
c
s

0
.1

6
4

3
1

2
2

9
.1

7
4

2
9

1
9

6
.2

0
L

a
n

d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 B

e
lle

 I
s
le

 R
d

 &
 W

in
ro

s
e

 A
p

p
ro

a
c
h

H
u

n
s
le

t

u
c
s

0
.2

1
4

3
1

3
7

9
.7

5
4

2
9

9
4

5
.0

0
L

a
n

d
 &

 b
u

ild
in

g
 2

 L
o

w
 G

ra
n

g
e

 A
v
e

n
u

e
H

u
n

s
le

t

u
c
s

0
.3

1
4

3
0

8
5

3
.9

9
4

2
9

6
4

8
.7

8
L

a
n

d
 o

ff
 W

in
ro

s
e

 D
ri
v
e

, 
B

la
c
k
 T

h
o

rn
 C

o
u

rt
H

u
n

s
le

t

u
c
s

0
.6

4
4

3
0

9
8

7
.5

2
4

2
9

1
6

7
.0

3
G

ra
s
s
e

d
 a

re
a

 a
d

j.
 t

o
 1

5
1

 N
e

w
h

a
ll 

G
a

te
H

u
n

s
le

t

u
c
s

0
.1

4
4

3
1

2
4

7
.4

2
4

2
8

5
4

8
.8

9
L

a
n

d
 i
n

 f
ro

n
t 

o
f 

5
5

-2
3

 L
a

n
s
h

a
w

 R
o

a
d

H
u

n
s
le

t

u
c
s

0
.1

7
4

3
1

2
2

3
.4

4
4

2
8

6
2

3
.4

8
L

a
n

d
 a

d
j.
 t

o
 1

8
-2

0
 L

a
n

s
h

a
w

 R
o

a
d

H
u

n
s
le

t

u
c
s

0
.1

6
4

3
1

2
9

4
.9

2
4

2
8

6
2

4
.2

2
L

a
n

d
 a

d
j.
 t

o
 2

7
-2

9
 L

a
n

s
h

a
w

 R
o

a
d

H
u

n
s
le

t

2
6

Page 95



W
A

S
T

E
 S

IT
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

IO
N

 R
E

P
O

R
T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

S
O

U
R

C
E

A
R

E
A

_
H

A
X

_
C

O
O

R
D

Y
_

C
O

O
R

D
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

_
1

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
_

2
T

Y
P

E
_

C
O

D
E

L
A

N
D

_
U

S
E

_
C

P
L

G
_

S
T

A
T

U
S

u
c
s

0
.1

3
4

3
1

1
8

3
.4

8
4

2
8

8
3

7
.7

5
L

a
n

d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 T

o
w

n
 S

t.
 &

 A
b

e
rf

ie
ld

 M
o

u
n

t
H

u
n

s
le

t

u
c
s

0
.3

0
4

3
1

1
0

8
.3

0
4

2
8

7
6

9
.9

8
G

a
ra

g
e

s
 &

 l
a

n
d

 o
ff

 A
b

e
rf

ie
ld

 M
o

u
n

t
H

u
n

s
le

t

u
c
s

0
.2

2
4

3
1

5
3

9
.3

9
4

2
8

8
1

9
.9

1
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
N

e
s
fi
e

ld
 C

lo
s
e

H
u

n
s
le

t

u
c
s

0
.1

3
4

3
1

6
4

3
.8

1
4

2
8

5
4

2
.7

2
L

a
n

d
 i
n

 f
ro

n
t 

o
f 

5
3

-7
1

 R
a

y
la

n
d

s
 W

a
y

M
id

d
le

to
n

u
c
s

0
.5

3
4

3
1

5
7

3
.8

4
4

2
8

3
5

2
.6

1
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
1

8
-2

2
 C

ra
n

m
o

re
 R

is
e

M
id

d
le

to
n

u
c
s

0
.1

6
4

3
1

2
5

4
.1

1
4

2
8

3
6

3
.6

8
L

a
n

d
 a

d
j.
 t

o
 C

o
-o

p
 H

Q
, 

D
o

lp
h

in
 S

tr
e

e
t

H
u

n
s
le

t

u
c
s

0
.1

8
4

3
0

5
5

8
.6

6
4

2
8

4
2

2
.6

1
F

o
rm

e
r 

h
a

ll 
&

 l
a

n
d

 a
d

j.
 1

7
2

 T
o

w
n

 S
tr

e
e

t
M

id
d

le
to

n

u
c
s

0
.3

4
4

3
0

4
0

2
.2

7
4

2
8

5
8

0
.7

2
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
w

e
s
te

rn
 e

n
d

 o
f 

M
a

n
o

r 
F

a
rm

 R
o

a
d

M
id

d
le

to
n

u
c
s

0
.1

6
4

3
0

5
1

0
.5

6
4

2
8

6
2

1
.8

8
L

a
n

d
 o

ff
 M

a
n

o
r 

F
a

rm
 C

lo
s
e

M
id

d
le

to
n

u
c
s

0
.1

4
4

3
0

6
4

2
.8

6
4

2
8

5
9

9
.5

2
L

a
n

d
 o

ff
 M

a
n

o
r 

F
a

rm
 W

a
lk

M
id

d
le

to
n

u
c
s

0
.3

6
4

3
0

7
3

8
.4

8
4

2
8

5
7

2
.0

2
L

a
n

d
 &

 g
a

ra
g

e
s
 a

t 
M

a
n

o
r 

R
is

e
 F

a
rm

M
id

d
le

to
n

u
c
s

0
.2

0
4

3
0

9
3

6
.9

7
4

2
8

6
4

3
.9

2
L

a
n

d
 i
n

 f
ro

n
t 

o
f 

N
e

w
h

a
ll 

C
h

a
s
e

H
u

n
s
le

t

u
c
s

0
.1

4
4

3
0

0
2

4
.3

8
4

2
8

1
4

1
.7

3
L

a
n

d
 a

d
j.
 t

o
 M

id
d

le
to

n
 A

rm
s
, 

M
id

d
le

to
n

 P
a

rk
 R

d
.

M
id

d
le

to
n

u
c
s

0
.2

2
4

2
9

5
3

7
.8

5
4

2
8

0
8

1
.5

3
L

a
n

d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 1

4
5

 &
 1

5
7

 M
id

d
l;
e

to
n

 P
a

rk
 R

o
a

d
M

id
d

le
to

n

u
c
s

1
.1

8
4

3
1

8
5

0
.3

9
4

3
1

6
2

5
.8

9
L

a
n

d
 a

d
j 
to

 k
n

o
s
tr

o
p

 c
u

t 
G

ib
ra

lt
a

r 
la

n
d

 R
o

a
d

H
u

n
s
le

t

u
c
s

0
.2

7
4

3
1

9
9

6
.4

5
4

3
1

4
9

0
.4

9
L

a
n

d
 o

ff
 S

e
v
e

rn
 W

a
y

H
u

n
s
le

t

u
c
s

0
.3

2
4

3
1

9
7

1
.3

4
4

3
1

1
7

2
.1

1
C

it
y
 T

o
o

l 
R

e
p

a
ir
s
 L

td
 -

 a
d

j 
g

ra
s
s
 a

re
a

 S
u

s
s
e

x
 A

v
e

n
u

e
H

u
n

s
le

t

u
c
s

0
.0

6
4

3
1

8
9

3
.9

1
4

3
1

2
6

6
.1

8
L

a
n

d
 i
n

 f
ro

n
t 

o
f 

fi
s
h

 a
n

d
 c

h
ip

 s
h

o
p

 a
t 

n
o

. 
4

 S
u

s
s
e

x
 g

a
rd

e
n

s
H

u
n

s
le

t

u
c
s

0
.2

2
4

3
1

8
5

7
.4

1
4

3
1

3
0

1
.9

4
G

ra
s
s
e

d
 a

re
a

 i
n

 f
ro

n
t 

o
f 

A
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c
e

 C
e

n
tr

e
, 

L
o

w
 R

o
a

d
H

u
n

s
le

t

u
c
s

0
.4

8
4

3
1

6
1

3
.0

2
4

3
1

4
9

8
.4

7
A

d
j 
to

 g
a

ra
g

e
 t

o
 n

o
's

. 
7

7
 -

8
1

, 
L

o
w

 R
o

a
d

H
u

n
s
le

t

u
c
s

0
.1

9
4

3
1

2
4

7
.4

1
4

3
1

8
2

3
.1

3
A

d
j 
H

u
n

s
le

t 
b

a
p

ti
s
t 

T
a

b
e

m
a

c
le

, 
L

o
w

 R
o

a
d

H
u

n
s
le

t

u
c
s

0
.1

7
4

3
1

2
6

1
.6

6
4

3
1

6
7

2
.5

0
S

t 
J
o

s
e

p
h

's
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

lu
b

, 
W

h
it
fi
e

ld
 A

v
e

n
u

e
H

u
n

s
le

t

u
c
s

0
.0

2
4

3
1

1
0

2
.2

5
4

3
1

8
6

4
.7

2
B

u
ild

in
g

 a
t 

n
o

. 
3

 J
o

s
e

p
h

 S
tr

e
e

t
H

u
n

s
le

t

u
c
s

0
.6

4
4

3
1

6
3

8
.3

4
4

3
2

1
1

8
.8

9
V

a
c
a

n
t 

L
a

n
d

 a
t 

B
ri
d

g
e

w
a

te
r 

R
o

a
d

R
ic

h
m

o
n

d
 H

ill

u
c
s

4
.6

7
4

3
1

4
5

8
.8

6
4

3
1

9
6

2
.5

8
F

o
rm

e
r 

o
il 

te
rm

in
a

ls
 a

t 
Y

a
rn

 S
tr

e
e

t
H

u
n

s
le

t

u
c
s

2
.2

8
4

3
1

3
9

7
.5

7
4

3
2

2
0

9
.6

7
H

u
n

s
le

t 
M

ill
s
 o

n
 G

o
o

d
m

a
n

 S
tr

e
e

t
H

u
n

s
le

t

u
c
s

0
.2

7
4

3
1

1
2

3
.2

3
4

3
2

2
7

4
.0

2
A

d
j 
to

 S
o

u
th

 P
o

in
t,

 S
o

u
th

 A
c
c
o

m
o

d
a

ti
o

n
 R

o
a

d
H

u
n

s
le

t

u
c
s

0
.1

1
4

3
1

3
4

5
.5

8
4

3
2

4
1

8
.2

2
A

ir
e

b
a

n
k
 W

o
rk

s
 a

t 
C

la
re

n
c
e

 R
o

a
d

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

1
.2

8
4

3
1

3
4

1
.7

2
4

3
2

6
7

0
.5

3
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
L

o
w

 F
o

ld
, 

H
a

m
m

o
n

d
 S

tr
e

e
t

R
ic

h
m

o
n

d
 H

ill

u
c
s

0
.5

2
4

3
1

3
7

8
.3

8
4

3
2

7
7

5
.7

7
F

o
rm

e
r 

c
o

lle
g

e
 a

n
n

e
x
 E

a
s
t 

S
tr

e
e

t
R

ic
h

m
o

n
d

 H
ill

u
c
s

0
.1

0
4

3
1

4
8

5
.1

7
4

3
2

7
0

8
.1

6
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
E

a
s
y
 R

o
a

d
 a

n
d

 C
ro

s
s
 G

re
e

n
 L

a
n

e
R

ic
h

m
o

n
d

 H
ill

u
c
s

0
.0

4
4

3
1

3
1

9
.3

3
4

3
2

8
4

3
.0

5
T

h
e

 B
la

c
k
 D

o
g

 P
u

b
, 

E
a

s
t 

S
tr

e
e

t
R

ic
h

m
o

n
d

 H
ill

u
c
s

0
.0

2
4

3
1

3
7

3
.5

0
4

3
2

8
4

0
.7

3
T

h
e

 F
is

h
e

rm
a

n
s
 H

u
t,

 E
lle

rb
y
 L

a
n

e
R

ic
h

m
o

n
d

 H
ill

u
c
s

0
.0

5
4

3
1

3
0

2
.6

4
4

3
2

8
5

0
.0

9
'S

o
u

n
d

 L
e

is
u

re
' a

t 
1

2
9

d
 E

a
s
t 

S
tr

e
e

t
R

ic
h

m
o

n
d

 H
ill

u
c
s

0
.3

4
4

3
1

2
3

3
.9

1
4

3
2

9
5

9
.1

7
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 S

t.
 S

a
v
io

u
r'
s
 C

h
u

rc
h

 E
lle

rb
y
 R

o
a

d
R

ic
h

m
o

n
d

 H
ill

u
c
s

0
.2

4
4

3
2

3
5

5
.0

0
4

3
4

1
6

3
.4

7
A

m
e

n
it
y
 s

p
a

c
e

 o
v
e

rl
o

o
k
in

g
 B

ro
w

n
h

ill
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

l,
 T

o
rr

e
 D

ri
v
e

B
u

rm
a

n
to

ft
s

u
c
s

1
.7

3
4

3
2

0
8

2
.8

9
4

3
4

7
9

5
.2

2
B

e
c
k
e

tt
 S

tr
e

e
t 

re
c
a

la
m

a
ti
o

n
 c

e
n

tr
e

, 
s
ta

n
le

y
 R

o
a

d
H

a
re

h
ill

s

u
c
s

0
.0

3
4

3
2

1
7

4
.6

3
4

3
4

8
3

8
.0

2
F

o
rm

e
r 

fa
c
to

ry
 b

u
ild

in
g

 a
t 

n
o

. 
3

8
 C

o
w

p
e

r 
R

o
a

d
H

a
re

h
ill

s

u
c
s

0
.3

6
4

3
2

2
9

9
.4

5
4

3
4

8
2

7
.8

9
V

a
c
a

n
t 

la
n

d
 o

ff
 C

o
w

p
e

r 
T

e
rr

a
c
e

H
a

re
h

ill
s

u
c
s

0
.0

8
4

3
3

5
1

2
.3

0
4

3
4

0
7

8
.2

8
L

a
n

d
 a

d
jo

in
in

g
 D

o
g

 a
n

d
 G

u
n

 p
u

b
 o

n
 Y

o
rk

 R
o

a
d

B
u

rm
a

n
to

ft
s

u
c
s

0
.1

4
4

3
3

6
8

9
.6

7
4

3
4

2
4

8
.3

4
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 r
e

a
r 

o
f 

G
ip

to
n

 S
q

u
a

re
B

u
rm

a
n

to
ft

s

u
c
s

0
.3

6
4

3
3

5
7

8
.5

2
4

3
4

1
0

1
.5

5
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
D

o
g

 a
n

d
 G

u
n

 p
u

b
 o

n
 Y

o
rk

 R
o

a
d

B
u

rm
a

n
to

ft
s

u
c
s

0
.1

1
4

3
3

4
6

1
.8

3
4

3
4

4
0

8
.0

8
L

a
n

d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 n

o
s
 5

5
 a

n
d

 6
7

 B
ra

n
d

e
r 

R
o

a
d

B
u

rm
a

n
to

ft
s

u
c
s

0
.0

5
4

3
3

4
8

6
.5

8
4

3
4

3
6

3
.7

2
L

a
n

d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 n

o
s
 6

6
 a

n
d

 7
2

 B
ra

n
d

e
r 

R
o

a
d

B
u

rm
a

n
to

ft
s

u
c
s

0
.0

5
4

3
3

3
5

6
.6

1
4

3
4

0
7

1
.5

5
V

a
c
a

n
t 

P
e

tr
o

l 
fi
lli

n
g

 s
ta

ti
o

n
 o

n
 Y

o
rk

 R
o

a
d

B
u

rm
a

n
to

ft
s

u
c
s

0
.0

3
4

3
3

3
4

6
.6

6
4

3
4

0
7

9
.2

5
5

7
9

 (
v
a

c
a

n
t 

g
a

ra
g

e
 b

u
s
in

ie
s
s
) 

Y
o

rk
 R

o
a

d
B

u
rm

a
n

to
ft

s

u
c
s

0
.1

0
4

3
3

4
2

4
.4

2
4

3
4

0
7

5
.8

6
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
G

ip
to

n
 A

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 a
n

d
 Y

o
rk

 R
o

a
d

B
u

rm
a

n
to

ft
s

u
c
s

0
.1

6
4

3
3

9
7

6
.7

6
4

3
4

1
0

4
.5

6
F

o
rm

e
r 

re
s
ta

u
ra

n
t 

o
n

 Y
o

rk
 R

o
a

d
B

u
rm

a
n

to
ft

s

u
c
s

0
.1

0
4

3
3

7
6

0
.2

8
4

3
3

7
6

4
.0

8
G

ra
s
s
e

d
 a

re
a

 W
y
k
e

 B
e

c
k
 M

o
u

n
t

R
ic

h
m

o
n

d
 H

ill

u
c
s

1
.5

2
4

3
3

6
1

4
.7

3
4

3
3

6
4

2
.3

8
G

ra
s
s
e

d
 a

re
a

 a
d

ja
c
e

n
t 

to
 N

e
v
ill

e
 C

re
s
c
e

n
t

R
ic

h
m

o
n

d
 H

ill

u
c
s

0
.1

0
4

3
3

3
4

6
.9

7
4

3
3

6
8

8
.5

6
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

n
o

 4
3

 R
o

o
k
w

o
o

d
 T

e
rr

a
c
e

R
ic

h
m

o
n

d
 H

ill

u
c
s

0
.1

2
4

3
3

1
0

6
.7

7
4

3
3

6
3

7
.4

2
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 n

o
 8

4
 O

s
m

o
n

d
th

o
rp

e
 L

a
n

e
R

ic
h

m
o

n
d

 H
ill

u
c
s

0
.3

8
4

3
3

2
6

4
.0

3
4

3
3

8
4

2
.3

1
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
n

o
s
 1

4
 t

o
 2

8
 R

o
o

k
w

o
o

d
 S

tr
e

e
t

R
ic

h
m

o
n

d
 H

ill

u
c
s

0
.1

2
4

3
2

8
6

7
.8

9
4

3
3

8
9

3
.7

0
Y

o
rk

 R
o

a
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 s

ta
ti
o

n
 (

v
a

c
a

n
t)

 Y
o

rk
 R

o
a

d
R

ic
h

m
o

n
d

 H
ill

u
c
s

0
.0

2
4

3
2

3
6

5
.0

6
4

3
3

4
2

5
.9

1
E

n
g

in
e

e
ri
n

g
 W

o
rk

s
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
f 

n
o

. 
5

1
 W

e
lb

e
c
k
 R

o
a

d
R

ic
h

m
o

n
d

 H
ill

u
c
s

0
.5

0
4

3
2

2
1

0
.7

2
4

3
3

5
3

9
.1

6
S

it
e

 o
f 

fo
rm

e
r 

M
o

u
n

t 
S

t 
m

a
ry

's
 R

.C
. 

P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

l,
 R

a
in

c
lif

fe
 R

o
a

d
R

ic
h

m
o

n
d

 H
ill

u
c
s

0
.4

2
4

3
2

0
0

7
.7

3
4

3
3

3
9

2
.8

4
G

ra
s
s
e

d
 a

re
a

s
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

N
e

w
 R

e
g

e
n

t 
H

o
te

l,
 T

e
m

p
le

 V
ie

w
 R

o
a

d
R

ic
h

m
o

n
d

 H
ill

u
c
s

0
.1

7
4

3
2

0
7

4
.5

6
4

3
3

6
2

7
.0

3
n

o
 4

 G
le

n
th

o
rp

e
 C

re
s
c
e

n
t

B
u

rm
a

n
to

ft
s

u
c
s

0
.0

8
4

3
2

8
6

0
.8

0
4

3
3

9
8

7
.6

1
L

a
n

d
 a

d
j 
to

 P
D

S
A

 P
e

t 
A

id
 H

o
s
p

it
a

l 
Y

o
rk

 R
o

a
d

B
u

rm
a

n
to

ft
s

u
c
s

0
.4

0
4

3
2

6
4

4
.4

5
4

3
3

9
8

3
.9

7
A

m
e

n
it
y
 s

p
a

c
e

 i
n

 f
ro

n
t 

o
f 

T
o

rr
e

 C
re

s
c
e

n
t

B
u

rm
a

n
to

ft
s

u
c
s

0
.5

0
4

3
0

9
3

4
.0

8
4

3
3

8
6

7
.9

8
A

m
e

n
it
y
 s

p
a

c
e

 n
o

rt
h

 o
f 

S
t.

 M
a

ry
's

 S
tr

e
e

t
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.3

8
4

3
0

6
9

8
.1

6
4

3
1

7
3

2
.8

6
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
H

u
n

s
le

t 
G

re
e

n
 W

a
y
/H

ill
id

g
e

 R
o

a
d

H
u

n
s
le

t

u
c
s

0
.1

6
4

3
0

9
1

3
.9

9
4

3
1

3
9

4
.3

4
A

d
j 
to

 T
h

e
 S

u
n

 P
u

b
 C

h
u

rc
h

 S
tr

e
e

t
H

u
n

s
le

t

u
c
s

0
.1

4
4

3
1

0
0

6
.2

7
4

3
1

4
2

6
.7

5
F

o
rm

e
r 

fa
s
t 

fo
o

d
 t

a
k
e

a
w

a
y
 o

u
tl
e

t 
H

u
n

s
le

t 
G

re
e

n
 R

e
ta

il 
C

e
n

tr
e

H
u

n
s
le

t

u
c
s

0
.1

8
4

3
0

6
7

8
.5

2
4

3
1

8
5

2
.4

2
G

ra
s
s
e

d
 a

re
a

 a
d

j 
H

u
n

s
le

t 
D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
H

ill
id

g
e

 S
q

u
a

re
H

u
n

s
le

t

u
c
s

5
.1

5
4

3
0

8
3

4
.5

0
4

3
1

2
1

5
.7

6
T

u
lip

 R
e

ta
il 

P
a

rk
H

u
n

s
le

t

u
c
s

0
.4

8
4

3
1

0
0

3
.4

3
4

3
1

1
1

2
.2

3
In

d
u

s
tr

ia
l 
u

n
it
, 

a
d

j 
M

id
d

le
to

n
 r

a
ilw

a
y
 l
in

e
 B

e
z
a

 R
o

a
d

H
u

n
s
le

t

u
c
s

0
.3

8
4

3
0

1
6

8
.0

7
4

3
1

2
2

2
.5

6
A

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

o
t 

P
o

lic
e

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 T

u
n

s
ta

ll 
R

o
a

d
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.1

9
4

3
0

3
3

7
.2

4
4

3
1

5
2

6
.4

5
A

re
a

 i
n

 f
ro

n
t 

o
f 

In
d

u
s
tr

ia
l 
U

n
it
, 

B
u

rt
o

n
 R

o
w

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

2
7

Page 96



W
A

S
T

E
 S

IT
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

IO
N

 R
E

P
O

R
T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

S
O

U
R

C
E

A
R

E
A

_
H

A
X

_
C

O
O

R
D

Y
_

C
O

O
R

D
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

_
1

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
_

2
T

Y
P

E
_

C
O

D
E

L
A

N
D

_
U

S
E

_
C

P
L

G
_

S
T

A
T

U
S

u
c
s

6
.7

2
4

3
1

8
8

7
.9

1
4

3
1

8
1

8
.8

4
F

o
rm

e
r 

ra
ilw

a
y
 s

id
in

g
s
 K

n
o

w
s
th

o
rp

e
 L

a
n

e
R

ic
h

m
o

n
d

 H
ill

u
c
s

2
.3

6
4

3
1

0
2

4
.5

8
4

3
2

5
5

0
.4

8
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
C

a
rl
is

le
 R

o
a

d
 a

n
d

 S
a

y
n

e
r 

L
a

n
e

 C
a

rl
is

le
 R

o
a

d
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

2
.1

9
4

3
0

9
2

3
.2

8
4

3
1

9
6

8
.0

8
P

la
n

te
d

 G
a

re
a

, 
a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

H
u

n
s
le

t 
D

is
tr

ib
u

to
r

H
u

n
s
le

t

u
c
s

0
.2

4
4

2
0

5
7

3
.8

0
4

4
5

6
9

4
.8

8
P

a
rk

 L
a

n
e

 C
o

lle
g

e
, 

W
h

a
rf

e
 S

tr
e

e
t

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.0

6
4

2
0

3
0

7
.3

5
4

4
5

6
2

9
.5

9
F

o
rm

e
r 

C
h

u
rc

h
, 

W
e

s
le

y
 S

tr
e

e
t

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.1

1
4

2
0

1
2

8
.1

7
4

4
5

6
0

7
.9

4
M

a
n

o
r 

S
q

u
a

re
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.0

7
4

2
0

0
4

4
.1

7
4

4
5

4
8

8
.5

0
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 2

3
 w

e
s
tg

a
te

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

1
.4

4
4

1
9

9
8

4
.1

5
4

4
5

5
3

4
.6

8
D

a
w

s
o

n
's

 y
a

rd
, 

W
e

s
tg

a
te

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.1

9
4

2
0

0
7

6
.3

1
4

4
5

3
6

5
.1

1
W

.Y
. 

S
te

w
a

rt
 a

n
d

 S
o

n
 B

u
rr

a
s
 L

a
n

e
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

1
.0

5
4

2
0

3
2

8
.9

3
4

4
5

2
5

0
.9

8
B

o
n

d
g

a
te

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.6

3
4

2
0

4
7

2
.7

5
4

4
5

3
6

6
.8

6
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
a

r 
o

f 
T

e
le

p
h

o
n

e
 E

x
c
h

a
n

g
e

 C
h

a
rl
e

s
 S

tr
e

e
t

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.0

7
4

2
0

2
2

1
.8

0
4

4
5

4
1

7
.5

0
4

2
-4

8
 k

ir
k
g

a
te

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

1
.5

5
4

2
2

0
1

0
.2

8
4

3
3

2
7

7
.0

8
A

llo
tm

e
n

ts
, 

T
o

ft
s
 R

o
a

d
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.8

1
4

2
2

7
4

1
.5

8
4

3
3

3
1

1
.5

9
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 e
a

s
t 

o
f,

 R
o

b
in

 C
h

a
s
e

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.1

2
4

2
2

5
9

2
.2

5
4

3
3

4
5

9
.7

0
C

la
re

m
o

n
t 

G
ro

v
e

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.1

4
4

2
2

5
6

9
.3

8
4

3
3

6
0

5
.4

5
D

a
n

c
e

 S
c
h

o
o

l,
 T

h
e

 L
a

n
e

s
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.9

0
4

2
2

6
5

5
.9

7
4

3
3

6
2

2
.5

6
L

o
w

to
n

/M
o

u
n

t 
P

le
a

s
a

n
t

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.3

7
4

2
2

6
7

7
.3

4
4

3
3

7
9

0
.4

1
S

c
o

u
t 

L
a

n
d

, 
M

o
u

n
t 

P
le

a
s
a

n
t

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.0

7
4

2
2

4
0

7
.9

2
4

3
3

5
9

9
.2

2
C

lif
to

n
 R

o
a

d
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.0

6
4

2
2

1
0

3
.4

1
4

3
3

5
9

0
.2

0
G

a
rd

e
n

 L
a

n
d

, 
S

o
m

e
rs

e
t 

R
o

a
d

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

1
.6

5
4

1
8

5
4

7
.0

0
4

4
2

2
1

3
.0

8
S

ilv
e

r 
C

ro
s
s
 O

tl
e

y
 R

o
a

d
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.1

7
4

1
8

8
9

2
.9

5
4

4
1

8
8

9
.0

8
G

u
is

e
le

y
 G

la
s
s
 a

n
d

 G
la

z
in

g
, 

V
ic

to
ri
a

 R
o

a
d

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.0

4
4

1
8

9
7

9
.0

9
4

4
1

7
5

9
.8

8
C

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

v
ic

to
ri
a

 r
o

a
d

, 
P

a
rk

 R
o

a
d

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.7

5
4

1
9

1
0

0
.2

3
4

4
1

7
1

7
.9

1
P

a
rk

 R
o

a
d

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.1

9
4

1
9

2
7

1
.3

2
4

4
1

6
6

8
.4

3
B

ra
n

s
d

a
le

 G
a

rd
e

n
s

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

2
.5

0
4

1
9

5
4

1
.1

3
4

4
1

7
1

0
.3

0
A

g
e

d
 p

e
rs

o
n

s
 f

la
ts

, 
S

h
a

k
e

s
p

e
a

r 
R

o
a

d
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.1

7
4

1
9

3
9

2
.0

3
4

4
1

6
8

0
.5

6
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 Y

o
rk

s
h

ir
e

 R
o

s
e

 P
H

 L
e

e
d

s
 R

o
a

d
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.1

6
4

1
9

4
3

0
.5

0
4

4
1

9
5

7
.8

0
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 s

c
o

u
t 

h
u

t,
 t

h
e

 g
re

e
n

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.2

1
4

1
8

9
8

4
.1

4
4

4
2

1
6

0
.2

5
W

o
rk

s
h

o
p

 a
d

ja
c
e

n
t 

to
 n

o
2

, 
N

e
th

e
rf

ie
ld

 R
o

a
d

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

3
.2

3
4

1
8

8
5

9
.8

6
4

4
2

4
1

4
.5

5
N

e
th

e
rf

ie
ld

 R
o

a
d

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.2

0
4

3
1

1
0

2
.0

6
4

3
4

7
8

9
.2

8
E

n
fi
e

ld
 A

v
e

n
u

e
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.1

5
4

3
1

1
3

1
.8

8
4

3
4

9
8

4
.9

4
P

ri
n

c
e

 A
rt

h
u

r 
R

o
u

n
d

h
a

y
 R

o
a

d
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.4

3
4

3
1

4
0

6
.3

9
4

3
4

9
4

5
.9

6
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
 G

le
d

h
o

w
 R

o
a

d
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.3

8
4

3
1

3
9

0
.8

1
4

3
4

8
3

3
.7

0
R

o
s
e

v
ill

e
 C

e
n

tr
e

 G
le

d
h

o
w

 R
o

a
d

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.4

6
4

3
1

2
7

9
.7

9
4

3
4

6
5

4
.9

0
F

o
rm

e
r 

B
e

n
fi
e

ld
 d

e
a

le
rs

h
ip

 D
o

lly
 L

a
n

e
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.4

9
4

3
1

1
9

1
.4

5
4

3
4

5
5

5
.5

0
7

 -
1

7
 D

o
lly

 L
a

n
e

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

1
.8

7
4

3
1

3
8

5
.3

8
4

3
4

5
2

2
.7

4
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
re

a
r 

o
f 

P
ri
m

ro
s
e

 H
.S

. 
L

in
c
o

ln
 R

o
a

d
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.3

4
4

3
1

3
5

9
.4

5
4

3
4

6
3

3
.7

2
5

4
 D

o
lly

 L
a

n
e

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

1
.3

5
4

3
1

5
5

4
.9

8
4

3
4

4
7

6
.2

5
S

u
rf

a
c
e

 C
a

r 
P

a
rk

 B
e

c
k
e

tt
 S

tr
e

e
t

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.0

8
4

3
1

2
8

3
.2

1
4

3
4

1
9

0
.7

8
G

a
ra

g
e

 C
o

u
rt

 L
in

d
s
a

y
 R

o
a

d
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.1

9
4

3
1

7
1

5
.0

5
4

3
4

2
7

1
.1

7
S

h
a

k
e

s
p

e
a

re
 L

a
w

n
 S

h
a

k
e

s
p

e
a

re
 A

v
e

n
u

e
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

u
c
s

0
.2

6
4

3
1

6
9

4
.8

5
4

3
4

0
0

0
.5

3
O

p
e

n
 S

p
a

c
e

 S
c
a

rg
ill

 C
lo

s
e

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.3

7
4

2
5

5
9

1
.0

0
4

3
9

9
5

3
.1

4
S

o
u

th
e

rn
 c

a
r 

p
a

rk
, 

F
a

rr
a

r 
L

a
n

e
C

o
o

k
ri
d

g
e

u
c
s

0
.9

0
4

2
5

9
8

5
.7

3
4

4
0

1
2

7
.9

1
A

s
d

a
 c

a
r 

p
a

rk
, 

H
o

lt
 C

re
s
c
e

n
t

C
o

o
k
ri
d

g
e

u
c
s

1
.1

5
4

2
6

1
3

4
.9

3
4

3
9

9
1

2
.3

8
S

o
u

th
e

rn
 c

a
r 

p
a

rk
, 

F
a

rr
a

r 
L

a
n

e
C

o
o

k
ri
d

g
e

u
c
s

0
.1

3
4

2
5

8
6

9
.4

9
4

3
9

9
4

8
.1

1
L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 R

a
lp

h
 T

h
o

re
s
b

y
 H

ig
h

 S
c
h

o
o

l,
 H

o
lt
d

a
le

 A
p

p
ro

a
c
h

C
o

o
k
ri
d

g
e

u
c
s

3
.5

9
4

3
2

2
3

1
.4

3
4

2
9

9
8

3
.8

4
P

o
n

te
fr

a
c
t 

R
o

a
d

, 
B

e
ll 

H
ill

 (
N

o
rt

h
),

 S
to

u
rt

o
n

 (
E

4
:2

5
)

H
u

n
s
le

t

u
c
s

3
.9

5
4

3
4

2
4

7
.5

1
4

3
4

5
9

9
.0

8
F

o
rm

e
r 

K
ill

in
g

b
e

c
k
 s

it
e

B
u

rm
a

n
to

ft
s

u
c
s

1
8

.4
8

4
3

4
7

0
4

.8
7

4
3

4
4

4
4

.8
8

R
e

a
r 

o
f 

S
e

a
c
ro

ft
 H

o
s
p

it
a

l,
 Y

o
rk

 R
o

a
d

 (
P

a
rt

 o
f 

H
4

:7
)

B
u

rm
a

n
to

ft
s

u
c
s

0
.0

7
4

3
0

6
0

0
.2

5
4

3
3

2
9

5
.0

9
1

 H
ig

h
 C

o
u

rt
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.1

0
4

3
0

6
8

7
.5

6
4

3
9

3
7

3
.3

2
M

o
a

d
o

n
 H

a
b

o
n

im
 Y

o
u

th
 C

e
n

tr
e

N
o

rt
h

u
c
s

1
.0

1
4

3
0

5
2

2
.2

3
4

3
3

6
3

4
.6

4
P

la
n

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 2

0
/5

9
9

/9
9

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.3

0
4

3
0

7
8

4
.3

9
4

3
3

5
8

2
.2

8
P

la
n

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 2

0
/1

9
3

/0
0

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.5

4
4

3
1

0
8

4
.1

4
4

3
3

0
7

6
.3

3
P

la
n

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 2

0
/5

5
6

/0
1

R
ic

h
m

o
n

d
 H

ill

u
c
s

0
.1

9
4

3
0

4
5

1
.9

6
4

3
3

7
9

0
.9

4
P

la
n

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 2

0
/6

5
7

/0
1

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.0

1
4

3
0

0
5

7
.5

0
4

3
3

2
9

9
.3

0
P

la
n

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 2

0
/3

2
9

/0
2

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.0

9
4

2
9

0
8

1
.7

0
4

3
3

9
0

0
.2

7
P

la
n

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 2

0
/3

4
8

/0
2

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.0

5
4

3
0

5
9

1
.1

3
4

3
3

2
5

7
.9

5
P

la
n

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 2

0
/3

9
4

/0
2

C
it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.1

6
4

2
6

6
4

1
.3

0
4

2
7

6
1

0
.1

3
P

la
n

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 2

3
/4

1
4

/0
1

M
o

rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

0
.0

7
4

2
6

4
3

2
.5

0
4

2
7

5
0

8
.4

1
P

la
n

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 2

3
/3

3
/0

1
M

o
rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th

u
c
s

0
.2

8
4

2
7

8
9

5
.3

0
4

3
4

6
5

5
.7

0
P

la
n

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
2

4
/3

3
6

/0
0

K
ir
k
s
ta

ll

u
c
s

0
.0

8
4

2
9

3
7

2
.8

3
4

3
4

9
8

7
.2

2
P

la
n

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 2

6
/4

1
6

/0
1

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.1

3
4

2
7

7
4

3
.0

3
4

3
5

8
3

3
.4

5
P

la
n

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 2

6
/4

2
4

/0
2

H
e

a
d

in
g

le
y

u
c
s

0
.3

7
4

2
8

0
5

1
.8

0
4

3
5

5
6

8
.1

9
P

la
n

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 2

6
/4

4
5

/0
2

H
e

a
d

in
g

le
y

u
c
s

0
.1

2
4

2
6

7
5

0
.4

5
4

3
7

4
6

7
.5

2
P

la
n

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 2

6
/3

5
2

/0
2

W
e

e
tw

o
o

d

u
c
s

0
.3

1
4

2
4

0
4

7
.8

0
4

3
7

2
4

7
.0

3
P

la
n

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 2

7
/1

0
7

/0
2

H
o

rs
fo

rt
h

u
c
s

1
.7

7
4

3
0

9
0

1
.6

7
4

3
9

5
2

1
.9

8
P

la
n

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 3

0
/6

3
/0

2
N

o
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.3

2
4

3
1

0
8

5
.4

7
4

4
0

5
5

0
.7

8
P

la
n

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 3

0
/4

0
2

/0
1

N
o

rt
h

u
c
s

0
.8

9
4

3
0

1
2

1
.3

6
4

3
8

7
8

8
.1

6
P

la
n

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 3

0
/4

3
1

/0
2

M
o

o
rt

o
w

n

2
8

Page 97



W
A

S
T

E
 S

IT
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

IO
N

 R
E

P
O

R
T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

S
O

U
R

C
E

A
R

E
A

_
H

A
X

_
C

O
O

R
D

Y
_

C
O

O
R

D
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

_
1

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
_

2
T

Y
P

E
_

C
O

D
E

L
A

N
D

_
U

S
E

_
C

P
L

G
_

S
T

A
T

U
S

u
c
s

0
.3

4
4

3
0

8
8

7
.6

1
4

3
9

9
8

9
.3

3
P

la
n

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 3

0
/4

6
4

/0
2

N
o

rt
h

u
c
s

1
.1

8
4

3
1

2
7

1
.5

4
4

3
4

4
7

2
.4

6
P

ri
m

ro
s
e

 H
ill

 H
ig

h
 S

c
h

o
o

l,
 H

ill
 S

tr
e

e
t

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

1
.2

4
4

3
1

1
5

2
.4

1
4

3
3

8
2

5
.1

4
A

g
n

e
s
 S

te
w

a
rt

 C
.E

.H
ig

h
 S

c
h

o
o

l,
 C

ro
m

w
e

ll 
S

tr
e

e
t

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.9

1
4

3
0

0
1

4
.5

5
4

3
5

6
2

5
.3

4
F

a
c
to

ry
 s

it
e

 o
ff

 M
e

a
n

w
o

o
d

 R
o

a
d

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.0

9
4

2
4

8
7

7
.6

5
4

3
8

8
7

3
.6

6
B

e
tw

e
e

n
 S

ilk
 M

ill
 B

a
n

k
 &

 S
ilk

 M
ill

 R
o

a
d

C
o

o
k
ri
d

g
e

u
c
s

0
.2

1
4

2
4

8
4

7
.8

8
4

3
8

8
0

0
.9

2
L

a
n

d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 S

ilk
 M

ill
 D

ri
v
e

 &
 S

ilk
 M

ill
 R

o
a

d
C

o
o

k
ri
d

g
e

u
c
s

0
.1

0
4

2
4

5
5

6
.8

1
4

3
8

1
0

1
.4

8
B

e
tw

e
e

n
 &

 b
e

h
in

d
 5

3
 &

 5
5

 B
ro

a
d

g
a

te
 D

ri
v
e

H
o

rs
fo

rt
h

u
c
s

0
.4

2
4

2
4

8
2

4
.4

7
4

3
8

4
8

5
.0

6
A

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

2
1

 &
 2

2
 S

a
lis

b
u

ry
 M

e
w

s
H

o
rs

fo
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.1

2
4

2
4

8
3

9
.7

0
4

3
8

4
0

6
.2

0
R

e
a

r 
o

f 
1

0
/1

6
 S

a
lis

b
u

ry
 V

ie
w

H
o

rs
fo

rt
h

u
c
s

0
.1

3
4

2
4

9
3

8
.5

0
4

3
8

3
5

0
.0

3
W

o
o

d
s
id

e
 w

o
rk

s
 (

s
o

u
th

),
 L

o
w

 L
a

n
e

H
o

rs
fo

rt
h

u
c
s

0
.6

7
4

2
4

8
9

9
.5

5
4

3
8

4
1

4
.4

1
W

o
o

d
s
id

e
 w

o
rk

s
 (

n
o

rt
h

),
 L

o
w

 L
a

n
e

H
o

rs
fo

rt
h

u
c
s

0
.1

1
4

2
0

7
9

3
.9

4
4

3
9

8
4

7
.6

9
E

n
d

 o
f 

s
o

u
th

 s
tr

e
e

t,
 R

a
w

d
o

n
A

ir
e

b
o

ro
u

g
h

u
c
s

0
.1

0
4

2
3

6
3

7
.9

5
4

3
7

1
4

0
.5

6
In

 f
ro

n
t 

o
f 

n
o

's
 5

7
 -

 7
3

, 
V

ic
to

ri
a

 G
a

rd
e

n
s

H
o

rs
fo

rt
h

u
c
s

0
.0

8
4

2
3

7
9

3
.3

9
4

3
7

0
8

3
.0

3
C

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

N
e

w
la

it
h

e
s
 R

o
a

d
 &

 N
e

w
la

y
 L

a
n

e
H

o
rs

fo
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.3

1
4

2
3

8
8

0
.1

1
4

3
7

0
1

4
.3

8
L

a
n

d
 a

t 
R

e
in

 R
o

a
d

, 
o

p
p

o
s
it
e

 N
o

.4
H

o
rs

fo
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.0

9
4

2
3

7
6

6
.8

6
4

3
7

1
7

9
.1

1
A

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

F
o

u
r 

G
a

b
le

s
, 

C
la

re
n

c
e

 R
o

a
d

H
o

rs
fo

rt
h

u
c
s

0
.2

5
4

2
3

1
7

1
.6

3
4

3
7

5
5

3
.3

3
F

o
rm

e
r 

T
o

ta
l 
fi
lli

n
g

 s
ta

ti
o

n
, 

N
e

w
 R

o
a

d
 S

id
e

H
o

rs
fo

rt
h

u
c
s

0
.0

9
4

2
3

8
7

2
.4

8
4

3
7

4
2

4
.9

4
C

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

F
e

a
th

e
rb

a
n

k
 L

a
n

e
 &

  
R

e
g

e
n

t 
R

o
a

d
H

o
rs

fo
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.1

0
4

2
3

8
8

9
.2

0
4

3
7

4
9

1
.0

9
C

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

B
u

rl
e

y
 L

a
n

e
 &

 R
e

g
e

n
t 

R
o

a
d

H
o

rs
fo

rt
h

u
c
s

0
.2

3
4

2
3

7
5

1
.0

3
4

3
7

7
2

5
.1

7
R

e
a

r 
o

f 
P

ro
s
p

e
c
t 

P
la

c
e

, 
o

ff
 D

ru
ry

 L
a

n
e

H
o

rs
fo

rt
h

u
c
s

0
.1

5
4

2
3

6
7

2
.1

6
4

3
7

6
0

5
.3

8
In

 f
ro

n
t 

o
f 

B
ro

a
d

w
a

y
 H

a
ll,

 B
ro

a
d

w
a

y
 D

ri
v
e

 &
 N

e
w

 R
o

a
d

 S
id

e
H

o
rs

fo
rt

h

u
c
s

0
.3

2
4

2
6

5
8

8
.1

6
4

3
3

1
8

1
.8

0
L

a
n

d
 t

o
 s

e
 o

f 
S

u
n

s
h

in
e

 M
ill

s
, 

W
h

in
g

a
te

A
rm

le
y

u
c
s

0
.0

8
4

2
0

6
7

4
.9

3
4

4
1

0
0

8
.7

5
C

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

W
e

ll 
H

ill
 &

 I
v
e

g
a

te
A

ir
e

b
o

ro
u

g
h

u
c
s

0
.5

5
4

3
1

0
4

1
.8

5
4

3
4

1
7

9
.6

7
A

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

R
e

g
e

n
t 

H
o

u
s
e

, 
S

k
in

n
e

r 
L

a
n

e
 (

E
3

a
:5

) 
 -

 a
ls

o
  

6
0

3
8

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

0
.1

4
4

3
0

4
1

2
.7

2
4

3
4

7
1

1
.9

6
L

a
n

d
 s

u
rr

o
u

n
d

in
g

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 o

ff
ic

e
, 

O
a

tl
a

n
d

 D
ri
v
e

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

u
c
s

1
0

.2
1

4
3

4
4

4
8

.9
5

4
3

4
7

6
9

.7
1

F
o

rm
e

r 
K

ill
in

g
b

e
c
k
 s

it
e

B
u

rm
a

n
to

ft
s

u
c
s

8
.8

4
4

2
7

0
2

0
.3

6
4

3
8

3
8

9
.6

4
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
L

e
e

d
s
, 

W
e

e
tw

o
o

d
 A

th
le

ti
c
 G

ro
u

n
d

s
W

e
e

tw
o

o
d

u
c
s

0
.7

2
4

2
0

2
1

6
.9

6
4

4
5

8
1

0
.9

5
A

ll 
S

a
in

ts
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

l,
 C

a
tt

le
 M

a
rk

e
t 

S
tr

e
e

t,
 O

tl
e

y
O

tl
e

y
 &

 W
h

a
rf

e
d

a
le

u
c
s

0
.6

0
4

2
0

9
6

2
.0

0
4

4
0

8
4

3
.4

2
S

o
u

th
 V

ie
w

 I
n

fa
n

t 
S

c
h

o
o

l
A

ir
e

b
o

ro
u

g
h

u
c
s

0
.6

4
4

2
0

5
8

2
.3

8
4

4
1

0
7

6
.4

5
C

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

W
e

ll 
L

a
n

e
 &

 M
ir
y
 L

a
n

e
A

ir
e

b
o

ro
u

g
h

u
c
s

0
.1

3
4

2
9

9
0

4
.1

7
4

3
8

8
6

1
.2

5
P

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 a

t 
Q

u
e

e
n

s
h

ill
 G

a
rd

e
n

s
M

o
o

rt
o

w
n

u
c
s

0
.4

5
4

3
6

3
3

2
.5

5
4

3
6

8
2

8
.1

4
S

it
e

 o
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

Y
o

rk
 R

o
a

d
 a

n
d

 S
le

d
m

e
re

 L
a

n
e

W
h

in
m

o
o

r

u
c
s

1
.7

3
4

3
1

4
2

9
.9

6
4

2
9

5
4

6
.7

3
M

e
rl
y
n

 R
e

e
s
 H

ig
h

 S
c
h

o
o

l
H

u
n

s
le

t

u
c
s

0
.7

8
4

3
5

1
4

5
.4

5
4

3
5

1
4

6
.8

1
C

le
a

re
d

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

h
o

u
s
in

g
, 

T
a

rn
s
d

a
le

 D
ri
v
e

S
e

a
c
ro

ft

u
c
s

8
.6

5
4

3
2

0
5

6
.3

9
4

3
4

0
7

9
.3

9
L

a
n

d
 a

d
j 
to

 B
u

rt
o

n
s
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rk

, 
T

o
rr

e
 D

ri
v
e

 (
E

3
a

:3
4

)
B

u
rm

a
n

to
ft

s

u
c
s

2
.2

4
4

2
8

4
2

1
.0

5
4

3
1

5
2

3
.3

9
M

a
tc

h
 d

a
y
 b

u
s
 p

a
rk

in
g

 a
re

a
, 

L
o

w
 F

ie
ld

s
 R

o
a

d
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.5

8
4

2
9

6
1

8
.0

6
4

2
9

9
9

0
.5

9
6

a
 &

 6
b

, 
M

ill
e

n
n

iu
m

 W
a

y
B

e
e

s
to

n

u
c
s

3
.3

9
4

2
6

7
1

1
.3

9
4

3
3

2
2

6
.5

2
F

o
rm

e
r 

ra
ilw

a
y
 s

id
in

g
s
, 

C
a

rr
 C

ro
ft

s
. 

A
ls

o
 N

L
U

D
 1

1
7

, 
a

ls
o

 S
u

n
s
h

in
e

 M
i

A
rm

le
y

u
c
s

1
.2

0
4

4
0

2
8

1
.6

5
4

3
3

6
6

1
.9

9
H

o
u

s
in

g
 a

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
 a

t 
B

a
rr

o
w

b
y
 L

a
n

e
G

a
rf

o
rt

h
 &

 S
w

ill
in

g

u
c
s

7
.7

9
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
M

a
tt

h
e

w
 M

u
rr

a
y
 H

ig
h

 S
c
h

o
o

l,
 B

ro
w

n
 L

a
n

e
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k

u
c
s

0
.2

2
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
F

a
c
to

ry
 a

t 
C

a
lv

e
rl
e

y
 B

ri
d

g
e

P
u

d
s
e

y
 N

o
rt

h

jb
lis

t
4

3
2

8
2

3
.0

0
4

2
9

2
8

3
.0

0
A

u
to

m
o

ti
v
e

 R
e

c
y
c
lin

g
 L

td
B

e
ll 

H
ill

 I
n

d
u

s
tr

ia
l 
E

s
ta

te
, 

W
L

S
2

6
0

R
S

jb
lis

t
4

3
6

6
3

9
.0

0
4

3
0

6
1

6
.0

0
B

if
fa

 W
a

s
te

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

S
k
e

lt
o

n
 G

ra
n

g
e

 L
a

n
d

fi
ll,

 P
o

n
te

L
S

1
5

9
A

D

jb
lis

t
4

2
9

3
6

4
.0

0
4

3
2

6
9

4
.0

0
E

ri
c
 W

in
te

rb
u

rn
V

ik
in

g
 C

a
r 

S
p

a
re

s
, 

U
n

io
n

 P
la

c
e

L
S

1
1

9
T

Y

jb
lis

t
4

2
7

2
4

1
.0

0
4

2
8

2
7

2
.0

0
G

re
e

n
w

a
y
 O

rc
o

l 
L

td
V

a
lle

y
 R

d
, 

M
o

rl
e

y
L

S
2

7
8

E
S

jb
lis

t
4

3
3

1
9

7
.0

0
4

3
0

5
6

5
.0

0
H

a
lf
w

a
y
 G

a
ra

g
e

U
n

it
 9

b
, 

H
a

ig
h

 P
a

rk
 R

d
L

S
1

0
1

R
T

jb
lis

t
4

3
5

7
5

3
.0

0
4

3
7

1
8

8
.0

0
L

e
v
e

r 
F

a
b

e
rg

e
 L

td
C

o
a

l 
R

d
, 

S
e

a
c
ro

ft
L

S
1

4
2

A
R

jb
lis

t
4

3
8

7
8

6
.0

0
4

3
1

0
6

7
.0

0
M

a
rs

h
a

lls
 p

lc
S

w
ill

in
g

to
n

 Q
u

a
rr

ie
s
, 

W
a

k
e

fi
e

l
L

S
2

6
8

B
I

jb
lis

t
4

3
7

8
9

6
.0

0
4

3
8

2
5

0
.0

0
M

o
d

e
rn

 C
a

r 
S

p
a

re
s

Y
o

rk
 R

d
L

S
1

5
4

N
F

jb
lis

t
4

2
4

6
7

3
.0

0
4

2
8

5
3

0
.0

0
M

o
rl
e

y
 W

a
s
te

 T
ra

d
e

rs
 L

td
T

re
e

fi
e

ld
 I

n
d

 E
s
t,

 G
e

ld
e

rd
 R

d
L

S
2

7
7

J
U

jb
lis

t
4

3
2

8
7

7
.0

0
4

3
1

6
1

0
.0

0
M

r 
L

e
o

n
 P

a
rr

is
h

2
9

a
 K

n
o

w
s
th

o
rp

e
 W

a
y

L
S

9
0

S
W

jb
lis

t
4

2
6

2
3

4
.0

0
4

3
2

5
3

1
.0

0
M

r 
P

 H
 S

a
n

d
e

rs
B

lu
e

 H
ill

 L
a

n
e

, 
W

o
rt

le
y
 M

o
o

r 
R

L
S

1
2

4
N

Y

jb
lis

t
4

3
2

9
6

0
.0

0
4

2
8

4
7

1
.0

0
M

r 
P

a
u

l 
D

ix
o

n
D

ix
o

n
s
 C

a
r 

D
is

m
a

n
tl
e

rs
 L

td
, 

W
a

L
S

2
6

0
S

B

jb
lis

t
4

2
7

4
6

6
.0

0
4

3
3

7
2

4
.0

0
M

r 
S

 C
la

rk
B

o
to

n
y
 B

a
y
 Y

a
rd

, 
C

a
n

a
l 
R

d
L

S
1

2
2

Q
E

jb
lis

t
4

2
2

3
5

9
.0

0
4

3
4

7
9

3
.0

0
N

e
w

m
e

t 
p

lc
V

ic
k
e

rs
d

a
le

, 
o

ff
 A

rt
h

u
r 

S
tr

e
e

t
L

S
2

8
6

J
F

jb
lis

t
4

2
5

4
4

5
.0

0
4

3
8

3
3

5
.0

0
P

 C
a

s
e

y
 E

n
v
ir
o

 L
td

W
o

o
d

s
id

e
 Q

u
a

rr
y
, 

R
in

g
 R

o
a

d
, 

H
o

L
S

1
6

6
Q

N

jb
lis

t
4

2
7

2
6

0
.0

0
4

3
1

8
0

3
.0

0
R

 W
o

o
d

h
e

a
d

F
a

r 
R

o
y
d

 I
n

d
 E

s
t,

 W
h

it
e

h
a

ll 
R

d
L

S
1

2
6

E
R

jb
lis

t
4

3
2

2
0

7
.0

0
4

3
1

9
4

7
.0

0
R

a
ilt

ra
c
k

K
n

o
w

s
th

o
rp

e
 L

a
, 

H
u

n
s
le

t
L

S
9

0
S

G

jb
lis

t
4

3
0

8
5

3
.0

0
4

3
0

9
8

1
.0

0
R

h
o

d
a

r 
L

td
B

e
z
a

 R
d

L
S

1
0

2
B

R

jb
lis

t
4

3
9

1
5

6
.0

0
4

3
2

4
9

9
.0

0
S

ilv
e

r 
L

in
in

g
 I

n
d

u
s
tr

ie
s

R
ic

h
m

o
n

d
 W

o
rk

s
, 

S
e

lb
y
 R

d
L

S
2

5
1

N
B

jb
lis

t
4

3
2

8
7

7
.0

0
4

3
1

6
1

0
.0

0
S

k
e

lt
o

n
 L

td
S

it
e

 4
6

, 
K

n
o

w
s
th

o
rp

e
 W

a
y
, 

C
ro

s
L

S
9

0
S

W

jb
lis

t
4

3
3

1
6

8
.0

0
4

3
0

3
2

5
.0

0
S

to
c
k
 B

ro
s
 L

td
L

a
n

d
 o

ff
 H

a
ig

h
 P

a
rk

 R
d

/P
o

n
te

fr
L

S
1

0
1

R
X

jb
lis

t
4

3
1

5
7

4
.0

0
4

3
1

0
1

7
.0

0
T

 R
 B

a
in

b
ri
d

g
e

 a
n

d
 R

 B
a

i
P

e
p

p
e

r 
R

D
L

S
1

0
2

N
L

jb
lis

t
4

2
6

2
3

3
.0

0
4

2
6

4
3

5
.0

0
W

a
s
te

 R
e

c
y
c
lin

g
 G

ro
u

p
 p

l
H

o
w

le
y
 P

a
rk

 R
d

 E
a

s
t

L
S

2
7

0
S

W

jb
lis

t
4

2
8

3
4

5
.0

0
4

2
8

1
3

0
.0

0
W

e
s
t 

Y
o

rk
s
h

ir
e

 J
o

in
t 

W
D

A
C

lo
s
e

 L
a

n
d

fi
ll,

 M
o

rl
e

y
 G

re
a

s
e

w
L

S
2

7
8

P
W

jb
lis

t
4

2
8

3
4

5
.0

0
4

2
8

1
3

0
.0

0
W

e
s
t 

Y
o

rk
s
h

ir
e

 J
o

in
t 

W
D

A
C

lo
s
e

 L
a

n
d

fi
ll,

 M
o

rl
e

y
 G

re
a

s
e

w
L

S
2

7
8

P
W

jb
lis

t
4

2
9

9
6

9
.0

0
4

2
6

9
9

0
.0

0
W

h
it
e

 M
r 

S
te

v
e

n
T

h
o

rp
e

 L
a

n
e

, 
M

id
d

le
to

n
L

S
1

0
4

E
P

jb
lis

t
4

3
2

5
6

2
.0

0
4

3
1

6
0

8
.0

0
Y

o
rk

s
h

ir
e

 W
a

te
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

K
n

o
s
tr

o
p

 S
T

W
, 

K
n

o
w

s
th

o
rp

e
 L

a
n

e
L

S
9

0
P

J

jb
lis

t
4

3
2

5
6

2
.0

0
4

3
1

6
0

8
.0

0
W

h
it
e

 R
o

s
e

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l

K
n

o
s
tr

o
p

 E
T

P
, 

K
n

o
s
tr

o
p

 T
re

a
tm

e
L

S
9

0
P

J

2
9

Page 98



W
A

S
T

E
 S

IT
E

 S
E

L
E

C
T

IO
N

 R
E

P
O

R
T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

S
O

U
R

C
E

A
R

E
A

_
H

A
X

_
C

O
O

R
D

Y
_

C
O

O
R

D
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

_
1

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
_

2
T

Y
P

E
_

C
O

D
E

L
A

N
D

_
U

S
E

_
C

P
L

G
_

S
T

A
T

U
S

le
e

d
s
c
c
lis

t
1

.7
6

4
3

3
4

5
3

.6
5

4
3

0
1

4
9

.7
9

w
a

s
te

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
s
ta

ti
o

n
w

a
s
te

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
s
ta

ti
o

n

le
e

d
s
c
c
lis

t
1

.1
7

4
4

5
7

1
1

.8
9

4
4

6
4

6
2

.1
9

w
o

rk
s
h

o
p

 a
n

d
 o

ff
ic

e
s

w
a

s
te

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
s
ta

ti
o

n

le
e

d
s
c
c
lis

t
0

.0
6

4
3

1
2

1
8

.2
0

4
3

3
1

6
1

.5
0

b
in

 s
to

re
w

a
s
te

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
s
ta

ti
o

n

le
e

d
s
c
c
lis

t
1

.1
9

4
2

6
5

6
5

.9
8

4
2

6
1

0
6

.1
7

w
a

s
te

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
s
ta

ti
o

n
w

a
s
te

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
s
ta

ti
o

n

le
e

d
s
c
c
lis

t
0

.3
3

4
2

0
4

2
5

.8
1

4
4

5
1

8
2

.0
0

m
e

ta
lli

c
 w

a
s
te

 r
e

c
y
c
lin

g
w

a
s
te

 r
e

c
y
c
lin

g

le
e

d
s
c
c
lis

t
2

.1
1

4
3

3
1

4
9

.3
6

4
3

1
7

2
5

.8
9

w
a

s
te

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
s
ta

ti
o

n
w

a
s
te

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
s
ta

ti
o

n

le
e

d
s
c
c
lis

t
0

.6
0

4
3

2
0

4
3

.7
0

4
3

4
7

6
9

.2
2

d
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d

 r
e

fu
s
e

 c
e

n
tr

e
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 s
it
e

le
e

d
s
c
c
lis

t
0

.8
6

4
1

9
6

6
2

.2
2

4
4

1
1

2
0

.5
2

m
iln

e
rs

 r
o

a
d

 w
ts

w
a

s
te

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
s
ta

ti
o

n

le
e

d
s
c
c
lis

t
0

.2
8

4
2

5
8

7
4

.7
6

4
2

9
9

4
6

.9
6

s
t 

b
e

rn
a

rd
s
 m

ill
 W

T
S

w
a

s
te

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
s
ta

ti
o

n

le
e

d
s
c
c
lis

t
2

4
.1

5
4

2
6

3
1

1
.7

5
4

3
0

6
4

7
.9

5
W

T
S

w
a

s
te

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
s
ta

ti
o

n

le
e

d
s
c
c
lis

t
0

.6
7

4
3

6
8

5
6

.8
9

4
3

0
7

1
8

.0
2

H
W

S
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 s
it
e

le
e

d
s
c
c
lis

t
0

.5
7

4
3

1
1

9
3

.0
2

4
2

8
1

8
2

.0
0

H
o

lm
e

 W
e

ll 
R

o
a

d
 H

W
S

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 s
it
e

le
e

d
s
c
c
lis

t
0

.7
3

4
2

2
8

3
9

.2
8

4
3

4
3

5
7

.6
3

ri
c
h

a
rd

s
h

a
w

 r
o

a
d

 H
W

S
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 s
it
e

le
e

d
s
c
c
lis

t
0

.5
9

4
1

7
8

8
1

.0
0

4
4

4
4

9
0

.2
0

e
lla

r 
g

h
y
ll 

H
W

S
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 s
it
e

le
e

d
s
c
c
lis

t
0

.7
4

4
2

5
4

4
5

.7
8

4
3

1
7

2
9

.0
9

a
s
h

fi
e

ld
 w

a
y
 W

T
S

w
a

s
te

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
s
ta

ti
o

n

le
e

d
s
c
c
lis

t
6

.3
3

4
4

3
2

6
6

.4
4

4
4

9
2

4
3

.0
6

c
h

a
m

p
a

g
n

e
 w

h
in

w
a

s
te

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
s
ta

ti
o

n

le
e

d
s
c
c
lis

t
4

.8
1

4
2

1
5

4
9

.3
8

4
3

6
1

4
9

.4
2

p
a

lm
e

r 
n

u
rs

e
ri
e

s
w

a
s
te

 r
e

c
y
c
lin

g

le
e

d
s
c
c
lis

t
0

.6
8

4
2

9
5

0
5

.2
5

4
3

6
0

1
4

.6
7

m
e

a
n

w
o

o
d

 r
o

a
d

  
h

w
s

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 s
it
e

le
e

d
s
c
c
lis

t
0

.7
8

4
2

1
8

5
5

.3
0

4
3

4
2

6
5

.8
4

p
ro

v
id

e
n

c
e

 m
ill

s
 w

ts
w

a
s
te

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
s
ta

ti
o

n

le
e

d
s
c
c
lis

t
0

.6
5

4
2

3
5

2
4

.3
8

4
3

4
4

6
8

.5
6

a
n

c
h

o
r 

w
o

rk
s
  

w
ts

?
w

a
s
te

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
s
ta

ti
o

n

le
e

d
s
c
c
lis

t
0

.3
6

4
2

2
8

7
4

.7
5

4
3

2
5

2
1

.3
8

lu
m

b
y
 l
a

n
e

 w
ts

w
a

s
te

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
s
ta

ti
o

n

le
e

d
s
c
c
lis

t
0

.3
5

4
2

3
9

0
1

.3
5

4
3

1
7

4
1

.2
2

b
ri
ta

n
n

ia
 m

ill
 w

ts
w

a
s
te

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
s
ta

ti
o

n

le
e

d
s
c
c
lis

t
2

.2
2

4
2

7
3

8
5

.4
7

4
3

4
5

1
1

.2
0

e
v
a

n
s
to

n
 r

e
fu

s
e

 d
e

s
tr

u
c
to

r
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 s
it
e

le
e

d
s
c
c
lis

t
0

.1
6

4
2

8
9

5
6

.2
5

4
3

3
2

0
7

.4
9

w
e

lli
n

g
to

n
 r

o
a

d
 w

ts
w

a
s
te

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
s
ta

ti
o

n

le
e

d
s
c
c
lis

t
0

.2
1

4
2

8
1

2
1

.0
8

4
3

2
5

6
7

.8
6

c
o

p
le

y
 h

ill
 w

ts
w

a
s
te

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
s
ta

ti
o

n

le
e

d
s
c
c
lis

t
0

.1
6

4
2

5
5

3
3

.0
5

4
3

1
3

7
6

.0
3

d
y
s
o

n
 w

ts
w

a
s
te

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
s
ta

ti
o

n

le
e

d
s
c
c
lis

t
0

.2
4

4
2

6
8

8
2

.0
3

4
3

3
2

8
8

.3
4

p
a

rk
 p

it
 l
td

 p
e

n
n

in
e

 I
E

w
a

s
te

 r
e

c
y
c
lin

g

le
e

d
s
c
c
lis

t
0

.5
4

4
2

6
8

2
6

.9
5

4
3

3
2

4
9

.0
5

le
e

d
s
 e

n
v
 c

a
rr

 c
ro

ft
s
 w

ts
w

a
s
te

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
s
ta

ti
o

n

le
e

d
s
c
c
lis

t
0

.9
4

4
3

5
3

2
7

.0
3

4
3

6
9

9
3

.2
5

e
a

s
t 

le
e

d
s
 h

w
s
 l
im

e
w

o
o

d
 r

o
a

d
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 s
it
e

le
e

d
s
c
c
lis

t
2

.3
0

4
3

2
5

4
2

.3
1

4
3

0
4

4
0

.0
2

p
o

n
te

fr
a

c
t 

ro
a

d
 r

a
il 

d
e

p
o

t
w

a
s
te

 r
e

c
y
c
lin

g

le
e

d
s
c
c
lis

t
3

.8
1

4
3

2
2

4
8

.3
5

4
3

1
7

0
2

.9
5

p
ro

c
e

s
s
in

g
 r

a
ilw

a
y
 b

a
lla

s
t

w
a

s
te

 r
e

c
y
c
lin

g

le
e

d
s
c
c
lis

t
0

.8
3

4
3

3
0

5
2

.7
3

4
3

1
5

4
3

.0
5

la
n

g
to

n
 l
a

n
d

 r
a

is
in

g
 k

n
o

w
s
th

o
rp

e
 l
a

n
e

w
a

s
te

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
s
ta

ti
o

n

le
e

d
s
c
c
lis

t
1

.0
4

4
3

2
4

7
2

.6
1

4
3

2
2

1
7

.5
3

x
g

re
e

n
 v

a
le

 t
im

b
e

r 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
w

a
s
te

 r
e

c
y
c
lin

g

le
e

d
s
c
c
lis

t
0

.2
8

4
3

0
9

3
4

.3
1

4
3

3
0

5
2

.6
7

n
e

p
tu

n
e

 s
tr

e
e

t 
ty

re
 d

e
p

o
t

w
a

s
te

 r
e

c
y
c
lin

g

le
e

d
s
c
c
lis

t
1

.1
9

4
3

2
9

6
0

.1
4

4
2

9
3

0
5

.2
7

b
e

ll 
h

ill
 s

k
ip

 s
to

ra
g

e
w

a
s
te

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
s
ta

ti
o

n

le
e

d
s
c
c
lis

t
1

.9
7

4
1

9
5

8
4

.7
7

4
3

3
1

1
5

.5
9

n
ir
v
a

n
a

 f
a

rm
 W

T
S

w
a

s
te

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
s
ta

ti
o

n

le
e

d
s
c
c
lis

t
7

.8
3

4
4

5
3

6
1

.1
9

4
4

5
9

9
2

.2
0

th
o

rp
e

 a
rc

h
 t

ip
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 s
it
e

le
e

d
s
c
c
lis

t
1

.3
3

4
2

7
2

6
0

.5
0

4
3

1
6

8
7

.4
9

b
w

 s
k
ip

s
 w

h
it
e

h
a

ll 
ro

a
d

w
a

s
te

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
s
ta

ti
o

n

le
e

d
s
c
c
lis

t
1

.0
1

4
2

6
4

6
3

.4
8

4
3

2
9

1
9

.6
3

s
a

n
d

e
rs

 w
ts

 e
x
te

n
s
io

n
w

a
s
te

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
s
ta

ti
o

n

le
e

d
s
c
c
lis

t
0

.3
6

4
4

4
8

3
9

.7
0

4
4

5
7

4
2

.2
4

re
v
is

e
d

 s
it
e

 l
a

y
o

u
t 

to
 h

w
s

h
w

s

le
e

d
s
c
c
lis

t
0

.2
1

4
1

9
3

6
0

.8
6

4
4

0
8

4
4

.3
0

c
o

u
 s

c
ra

p
y
a

rd
 t

o
 w

ts
w

ts 3
0

Page 99



for sale or rent? 

Private land owner but known to be 
interested in selling land. 

Green

Status of the landowner and their 
development interests are not 
known and require further 
investigation. 

Amber

Status of the landowner and their 
development interest is known and 
very unlikely to sell the land/or 
potential land values are likely to be 
prohibitive to the council. 
Deliverability in project time frames 
is uncertain. 

Red

unrealistic assumptions on site 
ownership when allocating 
sites having particular regard 
to any ownership constraints 
which cannot readily be freed. 

An existing planning permission or 
current live planning application 
which would preserve the status of 
the site for higher land values 
meaning the site is unavailable in 
the timeframe. 

Red

action may be necessary 
to acquire the site. 

Is it previously developed land?  Green

Not previously developed land but is 
allocated for industrial development. 

Amber

Site Characteristics Paragraph 21 (ii) of PPS 10 
seeks to give priority to the 
reuse of previously developed 
land but also ensure overriding 
development constraints are 
avoided. Not previously developed and not 

allocated for development 
Red

To indicate compatibility 
with planning policy 
which promotes the re-
use and recycling of 
derelict or vacant land 
and buildings but also to 
make realisitic 
assumption about 
potential deliverability.  

Within an existing industrial area 
which will remain characterised by 
industrial uses and no planned 
changes to the types of surrounding 
land uses. 

Green

New land uses are planned in the 
surrounding area but there is no 
reason why a major waste facility 
cannot be sited so a conflict does 
not occur.

Green

Impact on existing or planned 
surrounding land uses which could 
potentially be reduced to an 
acceptable level through mitigation.  

Amber

Existing and future 
surrounding land uses 

Paragraph 21 (i) of PPS 10 
states that the suitability of 
sites should be assessed 
against the physical and 
environmental constraints on 
development, including 
existing and proposed land 
uses including all the criteria 
listed in Annex E.  

Close proximity to existing or 
planned sensitive land uses. The 
operational characteristics of a 
major waste facility is likely to give 
rise to unacceptable visual, amenity 
and nuisance issues which could 
not be reduced through mitigation.

Red

Land uses such as 
housing, offices, retail, 
medical facilities and 
schools are more 
sensitive to the operation 
of a major waste facility 
than other uses such as 
industrial uses.  

Within the core Leeds urban area 
and good strategic access to the 
whole City 

Green

On the urban fringe with less central 
strategic access to all parts of the 
City

Amber

Strategic Accessibility Paragraph 21 (i) requires the 
sustainable movement of 
waste and products arising 
from resource recovery

Outside the main Urban Area of 
Leeds and poor strategic access to 
the whole City 

Red

To determine sites with 
good strategic 
accessibility, i.e. close 
proximity to waste 
arisings in terms of the 
best strategic locations to 
serve the whole 
population.

Page 100



1
1
5
.8

L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
O

IN
IN

G
 A

N
D

 S
U

R
R

O
U

N
D

IN
G

 E
L
L
A

N
D

 R
O

A
D

 S
T

A
D

IU
M

 B
E

T
W

E
E

N
 N

O
R

T
H

 O
F

 A
6
4
3
 L

T
5
a
: 
R

e
g
io

n
a
l 
a
n
d
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

p
o
rt

in
g
 

F
a
c
ili

ty

V
a
c
a
n
t 
a
n
d
 u

n
d
e
ru

s
e
d
 l
a
n
d
 i
n
 u

s
e
 a

s
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

s
/w

a
re

h
o
u
s
in

g
. 
  

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 f
o
r 

m
a
jo

r 
le

is
u
re

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

re
n
a
 e

tc

2
6
.5

M
A

T
T

H
E

W
 M

U
R

R
A

Y
 H

IG
H

 S
C

H
O

O
L
, 
B

R
O

W
N

 L
A

N
E

P
ro

te
c
te

d
 p

la
y
in

g
 

p
it
c
h
 a

n
d
 u

rb
a
n
 

g
re

e
n
 c

o
rr

id
o
r

W
it
h
in

 U
rb

a
n
 G

re
e
n
 C

o
rr

id
o
r,

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 P

ri
o
ri
ty

 A
re

a
. 
S

it
e
 

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 p

it
c
h
e
s
. 
A

d
ja

c
e
n
t 
to

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

to
 t
h
e
 w

e
s
t.

O
w

n
e
d
 b

y
 L

C
C

. 
S

c
h
o
o
l 
is

 c
lo

s
in

g
. 
It
 i
s
 a

 k
e
y
 r

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 s

it
e
 e

a
rm

a
rk

e
d
 f
o
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 g

re
e
n
s
p
a
c
e
. 
W

ill

g
o
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
H

o
lb

e
c
k
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
. 

3
1
0
.7

T
Y

E
R

S
A

L
 L

A
N

E
 E

M
P

L
O

Y
M

E
N

T
 A

L
L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t,
 K

e
y
 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
S

it
e
 

E
4
:2

1
 +

 E
8
.9

T
h
e
 s

it
e
 i
s
 u

n
d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

C
lo

s
e
 t
o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

n
 i
s
s
u
e
. 
 A

d
ja

c
e
n
t 
th

e
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 w
it
h
 B

ra
d
fo

rd
. 
 

A
llo

c
a
te

d
 E

4
.2

1
 a

n
d
 E

8
.9

 i
n
 U

D
P

. 

H
A

R
E

H
IL

L
S

/R
O

U
N

D
H

A
Y

4
7
.5

0
T

R
E

N
T

 R
O

A
D

 T
O

R
R

E
 R

O
A

D
E

x
is

ti
n
g
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
la

n
d

A
llo

c
a
te

d
 E

x
is

ti
n
g
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
s
it
e
 E

3
(B

).
 L

a
rg

e
 f
a
c
to

ry
 t
o
 n

o
rt

h
.

A
d
ja

c
e
n
t 
p
ro

te
c
te

d
 p

la
y
in

g
 p

it
c
h
 a

n
d
 n

e
a
r 

to
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

Id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 E

A
S

E
L
 A

A
P

 a
s
 a

 M
a
jo

r 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
S

it
e
.

5
3
.6

0
L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 A
N

D
 R

E
A

R
 O

F
 T

H
O

M
A

S
 G

R
A

N
B

Y
 C

O
L
L
E

G
E

, 
R

O
U

N
D

H
A

Y
 R

O
A

D
N

o
t 
a
llo

c
a
te

d
U

n
a
llo

c
a
te

d
. 
A

re
a
 m

ix
e
d
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l/
g
e
n
e
ra

l 
in

d
u
s
tr

y
/c

a
r

s
h
o
w

ro
o
m

s
. 
A

d
ja

c
e
n
t 
to

 T
h
o
m

a
s
 D

a
n
b
y
 C

o
lle

g
e
.

R
e
c
e
n
t 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
b
id

 f
o
r 

S
p
o
rt

 E
n
g
la

n
d
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 s

p
o
rt

in
g
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 M

U
G

A
. 
 T

h
e
 

c
o
lle

g
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

re
 n

o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

fi
t 
fo

r 
p
u
rp

o
s
e
 a

n
d
 r

e
lo

c
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 a

 p
o
s
s
ib

ili
ty

.

K
N

O
W

S
T

H
O

R
P

E
/C

R
O

S
S

 G
R

E
E

N

6
1
7
.0

F
O

R
M

E
R

 R
A

IL
W

A
Y

 S
ID

IN
G

S
 B

E
S

ID
E

 R
IV

E
R

 A
IR

E
 K

N
O

W
S

T
H

O
R

P
E

 L
A

N
E

P
a
rt

ly
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 f
o
r 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t

A
d
ja

c
e
n
t 
ra

il 
&

 c
a
n
a
l.
 S

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 u

s
e
s
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
in

d
u
s
tr

ia
l.
 N

e
a
r 

to
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.
 

W
it
h
in

 H
u
n
s
le

t 
R

iv
e
rs

id
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 m

ix
e
d
 u

s
e
 a

re
a
.

7
1
0
.5

R
A

IL
W

A
Y

 B
A

L
L
A

S
T

 T
IP

, 
K

N
O

W
S

T
H

O
R

P
E

 L
A

N
E

, 
W

E
S

T
 O

F
 S

E
W

A
G

E
 W

O
R

K
S

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t

C
lo

s
e
 t
o
 r

a
ilw

a
y
 l
in

e
. 
A

llo
c
a
te

d
 f
o
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
u
s
e
s
. 
U

s
e
d
 b

y
 T

a
rm

a
c
 f
o
r 

a
g
g
re

g
a
te

 d
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 o

n
 a

 l
o
n
g
 

le
a
s
e
.

8
1
5
.2

F
O

R
M

E
R

 C
O

P
P

E
R

F
IE

L
D

 C
O

L
L
E

G
E

 S
IT

E
  
 

M
ix

e
d
 U

s
e

D
is

u
s
e
d
 c

o
lle

g
e
 s

it
e

E
a
rm

a
rk

e
d
 f
o
r 

m
ix

e
d
 u

s
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,
 n

e
w

 t
e
c
h
. 
c
o
lle

g
e
. 
 A

d
ja

c
e
n
t 
re

s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

9
4
.5

Y
A

R
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

N
o
n
e

U
n
a
llo

c
a
te

d
, 
a
d
ja

c
e
n
t 
c
a
n
a
l,
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
s
it
e
s
 a

d
ja

c
e
n
t

W
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 H

u
n
s
le

t 
R

iv
e
rs

id
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 A

re
a
 -

 a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 s

h
o
rt

ly
 f
o
r 

4
5
0
 h

o
u
s
e
s
.

1
0

4
.5

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 L

A
N

D
 O

F
F

 I
N

T
E

R
M

E
Z

Z
O

 D
R

IV
E

, 
N

O
R

T
H

 O
F

 P
O

N
T

E
F

R
A

C
T

 R
O

A
D

 A
N

D
 

S
O

U
T

H
 O

F
 H

A
IG

H
 P

A
R

K
 R

O
A

D

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
la

n
d
 E

4
.4

9
. 
C

lo
s
e
 t
o
 m

a
in

 r
o
a
d
/r

a
il 

n
e
tw

o
rk

.

L
C

C
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 J

B
 t
h
a
t 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
it
e
 h

a
d
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 a

n
d
 i
s
 u

n
a
v
a
ila

b
le

.

1
1

5
.0

L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 S
K

E
L
T

O
N

 G
R

A
N

G
E

 B
R

ID
G

E
U

n
a
llo

c
a
te

d
 b

u
t 

w
it
h
 a

 p
ro

te
c
te

d
 

p
la

y
in

g
 p

it
c
h

L
a
n
d
 s

o
u
th

 a
n
d
 w

e
s
t 
o
f 
S

k
e
lt
o
n
 G

ra
n
g
e
 B

ri
d
g
e

B
ri
ti
s
h
 W

a
te

rw
a
y
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

c
q
u
ir
e
d
 s

it
e
 f
o
r 

in
la

n
d
 d

o
c
k
 a

n
d
 p

a
rt

 a
llo

c
a
te

d
 G

re
e
n
s
p
a
c
e

1
2

1
4
.4

S
IT

E
 O

F
 F

O
R

M
E

R
 I
M

I 
C

O
P

P
E

R
W

O
R

K
S

 A
N

D
 Y

O
R

K
S

H
IR

E
 G

L
A

S
S

 F
A

C
T

O
R

IE
S

, 
H

A
IG

H
 P

A
R

K
 

R
O

A
D

 A
N

D
 W

E
S

T
 O

F
 A

IR
E

 A
N

D
 C

A
L
D

E
R

 N
A

V
IG

A
T

IO
N

U
n
a
llo

c
a
te

d
P

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 l
a
n
d
 a

d
ja

c
e
n
t 
to

 t
h
e
 c

a
n
a
l.
  

M
a
jo

r 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
r 

h
a
s
 b

o
u
g
h
t 
la

n
d
. 
 L

C
C

 e
x
p
e
c
ti
n
g
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.
  
T

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 g

ra
n
te

a
t 
th

e
 m

o
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
b
a
rr

e
l 
s
to

ra
g
e
. 
P

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 w

it
h
in

 A
V

L
A

A
P

 

1
3

3
.5

F
O

R
M

E
R

 T
A

R
 D

IS
T

IL
L
E

R
S

 S
IT

E
, 
H

A
IG

H
 P

A
R

K
 R

O
A

D
, 
N

O
R

T
H

 O
F

 R
A

IL
W

A
Y

 A
N

D
 W

E
S

T
 O

F
 

A
IR

E
 A

N
D

 C
A

L
D

E
R

 N
A

V
IG

A
T

IO
N

E
x
is

ti
n
g

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
la

n
d

C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 i
n
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 
la

n
d

In
 u

s
e
, 
p
ri
v
a
te

ly
 o

w
n
e
d
 (

S
to

c
k
s
 B

ro
s
).

 M
a
jo

r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 p

ro
b
le

m
. 
P

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 f
o
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 i
n
 A

V
L
A

A
P

 s
o
 l
a
n
d
 

o
w

n
e
r 

e
x
p
e
c
ti
n
g
 h

ig
h
 l
a
n
d
 v

a
lu

e
s
.

1
4

4
.2

F
O

R
M

E
R

 O
F

F
IC

E
S

 A
N

D
 W

O
R

K
S

H
O

P
S

, 
H

A
IG

H
 P

A
R

K
 R

O
A

D
U

n
a
llo

c
a
te

d
C

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 v

a
c
a
n
t 
a
n
d
 d

e
re

lic
t 
in

d
u
s
tr

ia
l 
la

n
d

O
w

n
e
d
 b

y
 T

o
w

n
g
a
te

 P
L
C

. 
L
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 a
s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

h
ig

h
e
r 

v
a
lu

e
 u

s
e
s
. 
A

ls
o
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

1
5

4
.6

L
A

N
D

 B
E

T
W

E
E

N
 N

O
R

T
H

 O
F

 P
O

N
T

E
F

R
A

C
T

 R
O

A
D

, 
S

O
U

T
H

 O
F

 R
A

IL
W

A
Y

 A
N

D
 W

E
S

T
 O

F
 M

1
E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t:
 E

3
 

B
2
0

V
a
c
a
n
t 
a
n
d
 d

e
re

lic
t 
in

d
u
s
tr

ia
l 
la

n
d
. 
 

O
w

n
e
d
 b

y
 L

C
C

. 
 H

a
v
e
 s

p
e
n
t 
£
1
m

 p
re

p
a
ri
n
g
 l
a
n
d
 f
o
r 

o
ff
ic

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.
 U

n
im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 b

u
t 
e
x
ta

n
t 
o
u
tl
in

e
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 f
o
r 

o
ff
ic

e
s
. 
 L

C
C

 s
u
g
g
e
s
te

d
 d

iv
is

io
n
 o

f 
s
it
e
 (

e
a
s
t/
w

e
s
t)

 a
s
 a

re
a
 i
n
 t
h
e
 m

id
d
le

 i
s
 n

o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

1
6

3
.6

P
O

N
T

E
F

R
A

C
T

 R
O

A
D

, 
B

E
L
L
 H

IL
L
 (

N
O

R
T

H
) 

S
T

O
U

R
T

O
N

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
E

4
:2

5
A

llo
c
a
te

d
 P

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
L
a
n
d
. 
A

d
ja

c
e
n
t 
m

o
to

rw
a
y
. 

L
C

C
 o

w
n
 s

it
e
. 
 L

e
e
d
s
 V

a
lle

y
 P

a
rk

 t
o
 s

o
u
th

 h
a
s
 d

is
a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 i
ts

e
lf
 w

it
h
 t
h
is

 s
it
e
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 l
a
y
o
u
t.
 

A
 t
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 t
a
rm

a
c
 p

la
n
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 t
h
e
re

 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

a
s
t.
  
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 m
a
jo

r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 c

o
n
s
tr

a
in

t 
th

a
t 
w

o
u
l

b
e
 e

x
tr

e
m

e
ly

 c
o
s
tl
y
 t
o
 o

v
e
rc

o
m

e
 a

n
d
 w

o
u
ld

 l
o
s
e
 l
a
rg

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
re

a
. 

1
7

5
.8

IN
D

U
S

T
R

IA
L
 P

R
E

M
IS

E
S

 A
T

 P
O

N
T

E
F

R
A

C
T

 R
O

A
D

/Q
U

E
E

N
 S

T
R

E
E

T
. 

U
n
a
llo

c
a
te

d
V

a
c
a
n
t 
in

d
u
s
tr

ia
l 
p
re

m
is

e
s

In
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

d
 b

u
t 
s
it
e
 n

o
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

K
N

O
S

T
R

O
P

 S
E

W
A

G
E

 W
O

R
K

S

1
8

1
2
.0

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 L

A
N

D
 A

D
J
A

C
E

N
T

 K
N

O
S

T
R

O
P

 S
E

W
A

G
E

 W
O

R
K

S
, 
S

O
U

T
H

 O
F

 P
O

N
T

E
F

R
A

C
T

 

L
A

N
E

 (
W

IT
H

 P
O

S
S

IB
L
E

 E
X

T
E

N
S

IO
N

 T
O

 L
C

C
 O

W
N

E
D

 L
A

N
D

 W
IT

H
IN

 C
R

O
S

S
 G

R
E

E
N

 

IN
D

U
S

T
R

IA
L
 A

R
E

A
)

U
n
a
llo

c
a
te

d
A

llo
c
a
te

d
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 a

n
d
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
la

n
d
. 
A

d
ja

c
e
n
t 

E
a
s
t 
L
e
e
d
s
 R

a
d
ia

l 
R

o
u
te

. 
S

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 u

s
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 

in
d
u
s
tr

ia
l

C
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

m
a
lg

a
m

a
te

d
 w

it
h
 L

C
C

 o
w

n
e
d
 s

it
e
 (

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
s
it
e
 o

f 
C

it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

ff
ic

e
s
) 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
s
it
e
 a

s
s
e
m

b
ly

 

s
c
h
e
m

e
. 
 O

w
n
e
d
 b

y
 Y

o
rk

s
h
ir
e
 W

a
te

r 
a
n
d
 a

d
ja

c
e
n
t 
to

 t
h
e
 C

ro
s
s
 G

re
e
n
 I
n
d
 E

s
t.
 

V
A

C
A

N
T

 L
A

N
D

 A
R

E
A

S
 W

IT
H

IN
 K

N
O

S
T

R
O

P
 S

E
W

A
G

E
 W

A
T

E
R

 T
R

E
A

T
M

E
N

T
 S

IT
E

 

(I
N

C
L
U

D
IN

G
 P

O
S

S
IB

L
E

 E
X

T
E

N
S

IO
N

 A
R

E
A

 A
T

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 L
C

C
 R

E
F

U
S

E
 D

E
P

O
T

)

M
a
jo

ri
ty

u
n
a
llo

c
a
te

d
 w

it
h
 a

 

s
m

a
ll 

a
re

a
 o

f 

e
x
is

ti
n
g

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
la

n
d

L
a
n
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 s

e
w

a
g
e
 w

o
rk

s
. 

T
h
e
 s

e
w

a
g
e
 w

o
rk

s
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
c
o
n
fi
g
u
re

d
 b

u
t 
th

e
re

 a
re

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
s
u
p
lu

s
 l
a
n
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

c
u
rt

ile
d
g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e
. 
Y

o
rk

s
h
ir
e
 W

a
te

r 
h
a
s
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
b
u
t 
th

e
 

e
x
a
c
t 
a
re

a
s
 w

o
u
ld

 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
fi
n
e
d
. 
A

ls
o
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
to

 r
e
lo

c
a
te

 L
C

C
 r

e
fu

s
e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 d

e
p
o
t 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
1
 h

a
 o

f 
la

n
d
. 

2
0

1
0
8
.6

h
a

A
R

E
A

 O
F

 R
E

M
E

D
E

D
IA

T
IO

N
 S

C
H

E
M

E
S

 A
T

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 S
E

W
A

G
E

 B
E

D
S

 A
N

D
 L

A
G

O
O

N
S

 A
N

D
 

O
T

H
E

R
 S

U
R

P
L
U

S
 L

A
N

D
 A

T
 P

O
N

T
E

F
R

A
C

T
 L

A
N

E
 (

E
A

S
T

 L
E

E
D

S
 R

A
D

IA
L
) 

A
N

D
 

K
N

O
W

S
T

H
O

R
P

E
 L

A
N

E

K
e
y
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

s
it
e
 E

4
:1

 a
n
d
 E

8
:4

E
x
is

ti
n
g
 S

T
W

 f
ilt

e
r 

b
e
d
s
 w

it
h
in

 K
n
o
s
tr

o
p
 S

T
W

. 
C

o
s
t 
o
f 
re

m
o
v
in

g
 s

e
w

a
g
e
 b

e
d
s
 £

1
0
0
m

+
 a

n
d
 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

 f
o
r 

re
m

e
d
ia

ti
o
n
 i
s
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
3
 y

e
a
rs

. 
P

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 a

re
a
 w

it
h
in

 A
V

L
A

A
P

S
K

E
L

T
O

N
 G

R
A

N
G

E
/P

O
N

T
E

F
R

A
C

T
 L

A
N

E

2
1

2
3
.2

F
O

R
M

E
R

 S
K

E
L
T

O
N

 G
R

A
N

G
E

 P
O

W
E

R
 S

T
A

T
IO

N
, 
S

K
E

L
T

O
N

 G
R

A
N

G
E

 R
O

A
D

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t:
 E

4
:4

4
F

o
rm

e
r 

p
o
w

e
r 

s
ta

ti
o
n
 s

it
e
 c

lo
s
e
 t
o
 m

a
in

 r
o
a
d
 &

 r
a
il 

n
e
tw

o
rk

, 

s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 u

s
e
s
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
in

d
u
s
tr

ia
l.

O
w

n
e
d
 b

y
 R

W
e
 P

o
w

e
r 

b
u
t 
th

e
y
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

d
 a

n
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
in

 u
ti
lis

in
g
 t
h
e
 s

it
e
 f
o
r 

e
le

c
tr

ic
it
y
 p

ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
. 
T

o
 

fa
c
ili

ta
te

 n
e
w

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
 n

e
w

 b
ri
d
g
e
 w

o
u
ld

 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 b

u
ilt

.

2
2

5
.6

L
A

N
D

 S
O

U
T

H
 O

F
 P

O
N

T
E

F
R

A
C

T
 L

A
N

E
 A

N
D

 N
O

R
T

H
 O

F
 S

E
W

A
G

E
 W

O
R

K
S

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t:
 E

4
:1

, 
L
a
rg

e
 s

it
e
, 
a
llo

c
a
te

d
 k

e
y
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
s
it
e
. 
 S

o
u
th

 o
f 
E

a
s
t 
L
e
e
d
s
 

O
w

n
e
d
 b

y
 A

m
e
c
. 
 P

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 f
o
r 

in
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 
u
s
e
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 A

V
L
A

A
P

.

Page 101



a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
 E

4
.4

5
, 
E

8
.1

8
. 
O

w
n
e
d
 b

y
 S

w
a
y
fi
e
ld

. 
N

o
w

 p
a
rt

 o
f 
S

k
e
lt
o
n
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rk

 a
n
d
 a

ls
o
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 f
o
r 

P
a
rk

 a
n
d
 R

id
e
 s

it
e
. 

L
A

N
D

 N
O

R
T

H
 O

F
 P

O
N

T
E

F
R

A
C

T
 L

A
N

E

2
5

9
.5

F
O

R
M

E
R

 W
H

O
L
E

S
A

L
E

 M
A

R
K

E
T

S
, 
L
A

N
D

 B
E

T
W

E
E

N
 N

E
W

M
A

R
K

E
T

 A
P

P
R

O
A

C
H

 A
N

D
 

N
E

W
M

A
R

K
E

T
 L

A
N

E

P
a
rt

ly
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 f
o
r 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t

(E
3
C

:2
2

P
a
rt

ia
lly

 a
llo

c
a
te

d
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
la

n
d
. 
A

d
ja

c
e
n
t 
R

a
ilw

a
y
.

S
u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 u

s
e
s
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
In

d
u
s
tr

ia
l/
R

a
ilw

a
y
 s

id
in

g
s
. 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
la

n
d
 o

w
n
e
d
 b

y
 L

C
C

. 
 P

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 i
n
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 
a
re

a
 w

it
h
in

 A
V

L
A

A
P

. 
S

o
m

e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
o
p
p
o
s
it
e
 o

n
 

th
e
 o

th
e
r 

s
id

e
 o

f 
th

e
 r

a
ilw

a
y
 b

u
t 
th

is
 i
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 a

s
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
la

n
d
 w

it
h
in

 E
A

S
E

L
. 

2
6

2
5
.2

T
H

O
R

N
E

S
 F

A
R

M
E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
E

3
 

B
:4

L
a
rg

e
ly

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 s

it
e
, 
tw

o
 p

a
rc

e
ls

 o
f 
la

n
d
 l
e
ft
. 
 C

a
n
't 

re
a
lly

 b
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

u
n
ti
l 
th

e
 E

a
s
t 
L
e
e
d
s
 L

in
k
 

R
o
a
d
 i
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
. 
 F

u
rt

h
e
r 

c
o
n
s
e
n
ts

 a
re

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 f
o
r 

m
o
re

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.
 A

llo
c
a
te

d
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
in

 U
D

P
 

(E
4
.4

6
, 
E

8
.1

5
, 
E

8
.5

).
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 l
a
n
d
 l
e
ft
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 t
o
o
 c

lo
s
e
 t
o
 n

e
a
rb

y
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

2
7

4
5
.5

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 L

A
N

D
 A

T
 S

K
E

L
T

O
N

 M
O

O
R

 F
A

R
M

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t:
 E

4
:4

6
U

n
d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 f
a
rm

la
n
d
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 S

k
e
lt
o
n
 M

o
o
r 

F
a
rm

. 
P

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 f
o
r 

h
ig

h
e
r 

v
a
lu

e
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
u
s
e
s
 a

s
 p

ri
m

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
la

n
d
 n

e
x
t 
to

 E
a
s
t 
L
e
e
d
s
 L

in
k
 R

o
a
d
. 

O
w

n
e
d
 b

y
 H

a
lif

a
x
 E

s
ta

te
s
.

2
8

2
3
.8

N
O

R
T

H
 N

E
W

H
O

L
D

 L
A

N
D

 A
L
L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
S

K
e
y
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

S
it
e
: 
E

4
:1

3
, 
E

8
:1

5

U
n
d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 l
a
n
d
 b

u
t 
k
e
y
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
s
it
e
. 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
5
 i
n
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 
a
n
d
 w

a
re

h
o
u
s
e
 u

n
it
s
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 o

n
 s

it
e
. 
(F

u
s
io

n
 P

o
in

t 
a
n
d
 F

u
s
io

n
 C

o
u
rt

 a
ls

o
 

h
a
v
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
).

 A
re

a
s
 o

f 
la

n
d
 r

e
m

a
in

 b
u
t 
la

n
d
 o

w
n
e
r 

u
n
lik

e
ly

 t
o
 s

e
ll 

a
s
 a

 h
ig

h
 p

ro
fi
le

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
la

n
d
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 c

lo
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 m

o
to

rw
a
y
. 

2
9

8
.2

0
N

E
W

H
O

L
D

 I
N

D
U

S
T

R
IA

L
 E

S
T

A
T

E
E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t:
 E

3
 

B
:6

A
llo

c
a
te

d
 E

x
is

ti
n
g
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
la

n
d
. 
A

d
ja

c
e
n
t 
K

e
y
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

S
it
e
 a

n
d
 G

re
e
n
 B

e
lt
. 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 o

n
 s

it
e
. 
A

n
y
 v

a
c
a
n
t 
u
n
it
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 t
o
o
 s

m
a
ll 

fo
r 

m
a
jo

r 
w

a
s
te

 u
s
e
. 

3
0

1
0
.6

M
IC

K
L
E

F
IE

L
D

 B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 P

A
R

K
 A

L
L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

E
3
:B

:2
2
, 
E

3
B

:2
1

A
re

a
 o

f 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
la

n
d
 a

d
ja

c
e
n
t 
to

m
a
in

lin
e
 r

a
ilw

a
y
.

A
llo

c
a
te

d
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
s
it
e
 (

E
3
B

.6
).

  
P

e
c
k
fi
e
ld

 f
o
rm

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
w

id
e
r 

V
ill

a
g
e
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 A

re
a
. 
 S

it
e
 s

p
lit

 i
n
t

6
 p

lo
ts

 -
 3

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
/h

a
v
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
ro

v
a
l.
  
O

th
e
r 

3
 o

n
 m

a
rk

e
t 
b
u
t 
fr

o
z
e
n
 a

s
 L

C
C

/G
N

E
R

 a
re

 

lo
o
k
in

g
 i
n
to

 n
e
w

 r
a
il 

s
ta

ti
o
n
 &

 p
a
rk

in
g
. 
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 a

n
 i
s
s
u
e
 a

lo
n
g
 w

it
h
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
lo

c
a
l 
p
o
lit

ic
a
l 

o
b
je

c
ti
o
n
s
. 
 T

o
o
 f
a
r 

a
w

a
y
 f
ro

m
 m

a
in

 u
rb

a
n
 a

re
a
 f
o
r 

m
a
jo

r 
w

a
s
te

 f
a
c
ili

ty
 b

u
t 
c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 f
o
r 

o
th

e
r 

w
a
s
te

 f
a
c
ili

ty
. 

3
1

1
9
.0

V
IC

K
E

R
S

 D
E

F
E

N
C

E
 S

Y
S

T
E

M
S

 F
A

C
T

O
R

Y
 M

A
N

S
T

O
N

 L
A

N
E

P
a
rt

ly
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t

P
a
rt

ia
lly

 a
llo

c
a
te

d
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t.
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 f
o
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

t 
th

e
 w

e
s
te

rn
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e
. 
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 e

x
tr

e
m

e
ly

 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 a

n
d
 

w
ill

 r
e
m

a
in

 s
o
 u

n
ti
l 
th

e
 M

a
n
s
to

n
 L

in
k
 r

o
a
d
 i
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
 M

a
n
s
to

n
 L

in
k
 r

o
a
d
 i
s
 s

e
e
n
 a

s
 a

 

fa
c
ili

ta
ti
n
g
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 a
id

 e
x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 o

f 
T

h
o
rp

e
 P

a
rk

. 
N

o
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
 p

ro
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
s
it
e
 

c
o
m

in
g
 f
o
rw

a
rd

.

T
H

O
R

P
E

 A
R

C
H

 

3
2

3
.7

E
X

P
L
O

S
IV

E
S

 F
A

C
T

O
R

Y
 A

N
D

 S
T

O
R

E
S

 A
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 7
 A

N
D

 W
IG

H
IL

L
 L

A
N

E
, 
T

H
O

R
P

 A
R

C
H

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t

A
llo

c
a
te

d
 E

x
is

ti
n
g
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t.
 W

it
h
in

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 T

ra
d
in

g
 

E
s
ta

te
 (

T
h
o
rp

 A
rc

h
).

E
x
-m

u
n
it
io

n
s
 W

W
I 
fa

c
to

ry
. 
 W

o
u
ld

 f
a
il 

th
e
 p

ro
x
im

it
y
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
 a

s
 i
ts

 l
o
c
a
te

d
 s

o
m

e
 d

is
ta

n
c
e
 f
ro

m
 L

e
e
d
s
.

3
3

1
1
.8

V
A

C
A

N
T

 L
A

N
D

 A
T

 A
V

E
N

U
E

 E
 W

E
S

T
, 
T

H
O

R
P

 A
R

C
H

 T
R

A
D

IN
G

 E
S

T
A

T
E

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

E
3
B

:2
2
, 
E

3
B

:2
1

P
a
rt

ia
lly

 a
llo

c
a
te

d
 E

x
is

ti
n
g
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
la

n
d
. 
T

h
o
rp

 A
rc

h
. 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 p

ro
b
a
b
ly

 i
n
c
o
m

p
a
ti
b
le

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 p

ro
x
im

it
y
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
. 
 

3
4

2
0
.3

C
H

A
M

P
A

G
N

E
 W

H
IN

 W
A

S
T

E
 T

R
A

N
S

F
E

R
 S

T
A

T
IO

N
 

N
o
n
e

W
it
h
in

 d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 'R

u
ra

l 
L
a
n
d
' -

 p
o
s
s
ib

ly
 t
o
o
 f
a
r 

fr
o
m

 L
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 

a
t 
o
d
d
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 p

ro
x
im

it
y
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
. 

T
o
o
 f
a
r 

fr
o
m

 L
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 p

ro
x
im

it
y
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
.

3
5

1
8
.4

B
R

IT
A

N
N

IA
 W

O
O

D
K

IR
K

 Q
U

A
R

R
Y

 B
R

IT
A

N
N

IA
 R

O
A

D
, 
 W

E
S

T
 O

F
 A

6
0
2
9
 A

N
D

 N
O

R
T

H
 O

F
 M

6
2
, 

M
in

e
ra

ls
O

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
q
u
a
rr

y
 b

u
t 
s
u
p
lu

s
 l
a
n
d
 a

d
ja

c
e
n
t 
w

it
h
 a

n
 

u
n
im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 f
o
r 

a
 w

a
s
te

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
s
ta

ti
o
n
.

A
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 i
n
fi
lli

n
g
 o

f 
th

e
 q

u
a
rr

y
. 
 W

a
s
te

 R
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 G

ro
u
p
 h

a
s
 o

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 f
o
r 

W
T

S
.

3
6

5
.7

H
O

W
L
E

Y
 P

A
R

K
 I
N

D
U

S
T

R
IA

L
 E

S
T

A
T

E
, 
L
A

N
D

 W
E

S
T

 O
F

 H
O

W
L
E

Y
 P

A
R

K
 R

O
A

D
 E

A
S

T
, 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t:

E
3
C

:1
0

V
a
c
a
n
t 
in

d
u
s
tr

ia
l 
la

n
d
. 
P

a
rt

ly
 a

d
jo

in
e
d
 b

y
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

u
s
e
s
.

P
a
rt

 a
llo

c
a
te

d
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
s
it
e
. 
S

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
u
s
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 r

e
je

c
te

d
 o

n
 a

p
p
e
a
l 

d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
la

n
d
. 

3
7

4
.2

S
C

O
T

T
 L

A
N

E
 O

F
F

 A
6
5
0
 M

O
R

L
E

Y
E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t:
 E

4
:4

7
4
1
.2

A
llo

c
a
te

d
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
(E

4
.4

7
) 

b
u
t 
c
lo

s
e
 t
o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 U

D
P

 a
llo

c
a
te

d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 s

it
e
.

3
8

3
0
.0

0
N

E
P

S
H

A
W

 L
A

N
E

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t:
 E

4
:1

4
 

a
n
d
 L

o
c
a
l 
N

a
tu

re
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e

C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 u

n
d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 s

it
e
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 s

it
e
 h

a
v
in

g
 n

a
tu

re
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 v

a
lu

e
 (

b
u
t 
th

is
 c

a
n
 b

e
 e

x
c
lu

d
e
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
re

a
).

S
it
e
 i
n
 3

 d
if
fe

re
n
t 
o
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
. 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 m
o
to

rw
a
y
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 
B

1
, 
B

2
, 
B

8
 a

n
d
 h

o
te

l 

u
s
e
s
 d

is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 i
n
 p

a
s
t.
 G

o
o
d
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
. 
A

llo
c
a
te

d
 i
n
 U

D
P

 f
o
r 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
(E

4
.1

4
).

3
9

4
.8

0
G

E
L
D

E
R

D
 R

O
A

D
E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t:
 E

4
:3

6
4
3
.8

A
d
ja

c
e
n
t 
c
e
m

e
te

ry
. 
 2

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 w

a
s
te

 u
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
(E

4
.3

5
).

4
0

3
.5

0
S

IT
E

 O
F

 S
P

O
R

T
S

 G
R

O
U

N
D

 I
N

 B
E

T
W

E
E

N
 R

IN
G

 R
O

A
D

 (
S

E
A

C
R

O
F

T
) 

A
N

D
 C

O
A

L
 R

O
A

D
E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t:
 E

8
:6

A
llo

c
a
te

d
 E

x
is

ti
n
g
 S

u
p
p
ly

 o
f 
E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
L
a
n
d
 (

E
8
.6

).
 

S
u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 u

s
e
s
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 i
n
d
u
s
tr

ia
l.
 V

e
ry

 p
ro

m
in

e
n
t 
p
o
s
it
io

n
 o

n
 

R
in

g
 R

o
a
d
.

L
C

C
 a

im
 t
o
 p

re
s
e
rv

e
 s

it
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 f
o
r 

fu
ll 

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
u
s
e
s
. 
 I
n
te

re
s
t 
fr

o
m

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
r 

fo
r 

m
ix

e
d
 

u
s
e
, 
b
u
t 
n
o
 f
o
rm

a
l 
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 m

a
d
e
.

4
1

T
U

L
IP

 R
E

T
A

IL
 P

A
R

K
, 
B

E
Z

A
 R

O
A

D
U

n
a
llo

c
a
te

d
U

n
a
llo

c
a
te

d
. 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 
A

d
ja

c
e
n
t 
U

rb
a
n
 G

re
e
n
 C

o
rr

id
o
r 

a
n
d
 

G
re

e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
, 
a
ls

o
 w

it
h
in

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 P

ri
o
ri
ty

 A
re

a

R
e
ta

il 
p
a
rk

 o
n
 a

 p
ro

m
in

e
n
t 
s
it
e
 b

u
t 
h
a
v
in

g
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
y
 l
e
tt
in

g
 u

n
it
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 r

e
s
tr

ic
ti
v
e
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
. 
G

o
o
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
. 

4
2

1
4
.7

W
O

O
D

S
ID

E
 Q

U
A

R
R

IE
S

K
e
y
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

s
it
e
 E

4
:1

8
, 
E

8
:8

 

a
n
d
 u

rb
a
n
 g

re
e
n
 

c
o
rr

id
o
r

O
w

n
e
d
 b

y
 B

u
rf

o
rd

 G
ro

u
p
. 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
, 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 u

s
e
s
. 

Page 102



1
1
5
.8

L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
O

IN
IN

G
 A

N
D

 S
U

R
R

O
U

N
D

IN
G

 E
L
L
A

N
D

 R
O

A
D

 S
T

A
D

IU
M

 B
E

T
W

E
E

N
 N

O
R

T
H

 O
F

 A
6
4
3
 

2
6
.5

M
A

T
T

H
E

W
 M

U
R

R
A

Y
 H

IG
H

 S
C

H
O

O
L
, 
B

R
O

W
N

 L
A

N
E

3
1
0
.7

T
Y

E
R

S
A

L
 L

A
N

E
 E

M
P

L
O

Y
M

E
N

T
 A

L
L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

H
A

R
E

H
IL

L
S

/R
O

U
N

D
H

A
Y

4
7
.5

0
T

R
E

N
T

 R
O

A
D

 T
O

R
R

E
 R

O
A

D

5
3
.6

0
L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 A
N

D
 R

E
A

R
 O

F
 T

H
O

M
A

S
 G

R
A

N
B

Y
 C

O
L
L
E

G
E

, 
R

O
U

N
D

H
A

Y
 R

O
A

D

K
N

O
W

S
T

H
O

R
P

E
/C

R
O

S
S

 G
R

E
E

N

6
1
7
.0

F
O

R
M

E
R

 R
A

IL
W

A
Y

 S
ID

IN
G

S
 B

E
S

ID
E

 R
IV

E
R

 A
IR

E
 K

N
O

W
S

T
H

O
R

P
E

 L
A

N
E

7
1
0
.5

R
A

IL
W

A
Y

 B
A

L
L
A

S
T

 T
IP

, 
K

N
O

W
S

T
H

O
R

P
E

 L
A

N
E

, 
W

E
S

T
 O

F
 S

E
W

A
G

E
 W

O
R

K
S

8
1
5
.2

F
O

R
M

E
R

 C
O

P
P

E
R

F
IE

L
D

 C
O

L
L
E

G
E

 S
IT

E
  
 

9
4
.5

Y
A

R
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

1
0

4
.5

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 L

A
N

D
 O

F
F

 I
N

T
E

R
M

E
Z

Z
O

 D
R

IV
E

, 
N

O
R

T
H

 O
F

 P
O

N
T

E
F

R
A

C
T

 R
O

A
D

 A
N

D
 

S
O

U
T

H
 O

F
 H

A
IG

H
 P

A
R

K
 R

O
A

D

1
1

5
.0

L
A

N
D

 A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 S
K

E
L
T

O
N

 G
R

A
N

G
E

 B
R

ID
G

E

1
2

1
4
.4

S
IT

E
 O

F
 F

O
R

M
E

R
 I
M

I 
C

O
P

P
E

R
W

O
R

K
S

 A
N

D
 Y

O
R

K
S

H
IR

E
 G

L
A

S
S

 F
A

C
T

O
R

IE
S

, 
H

A
IG

H
 P

A
R

K
 

R
O

A
D

 A
N

D
 W

E
S

T
 O

F
 A

IR
E

 A
N

D
 C

A
L
D

E
R

 N
A

V
IG

A
T

IO
N

1
3

3
.5

F
O

R
M

E
R

 T
A

R
 D

IS
T

IL
L
E

R
S

 S
IT

E
, 
H

A
IG

H
 P

A
R

K
 R

O
A

D
, 
N

O
R

T
H

 O
F

 R
A

IL
W

A
Y

 A
N

D
 W

E
S

T
 O

F
 

A
IR

E
 A

N
D

 C
A

L
D

E
R

 N
A

V
IG

A
T

IO
N

1
4

4
.2

F
O

R
M

E
R

 O
F

F
IC

E
S

 A
N

D
 W

O
R

K
S

H
O

P
S

, 
H

A
IG

H
 P

A
R

K
 R

O
A

D

1
5

4
.6

L
A

N
D

 B
E

T
W

E
E

N
 N

O
R

T
H

 O
F

 P
O

N
T

E
F

R
A

C
T

 R
O

A
D

, 
S

O
U

T
H

 O
F

 R
A

IL
W

A
Y

 A
N

D
 W

E
S

T
 O

F
 M

1

1
6

3
.6

P
O

N
T

E
F

R
A

C
T

 R
O

A
D

, 
B

E
L
L
 H

IL
L
 (

N
O

R
T

H
) 

S
T

O
U

R
T

O
N

1
7

5
.8

IN
D

U
S

T
R

IA
L
 P

R
E

M
IS

E
S

 A
T

 P
O

N
T

E
F

R
A

C
T

 R
O

A
D

/Q
U

E
E

N
 S

T
R

E
E

T
. 

K
N

O
S

T
R

O
P

 S
E

W
A

G
E

 W
O

R
K

S

1
8

1
2
.0

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 L

A
N

D
 A

D
J
A

C
E

N
T

 K
N

O
S

T
R

O
P

 S
E

W
A

G
E

 W
O

R
K

S
, 
S

O
U

T
H

 O
F

 P
O

N
T

E
F

R
A

C
T

 

L
A

N
E

 (
W

IT
H

 P
O

S
S

IB
L
E

 E
X

T
E

N
S

IO
N

 T
O

 L
C

C
 O

W
N

E
D

 L
A

N
D

 W
IT

H
IN

 C
R

O
S

S
 G

R
E

E
N

 

IN
D

U
S

T
R

IA
L
 A

R
E

A
)

V
A

C
A

N
T

 L
A

N
D

 A
R

E
A

S
 W

IT
H

IN
 K

N
O

S
T

R
O

P
 S

E
W

A
G

E
 W

A
T

E
R

 T
R

E
A

T
M

E
N

T
 S

IT
E

 

(I
N

C
L
U

D
IN

G
 P

O
S

S
IB

L
E

 E
X

T
E

N
S

IO
N

 A
R

E
A

 A
T

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 L
C

C
 R

E
F

U
S

E
 D

E
P

O
T

)

2
0

1
0
8
.6

h
a

A
R

E
A

 O
F

 R
E

M
E

D
E

D
IA

T
IO

N
 S

C
H

E
M

E
S

 A
T

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 S
E

W
A

G
E

 B
E

D
S

 A
N

D
 L

A
G

O
O

N
S

 A
N

D
 

O
T

H
E

R
 S

U
R

P
L
U

S
 L

A
N

D
 A

T
 P

O
N

T
E

F
R

A
C

T
 L

A
N

E
 (

E
A

S
T

 L
E

E
D

S
 R

A
D

IA
L
) 

A
N

D
 

K
N

O
W

S
T

H
O

R
P

E
 L

A
N

E

S
K

E
L

T
O

N
 G

R
A

N
G

E
/P

O
N

T
E

F
R

A
C

T
 L

A
N

E

2
1

2
3
.2

F
O

R
M

E
R

 S
K

E
L
T

O
N

 G
R

A
N

G
E

 P
O

W
E

R
 S

T
A

T
IO

N
, 
S

K
E

L
T

O
N

 G
R

A
N

G
E

 R
O

A
D

2
2

5
.6

L
A

N
D

 S
O

U
T

H
 O

F
 P

O
N

T
E

F
R

A
C

T
 L

A
N

E
 A

N
D

 N
O

R
T

H
 O

F
 S

E
W

A
G

E
 W

O
R

K
S

A
ll
o

c
a
te

d
 f

o
r 

h
ig

h
e
r 

v
a
lu

e
 u

s
e
s
.

O
w

n
e
d

 b
y
 L

C
C

.
P

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

 

la
n

d
 a

n
d

 b
u

il
d

in
g

s

K
e
y
 s

it
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 r

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 p

la
n

s
 f

o
r 

H
o

lb
e
c
k
.

L
a
n

d
 i
s
 a

v
a
il
a
b

le
 f

o
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t.
G

re
e
n

fi
e
ld

 s
it

e
 b

u
t 

a
ll
o

c
a
te

d
 f

o
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

S
u

rr
o

u
n

d
e
d

 b
y
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 
u

s
e
s
. 
M

it
ig

a
ti

o
n

 v
e
ry

 

d
if

fi
c
u

lt
.

P
a
rt

 o
f 

m
ix

e
d

 u
s
e
 s

it
e
 i
n

 E
a
s
e
l 
A

A
P

 p
re

fe
rr

e
d

 o
p

ti
o

n
s
. 
U

n
li
k
e
ly

 t
o

 

b
e
 a

v
a
il
a
b

le
 f

o
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

in
 t

im
e
fr

a
m

e
s
. 

S
p

o
rt

s
 g

ro
u

n
d

 h
a
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 t
o

 b
e
 u

p
g

ra
d

e
d

. 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 f
o

r 
h

ig
h

e
r 

v
a
lu

e
 l
a
n

d
 u

s
e
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 

re
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 c

o
rr

id
o

r.

P
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

 

la
n

d
 a

n
d

 b
u

il
d

in
g

s

U
s
e
d

 b
y
 T

a
rm

a
c
 o

n
 a

 l
o

n
g

 l
e
a
s
e
.

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 f
o

r 
h

ig
h

e
r 

v
a
lu

e
 l
a
n

d
 u

s
e
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 h

o
u

s
in

g

H
o

u
s
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
is

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

. 

S
it

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

.

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 f
o

r 
in

la
n

d
 d

o
c
k
.

D
e
v
e
lo

p
e
r 

b
o

u
g

h
t 

la
n

d
 i
n

 a
n

ti
c
ip

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

h
ig

h
e
r 

v
a
lu

e
s
. 
N

o
t 

li
k
e
ly

 

to
 s

e
ll
 l
a
n

d
 w

it
h

in
 p

ro
je

c
t 

ti
m

e
s
c
a
le

s
. 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
e
r 

b
o

u
g

h
t 

la
n

d
 i
n

 a
n

ti
c
ip

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

h
ig

h
e
r 

v
a
lu

e
s
. 
N

o
t 

li
k
e
ly

 

to
 s

e
ll
 l
a
n

d
 w

it
h

in
 p

ro
je

c
t 

ti
m

e
s
c
a
le

s
. 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 f
o

r 
h

ig
h

e
r 

v
a
lu

e
 l
a
n

d
 u

s
e
s
. 
U

n
li
k
e
ly

 t
o

 s
e
ll
 w

it
h

in
 

ti
m

e
s
c
a
le

s
.

O
w

n
e
d

 b
y
 L

C
C

.
P

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

 

la
n

d
 a

n
d

 b
u

il
d

in
g

s

M
ix

e
d

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 G

e
n

e
ra

l 
In

d
u

s
tr

y
/W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
.

W
it

h
in

 m
a
in

 

u
rb

a
n

 a
re

a

O
w

n
e
d

 b
y
 L

C
C

.
G

re
e
n

fi
e
ld

 s
it

e
 b

u
t 

a
ll
o

c
a
te

d
 f

o
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
in

 c
u

rr
e
n

t 

U
D

P
.

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 g
re

e
n

 s
p

a
c
e
 i
n

 A
V

L
A

A
P

 b
u

t 
n

o
 o

th
e
r 

s
e
n

s
it

iv
e
 

s
u

rr
o

u
n

d
in

g
 l
a
n

d
 u

s
e
s
.

W
it

h
in

 m
a
in

 

u
rb

a
n

 a
re

a

A
g

e
n

t 
a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

e
d

. 
S

it
e
 i
s
 n

o
t 

a
v
a
il
a
b

le
. 

Y
o

rk
s
h

ir
e
 W

a
te

r 
h

a
s
 i
n

d
ic

a
te

d
 a

 p
o

te
n

ti
a
l 
in

te
re

s
t 

in
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 

m
a
jo

r 
w

a
s
te

 u
s
e
.

P
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

 

la
n

d
 a

n
d

 b
u

il
d

in
g

s
 

C
H

E
C

K
 I
F

 T
H

IS
 I
S

 T
H

E
 

C
A

S
E

 W
IT

H
 R

A

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
In

d
u

s
tr

y
/W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
 i
n

 A
V

L
A

A
P

W
it

h
in

 m
a
in

 

u
rb

a
n

 a
re

a

Y
o

rk
s
h

ir
e
 W

a
te

r 
h

a
s
 i
n

d
ic

a
te

d
 a

 p
o

te
n

ti
a
l 
in

te
re

s
t 

in
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 

m
a
jo

r 
w

a
s
te

 u
s
e
.

P
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

 

la
n

d
 a

n
d

 b
u

il
d

in
g

s

S
e
w

a
g

e
 w

o
rk

s
 a

n
d

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
a
re

a
s
 f

o
ll
o

w
in

g
 r

e
m

e
d

ia
ti

o
n

 

a
n

d
 r

e
c
o

n
fi

g
u

ra
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 r

e
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 s

it
e
. 

W
it

h
in

 m
a
in

 

u
rb

a
n

 a
re

a

C
u

rr
e
n

tl
y
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 3

 y
e
a
r 

c
le

a
ra

n
c
e
 r

e
m

e
d

ia
ti

o
n

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

c
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 r

e
m

e
d

ia
ti

o
n

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 w

h
o

le
 

s
it

e
. 
T

h
is

 m
a
k
e
s
 i
t 

v
e
ry

 u
n

li
k
e
ly

 t
h

a
t 

th
is

 c
o

u
ld

 b
e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e
d

 w
it

h
in

 

th
e
 p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
ti

m
e
s
c
a
le

s
. 

P
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

 

la
n

d
 a

n
d

 b
u

il
d

in
g

s

S
o

m
e
 l
a
n

d
 w

il
l 
b

e
 r

e
ta

in
e
d

 a
s
 i
n

d
u

s
tr

ia
l 
a
re

a
s
. 

W
it

h
in

 m
a
in

 

u
rb

a
n

 a
re

a

R
e
m

e
d

ia
ti

o
n

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

m
e
a
n

s
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
 i
s
 

u
n

li
k
e
ly

 t
o

 b
e
 a

v
a
il
a
b

le
 

w
it

h
in

 p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 

ti
m

e
s
c
a
le

s
.

O
w

n
e
d

 b
y
 R

w
e
 a

n
d

 i
n

d
ic

a
te

d
 i
n

te
re

s
t 

in
 w

a
s
te

 p
ro

p
o

s
a
l

P
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

 

la
n

d
 a

n
d

 b
u

il
d

in
g

s

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 i
n

d
u

s
tr

ia
l 
a
re

a
. 
W

e
s
te

rn
 a

re
a
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 f
o

r 
g

e
n

e
ra

l 

in
d

u
s
tr

y
 i
n

 A
V

L
A

A
P

 b
u

t 
p

a
rt

s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 e

a
s
t 

p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 f
o

r 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 a

n
d

 n
e
w

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 f

a
c
il
it

ie
s
. 

W
it

h
in

 m
a
in

 

u
rb

a
n

 a
re

a

O
w

n
e
d

 b
y
 A

m
e
c
. 
 

G
re

e
n

fi
e
ld

 s
it

e
 b

u
t 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 g
e
n

e
ra

l 
in

d
u

s
tr

y
/w

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
 i
n

 A
V

L
A

A
P

W
it

h
in

 m
a
in

 
S

u
it

a
b

le
 s

it
e
 b

u
t 

Page 103



L
A

N
D

 N
O

R
T

H
 O

F
 P

O
N

T
E

F
R

A
C

T
 L

A
N

E

2
5

9
.5

F
O

R
M

E
R

 W
H

O
L
E

S
A

L
E

 M
A

R
K

E
T

S
, 
L
A

N
D

 B
E

T
W

E
E

N
 N

E
W

M
A

R
K

E
T

 A
P

P
R

O
A

C
H

 A
N

D
 

N
E

W
M

A
R

K
E

T
 L

A
N

E

2
6

2
5
.2

T
H

O
R

N
E

S
 F

A
R

M

2
7

4
5
.5

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 L

A
N

D
 A

T
 S

K
E

L
T

O
N

 M
O

O
R

 F
A

R
M

2
8

2
3
.8

N
O

R
T

H
 N

E
W

H
O

L
D

 L
A

N
D

 A
L
L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
S

2
9

8
.2

0
N

E
W

H
O

L
D

 I
N

D
U

S
T

R
IA

L
 E

S
T

A
T

E

3
0

1
0
.6

M
IC

K
L
E

F
IE

L
D

 B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 P

A
R

K
 A

L
L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

3
1

1
9
.0

V
IC

K
E

R
S

 D
E

F
E

N
C

E
 S

Y
S

T
E

M
S

 F
A

C
T

O
R

Y
 M

A
N

S
T

O
N

 L
A

N
E

T
H

O
R

P
E

 A
R

C
H

 

3
2

3
.7

E
X

P
L
O

S
IV

E
S

 F
A

C
T

O
R

Y
 A

N
D

 S
T

O
R

E
S

 A
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 7
 A

N
D

 W
IG

H
IL

L
 L

A
N

E
, 
T

H
O

R
P

 A
R

C
H

3
3

1
1
.8

V
A

C
A

N
T

 L
A

N
D

 A
T

 A
V

E
N

U
E

 E
 W

E
S

T
, 
T

H
O

R
P

 A
R

C
H

 T
R

A
D

IN
G

 E
S

T
A

T
E

3
4

2
0
.3

C
H

A
M

P
A

G
N

E
 W

H
IN

 W
A

S
T

E
 T

R
A

N
S

F
E

R
 S

T
A

T
IO

N
 

3
5

1
8
.4

B
R

IT
A

N
N

IA
 W

O
O

D
K

IR
K

 Q
U

A
R

R
Y

 B
R

IT
A

N
N

IA
 R

O
A

D
, 
 W

E
S

T
 O

F
 A

6
0
2
9
 A

N
D

 N
O

R
T

H
 O

F
 M

6
2
, 

3
6

5
.7

H
O

W
L
E

Y
 P

A
R

K
 I
N

D
U

S
T

R
IA

L
 E

S
T

A
T

E
, 
L
A

N
D

 W
E

S
T

 O
F

 H
O

W
L
E

Y
 P

A
R

K
 R

O
A

D
 E

A
S

T
, 

3
7

4
.2

S
C

O
T

T
 L

A
N

E
 O

F
F

 A
6
5
0
 M

O
R

L
E

Y

3
8

3
0
.0

0
N

E
P

S
H

A
W

 L
A

N
E

3
9

4
.8

0
G

E
L
D

E
R

D
 R

O
A

D

4
0

3
.5

0
S

IT
E

 O
F

 S
P

O
R

T
S

 G
R

O
U

N
D

 I
N

 B
E

T
W

E
E

N
 R

IN
G

 R
O

A
D

 (
S

E
A

C
R

O
F

T
) 

A
N

D
 C

O
A

L
 R

O
A

D

4
1

T
U

L
IP

 R
E

T
A

IL
 P

A
R

K
, 
B

E
Z

A
 R

O
A

D

4
2

1
4
.7

W
O

O
D

S
ID

E
 Q

U
A

R
R

IE
S

v
a
lu

e
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
u

s
e
s
 a

n
d

 p
a
rk

 a
n

d
 r

id
e
 s

it
e
. 

O
w

n
e
d

 b
y
 L

C
C

P
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

 

la
n

d
 a

n
d

 b
u

il
d

in
g

s

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
in

d
u

s
tr

y
/w

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
 i
n

 A
V

L
A

A
P

. 
A

d
jo

in
in

g
 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 
a
re

a
 a

ll
o

c
a
te

d
 f

o
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
in

 E
A

S
E

L

W
it

h
in

 m
a
in

 

u
rb

a
n

 a
re

a

O
w

n
e
d

 b
y
 L

C
C

P
D

L
 l
a
n

d
 a

n
d

 b
u

il
d

in
g

s
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
In

d
u

s
tr

y
/W

a
re

h
o

u
s
in

g
 i
n

 A
V

L
A

A
P

 b
u

t 
a
re

a
s
 

re
m

a
in

in
g

 f
o

r 
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 t

o
o

 c
lo

s
e
 t

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
.

P
ri

m
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
la

n
d

 i
n

 p
ri

v
a
te

 o
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n

d
 u

n
li
k
e
ly

 t
o

 b
e
 

a
b

le
 t

o
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e
. 

O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 p
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 m
e
a
n

 u
n

c
e
rt

a
in

ty
 i
n

 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
d

e
v
e
li
ri

b
il
it

y

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e
d

L
a
n

d
 i
s
 a

v
a
il
a
b

le
 f

o
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t.
A

m
b

e
r-

G
re

e
n

fi
e
ld

 s
it

e
 

b
u

t 
a
ll
o

c
a
te

d
 f

o
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t.

S
it

e
 o

p
p

o
s
it

e
 t

h
e
 r

a
il
w

a
y
 s

o
 t

h
e
re

 a
re

 f
e
w

 a
lt

e
rn

a
ti

v
e
 

p
o

te
n

ti
a
l 
s
it

e
s
 f

o
r 

ra
il
w

a
y
 p

a
rk

 a
n

d
 r

id
e
. 

O
u

ts
id

e
 u

rb
a
n

 

a
re

a

P
la

n
n

e
d

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 g
e
t 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 

p
e
rm

is
s
io

n
.

A
v
a
il
a
b

le
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
s
it

e
.

P
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

 

la
n

d
 a

n
d

 b
u

il
d

in
g

s

W
it

h
in

 a
re

a
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
e
d

 b
y
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 i
n

d
u

s
tr

ia
l 
u

s
e
s
 b

u
t 

w
it

h
in

 r
u

ra
l 
s
e
tt

in
g

. 

O
u

ts
id

e
 u

rb
a
n

 

a
re

a
.

P
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

 

la
n

d
 a

n
d

 b
u

il
d

in
g

s

W
it

h
in

 a
re

a
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
e
d

 b
y
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 i
n

d
u

s
tr

ia
l 
u

s
e
s
 b

u
t 

w
it

h
in

 r
u

ra
l 
s
e
tt

in
g

. 

O
u

ts
id

e
 u

rb
a
n

 

a
re

a
.

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 w

a
s
te

 s
it

e
 o

w
n

e
d

 b
y
 L

C
C

. 
P

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

 

la
n

d
 a

n
d

 b
u

il
d

in
g

s

W
it

h
in

 a
re

a
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
e
d

 b
y
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 i
n

d
u

s
tr

ia
l 
u

s
e
s
 b

u
t 

w
it

h
in

 r
u

ra
l 
s
e
tt

in
g

.

O
u

ts
id

e
 u

rb
a
n

 

a
re

a

Q
u

a
rr

y
 i
n

 u
s
e
 a

n
d

 o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 c
o

n
s
e
n

t 
fo

r 
a
 W

T
S

. 
C

o
u

ld
 b

e
 w

o
rt

h

p
u

rs
u

in
g

.

P
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

 

la
n

d
 a

n
d

 b
u

il
d

in
g

s

W
it

h
in

 a
n

 a
re

a
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
e
d

 b
y
 m

in
e
ra

ls
, 
w

a
s
te

 a
n

d
 

in
d

u
s
ti

a
l 
a
re

a
s
 b

u
t 

a
d

jo
in

s
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 
a
re

a
s
 a

n
d

 U
D

P
 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 l
a
n

d
 a

ll
o

c
a
ti

o
n

U
rb

a
n

 f
ri

n
g

e
Is

 w
o

rt
h

 i
n

v
e
s
ti

g
a
ti

n
g

 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

if
 o

th
e
r 

b
e
tt

e
r 

lo
c
a
te

d
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
ls

 w
e
re

 

n
o

t 
a
v
a
il
a
b

l

A
v
a
il
a
b

le
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
s
it

e
.

P
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

 

la
n

d
 a

n
d

 b
u

il
d

in
g

s

R
e
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 
p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 a

d
jo

in
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 s

it
e
 b

o
u

n
d

a
ry

 w
h

ic
h

 

m
a
k
e
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
 m

o
re

 d
if

fi
c
u

lt
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d

 m
it

ig
a
te

 a
g

a
in

s
t.

 

U
rb

a
n

 f
ri

n
g

e
C

lo
s
e
 t

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 
u

s
e
s

a
n

d
 a

t 
u

rb
a
n

 f
ri

n
g

e

A
v
a
il
a
b

le
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
s
it

e
.

G
re

e
n

fi
e
ld

 s
it

e
 b

u
t 

a
ll
o

c
a
te

d
 f

o
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

C
lo

s
e
 t

o
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 
a
re

a
 a

n
d

 a
ll
o

c
a
te

d
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 s

it
e
 

to
 t

h
e
 e

a
s
t.

U
rb

a
n

 f
ri

n
g

e
C

lo
s
e
 t

o
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 
u

s
e
s
 a

n
d

 a
t 

u
rb

a
n

 f
ri

n

A
v
a
il
a
b

le
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
s
it

e
.

G
re

e
n

fi
e
ld

 s
it

e
 b

u
t 

a
ll
o

c
a
te

d
 f

o
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

A
d

a
c
e
n

t 
to

 m
o

to
rw

a
y
 a

n
d

 c
o

u
ld

 b
e
 s

it
e
d

 a
w

a
y
 f

ro
m

 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 
u

s
e
s

U
rb

a
n

 f
ri

n
g

e

A
v
a
il
a
b

le
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
s
it

e
.

G
re

e
n

fi
e
ld

 s
it

e
 b

u
t 

a
ll
o

c
a
te

d
 f

o
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

C
lo

s
e
 t

o
 s

e
n

is
ti

v
e
 u

s
e
s
-c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 p

e
rc

ie
v
e
d

 t
o

 b
e
 a

n
 

in
s
e
n

s
it

iv
e
 l
o

c
a
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
th

is
 t

y
p

e
 o

f 
u

s
e
. 

O
w

n
e
d

 b
y
 L

C
C

?
G

re
e
n

fi
e
ld

 s
it

e
 b

u
t 

a
ll
o

c
a
te

d
 f

o
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

S
u

rr
o

u
n

d
e
d

 b
y
 c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
in

d
u

s
tr

ia
l 
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
b

u
t 

p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 f
o

r 
m

ix
e
d

 u
s
e
s
. 

W
it

h
in

 m
a
in

 

u
rb

a
n

 a
re

a

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 f
o

r 
m

ix
e
d

 

u
s
e
s

O
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

 u
n

k
n

o
w

n
 b

u
t 

p
re

s
e
n

t 
v
a
lu

e
 a

s
 a

 r
e
ta

il
 u

s
e
 m

a
k
in

g
 

a
c
q

u
is

ti
o

n
 d

if
fi

c
u

lt
. 

P
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

 

la
n

d
 a

n
d

 b
u

il
d

in
g

s

S
u

rr
o

u
n

d
e
d

 b
y
 i
n

d
u

s
tr

ia
l 
u

s
e
s
. 

W
it

h
in

 m
a
in

 

u
rb

a
n

 a
re

a

R
e
ta

il
 v

a
lu

e
s
 m

a
k
e
 s

it
e
 

d
if

fi
c
u

lt
 t

o
 a

c
q

u
ir

L
a
n

d
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 o

th
e
r 

a
lt

e
rn

a
ti

v
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
ls

.

Page 104



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 

S
ta

g
e

 3
 -

 S
c

o
ri

n
g

 C
ri

te
ri

a
 G

u
id

a
n

c
e

 
0

1
2

3

D
e

li
v

e
ra

b
il

it
y
 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fo

r 
A

c
q

u
is

it
io

n
. 
 

L
a

n
d

 k
n

o
w

n
 n

o
t 

to
 b

e
 f

o
r 

s
a

le
. 

R
e

je
c
t 
o

u
tr

ig
h

t.
  

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fo

r 
a

c
q

u
is

it
io

n
 n

o
t 

in
v
e

s
ti
g

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 p
ri

v
a

te
 

la
n

d
o

w
n

e
rs

.

P
ri

v
a

te
 l
a

n
d

o
w

n
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
te

d
 a

 
w

ill
in

g
n

e
s
s
 t
o

 h
o

ld
 n

e
g

o
ti
a

ti
o

n
s
 o

v
e

r 
p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
w

a
s
te

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

 

O
w

n
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

 

In
d

ic
a

ti
v
e

 c
o
s
ts

. 
P

re
m

iu
m

 o
r 

p
re

s
ti
g

e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

s
it
e

. 
R

e
je

c
t 

o
u

tr
ig

h
t.

P
re

s
e

n
t 

s
it
e

 v
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
re

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
u
s
e

s
 o

r 
h

ig
h

 
v
a

lu
e

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
u

s
e

s
 

(B
1

).

P
re

s
e

n
t 

s
it
e

 v
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
lo

w
e

r 
v
a

lu
e

 
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
(B

2
 +

 B
8

).
 

O
w

n
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

  

A
c

c
e

s
s

ib
il

it
y
 

In
d

ic
a

ti
v
e

 p
ro

x
im

it
y
 

to
 w

a
s
te

 s
o
u

rc
e

s
 

(s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 l
o
c
a

ti
o

n
).

 

V
e

ry
 p

o
o

r 
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 c
o

s
ts

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 
b

e
 h

ig
h

 (
i.
e

. 
s
it
e

s
 w

e
ll 

o
u

ts
id

e
 t

h
e

 U
rb

a
n

 A
re

a
 o

f 
L

e
e

d
s
).

R
e

a
s
o

n
a

b
ly

 a
c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 s

it
e

 b
u

t 
n

o
t 

id
e

a
l 
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 i
n
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
w

a
s
te

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
(i

.e
. 

s
it
e

s
 a

t 
th

e
 u

rb
a

n
 f

ri
n

g
e
 o

u
ts

id
e

 t
h

e
 

c
o

re
 u

rb
a

n
 a

re
a

).
 

S
it
e

s
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 u

rb
a

n
 c

o
re

 
a

n
d

 c
e

n
tr

a
lly

 l
o

c
a

te
d

 t
o

 
s
e

rv
e

 a
ll 

p
a

rt
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

it
y
.

H
ig

h
w

a
y
 A

c
c
e

s
s
. 

 
O

v
e

rr
id

in
g

 c
o

n
s
tr

a
in

t 
to

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

 R
e

je
c
t 

o
u

tr
ig

h
t.

M
a

jo
r 

h
ig

h
w

a
y
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 o

r 
c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 c

o
n
s
tr

a
in

t 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 

v
e

ry
 d

if
fi
c
u

lt
 t

o
 o

v
e

rc
o

m
e

 
a

n
d

 l
im

it
s
 t

h
e

 s
it
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l.
 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 h
ig

h
w

a
y
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 o

r 
c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 b

u
t 

p
o

s
s
ib

le
 

s
o

lu
ti
o

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g

a
te

d
 

a
n

d
 a

re
 f

e
a

s
ib

le
.

L
im

it
e

d
 c

o
n
s
tr

a
in

t 
a

s
 t

h
e

re
 

a
re

 n
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 o

r 
c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
. 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fo

r 
a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 m
o

d
e

s
 o

f 
tr

a
n

s
p

o
rt

.

N
o

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fo

r 
a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 
tr

a
n

s
p

o
rt

 a
c
c
e

s
s
. 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fo

r 
e

it
h

e
r 

ra
il 

o
r 

c
a

n
a

l 
a

c
c
e

s
s
. 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fo

r 
b

o
th

 r
a

il 
a

n
d

 
c
a

n
a

l 
a

c
c
e

s
s
.

C
o

m
p

a
ti

b
il

it
y
 w

it
h

 E
x

is
ti

n
g

 L
a

n
d

 U
s

e
s

 

V
is

u
a

l 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 l
a

n
d
 u

s
e

s
. 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

lly
 a

 m
a

jo
r 

v
is

u
a

l 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 s

e
n

s
it
iv

it
y
 o

f 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 s

u
rr

o
u

n
d

in
g

 l
a

n
d

 
u

s
e

s
.

M
in

o
r 

v
is

u
a

l 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 

s
e

n
s
it
iv

it
y
 o

f 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 s

u
rr

o
u

n
d

in
g

 
la

n
d

 u
s
e

s
.

It
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 p
o

s
s
ib

le
 t
o

 f
u

lly
 

in
te

g
ra

te
 t

h
e
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 w

it
h

 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 l
a

n
d
 u

s
e

s
. 

 

A
m

e
n

it
y
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 s

u
rr

o
u

n
d

in
g

 
la

n
d

 u
s
e

s
. 

P
h

y
s
ic

a
lly

 a
d

jo
in

s
 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 o

r 
o

th
e

r 
s
e

n
s
it
iv

e
 l
a

n
d

 u
s
e

s
. 

R
e

je
c
t 

o
u

tr
ig

h
t.

 

C
lo

s
e

 t
o

 a
n

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
a
re

a
 o

r 
o

th
e

r 
s
e

n
s
it
iv

e
 u

s
e

s
 a

n
d

 l
im

it
e

d
 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
to

 c
re

a
te

 b
u

ff
e
r 

z
o

n
e

s
/s

c
re

e
n

in
g

. 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
to

 c
re

a
te

 a
 b

u
ff
e

r 
z
o

n
e

 o
r 

s
c
re

e
n

 f
ro

m
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 o

r 
o

th
e

r 
s
e

n
s
it
iv

e
 l
a

n
d

 u
s
e

s
. 

 

W
it
h

in
 a

n
 a

re
a

 d
o

m
in

a
te

d
 b

y
 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 i
n

d
u
s
tr

ia
l 
u

s
e
s
. 
 

H
is

to
ri

c
e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t.

 
W

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 a
 m

a
jo

r 
a

d
v
e

rs
e

 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 a
 l
is

te
d

 b
u

ild
in

g
 o

r 
it
s
 s

e
tt
in

g
 o

r 
o

th
e

r 
c
u

lt
u

ra
l 

W
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 a
 m

in
o

r 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 a
 

lis
te

d
 b

u
ild

in
g

 o
n

 a
 l
is

te
d
 b

u
ild

in
g

 o
r 

it
s
 s

e
tt
in

g
 o

r 
o

th
e

r 
c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
h

e
ri

ta
g

e
 

W
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 n
o

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 a
 

lis
te

d
 b

u
ild

in
g

 o
n

 a
 l
is

te
d
 

b
u

ild
in

g
 o

r 
it
s
 s

e
tt

in
g

 o
r 

o
th

e
r 

Page 105



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 

 
0

 
1

 
2

 
3

h
e

ri
ta

g
e

 a
s
s
e

t.
a

s
s
e

t 
o

r 
im

p
a

c
ts

 w
h

ic
h

 c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 
m

it
ig

a
te

d
.

c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
h

e
ri

ta
g

e
 a

s
s
e

t 
o

r 
im

p
a

c
ts

 c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 m
it
ig

a
te

d
. 

N
a

tu
ra

l 
e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t.

W
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 a
 m

a
jo

r 
a

d
v
e

rs
e

 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 p
ro

te
c
te

d
 s

p
e
c
ie

s
 

o
r 

o
th

e
r 

s
e

n
s
it
iv

e
 a

s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t.

 

W
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 a
 m

in
o

r 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 
p

ro
te

c
te

d
 s

p
e

c
ie

s
 o

r 
o

th
e

r 
s
e

n
s
it
iv

e
 

a
s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

o
r 

im
p

a
c
ts

 w
h

ic
h

 c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 m
it
ig

a
te

d
. 

 

W
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 n
o

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 
p

ro
te

c
te

d
 s

p
e

c
ie

s
 o

r 
o

th
e

r 
s
e

n
s
it
iv

e
 a

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 
e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t.

 

E
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 I
m

p
a

c
t.

 
It

 c
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 a
 m

a
jo

r 
e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 v
ia

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
. 

T
h

e
re

 m
a

y
 b

e
 a

 p
e

rc
e

iv
e

d
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 w

h
ic

h
 

c
o

u
ld

 a
ff

e
c
t 
c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 l
e

a
d

 t
o

 
o

b
je

c
ti
o

n
.

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 u

n
lik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e

 a
c
tu

a
l 

o
r 

p
e

rc
e

iv
e

d
 a

d
v
e

rs
e

 
im

p
a

c
ts

 o
n

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
.

C
o

m
p

a
ti

b
il

it
y
 w

it
h

 P
la

n
n

e
d

 L
a

n
d

 U
s

e
s

V
is

u
a

l 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 o

r 
p
la

n
n

e
d

 
la

n
d

 u
s
e

s
. 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

lly
 a

 m
a

jo
r 

v
is

u
a

l 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 s

e
n

s
it
iv

it
y
 o

f 
p

la
n

n
e

d
 s

u
rr

o
u

n
d

in
g

 l
a

n
d

 
u

s
e

s
.

M
in

o
r 

v
is

u
a

l 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 

s
e

n
s
it
iv

it
y
 o

f 
p

la
n

n
e

d
 s

u
rr

o
u

n
d

in
g

 
la

n
d

 u
s
e

s
.

It
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 p
o

s
s
ib

le
 t
o

 f
u

lly
 

in
te

g
ra

te
 t

h
e
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 w

it
h

 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 o

r 
p
la

n
n

e
d

 
s
u

rr
o

u
n

d
in

g
 l
a

n
d

 u
s
e

s
. 

 

A
m

e
n

it
y
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 
p

la
n

n
e

d
 s

u
rr

o
u

n
d

in
g

 
la

n
d

 u
s
e

s
. 

C
lo

s
e

 t
o

 a
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
a
re

a
 o

r 
o

th
e

r 
s
e

n
s
it
iv

e
 u

s
e

s
 a

n
d

 l
im

it
e

d
 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
to

 c
re

a
te

 b
u

ff
e
r 

z
o

n
e

s
/s

c
re

e
n

in
g

. 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
to

 c
re

a
te

 a
 b

u
ff
e

r 
z
o

n
e

 o
r 

s
c
re

e
n

 f
ro

m
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
r 

o
th

e
r 

s
e
n

s
it
iv

e
 

u
s
e

s
.

W
it
h

in
 a

n
 a

re
a

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 
re

m
a

in
 d

o
m

in
a

te
d

 b
y
 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 i
n

d
u
s
tr

ia
l 
u

s
e
s
. 

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
.

It
 c

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 a
 m

a
jo

r 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 v

ia
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 
re

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

je
c
ts

. 

T
h

e
re

 m
a

y
 b

e
 a

 p
e

rc
e

iv
e

d
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 p
la

n
n

e
d

 r
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 w
h

ic
h

 m
ig

h
t 

a
ff

e
c
t 

c
o

n
fi
d
e

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 l
e
a

d
 t

o
 

o
b

je
c
ti
o

n
.

T
h

e
re

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 n
o

 a
c
tu

a
l 
o

r 
p

e
rc

e
iv

e
d

 a
d

v
e

rs
e

 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 
o

n
 r

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

r 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
. 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
ta

tu
s

 

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 
S

ta
tu

s
.

O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 o
u

tl
in

e
 o

r 
fu

ll 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 f

o
r 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
o
r 

o
th

e
r 

h
ig

h
 

v
a

lu
e

 o
r 

p
re

s
ti
g

e
 u

s
e
s
. 

O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 o
u

tl
in

e
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 f

o
r 

n
o

n
 o

ff
ic

e
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
o

r 
o

th
e

r 
lo

w
e

r 
v
a

lu
e

 u
s
e

s
. 

N
o

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
. 

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 o

r 
p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 

la
n

d
 u

s
e

 a
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
s
. 

C
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 f
o

r 
g

re
e

n
 s

p
a

c
e
 e

tc
. 

R
e

je
c
t 

o
u

tr
ig

h
t.

C
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 f
o

r
p

re
s
ti
g

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 u

s
e

s
 

w
h

ic
h

 i
t 

is
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 t

o
 

m
a

in
ta

in
.

C
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 f
o

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
u

s
e

s
 b

u
t 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
re

a
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l,
 o

th
e

r 
h

ig
h

e
r 

v
a

lu
e

 u
s
e

s
 

o
r 

g
re

e
n

 u
s
e

s
. 

C
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 f
o

r 
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
u

s
e

s
 a

n
d

 
p

la
n

n
e

d
 t

o
 r

e
ta

in
 t

h
is

 
a

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
. 
 

Page 106



 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny Support and Member Development 
 
Scrutiny Board (Environment and Neighbourhoods) 
 
Date: 19 December  2007 
 
Subject: Work Programme 
 

        
 
 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 At the meeting held on 14 June 2007, the Board identified a series of priority issues/ 

areas for inclusion in the Board’s work programme for 2007/08.  In the main, the 
issues identified have been addressed, with a number of further/ follow-up reports 
requested.  Attached to this report (Appendix 1) is a copy of the Board’s current Work 
Programme. 

 
1.2 However, the following areas are yet to be considered by the Board and are included 

as unscheduled items: 
 

• Environmental Management around Council Estates; 

• Anti Social Behaviour; and, 

• Britain’s Cleanest City (together with revisiting the Action Plan) 
 
1.3 Appendix 2 sets out the Forward Plan of Key Decisions for 1 December 2007 to 31 

March 2008. 
 
2.0 Recommendation 
 
2.1 The Board is requested to: 

 
(i) Receive and make any changes to the attached Work Programme following any 

discussions / decisions arising from the meeting; 
 
(ii) Determine any additional items for the Work Programme. 
 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Ethnic minorities 
  
Women 
 
Disabled people  
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  All 

 

 

 

 

Originator: S Courtney  
Tel: (0113) 247 4707 

 

Agenda Item 9

Page 107



(iii) Consider the details presented in this report and it’s appendices, in particular the 
priority and scope of the unscheduled items, and agree an updated work 
programme. 

 
 

Page 108



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 1
 

 
S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 B
O
A
R
D
 (
E
N
V
IR
O
N
M
E
N
T
 A
N
D
 N
E
IG
H
B
O
U
R
H
O
O
D
S
) 
W
O
R
K
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 (
D
E
C
E
M
B
E
R
) 
2
0
0
7
 

 

K
e
y
: 
 

C
C
F
A
 /
 R
F
S
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
a
ll 
fo
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
 /
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

P
M
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

M
S
R
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

B
 

B
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 (
In
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
a
re
a
s
 f
o
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
) 

R
P
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
o
lic
y
 

S
C
 

S
ta
tu
to
ry
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
P
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
n
e
w
 p
o
lic
y
 

C
I 

C
a
ll 
in
 

 

It
e
m
 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

N
o
te
s
 

T
y
p
e
 

o
f 
it
e
m
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
 –
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
 

W
a
s
te
 S
o
lu
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
L
e
e
d
s
 

T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

a
lo
n
g
s
id
e
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
th
e
 s
it
e
 s
e
le
c
ti
o
n
 r
e
p
o
rt
 
 

R
P
 

In
q
u
ir
y
 i
n
to
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 L
e
tt
in
g
 

P
re
s
s
u
re
s
 

T
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 s
e
s
s
io
n
 o
n
e
. 

P
ri
v
a
te
 b
ri
e
fi
n
g
 f
o
r 
th
e
 B
o
a
rd
 p
ri
o
r 

to
 f
o
rm

a
l 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
. 

R
P
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
 –
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
8
 

L
e
e
d
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
la
n
 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
g
re
e
d
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 

d
ra
ft
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
la
n
, 
w
h
ic
h
 t
a
k
e
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 i
n
it
ia
l 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
, 

p
ri
o
r 
to
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
’s
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

to
w
a
rd
 t
h
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 0
8
. 

 
D
P
 

In
q
u
ir
y
 i
n
to
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 L
e
tt
in
g
 

P
re
s
s
u
re
s
 

T
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 f
o
rm

a
l 
p
u
b
lic
 s
e
s
s
io
n
. 

 
R
P
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
to
 

th
e
 B
o
a
rd
’s
 r
e
m
it
. 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 f
o
r 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 i
n
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
. 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 109



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 1
 

 
S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 B
O
A
R
D
 (
E
N
V
IR
O
N
M
E
N
T
 A
N
D
 N
E
IG
H
B
O
U
R
H
O
O
D
S
) 
W
O
R
K
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 (
D
E
C
E
M
B
E
R
) 
2
0
0
7
 

 

K
e
y
: 
 

C
C
F
A
 /
 R
F
S
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
a
ll 
fo
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
 /
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

P
M
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

M
S
R
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

B
 

B
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 (
In
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
a
re
a
s
 f
o
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
) 

R
P
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
o
lic
y
 

S
C
 

S
ta
tu
to
ry
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
P
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
n
e
w
 p
o
lic
y
 

C
I 

C
a
ll 
in
 

 

It
e
m
 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

N
o
te
s
 

T
y
p
e
 

o
f 
it
e
m
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
 –
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
0
8
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 3

rd
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
. 

T
h
is
 i
s
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

w
ill
 b
e
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
’s
 

w
o
rk
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 e
v
e
ry
 t
h
re
e
 

m
o
n
th
s
. 

P
M
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
ra
c
k
in
g
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro
m
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 i
n
q
u
ir
ie
s
. 

 
P
M
 

L
e
e
d
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
la
n
 –
 d
ra
ft
 

in
d
ic
a
to
rs
 a
n
d
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 d
ra
ft
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 a
n
d
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
la
n
, 
p
ri
o
r 
to
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
’s
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 f
in
a
l 

d
ra
ft
 t
o
w
a
rd
 t
h
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 0
8
. 

 
D
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
 –
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
8
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

Page 110



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 1
 

 
S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 B
O
A
R
D
 (
E
N
V
IR
O
N
M
E
N
T
 A
N
D
 N
E
IG
H
B
O
U
R
H
O
O
D
S
) 
W
O
R
K
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 (
D
E
C
E
M
B
E
R
) 
2
0
0
7
 

 

K
e
y
: 
 

C
C
F
A
 /
 R
F
S
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
a
ll 
fo
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
 /
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

P
M
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

M
S
R
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

B
 

B
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 (
In
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
a
re
a
s
 f
o
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
) 

R
P
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
o
lic
y
 

S
C
 

S
ta
tu
to
ry
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
P
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
n
e
w
 p
o
lic
y
 

C
I 

C
a
ll 
in
 

 

It
e
m
 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

N
o
te
s
 

T
y
p
e
 

o
f 
it
e
m
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
 –
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
 

R
o
d
e
n
t 
C
o
n
tr
o
l 

6
-m

o
n
th
ly
 f
o
llo
w
-u
p
 r
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
g
re
e
d
 t
a
rg
e
t 
ti
m
e
s
. 

A
ll 
in
c
lu
d
e
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
p
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 

a
n
d
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
w
o
rk
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 

to
 d
a
te
/ 
p
la
n
n
e
d
. 

P
M
 

B
o
a
rd
’s
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 

T
o
 a
g
re
e
 t
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
’s
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 

 
 

 

U
n
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 I
te
m
s
 

L
e
e
d
s
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 M
a
rk
e
t 

T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
 o
u
tl
in
in
g
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
/ 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
im
e
d
 a
t 

a
d
d
re
s
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
ri
s
in
g
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 

M
a
rk
e
t 
R
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 p
re
v
io
u
s
ly
 p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
. 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 M
a
rk
e
t 

R
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 

in
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
. 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 P
ro
je
c
ts
 

T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 u
p
d
a
te
s
 o
n
 m
a
jo
r 
re
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

p
ro
je
c
ts
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 C
it
y
. 

 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
ro
u
n
d
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
E
s
ta
te
s
 

 
 

A
n
ti
 S
o
c
ia
l 
B
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 

 
 

B
ri
ta
in
’s
 C
le
a
n
e
s
t 
C
it
y
 (
to
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 

re
v
is
it
in
g
 t
h
e
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
) 

 
 

Page 111



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 1
 

 
S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 B
O
A
R
D
 (
E
N
V
IR
O
N
M
E
N
T
 A
N
D
 N
E
IG
H
B
O
U
R
H
O
O
D
S
) 
W
O
R
K
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 (
D
E
C
E
M
B
E
R
) 
2
0
0
7
 

 

K
e
y
: 
 

C
C
F
A
 /
 R
F
S
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
a
ll 
fo
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
 /
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

P
M
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

M
S
R
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

B
 

B
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 (
In
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
a
re
a
s
 f
o
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
) 

R
P
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
o
lic
y
 

S
C
 

S
ta
tu
to
ry
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
P
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
n
e
w
 p
o
lic
y
 

C
I 

C
a
ll 
in
 

   

W
o
rk
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
s
 

W
o
rk
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
 

M
e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 u
p
d
a
te
 

D
a
te
s
 o
f 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

C
O
2
 E
m
is
s
io
n
s
 i
n
q
u
ir
y
 

 
C
llr
 A
n
d
e
rs
o
n
 

C
llr
 A
 B
la
c
k
b
u
rn
 

F
ir
s
t 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 h
e
ld
 a
n
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

re
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
. 

P
re
lim

in
a
ry
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
d
 e
n
d
o
rs
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
. 

C
lim

a
te
 C
h
a
n
g
e
 e
v
e
n
ts
 h
e
ld
 a
t 

B
ra
d
fo
rd
 a
n
d
 W

a
k
e
fi
e
ld
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
. 

1
/1
1
/0
7
 

 F
u
rt
h
e
r 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 

fo
r 
7
/1
/0
8
 

 

Page 112



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 2
 

L
E
E
D
S
 C
IT
Y
 C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

 
F
O
R
W
A
R
D
 P
L
A
N
 O
F
 K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
S
 

F
o

r 
th

e
 p

e
ri
o

d
 1

 D
e

c
e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
0

7
 t
o

 3
1

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0
0

8
 

 

K
e
y
 D
e
c
is
io
n
s
 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 M
a
k
e
r 

E
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

D
a
te
 o
f 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 

C
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 D
e
c
is
io
n
 

M
a
k
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

(T
o

 w
h

o
m

 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 m

a
d
e

) 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
fo

r 
a

n
 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 S
e

a
rc

h
 a

n
d

 
S

e
le

c
ti
o
n

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 t

o
 L

e
e

d
s
 

C
it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

A
w

a
rd

 o
f 

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

 

A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
(C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

) 
  

1
/1

2
/0

7
 

C
lie

n
t 

D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ts
 

  

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
A

w
a

rd
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
 

A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 (
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

) 
 

W
a
iv

e
r 

o
f 

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

P
ro

c
e

d
u

re
 R

u
le

s
 

T
o
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e
 e

x
p

ir
e

d
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

w
it
h

 i
g
e

n
 L

td
 f
o

r 
2

2
 P

e
rs

o
n

a
l 
A

d
v
is

e
rs

 
w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 
d

u
ri
n

g
 t

ra
n

s
it
io

n
 f

ro
m

 p
re

 
1

6
 t
o

 p
o

s
t 

1
6

 l
e

a
rn

in
g
. 

V
a

lu
e

 £
7
0

6
,2

6
0

 

C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 o
f 

C
o

n
n

e
x
io

n
s
 W

e
s
t 

Y
o

rk
s
h

ir
e

 
  

3
/1

2
/0

7
 

  

C
o

n
n

e
x
io

n
s
 W

e
s
t 

Y
o

rk
s
h

ir
e

 L
e

e
d

s
 L

o
c
a

l 
M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 

  

R
e

p
o

rt
 t
o

 t
h
e

 C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 o
f 
W

e
s
t 

Y
o

rk
s
h

ir
e

 C
o

n
n

e
x
io

n
s
 

 

C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 o
f 

C
o

n
n

e
x
io

n
s
 W

e
s
t 

Y
o

rk
s
h

ir
e

 
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
H

R
 S

tr
u

c
tu

re
s
 

T
o
 a

g
re

e
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 H
R

 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

  

7
/1

2
/0

7
 

E
x
te

n
s
iv

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 T

ra
d

e
 U

n
io

n
s
 

a
n

d
 i
n

te
rn

a
l 

s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 

  

R
e

p
o

rt
 t
o

 t
h
e

 D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

R
e

s
o
u

rc
e

s
 

 

Page 113



 
K
e
y
 D
e
c
is
io
n
s
 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 M
a
k
e
r 

E
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

D
a
te
 o
f 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 

C
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 D
e
c
is
io
n
 

M
a
k
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

(T
o

 w
h

o
m

 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 m

a
d
e

) 

H
ig

h
w

a
y
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
 

P
ro

je
c
ts

 E
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t

o
 C

o
s
t 

in
 E

x
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
£
5

,0
0

0
 f
o

r 
In

c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n

 t
h
e

 H
ig

h
w

a
y
 

M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e
 C

a
p

it
a

l 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 2

0
0

8
/0

9
 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
it
y
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

  

1
0

/1
2

/0
7
 

E
a

c
h

 e
le

c
te

d
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
e

d
 o

n
 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 s

tr
e

e
ts

 i
n
 

th
e

ir
 w

a
rd

 d
u

ri
n

g
 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
0

7
 

  

R
e

p
o

rt
 t
o

 t
h
e

 D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
it
y
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

 

C
a

p
it
a

l 
In

je
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
B

S
F

 
a

n
d

 E
x
is

ti
n

g
 P

F
I 

IC
T

 
F

u
n

d
in

g
 

T
o
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 i
n

je
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 c
a

p
it
a

l 
a

n
d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

th
e

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 t
o

 s
p

e
n

d
 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 
(P

o
rt

fo
lio

: 
C

h
ild

re
n

's
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
) 

 

1
9

/1
2

/0
7
 

   

T
h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

e
n

t 
to

 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
a

g
e

n
d

a
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
e
e

ti
n
g
 

 

C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 o
f 

E
d

u
c
a
ti
o

n
 L

e
e

d
s
 

 

L
e

e
d

s
 C

lim
a

te
 C

h
a
n

g
e
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

T
o
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 d

ra
ft

 o
f 

th
e

 
L

e
e
d

s
 C

lim
a

te
 C

h
a
n

g
e
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

d
e

s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 
(P

o
rt

fo
lio

: 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

) 
 

1
9

/1
2

/0
7
 

T
h
e

 c
o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 f
o

r 
th

e
 d

ra
ft

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

ill
 

fo
c
u

s
 o

n
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 

w
it
h

 a
 s

ta
k
e

 i
n
 c

lim
a

te
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

, 
p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl
y
 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
, 

th
e

 p
u

b
lic

 
s
e

c
to

r 
a
n

d
 3

rd
 s

e
c
to

r.
 

M
e

m
b
e

rs
 b

ri
e
fi
n

g
s
 w

ill
 

b
e

 o
ff

e
re

d
. 
T

h
e

 p
u

b
lic

 
w

ill
 a

ls
o

 b
e

 i
n
fo

rm
e

d
 

th
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 w

e
b

s
it
e

 
a

n
d

 A
b

o
u

t 
L

e
e
d

s
. 

   

T
h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 b

e
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 t
o

 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

o
n

 m
a

k
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

a
g
e

n
d

a
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
e
e

ti
n
g
 

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
it
y
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
 

Page 114



 
K
e
y
 D
e
c
is
io
n
s
 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 M
a
k
e
r 

E
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

D
a
te
 o
f 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 

C
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 D
e
c
is
io
n
 

M
a
k
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

(T
o

 w
h

o
m

 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 m

a
d
e

) 

P
h

a
s
e
 T

w
o

 C
h

ild
re

n
's

 
C

e
n

tr
e

s
 i
n

 G
ip

to
n

 
O

b
ta

in
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
o

 i
n

c
u

r 
e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 
(P

o
rt

fo
lio

 :
 

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
) 

 

1
9

/1
2

/0
7
 

F
u

ll 
lo

c
a

l 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 g

o
in

g
 o

n
 f
o

r 
2

 y
e

a
rs

 
  

T
h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 b

e
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 t
o

 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
a

g
e

n
d

a
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
e
e

ti
n
g
 

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

 

Page 115



 
K
e
y
 D
e
c
is
io
n
s
 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 M
a
k
e
r 

E
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

D
a
te
 o
f 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 

C
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 D
e
c
is
io
n
 

M
a
k
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

(T
o

 w
h

o
m

 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 m

a
d
e

) 

F
o

rm
a

ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 G
a

rf
o
rt

h
 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 T

ru
s
t 

T
o
 n

o
te

 t
h

e
 f
o

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 G

a
rf

o
rt

h
 S

c
h
o

o
ls

 T
ru

s
t 

a
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
o
f 

la
n

d
 a

n
d

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 a

s
s
e

ts
 

fr
o
m

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

to
 T

ru
s
t 

o
w

n
e

rs
h

ip
. 

 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 
(P

o
rt

fo
lio

: 
C

h
ild

re
n

's
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
) 

 

1
9

/1
2

/0
7
 

T
h

e
s
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p
e

d
 a

n
d

 p
u

rs
u
e

d
 b

y
 t
h

e
 

s
c
h
o

o
ls

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
e
d

, 
le

d
 b

y
 

G
a

rf
o

rt
h

 C
o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 C

o
lle

g
e

. 
A

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

c
h

a
n
g

e
 o

f 
s
c
h

o
o

l 
s
ta

tu
s
 a

n
d

 
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 T

ru
s
t,

 a
 

d
e

ta
ile

d
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 o
f 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e
n

 w
it
h

(a
m

o
n

g
s
t 

o
th

e
rs

) 
lo

c
a

l 
s
c
h
o

o
ls

/e
d
u

c
a
ti
o
n

a
l 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

ts
, 

th
e

 l
o

c
a
l 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

, 
D

io
c
e

s
a

n
 

re
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

s
, 
s
ta

ff
 ,

 u
n

io
n

s
, 

L
C

C
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a

rd
, 
L

o
c
a

l 
C

o
u

n
c
ill

o
rs

 a
n

d
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
P

a
rl

ia
m

e
n

t.
 R

e
s
p

o
n
s
e
s
 w

e
re

 
fe

d
 b

a
c
k
 t

o
 g

o
v
e

rn
in

g
 b

o
d

ie
s
 

a
n

d
 w

e
re

 o
v
e

rw
h

e
lm

in
g

ly
 

p
o

s
it
iv

e
. 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
e

ta
ils

 o
n

 t
h

e
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 

m
a

d
e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 u

p
o
n

 r
e
q

u
e
s
t.
 

P
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 f

o
r 

a
s
s
e

t 
tr

a
n

s
fe

r 
w

ill
 b

e
 d

is
c
u

s
s
e

d
 b

y
 E

d
u

c
a

ti
o
n
 

L
e

e
d
s
 C

a
p
it
a

l 
P

ro
je

c
ts

 B
o

a
rd

 
a

n
d

 L
C

C
 A

s
s
e
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
G

ro
u

p
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
B

o
a

rd
 d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
. 

T
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
ils

 P
ro

p
e

rt
y
 a

n
d

 F
in

a
n

c
e

 
L

e
g

a
l 
te

a
m

 a
n

d
 A

s
s
e

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
te

a
m

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n
 

in
v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 

th
ro

u
g
h

o
u

t.
  

  
  

 

  

T
h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 b

e
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 t
o

 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
a

g
e

n
d

a
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
e
e

ti
n
g
 

 

C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 o
f 

E
d

u
c
a
ti
o

n
 L

e
e

d
s
 

 

Page 116



 
K
e
y
 D
e
c
is
io
n
s
 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 M
a
k
e
r 

E
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

D
a
te
 o
f 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 

C
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 D
e
c
is
io
n
 

M
a
k
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

(T
o

 w
h

o
m

 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 m

a
d
e

) 

H
o

m
e

 E
n
e

rg
y
 

C
o

n
s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
 A

c
t 
1

1
th

 
R

e
p

o
rt

 
A

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
fo

r 
re

le
a

s
e

 t
o
 

D
E

F
R

A
, 

s
ig

n
in

g
 o

ff
 b

y
 

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
p

ri
o

r 
to

 
re

le
a

s
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 3

0
 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

d
e

a
d

lin
e

 a
n
d

 f
o

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
B

o
a

rd
. 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 
(P

o
rt

fo
lio

: 
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o
o

d
s
 

a
n

d
 H

o
u

s
in

g
) 

 

1
9

/1
2

/0
7
 

N
o

n
e

 
  

T
h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 b

e
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 t
o

 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
a

g
e

n
d

a
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
e
e

ti
n
g
 

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s
 

 

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

to
 a

llo
w

 
a

d
v
e

rt
is

in
g
 o

n
 a

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n
e

d
 s

tr
e

e
t 

lig
h

ti
n

g
 

c
o

lu
m

n
s
 i
n

 L
e

e
d

s
 

T
h
e

 l
e

tt
in

g
 o

f 
a
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
fo

r 
a

d
v
e

rt
is

in
g
 o

n
 a

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n
e

d
 s

tr
e

e
t 

lig
h

ti
n

g
 

c
o

lu
m

n
s
 i
n

 
L

e
e
d

s
(e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 C
it
y
 

C
e

n
tr

e
) 

2
0

0
7

-2
0

2
2
. 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 
(P

o
rt

fo
lio

: 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

) 
 

1
9

/1
2

/0
7
 

L
e

g
a

l 
a

n
d

 D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

P
P

U
 a

n
d

 a
ll 

a
ff

e
c
te

d
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
  

  
 

  

T
h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 b

e
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 t
o

 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
a

g
e

n
d

a
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
e
e

ti
n
g
 

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
it
y
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

 

Page 117



 
K
e
y
 D
e
c
is
io
n
s
 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 M
a
k
e
r 

E
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

D
a
te
 o
f 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 

C
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 D
e
c
is
io
n
 

M
a
k
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

(T
o

 w
h

o
m

 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 m

a
d
e

) 

L
E

E
D

S
/B

R
A

D
F

O
R

D
 

C
o

rr
id

o
r 

P
ro

je
c
t 

T
o
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 j
o

in
t 

w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 
B

ra
d
fo

rd
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 
L

e
e
d

s
/B

ra
d
fo

rd
 c

o
rr

id
o
r.

  

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 
(P

o
rt

fo
lio

: 
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o
o

d
s
 

a
n

d
 H

o
u

s
in

g
) 

 

1
9

/1
2

/0
7
 

A
lr
e

a
d

y
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u
t 

w
it
h

 p
a

rt
n

e
r 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 e

g
 

M
E

T
R

O
, 
W

N
W

 H
o

m
e

s
 

L
e

e
d

s
 ,

 F
ir
e

b
ir
d

. 
A

ll 
b

o
d

ie
s
 a

re
 

re
p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 W
o

rk
in

g
 

G
ro

u
p

. 
  

T
h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 b

e
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 t
o

 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
a

g
e

n
d

a
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
e
e

ti
n
g
 

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s
 

 

L
e

e
d

s
 L

o
c
a

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 -
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

0
7

 
A

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
p

ri
o

r 
to

 
s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 t
o

 t
h
e

 
S

e
c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 b

y
 3

1
s
t  

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
7
. 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 
(P

o
rt

fo
lio

: 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

) 
 

1
9

/1
2

/0
7
 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
a

n
d

 M
e
m

b
e

r 
b

ri
e

fi
n

g
s
, 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
 P

a
n

e
l 

  

T
h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 b

e
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 t
o

 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
a

g
e

n
d

a
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
e
e

ti
n
g
 

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
it
y
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
 

L
e

e
d

s
 L

o
c
a

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 -
 W

e
s
t 
L

e
e
d

s
 

G
a

te
w

a
y
 A

re
a

 A
c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

 O
p

ti
o
n

s
 

A
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
fo

r 
p
u

b
lic

 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
in

g
 

in
 E

a
rl
y
 2

0
0

8
. 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 
(P

o
rt

fo
lio

: 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

) 
 

1
9

/1
2

/0
7
 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
a

n
d

 M
e
m

b
e

r 
B

ri
e

fi
n

g
s
, 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
P

la
n

 
P

a
n

e
l 

  

T
h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 b

e
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 t
o

 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
a

g
e

n
d

a
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
e
e

ti
n
g
 

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
it
y
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
 

Page 118



 
K
e
y
 D
e
c
is
io
n
s
 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 M
a
k
e
r 

E
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

D
a
te
 o
f 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 

C
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 D
e
c
is
io
n
 

M
a
k
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

(T
o

 w
h

o
m

 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 m

a
d
e

) 

R
e

g
io

n
a

l 
S

p
a

ti
a

l 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 -

 
P

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 C

h
a

n
g
e

s
 -

 L
e

e
d

s
 

C
it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

s
 

A
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
p

ri
o

r 
to

 f
o

rm
a
l 

s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 t
o

 t
h
e

 
S

e
c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 

(D
e

a
d

lin
e

 3
1

s
t  D

e
c
e

m
b
e

r 
2

0
0
7

).
 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 
(P

o
rt

fo
lio

: 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

) 
 

1
9

/1
2

/0
7
 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
a

n
d

 M
e
m

b
e

r 
b

ri
e

fi
n

g
s
, 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
 P

a
n

e
l 

  

T
h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 b

e
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 t
o

 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
a

g
e

n
d

a
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
e
e

ti
n
g
 

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
it
y
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
 

R
o

u
n

d
h

a
y
 R

o
a

d
 P

ro
p
o
s
e

d
 

H
O

V
 S

c
h
e

m
e

 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
o

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

t 
th

e
 

H
O

V
 l
a

n
e
 a

n
d

 e
x
te

n
s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
s
 l
a
n

e
 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 
(P

o
rt

fo
lio

: 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

) 
 

1
9

/1
2

/0
7
 

L
e

a
d

 M
e
m

b
e

r,
 W

a
rd

 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
, 
W

e
s
t 

Y
o

rk
s
h

ir
e

 P
a

s
s
e

n
g
e

r 
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
(W

Y
P

T
E

),
 B

u
s
 

O
p

e
ra

to
rs

 a
n
d

 
F

ro
n

ta
g
e

rs
 

  

T
h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 b

e
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 t
o

 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
a

g
e

n
d

a
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
e
e

ti
n
g
 

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
it
y
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
 

L
e

e
d

s
 W

e
s
t 

E
n

d
 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 -
 M

e
m

o
ra

n
d

u
m

 
o
f 

U
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
 

T
o
 a

g
re

e
 t
o

 t
h
e

 p
ri
n

c
ip

le
 o

f 
e

s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 a

 
M

e
m

o
ra

n
d

u
m

 o
f 

U
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
 a

n
d

 t
o

 
a

g
re

e
 w

it
h

 i
ts

 c
o

n
te

n
ts

 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 
(P

o
rt

fo
lio

: 
C

it
y
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t)
 

 

2
3

/1
/0

8
 

L
e

g
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

W
e
s
t 
E

n
d
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

B
o

a
rd

 S
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 

  

T
h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 b

e
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 t
o

 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
a

g
e

n
d

a
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
e
e

ti
n
g
 

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
it
y
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
 

Page 119



 
K
e
y
 D
e
c
is
io
n
s
 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 M
a
k
e
r 

E
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

D
a
te
 o
f 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 

C
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 D
e
c
is
io
n
 

M
a
k
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

(T
o

 w
h

o
m

 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 m

a
d
e

) 

O
tl
e

y
 -

 H
e

a
v
y
 G

o
o

d
s
 

V
e

h
ic

le
 T

ra
ff

ic
 

T
o
 s

e
e

k
 a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
fo

r 
p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 f

o
r 

H
G

V
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 t

h
e

 O
tl
e

y
 

a
re

a
. 

 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 
(P

o
rt

fo
lio

: 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

) 
 

2
3

/1
/0

8
 

W
a
rd

 M
e
m

b
e

rs
, 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
ri
n

g
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 

  

T
h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 b

e
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 t
o

 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
a

g
e

n
d

a
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
e
e

ti
n
g
 

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
it
y
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
 

T
o

w
n

 a
n
d

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

e
n

tr
e

s
 

P
a

rk
in

g
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 a

n
d

 
P

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 

T
o
 n

o
te

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

te
n

ts
 a

n
d

 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

T
o

w
n

 a
n
d

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

e
n

tr
e

s
 

P
a

rk
in

g
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 a

n
d

 
P

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 S

tu
d

y
, 

a
n

d
 t
o
 

a
p

p
ro

v
e

 r
e

c
o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti
o

n
s
 

fo
r 

th
e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

lo
c
a

l 
p

a
rk

in
g
 s

tr
a

te
g
ie

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 c
e

n
tr

e
s
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 
re

p
o

rt
. 

 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 
(P

o
rt

fo
lio

: 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

) 
 

2
3

/1
/0

8
 

N
o

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 

a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 

re
p

o
rt

. 
T

h
e

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 
c
e

n
tr

e
s
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e

d
 

in
 t

h
e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e

 
p

ro
g
re

s
s
e

d
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 

a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
b

y
 E

le
c
te

d
 

M
e

m
b
e

rs
 t

o
 t
h

e
 

d
e

ta
ile

d
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 

s
ta

g
e

. 
  

T
h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 b

e
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 t
o

 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
a

g
e

n
d

a
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
e
e

ti
n
g
 

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
it
y
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
 

W
a
s
te

 D
is

p
o

s
a

l 
C

o
n

tr
a
c
t 

E
x
te

n
s
io

n
 

T
o
 e

x
te

n
d

 t
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
w

a
s
te

 d
is

p
o

s
a

l 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

b
y
 

6
 m

o
n

th
s
. 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
it
y
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

  

1
/2

/0
8
 

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
  

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

D
o

c
u
m

e
n
ts

 
 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
it
y
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

 

Page 120



 
K
e
y
 D
e
c
is
io
n
s
 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 M
a
k
e
r 

E
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

D
a
te
 o
f 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 

C
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 D
e
c
is
io
n
 

M
a
k
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

(T
o

 w
h

o
m

 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 m

a
d
e

) 

B
ri
d

g
e

 C
a

p
it
a

l 
M

a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e
 2

0
0

8
/0

9
 

A
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
o
f 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

in
g
 a

n
d

 
m

a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 t
o

 i
n

c
u

r 
e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
it
y
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
  

8
/2

/0
8
 

W
a
rd

 m
e
m

b
e

rs
 w

ill
 b

e
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
e

d
 a

t 
th

e
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 t

im
e
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 c
o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 
  

L
T

P
 S

e
tt

le
m

e
n

t 
2
0

0
8

/0
9

 
 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
it
y
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
 

 

Page 121



  N
O
T
E
S
 

 K
e

y
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
  
a

re
 t
h

o
s
e

 e
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 d
e

c
is

io
n

s
: 

•
 

w
h

ic
h

 r
e

s
u

lt
 i
n

 t
h
e

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 i
n

c
u

rr
in

g
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 o

r 
m

a
k
in

g
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 o

v
e

r 
£

5
0

0
,0

0
0

 p
e

r 
a

n
n
u

m
, 
o

r 

•
 

a
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
e
ff

e
c
t 

o
n

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 l
iv

in
g
 o

r 
w

o
rk

in
g
 i
n

 a
n

 a
re

a
 c

o
m

p
ri
s
in

g
 t

w
o

 o
r 

m
o

re
 w

a
rd

s
 

 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 P
o
rt
fo
li
o
s

 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 M
e
m
b
e
r 

 

C
e

n
tr

a
l 
a
n

d
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

M
a

rk
 H

a
rr

is
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 R

e
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

A
n
d

re
w

 C
a

rt
e

r 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

S
te

v
e

 S
m

it
h
 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s
 a

n
d
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

J
o

h
n

 L
e

s
lie

 C
a

rt
e

r 

L
e

is
u

re
 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

J
o

h
n

 P
ro

c
te

r 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
  

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

R
ic

h
a

rd
 B

re
tt

 

L
e

a
rn

in
g
 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

R
ic

h
a

rd
 H

a
rk

e
r 

A
d

u
lt
 H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n
d

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 
C

o
u

n
c
ill

o
r 

P
e

te
r 

H
a

rr
a
n

d
 

L
e

a
d

e
r 

o
f 

th
e

 L
a

b
o
u

r 
G

ro
u

p
 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

K
e

it
h

 W
a
k
e
fi
e

ld
 

L
e

a
d

e
r 

o
f 

th
e

 M
o

rl
e

y
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

 
In

d
e
p

e
n
d

e
n

t 
G

ro
u

p
 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

R
o

b
e

rt
 F

in
n

ig
a

n
 

A
d

v
is

o
ry

 M
e

m
b

e
r 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

J
u

d
it
h

 B
la

k
e
 

 In
 c

a
s
e

s
 w

h
e

re
 K

e
y
 D

e
c
is

io
n

s
 t
o

 b
e
 t

a
k
e

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 a
re

 n
o

t 
in

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n
 t

h
e

 P
la

n
, 

5
 d

a
y
s
 n

o
ti
c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 i
n

te
n

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

a
k
e
 s

u
c
h

 
d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 g

iv
e

n
 b

y
 w

a
y
 o

f 
th

e
 a

g
e

n
d

a
 f
o

r 
th

e
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 m
e
e

ti
n

g
. 

 

Page 122



   
L
E
E
D
S
 C
IT
Y
 C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 A
N
D
 P
O
L
IC
Y
 F
R
A
M
E
W
O
R
K
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
S
 

 D
e
c
is
io
n
s
 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 M
a
k
e
r 

E
x
p
e
c
te
d
 D
a
te
 o
f 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 M
a
k
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

  
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 N
O
T
E
S
: 

T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 C

o
n

s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
, 

in
 A

rt
ic

le
 4

, 
d

e
fi
n

e
s
 t

h
o

s
e

 p
la

n
s
 a

n
d

 s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 w

h
ic

h
 m

a
k
e

 u
p

 t
h

e
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
a

n
d
 P

o
lic

y
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

. 
D

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 a

re
 p

u
b

lis
h
e

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 P
la

n
 a

s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 B
u

d
g
e

t 
a
n

d
 P

o
lic

y
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

. 
 

 F
u

ll 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

( 
a

 m
e
e

ti
n
g
 o

f 
a

ll 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
C

o
u

n
c
il)

 a
re

 r
e

s
p
o

n
s
ib

le
 f
o

r 
th

e
 a

d
o

p
ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 B
u

d
g
e

t 
a

n
d
 P

o
lic

y
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

. 

Page 123



Page 124

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Minutes and Matters Arising from Previous Meeting
	7 Minutes of the Executive Board
	8 Waste Solution for Leeds
	Annex 1- Executive Board Report
	Annex 2 - Site Selection Study Report

	9 Work Programme
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2


